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THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

The Inter-American Development Bank, the oldest and largest regional multilateral development institution, was established 
in December of 1959 to help accelerate economic and social development in Latin America and the Caribbean. 

The Bank was created in response to a longstanding desire on the part of the Latin American nations for a develop
ment institution that would focus on the pressing problems of the region. A resolution calling for the creation of such a bank 
was adopted at the First International American Conference, held in Washington, D.C. in 1890. In 1958 President Juscelino 
Kubitschek of Brazil proposed that the countries of the Hemisphere embark upon a bold cooperative effort to promote the 
economic and social development of the region. His proposal received support from throughout the Hemisphere and shortly 
thereafter a special committee of the Organization of American States drafted the Articles of Agreement Establishing the 
Inter-American Development Bank. 

The Bank's original membership included 19 Latin American and Caribbean countries and the United States. 
Subsequently, eight other Western Hemisphere nations, including Canada, joined the Bank. Belize became the most recent 
regional member when it joined the Bank in 1992. From the beginning, the Bank developed links with many industrialized 
countries on other continents and in 1974 the Declaration of Madrid was signed to formalize their entry into the Bank. 
Seventeen nonregional countries joined the Bank between 1976 and 1986. Today Bank membership totals 46 nations. 

In its 33 years of operations, the Bank has become a major catalyst in mobilizing resources for the region. The 
Bank's Charter states that its principal functions are to utilize its own capital, funds raised by it in financial markets, and 
other available resources, for financing the development of the borrowing member countries; to supplement private invest
ment when private capital is not available on reasonable terms and conditions; and to provide technical assistance for the 
preparation, financing, and implementation of development plans and projects. 

In carrying out its mission, the Bank has mobilized financing for projects that represent a total investment of $170 
billion. The Bank's annual lending has grown dramatically from the $294 million in loans approved in 1961 to $6 billion in 
1993. 

The Bank's operations cover the entire spectrum of economic development, with particular emphasis on the pro
ductive sectors of agriculture and industry, the physical infrastructure sectors of energy and transportation and the social 
sectors of environmental and public health, education and urban development. 

During the 1960s and 1970s, the Bank was a pioneer in financing social projects such as health and education. In 
fact, the Bank's first loan, approved in February of 1961, was for improving the water and sewage system of Arequipa, Peru. 
Its innovative Small Projects Program seeks to provide small financings to microentrepreneurs and small-scale farmers and 
since 1990 the Bank has broadened its support to the informal sector. The Bank has made an effort to see to it that its 
lending operations directly benefit low-income populations. In recent years, the Bank has financed sector reform loans and 
debt reduction programs. 

The financial resources of the Bank consist of ordinary capital resources—comprised of subscribed capital, reserves 
and funds raised through borrowings—and Funds in Administration, comprised of contributions made by member coun
tries. It should be noted that member countries' subscriptions to the Bank's capital fund consist of paid-in and callable capi
tal. A paid-in subscription is in the form of a cash payment and represents a minor portion of a member 's subscription (under 
the Seventh General Increase in the Resources of the Bank, the paid-in portion represents only 2.5 percent of a member 's 
subscription). The major part of a member 's subscription is in the form of callable capital—or guarantees of the Bank's 
borrowings in the world's financial markets. The Bank also has a Fund for Special Operations for lending on concessional 
terms for projects in countries classified as economically less developed. 

The Bank has borrowed funds for its ordinary operations from the capital markets of Europe, Japan , Latin America, 
the Caribbean and the United States. The Bank's debt is AAA rated by the three major rating services in the United States, 
and is accorded equivalent status in the other major capital markets. 

The Board of Governors is the Bank's highest authority, on which each member country is represented. Governors 
are usually Ministers of Finance, Presidents of Central Banks or officers of comparable rank. The Board of Governors has 
delegated many of its operational powers to the Board of Executive Directors, which is responsible for the conduct of the 
Bank's operations. 

The Bank has Country Offices in each of its regional member countries, as well as in Paris. Headquarters are in 
Washington, D.C. 
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COVER: AXOCHIAPAN, PUEBLA, MEXICO. Andrés 
Aragón López, administrator of water operations for a portion 
of the 3,000-hectare Los Carros-Cayehuacan Irrigation Dis
trict some 150 km south of Mexico City. Construction of 37 
km of main and secondary canals has enabled over 1,000 farm 

families to grow up to three crops ayear. Before irrigation, pro
ducers were forced to migrate north during the dry season to look 

for other work. Once the works have been completed, the 
government's Comisión Nacional del Agua will turn over op
eration and maintenance to two user associations. The IDB 
share in the $1.25 billion national program was a $200 mil
lion loan approved in 1991. 



THIRTY-THREE YEARS OF OPERATIONS 

L o a n s , T e c h n i c a l C o o p e r a t i o n , and Smal l Projects 

• The Bank has approved 2,101 loans totaling $63 bil
lion. The total investment in projects financed with the help 
of the Bank is estimated at $170 billion. 

• The Bank has committed a total of $2 billion for tech
nical cooperation. Of this, $1,091 million has been extended 
on a grant or contingent recovery basis. Another $938 mil
lion in reimbursable technical cooperation has been ex
tended for preinvestment purposes or as additional parts of 
specific loans to ensure the optimal execution of projects. 

• A total of $164.7 million has been approved for the 
financing of Small Projects. 

R e s o u r c e M o b i l i z a t i o n 

The subscribed capital of the Bank totaled $64.1 billion 
as of December 31, 1993. This includes cumulative subscrip
tions to the ordinary capital of $54.1 billion; contributions 
totaling $8.7 billion to the Fund for Special Operations; and 
$1.2 billion in other funds entrusted to the Bank. 

Lending by Sector 

•Agriculture and Fisheries: 486 loans for $10.9 billion 
have helped to finance agricultural and fisheries projects 
costing a total of $25.4 billion. 

• Energy: 257 loans for $14.2 billion have helped to fi
nance $53.2 billion in projects in the energy sector. 

• Industry and Mining: 257 loans amounting to $6.4 
billion for projects whose total cost is $28.7 billion. 

• Transportation and Communications: 268 loans with 
a value of $8.9 billion have contributed to the execution of 
projects with a combined cost of $20.5 billion. 

• Environmental and Public Health: 285 loans for $7.4 
billion as part of projects with a total cost of $15.3 billion. 

• Education, Science and Technology: 167 loans for 
$2.7 billion have financed projects costing $5.3 billion all 
told. 

Urban Development: 1 14 loans for $2.7 billion as part 
of financing for projects with a combined worth of $5 bil
lion. 

• Export Financing: 43 loans for S 1.1 billion as part of 
a total portfolio of $1.6 billion. 

• Tourism and Microenterprise: 33 loans for $963 mil
lion have helped to finance projects worth $1.9 billion. 

• Preinvestment: 102 global preinvestment loans for 
S497 million as part of projects with a total cost of $920 mil
lion. 

• Planning and Reform: 70 loans for $5.6 billion, to
ward projects totaling $8.4 billion. 

• Other: 19 multisector loans for $1.3 billion as part of 
projects with a total cost of $3 billion. 

M e m b e r C o u n t r i e s 

Argentina 
Austria 
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Barbados 
Belgium 
Belize 
Bolivia 

Brazil 
Canada 
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France 
Germany 
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PRESIDENT'S LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

inter-American Development Bank 
Washington, D.C. 

February 23, 1994 

Mr. Chairman: 

Pursuant to Section 2 of the By-Laws of the Inter-American Development Bank, I transmit to you the Annual Report of 
the Bank for 1993, which the Board of Executive Directors submits to the Board of Governors. 

The Report contains a brief summary of the economic situation of Latin America and a review of the Bank's activi
ties in 1993. 

In addition, the Report contains a description on a country-by-country basis and a regional basis of the Bank's vari
ous operations—loans, financings for small projects and technical cooperation—on behalf of Latin America's develop
ment; a summary statement of the loans approved in 1993; a series of tables of selected data on the region; the financial 
statements of the Bank, and its general appendices. 

Complying with Article III, Section 3(a), of the Agreement Establishing the Bank, the Report contains separate au
dited financial statements for its various sources of funds. For the ordinary capital resources, these are presented pursu
ant to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 6(a), of the Agreement; for the Fund for Special Operations, in accordance 
with the provisions of Article IV, Section 8(d), of the Agreement; for lhe Intermediate Financing Facility Account, 
complying with Section 5(d) of Resolution AG-12/83 of the Board of Governors; for the Social Progress Trust Fund, 
pursuant to Section 5.04 of the Agreement signed between the Government of the United States and the Bank; and for 
the Venezuelan Trust Fund, in accordance with Article VI, Section 24, of the Agreement signed between the Govern
ment of Venezuela and the Bank. 

Sincerely yours, 

Enrique V. Iglesias 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 



TABLE I. TEN YEARS OF OPERATIONS, 1984-93 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 

CAPITAI 
Subscriptions (End of Year) 

Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

BORROWINGS 
Outstanding (End of Year) 
Gross Annual Borrowings 

OPERATIONS 
Loans Authorized (Cumulative)1 

Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 
Loans Authorized (Annual)2 

Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

Loan Disbursements (Annual) 
Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 
Loan Repayments (Annual) 

Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 
Loans Outstanding 

Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 
Nonreimbursable Technical 
Cooperation (Annual) 

Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
Income 

Loans 
Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 

Investments 
Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 

Net Income 
Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations3 

Reserves (End of Period): 
Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 

ADMINISTRATION 
Administrative Expenses 

Total—All Funds 

24,537 
8,305 
1,180 

34,022 36,258 43,681 43,686 43,733 44,043 

6,132 
1,763 

17,511 
8,984 
1,277 

3,215 
307 
45 

3,567 

1,759 
568 
50 

335 
177 
78 

590 

6,258 
4,709 
519 

40 
8 
48 

543 
107 

271 
39 

252 
71 

1,923 
458 

145 

26,714 
8,362 
1.182 

34,073 
8.420 
1,188 

34,083 
8,476 
1,127 

34,083 
8,458 
1,192 

34,455 
8,458 
1,130 

40,994 
8,702 
1,172 

50,868 

41,063 
8,704 
1,191 

50,958 

54,174 54,198 
8,667 8,649 
1,207 1,256 

64,048 64,103 

9,366 
2,333 

21,056 
9,150 
1.314 

12,115 
1,911 

24,772 
9,354 
1,312 

15,225 
1,115 

28,658 
9,664 
1,369 

14,266 
902 

28,466 
9,733 
1,426 

14,630 
1,984 

30,113 
10,038 
1,448 

17,273 
1,830 

35,021 
10,475 
1,499 

19,656 
3,428 

39,223* 
11,040 
1,556 

21,390 23,424 
5,074 3,941 

43,818 49,608 
11,381 11,756 
1,571 1,607 

27,772 31,520 35,438 39,691 39,625 41,599 46,995 51,819 56,770 62,971 

2,766 
251 
44 

2,706 
292 
39 

1,957 
346 
58 

:,474 
154 
54 

2,235 
342 
41 

3,315 
517 
49 

4,734* 
625 
60 

5,534 
459 
30 

3,061 3,037 2,361 

,781 
504 
58 

1,742 
478 
45 

1,574 
290 
55 

,942 
321 
65 

2,193 
311 
45 

2,129 
329 
49 

2,804 
296 
51 

2,377 2,343 2,265 1,919 2,328 2,549 2,507 3,151 

382 519 
187 202 
74 60 

643 781 

646 
205 
78 

929 

850 
232 

78 
L160 

8.586 
5,072 

497 

11,166 
5,359 

452 
11,486 14,155 16,977 

14.119 
5,452 

433 
2 0 , 0 0 4 2 0 , 3 0 8 

14,342 
5,544 

422 

1,069 
229 
77 

1,375 

17,728 
5,747 

359 
21,298 23,834 

935 
219 
68 

1,222 

15,281 
5,631 

386 

1,440 
340 
108 

1,888 

19,260 
5,716 

307 
25,283 

1,504 
299 

70_ 
1,873 

35 
6 

10 
10 

35 
12 

40 
16 

44 
17 41 

41 
10 

41 20 47 56 61 57 140 51 

695 
110 

311 
29 

271 
64 

2,207 
471 

945 
114 

367 
40 

286 
79 

2,537 
528 

1,145 
120 

344 
48 

282 
94 

2,882 
567 

1,221 
111 

329 
62 

238 
50 

3,070 
559 

1,165 
103 

370 
73 

221 
48 

3,296 
546 

1,418 
126 

449 
74 

341 
47 

3,711 
539 

529 
61 

394 
131 

4,062 
539 

547 
59 

382 
85 

155 165 170 171 184 202 220 256 

5,492 
423 
48 

1,682 2,618 3,881 5,419 6,023 5,963 

2,781 3,336 
387 381 
_27̂  15 

3,195 3,732 

1,788 
270 
43 

2,101 

20.098 22,179 
5,818 5,932 

378 223 
26,124 28,334 

87 
17 

104 

1,675 1,620 1,864 
158 128 126 

482 
54 

395 

4,360 4,758 
552 534 

273 
1 Net of cancellations. Includes currency translation adjustments. 
2 Based on original amounts in U.S. dollar equivalent. 
3 Income before Technical Cooperation expense. 
* Includes loans totaling $1,711.8 million which were conditionally authorized under resolutions which did not enter Into effect until January 1992. 





LATIN AMERICA AND 
THE CARIBBEAN 

IN 1993 

Nineteen ninety-three marked the third successive year 
of positive economic growth in Latin America and the 
Caribbean as the regional Gross Domestic Product grew 
at an estimated rate of 3.3 percent. In most countries this 
strengthening of economic activity was accompanied by 
further reductions in the rate of inflation in an environ
ment of enhanced macroeconomic stability. New, sizable 
inflows of foreign capital were testimony to the increas
ing confidence of the international community and world 
financial markets in the prospects for continued economic 
expansion and price stability in the region. Despite the 
uncertainty and slow growth lingering in the world 
economy, the prospect for increased market access asso
ciated with the successful conclusion of the GATT and 
NAFTA negotiations and the momentum gained in the 
implementation of structural, market-oriented reforms 
suggest a favorable outlook for the region. 

Several features of the region's economic performance 
in 1993 stand out. When compared with the previous 
year, 1993 saw a broader number of countries sharing in 
the output growth of the region. Brazil, in particular, was 
able to attain strong growth stemming from rapid expan
sion of exports and increased consumer spending. Nine 
countries grew at rates between 3 and 5 percent and six 
countries at rates between zero and 3 percent. The coun
tries that achieved high rates of growth in 1992 (notably 
Argentina, Belize, Chile, Costa Rica and Uruguay) were 
generally those that moved toward more sustainable ex
pansion in 1993. Panama and Guyana maintained high 
rates of growth during both years. Among the seven larg
est countries, which together account for more than 95 
percent of regional output, only Mexico and Venezuela 
had rates of growth below 2 percent. Besides Brazil, out
put growth was also strong in Argentina (5.5 percent), 

PORT OF HAINA, DOMINICAN REPUBLIC. Grain is 
loaded on to a truck at this port, located 16 km west of Santo 
Domingo at the mouth of lhe Haina River. Bank loans in 1975 
and 1985 have helped with the modernization of a facility first 
constructed in 1950, including rebuilding of breakwaters that 
had been battered by hurricanes: dredging; and the repair of 
navigation aids. 

Chile (6.0 percent), Colombia (4.3 percent) and Peru (7.0 
percent). As rates of inflation fell throughout the region, 
increased flows of trade and foreign direct investment 
provided room for the consolidation of fiscal reforms be
gun in prior years. Governments recognized the need to 
address a pressing social agenda. 

Further Reductions in Inflation 

In most cases, the gains in economic growth were accom
panied by lower inflation levels. In 20 of the 26 Bank-
member countries of the region, inflation either de
creased or was maintained at levels similar to those of the 
previous year. Considerable reduction of inflationary 
pressures was attained in some of the larger countries. In 
Mexico, the average annual inflation rate declined from 
15.5 percent in 1992 to 9.8 percent in 1993; in Argen
tina it fell from 24.9 to 10.7 percent; and in Chile from 
15.6 to 12.5 percent. In Colombia, although the decrease 
was proportionately smaller (from 27 to 23 percent), in
flation reached its lowest level in six years. Although rates 
remain high in Peru and Uruguay, significant declines 
were also obtained in those countries. Among the smaller 
countries, Jamaica, with a reduction from 77.3 to 30 per
cent, Ecuador (from 54.6 to 36 percent), Costa Rica (from 
21.8 to 12 percent), and Guyana (from 26.3 to 10 per
cent) stand out as having made significant progress in 
achieving price stability. Brazil, where inflation increased 
from 1,000 percent in 1992 to 1,800 percent in 1993, 
constitutes an exception to the overall trend. 

Foreign Trade and the Current Account 

Exports from the region expanded by 3.6 percent in real 
terms in 1993. As in previous years, export performance 
was affected by several trends prevailing in the world 
economy. First, despite the performance of the United 
States, economic activity in the industrial countries 
generally weakened in 1993. Japan and most countries 
in continental Europe were either in recession or experi
encing sluggish growth. Secondly, as a consequence of 
reduced demand, most commodity prices continued to 
decline. The spot price of oil fell from S18 per barrel in 
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TABLE II. GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT 
(In percent) 

Country 

Proportion of Regional GDP 
Averages 

Real Growth Rates 
Annual Averages Annual 

1970 
1979 

1980 
1989 

1990 
1993 

1960 
1969 

1970 
1979 

1980 
1989 1990 1991 1992 1993p 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

19.2 
0.3 
0.2 

0.9 
31.8 

3.4 
4.2 
0.5 
0.5 
1.3 

0.9 
1.0 
0.1 
0.2 
0.4 

0.6 
18.0 
0.5 
0.6 
0.5 

4.5 
0.2 
0.8 
1.1 
8.4 

15.1 
0.3 
0.2 
0.0 
0.7 

36.3 

3.2 
4.6 
0.5 
0.5 
1.4 

0.6 
0.9 
0.1 
0.2 
0.4 

0.4 
20.0 
0.3 
0.6 
0.7 

3.9 
0.2 
0.7 
0.9 
7.3 

14.5 
0.3 
0.2 
0.0 
0.7 

35.5 

4.0 
5.2 
0.6 
0.5 
1.5 

0.6 
0.9 
0.0 
0.2 
0.4 

0.4 
20.3 
0.2 
0.6 
0.7 

3.1 
0.1 
0.5 
1.0 
7.7 

4.2 

5.8 

5.1 
6.0 

4.5 
5.2 
5.8 
4.5 
4.3 

5.9 
5.5 
3.4 
0.8 
5.7 

4.7 
7.0 
7.5 
8.0 
4.7 

5.2 
5.8 
5.0 
1.2 
5.9 

2.7 
2.7 
2.1 

4.5 
8.6 

2.0 
5.7 
6.2 
7.0 
9.4 

4.6 
5.9 
1.7 
4.5 
5.9 

-0.2 
6.4 

-0.1 
4.5 
8.5 

3.7 
5.6 
5.3 
2.7 
4.8 

-1.0 
3.0 
2.1 
4.3 

-0.4 
2.2 

2.8 
3.3 
2.3 
2.7 
2.0 

-0.4 
0.6 

-3.2 
-0.8 
2.7 

2.1 
1.4 

-1.5 
0.3 
3.1 

-0.7 
-0.6 
-3.1 
0.4 
0.3 

Latin America 100.0 100.0 100.1 5.5 5.7 1.2 

0.1 
1.0 

-4.8 
8.1 
3.9 

-4.4 

3.0 
4.3 
3.6 

-5.1 
3.1 

3.4 
3.1 

-3.3 
-3.0 
0.1 

5.5 
4.4 

-0.3 
4.6 
3.1 

-5.1 
0.1 
1.5 
0.9 
6.9 

ôT 

8.9 
-4.0 
-3.0 
5.6 
5.3 
1.1 

6.1 
2.1 
2.3 

-0.9 
4.9 

3.5 
3.7 
8.3 

-4.0 
3.0 

0.5 
3.6 

-0.2 
9.6 
2.5 

2.4 
3.2 
2.5 
2.9 
9.7 

~3.y 

8.7 
-3.0 
-4.5 
7.6 
2.7 

-0.9 

10.3 
3.5 
7.3 
7.8 
3.5 

4.8 
8.0 

-10.0 
4.9 

1.4 
2.6 
0.4 
8.6 
1.8 

-2.7 
-5.0 
-1.6 
7.4 
6.8 

5.5 
2.5 
0.4 
3.5 
3.2 
4.0 

6.0 
4.3 
6.5 
2.5 
3.2 

5.0 
4.0 
7.2 

-4.0 
3.7 

2.0 
0.9 

-0.7 
7.0 
3.7 

7.0 
-5.0 
-1.0 
2.5 

-1.0 

2.9 3.3 

p Preliminary. ... Not available. 
Source: IDB estimates based on official statistics of member countries. 

December 1992 to levels between $ 13 and $14 per bar
rel in December 1993. On average, most other commod
ity prices continued to fall or were stagnant, reflecting 
weak demand conditions and mounting stocks in indus
trial countries. The only exceptions to this trend were 
sugar, bananas, cotton and soybeans. 

Intraregional exports continued to rise as a share of 
total exports and, in most cases, have reverted to the lev
els attained prior to the economic crisis of the 1980s. 
Intraregional trade in general has benefitted from both 
existing subregional arrangements, such as CARICOM, 
the Andean Group and the Central American Common 
Market and from newer trade agreements, such as the 
NAFTA, MERCOSUR and the Group of Three, that 
have brought down duties and/or eliminated non-tariff 
barriers to trade. 

Liberalization of trade was reflected in continuing 
rapid growth of imports, which rose by 9.1 percent in 
1993, half the rate of increase (18.2 percent) registered in 
1992. The reduced growth of imports stems from notable 
declines in import activity in Argentina, Mexico and Ven
ezuela, and is generally associated with the transition to
wards more sustainable rates of output growth. A major 
factor behind the continuing high rates of import growth 
throughout the region is the vigorous demand for capital 
goods, a result of the recovery of private investment un
leashed by the economic reforms implemented in the last 
five years. 

The aggregate merchandise trade deficit for the region 
increased from $10.6 billion in 1992 to about $16 billion, 
approximately 1.4 percent of regional GDP. The esti
mated net balance in the sendees account was $22 bil-



ERRATA 

On page 2, in the right-hand column, lines 14-15 should 
read, "...increased from $10.6 billion in 1992 to $17.7 
billion, approximately 1.6 percent of regional GDP." 

On page 3, in the left-hand column, lines 6-7 should read, 
"...on the order of $42 billion, approximately 3.8 per
cent of regional GDP." 

On page 4, in the left-hand column, lines 25-28 should 
read, "...ratio of debt to regional GDP decreased to 43.9 
percent from 45.1 percent at the end of 1992. The ratio 
of interest payments to exports was 13.5 percent in both 
1992 and 1993." 

On page 5, in the right-hand column, line 15 should read, 
"...investment grew by 6.1 percent." 
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CAAGUAZU, PARAGUAY. 
Cotton thread is spooled at a 
spinning mill that received a SI 
million loan as part of a $30 
million Global Industrial Credit 
program approved by the Bank in 
1990. IDB resources ¡cere used 

for the purchase of machinen- and 
equipment, for improvements to 
the physical plant and as work
ing capital. 

lion, slightly lower than in the previous year. Two oppos
ing forces produced that result: although net service pay
ments on external debt decreased, due to lower interna
tional interest rates, profit remittances rose. Overall, this 
implied a current account deficit for the region as a whole 
on the order of $38 billion, approximately 3.2 percent of 
regional GDP. The net result was attributable in large 
measure to the current account deficits of Mexico and 
Argentina. Only three countries (Barbados, Brazil, and 
Ecuador) were in surplus. 

Foreign Capital Inflows 

Slow growth and low interest rates in the industrial coun
tries, combined with confidence in the prospects for 
growth with stability, made possible the continuation in 
1993 of the large flows of foreign capital that began three 
years ago, bringing about a strengthening of the region's 
capital account. Preliminary estimates of net capital flows 
indicate that a total of $65 billion entered the region in 
1993. As in pre\ious years, most of the positive flows were 
concentrated in a few countries, with Mexico receiving 
the largest share, followed by Argentina and Brazil, and 
Chile, Colombia, Peru and Venezuela also attracting sig
nificant amounts. These capital inflows were more than 
sufficient to finance the deficit in the region's current ac
count in 1993 and allowed an additional accumulation 
of international reserves on the order of $23.9 billion. 

A new pattern of external flows, characterized by a 
shift from debt to equity and from bank to non-bank 
sources, has emerged. Commercial bank loans have been 
replaced by bond- and equity-portfolio flows and foreign 
direct investment. Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, 
Mexico and Uruguay have been the most active in issu
ing bonds in the international market. Two countries in 
the region (Chile and Colombia) have received invest
ment-grade ratings on their bonds. In early December, 
Argentina became the first Latin American country to 
launch a global bond offering, enabling that country to 
tap into capital markets at lower interest rates and greater 
volume. 

Although growth in equity financing slowed in 1993, 
the region's financial markets still attracted substantial 
resources. The deceleration was caused by the more mod
erate growth of stock prices in Latin American equity 
markets. At the same time that direct purchases on the 
region's emerging stock markets increased, a number of 
Latin American firms entered the international markets 
either through the issuing of American Depository Re
ceipts (ADRs) and Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) 
or through direct offerings. The most notable operation 
in 199.3 was the $3 billion offering of shares by the Ar
gentine oil company Yacimientos Petrolíferos Fiscales, in the 
context of its privatization. ADRs have also been a useful 
capital market instrument for achieving reductions in the 
cost of capital. 
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TABLE III. MACROECONOMIC INDICATORS: LATIN AMERICA AND THE CARIBBEAN, 
1987-93 

National Accounts in Constant 1988 US Dollars 
Gross Domestic Product 

Gross Domestic Investment 
Exports of Goods and Non-Factor Services 
Imports of Goods and Non-Factor Services 

Balance of Payments in Current US Dollars 
Net Capital Inflows 
Net Transfers 
Change in International Reserves 
Reserves to Imports 

External Debt in Current US Dollars 
Debt as % of Exports 
Interest Payments as % of Exports 

Inflation 
Consumer Prices 

Units 

Growth in % 
Growth in % 
Growth in % 
Growth in % 

Billion US$ 
Billion US$ 
Billion US$ 

Ratio 

Ratio 
Ratio 

Growth in % 

1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993p 

3.4 
5.8 
7.3 
4.4 

12.7 
-19.4 
-4.1 
38.7 

397.0 
25.3 

0.5 
0.8 
8.8 
9.7 

6.3 
-28.8 

5.7 
27.3 

0.6 
-7.1 
5.8 
2.3 

5.6 
-33.4 
-3.1 
27.6 

-0.1 
-3.3 
5.4 
9.2 

17.0 
-18.7 
-14.4 
35.4 

3.7 
7.7 
3.6 

15.9 

35.2 
3.1 

-18.9 
43.0 

2.9 3.3 
8.7 6.1 
8.3 3.6 

18.2 9.1 

58.1 65.0 
28.1 36.8 

-24.7 -23.9 
48.6 56.2 

334.0 297.8 283.7 293.8 
26.1 18.3 14.1 15.0 

282.1 
13.5 

277.2 
13.5 

125.9 255.5 466.1 550.5 142.2 143.5 228.9 

Sources: For 1987-92, IDB estimates based on official statistics of member countries; for 1993, IDB; and for external debt, World Bank estimates. 

One important component of the increased capital 
flows, foreign direct investment (FDI), has brought with 
it the benefits of increased investment, accelerated tech
nological change, managerial know-how and improved 
access to export markets. In addition to improved 
macroeconomic performance and better prospects for sta
bility in the region, privatization, debt-conversion pro
grams and more open regulatory regimes have been ma
jor factors in explaining the recent strength of foreign 
direct investment. 

The United States has been the major source of for
eign investment for the region. The destination of FDI 
has shifted from manufacturing and extractive industries 
to capital-intensive service industries such as telecommu
nications, transport, banking, and public utilities. The 
experience of the Latin American countries underscores 
the importance of adequate legal, foreign exchange, regu
latory and institutional frameworks as prerequisites for 
promoting FDI. Macroeconomic policies geared to sta
bility and market-oriented reforms have proven to be fun
damental in changing the perceptions of foreign investors 
and gaining credibility for the recipient countries. 

Further Easing of the External Debt Burden 

During 1993, the region's external debt situation contin
ued to improve. Preliminary estimates indicate that the 
ratio of debt to regional GDP decreased to about 31 per
cent from 34.6 percent at the end of 1992. The ratio of 
interest payments to exports fell from 20 percent in 1992 
to 18.5 percent in 1993. 

During 1993, Paris Club creditors granted debt relief 
to Costa Rica, Jamaica and Peru. In late November, Bra
zil signed agreements with its commercial bank creditors 
in the context of the Brady Plan. These agreements, 
which allow Brazil to reschedule $35 billion it owes to the 
banks and other private creditors, need endorsement of 
the International Monetary Fund to be implemented. A 
preliminary agreement was also reached between the 
banks and the Dominican Republic to eliminate $260 
million of interest arrears and to implement a Brady-type 
arrangement that would cover $775 million in commer
cial-bank debt. In the case of Peru, following the clearing 
of arrears to the Bretton Woods institutions in March, a 
three-year Extended-Fund Facility was approved by the 
IMF and a $250 million fast-disbursing loan was granted 
by the World Bank. 

Strengthening Regional and International Trade 

Nineteen ninety-three was a watershed year in terms of 
regional economic cooperation and increased interna
tional trade. The North American Free Trade Agreement 
(NAFTA) among Canada, Mexico and the United States 
was approved by year's end. By opening the way for the 
creation of one of the largest regional trading blocs in the 
world, the agreement enhances the prospects for growth 
in the three signatory countries. Mexico will benefit from 
more open access to its largest market, the United States, 
and increased incentives for foreign investors. Benefits to 
Canada and the United States include expanded trade 
wdth the large and growing Mexican market, increased 
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competitiveness in world markets, and more investment 
opportunities for domestic firms. 

Approval of NAFTA provides further momentum to 
progress toward a free-trade zone for the entire Western 
Hemisphere. NAFTA's accession clause makes it possible 
for other nations to join the agreement contingent on the 
approval of the legislatures of the three original partici
pant countries. Chile, Argentina, Venezuela and Colom
bia (the latter two in the context of the Group of Three, 
the other member of which is Mexico), have already ex
pressed interest in joining NAFTA. 

The accord reached in December in the Geneva ne
gotiations on agricultural trade, subsidies on textiles, anti
dumping measures, trade in services, intellectual property 
protection and other issues brought to a successful con
clusion the Uruguay Round of the General Agreement 

LOS PIJIGUAOS MINE, BOLIVAR, VENEZUELA. 
Bauxite is loaded on to a barge at the port o/ El Joba I on the 
Orinoco River, some 500 km south of Caracas. The ore is mined 
by BAl XI VEN. a public corporation, and processed at an alu
minum plant run by another firm, INTER AI'AMINA, at 
Puerto On/a:. A S108 million Bank loan, approved in 1985, 
partially financed extraction at the mine, construction of a trans
fer station and transportation system and establishment of fa
cilities, including housing, at Eljobal. 

on Tariffs and Trade (GATT). All GATT member coun
tries—industrial as well as developing—are expected to 
benefit from the new, trade-creating provisions, leading 
to an appreciable increase in global real income. The 
Latin American and Caribbean countries will benefit 
through increased access to the markets of industrial na
tions and improved prospects for export growth. 

Savings and Investment 

Preliminary estimates of the region's economic perfor
mance indicate that, for the third consecutive year, in
vestment spending was the most rapidly growing compo
nent of aggregate demand. This investment continued to 
be driven by the need to modernize the productive struc
ture and make the traded-goods sector more competitive 
amid the conditions of a more open economy. For the 
region as a whole, investment grew by 5.8 percent. In 
eight countries (Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, the Do
minican Republic, El Salvador, Guyana, Panama, and 
Uruguay), investment growth exceeded 10 percent. In 
five (Argentina, Belize, Bolivia, Guatemala and Hondu
ras) growth was between 7 and 10 percent. In Chile capi
tal formation was concentrated in mining, forestry and 
light manufacturing. Further investment is being planned 
in manufacturing, mining, construction and telecommu
nications. In Mexico and Argentina the private sector is 
now channeling an important share of its investment to 
infrastructure, including privately run ports and roads. 

The increased rate of investment has been supported 
by improved incentives for savings. Higher rates of eco
nomic activity have raised disposable income, increased 
real interest rates and encouraged domestic financial sav
ings. There has also been a significant strengthening in 
the public-sector contribution to domestic savings as 
many countries have reduced budget deficits and under
taken major public-sector reforms, including privatization 
and the introduction of politically difficult but essential 
constraints on public enterprise spending. 

Financial-sector reforms are creating favorable condi
tions for increases in domestic savings by expanding the 
menu of financial instruments. In countries such as Chile 
and Colombia, continuing liberalization and greater com-
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PIEDRA DEL ÁGUILA, 
NEUQUÉN, ARGENTINA. A 
portion of the 160-meter high 
gravity dam at the turbine section 
of this power plant on the Limay 
River in southwestern Argentina. 
The IDB approved $400 million 
in financing for the project, at the 
time the largest operation in the 
Bank's history, in 1982. The 
multiple-works project has begun 
to generate 1.4 million kilowatts 
of power, helping to meet growing 
domestic demand for electricity and 
reducing reliance on alternative 
thermal sources and oil generators. 

petition among financial intermediaries have led to higher 
returns on saving deposits. 

tion systems and the enhancement of productivity among 
agencies involved in tax administration. 

Fiscal Consolidation Social Reform: An Imperative for Growth 

Nineteen ninety-three was a year of fiscal consolidation 
in Latin America and the Caribbean. Countries that 
through major adjustment efforts had already attained fis
cal balance in previous years were able to maintain it; 
others made considerable progress toward correcting 
their imbalances. Fiscal reforms are having a positive im
pact on economic stability and growth. 

In most countries, fiscal adjustment has been accom
plished through a combination of lower expenditures and 
higher revenues. While expenditure reduction has made 
the greatest contribution to fiscal equilibrium, tax reform 
has also been a major factor. Driven by the objectives of 
revenue enhancement, simplification and increased effi
ciency, tax reforms attained important results, including 
the introduction of a broad-based value-added tax in a 
number of countries, expansion of the tax base through 
elimination of exemptions, the discarding of taxes that 
generated little revenue but entailed high administrative 
costs, and a reduction in the dispersion of effective rates. 
Many countries of the region have implemented struc
tural changes in the tax system through technical coop
eration programs that have concentrated on the setting 
up of new organizational structures, the establishment of 
simpler procedures and more effective control mecha
nisms, the design and installation of modern tax informa-

While much has been accomplished with respect to rees
tablishing economic growth and macroeconomic stabil
ity, poverty indices remain adverse and income distribu
tion is still highly skewed. There was a substantial rise in 
poverty during the 1980s as a result of the economic cri
sis. Economic growth and modernization are not likely 
to be sustainable in the absence of political and social sta
bility, which in turn will depend upon a more equitable 
distribution of the benefits of that growth. 

The economic reforms adopted to date are an essen
tial ingredient of a strategy of social development in that 
they promote investment and growth and thereby lead 
to increases in employment and real wages, thus bring
ing about a more egalitarian distribution of income. 
Those reforms must also be broadened, however, to ad
dress the pressing social agenda the region is facing. 
There is a high level of unmet social demands due to the 
deterioration of social-sector infrastructure, institutions 
and delivery systems during the 1980s. Social policy re
form is thus a major challenge for the region. A central 
objective of this reform is to improve the efficiency of gov
ernment action in the social sectors, including the reori
entation of public spending. 

A redoubled emphasis on social reform is an impera
tive for growth. Existing evidence on the process of long-
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ROCHA. URI GUI). Lamp
posts are readied for placement in 
the vicinity of an electric substa
tion financed through a program, 
which includes a $27.3 million 
IDB loan approved in 1986, to 
develop the Laguna Merin rice-
growing region. In addition to fi
nancing the construction of a total 
of 629 km of 15- and 60-kV 
electricity distribution lines in ra
iai areas, the project also features 
improvements in some 822 km of 
local roads and the electrification 
of the pump irrigation system used 
by local rice producers. 

run growth strongly supports the conclusion that higher 
levels of education, health and nutrition in all segments 
of the population lead to more rapid growth in output 
and productivity. Therefore, investment in human re
sources must be a central component of social reform in 
the coming years. Greater and more efficient investment 
in people will result in more productive and flexible 
workforces, more desirable patterns of spending, reduced 
population pressure and additional human-resource in
vestments by the households themselves. 

Poverty reduction programs should be a major com
ponent of social reform and must aim at raising the pro
ductivity of the poor as the best means of improving their 
income. This is an important objective in its own right; it 
also plays a critical role in establishing the conditions for 
accelerated growth. The complementarity between 
growth and anti-poverty policies must be strengthened 
through the introduction of a set of short-term emergency 
programs that attack the most pressing problems of criti
cal poverty. Some countries are already implementing 
such programs, in the form of targeted transfers and so
cial emergency funds. At the same time, investment 
projects and programs that focus on sustainable poverty 
reduction over the longer term must be made more ef
fective, through institutional reforms that increase the ef
ficiency and equity of social-service delivery systems. 

The Outlook 

The prospects for sustained economic growth in the coun
tries of Latin America and the Caribbean are positive. 
Provided that economic reforms in the region are con
solidated, the potential for increased trade and growth 
inherent in the strengthened hemispheric integration and 
in the successful conclusion of the Uruguay Round ma
terializes, and economic recovery in the industrial nations 
finally takes hold, sustainable, broad-based growth should 
continue. While the region cannot control external fac
tors in the world economy, it can and must improve the 
flexibility and versatility of its own economic system so as 
to be able to respond to exogenous, changing circum
stances, positive as well as negative. This can be achieved 
by deepening market-oriented reforms and ensuring that 
the additional structural change to be undertaken will fo
cus on sustainable long-term growth and poverty reduc
tion. Perseverance along the path of reform will ensure 
that Latin America and the Caribbean will enter the 
twenty-first century as a region characterized by consis
tent, equitable growth. 
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PARTI 

THE BANK 
IN 1993 

ISSUES AND POLICIES 

OVERVIEW 

The Inter-American Development Bank concluded in 
1993 the four-year lending period authorized by the Sev
enth General Increase in the Resources of the Bank. Dur
ing this period, the Bank played a pivotal role in rekin
dling economic growth in Latin America and the 
Caribbean and provided unprecedented levels of re
sources for the region's development. The IDB approved 
nearly $6 billion in lending during 1993, bringing the 
Bank's total financing to $21.5 billion during 1990-93. 
The work of the IDB and its member countries during 
these years has laid the foundation for an era of vigorous 
economic growth and social development in the region. 

The record lending level achieved during the Seventh 
Replenishment period represents a third of all the Bank's 
lending in its 33-year history. The $21.5 billion in financ
ing approved during the Seventh Replenishment far out
strips the $9.9 billion approved during the Sixth Replen
ishment period. 

The Bank continued to be the main source of multi
lateral funding for the region's small and medium-sized 
countries during the 1990-93 time frame. On a sectoral 
basis, the Bank approved $8.6 billion (40 percent) for 108 
productive sector projects, $7.2 billion (33 percent) for 50 
infrastructure projects and $5.3 billion (25 percent) for 74 
projects in the social sectors. 

The past four years have witnessed a dramatic 
strengthening in the Bank's relationship with the region. 

COLONIA LOPEZ, EL SALVADOR. An estimated 180 
families will benefit from the installation of this sewage system 
in a small community outside the city of San Miguel. Workers 
began to lay pipe for the project in October, 1993, and expected 
to have the system up and running by January, 1994. Financ
ing comes from El Salvador's Social Investment Fund (FIS), a 
program established in 1991 and based in part on three Bank 
loans totaling $33 mil/ion. 

The IDB has become a major force in the region's devel
opment and has played a key role in supporting struc
tural reform. The Bank's role as a strong advocate for 
poverty alleviation has resulted in record support for so
cial-sector infrastructure projects in recent years. Its work 
in areas such as microenterprise development, the envi
ronment, and women in development has focused atten
tion on these important issues. The IDB has encouraged 
economic integration agreements as a stimulus to growth. 

During the Seventh Replenishment period, the Bank 
took a very active role in the adjustment process that was 
a prerequisite for renewed economic growth. The Bank, 
in close collaboration with the borrowing countries, 
helped formulate and implement policies that were 
needed to modernize, reform and restructure their econo
mies. The Bank used policy-based sector loans to help 
countries stabilize and restructure their economies, carry 
out major public-sector reforms, including the privatiza
tion of public enterprises, and improve the domestic and 
foreign investment climate. A little more than one-fourth 
of total lending has supported sector reforms during the 
last four years. 

The Bank in recent years has encouraged the growth 
of the private sector through a number of vehicles. 
Traditional lending has helped to provide the necessary 
infrastructure and credit programs that have benefitted 
the private sector. The more recent adoption of the 
investment-sector loan modality is helping to improve the 
investment climate in several countries. In another initia
tive to promote private investment in the region, 21 Bank 
member countries established the Multilateral Investment 
Fund (MIF) in 1992. The MIF approved its first opera
tions in 1993 (see box on page 34 for more details.) The 
Inter-American Investment Corporation (IIC), the au
tonomous private-sector affiliate of the IDB, approved 31 
projects totaling $124 million in 1993. 

Bank support for microenterprises, the environment, 
and women in development has also increased rapidly 
during the past four years. Support for microenterprise 
development—an area in which the Bank has been a 
major force in providing credit and training among low-
income populations—totaled more than $100 million 
during 1993 and $322 million during the Seventh Re-
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THE TASK FORCE ON PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT (TAPOMA) REPORT 
The six-member Task Force on Portfolio Management, 
chaired by Moeen A. Qureshi, former interim Prime Minister 
of Pakistan and Senior Vice President at the World Bank, was 
formed by President Enrique V. Iglesias in February 1993. 
Over the following eight months, the high-level Task Force 
reviewed virtually all aspects of the IDB's operations—the 
"culture and environment of the Bank, its policies and proce
dures"—meeting extensively with the Board of Executive Di
rectors and Management of the Bank and traveling to several 
countries in Latin America and the Caribbean for consulta
tions with government officials, executing agencies and the 
IDB's own Country Offices. In addition to Mr. Qureshi, the 
Task Force members were Horace Barber, former Governor 
of the Central Bank of Jamaica and Executive Director at the 
Bank; Gerhard Boehmer, Deputy Director General of the Min
istry for Cooperation and Development of Germany; Rubens 
Vaz da Costa, former Secretary of Energy of Brazil and 
Manager of the Bank's Operations Department; John M. 
Robinson, Vice President of the Canadian International De
velopment Agency; and Ambassador Abelardo Valdez, former 
Assistant Administrator of the U.S. Agency for International 
Development. Yves Rovani, former Director General of Op
erations Evaluation at the World Bank, served as the group's 
Principal Advisor. 

The Task Force's report, "Managing for Effective Devel
opment," was published in October. While concluding that 
the Bank's portfolio was "generally sound," TAPOMA none
theless offered a series of far-reaching recommendations, 
urging changes because "the Bank has become too big and 

too important to be driven by policies of the past." Some of 
the recommendations have been acted upon. Others, outlined 
below, were incorporated in an Action Plan prepared by Man
agement and presented to the Board in December. 

The principal recommendations include the following: 
• Country Offices, one of the Bank's greatest assets, 

must be given increased responsibilities throughout the 
project cycle. 

• More emphasis on development results, and thus on 
project implementation, as opposed to lending targets. 

• The Board and Management should review their re
spective roles in policy and operational matters. 

• Project design should be reviewed in order to minimize 
delays and facilitate execution. 

Important steps to be taken according to the Action Plan 
include the following: 

• Increased delegation to Country Offices, and increased 
involvement in project design, as well as execution. 

• Presentation of the first Annual Portfolio Management 
Report to the Board by the time of this year's Annual Meet
ing, including a review of problem projects. 

• An expanded program of sector studies to support the 
lending program, with particular attention to the social sec
tors. 

• Increased training for executing agency personnel— 
seminars on project-execution procedures—at headquarters 
and in-country. 

• Incorporation of greater flexibility and simplification in 
procurement procedures. 

plenishment period. The Bank has also become an im
portant advocate for environmental protection and 
cleanup. In 1993 the Bank approved $1.2 billion for en
vironmental projects; $3.6 billion has been approved 
since 1990. 

The Bank borrowed almost $4 billion in the world's 
capital markets during 1993. In the area of project financ
ing, the Bank mobilized additional resources for a vari
ety of projects in the region. 

Bank membership changed in 1993 as the former Fed
eral Socialist Republic of Yugoslavia ceased to be a mem
ber and Croatia and Slovenia became members by suc
cession, bringing the number of member countries to 16. 

The year was also significant because the IDB and its 
member countries began the task of redefining the Bank's 
role for the future and negotiating the Eighth Replenish
ment of Resources. Negotiations were held during the 
year which concentrated on several areas, including the 
social sectors and poverty alleviation, the modernization 
of the state, the private sector and the environment. Un
der discussion are ways in which the Bank, in order to 

assist the countries, might expand its focus on financing 
social programs and projects; improve government insti
tutions and services as facilitators of modernization; 
strengthen the private sector and investment potential of 
the countries; and improve environmental conditions and 
management of natural resources. It is expected that the 
Bank's member countries will agree on a strategy and the 
resources to implement that strategy in 1994. 

In February of 1993, the President of the Bank com
missioned a high-level external task force to conduct a 
study on the Bank's management of its portfolio. The 
Task Force on Portfolio Management delivered its report 
"Managing for Effective Development" in October. The 
report was a frank appraisal of the Bank's management 
of its loan portfolio and included a number of positive 
recommendations for improvement. 

Lending highlights for 1993 included the following: 
• The Bank approved 93 loans (including increases 

in previously approved export financing credits) totaling 
$5,963 million. Cumulative lending totaled $62,97 1 mil
lion. 
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THE FORUM ON SOCIAL REFORM AND POVERTY 
AND THE SOCIAL AGENDA POLICY GROUP 

The Bank expects to devote considerable resources in the 
next few years for social projects and programs. As part of 
its efforts to help develop a strategy for social development, 
the Bank and the United Nations Development Programme 
(UNDP) organized a Forum on Social Reform and Poverty in 
February. 

Research contained in a report prepared jointly by the 
IDB and UNDP especially for the conference noted that some 
196 million people in Latin America and the Caribbean, or 
46 percent of the population, live in poverty, an increase of 
2.5 percent over the level measured as recently as 1986. Ad
dressing the opening session of the three-day conference, 
IDB President Enrique V. Iglesias stressed the urgency of 
social reform: "Latin America cannot continue to be a text
book case of extreme inequality and critical poverty." 

Among the 350 representatives of governments, the pri
vate sector, international agencies and nongovernmental or
ganizations attending the sessions were Michel Camdessus, 
Managing Director of the International Monetary Fund, 
Carlyle Guerra de Macedo, Director of the Pan American 
Health Organization, João Baena Soares, Secretary General 
of the Organization of American States and UNESCO Direc
tor General Federico Mayor Zaragoza. The Forum produced 
agreement on the basic elements of a new agenda for social 
reform. 

As part of the Bank's effort to define social strategies, 
President Iglesias appointed a Social Agenda Policy Group 
to focus on two issues: identify new priorities in areas where 
authentically innovative approaches are recognizably needed 
(such as in education and health, urban policy, employment 
generation and human-resource investment, among others) 

and ensure that such new initiatives are coordinated with the 
economic and financial reforms undertaken—and ongo
ing—in most of the countries of the region. 

Informed by this theoretical work and by a series of em
pirical studies carried on throughout the year—among them 
a series of reports on Pilot Missions on Socioeconomic Re
form to Chile, Trinidad and Tobago and Venezuela—the Bank 
sought to broaden its influence beyond the traditional con
cepts embodied solely in its one-time programming and 
lending activities. 

The Pilot Missions were conceived as a means of pro
viding a comprehensive analysis across sectoral lines and 
resulted in the issuance of case studies. In particular, the 
Trinidad and Tobago report focused on the imperative of job 
creation. The study on Venezuela concentrated on the insti
tutional prospects for implementing social reform and sug
gested the replication of successes obtained at the commu
nity and municipal levels. In Chile, the issues of productiv
ity, pockets of poverty and the connection between educa
tion and labor training were examined in the context of one 
of the region's most successful recent economic perform
ers. A similar report will be prepared on Costa Rica in 1994. 

As a complement to the missions already undertaken, 
the Bank has initiated a new, policy-oriented research pro
gram aimed at articulating strategies in the fields of educa
tion and health that depart from the more theoretical mod
els developed in academic circles in the past. In concert with 
the in-depth discussions on the need to accent the distribu
tional impact of investment and the alleviation of poverty al
ready undertaken preliminary to the Eighth Replenishment, 
such programs and activities will continue to gain promi
nence in the months and years ahead. 

• $ 104 million was approved in grant and contingent 
recovery technical cooperation. The 1993 approvals 
brought the cumulative total to $ 1,091 million. As for re
imbursable technical cooperation, $23 million in loans or 
portions of loans was extended, bringing the cumulative 
total to $938 million. 

SOCIAL SECTORS 

The Bank's work in the social sectors took on added sig
nificance in 1993 in two important respects. First was the 
increased proportion of the year's lending portfolio dedi
cated to projects in the social sectors—31 percent—which 
brought the total amount of resources for such projects 
to $12.9 billion over the Bank's 33 years of operations. 

Second, with the creation of a high-level Social Agenda 
Policy Group (SAPG), the Bank took steps to define so
cial reform in the context of both its own lending and the 
efforts being pursued in the countries of the region. (See 
box above for additional details.) 

In a variety of sectors and in a number of operations 
of differing dimensions throughout the region, the $1.8 
billion 1993 lending program entailed important contri
butions toward strengthening the design and delivery of 
social services, among them the following: 

• Water-supply projects in seven countries, featuring 
expansions of liquid- and solid-waste collection. 

• Financings in urban development, including hous
ing-sector reform programs, a program designed to sup
port regulatory reform in Panama City and Colón, and 
intraregional programs, in which expertise from one 
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TABLE IV. THE BANK'S YEARLY (1993)' AND CUMULATIVE LOANS (1961-93)2 

(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Country 
Total Amount 

1993 1961-93 
Ordinary Capital 

1993 1961-93 

Detail by Funds 
Fund for Special 

Operations 
1993 1961-93 

Funds in 
Administration 

1993 1961-93 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

$ 951.0 $ 

27.6 

76.5 
896.3 
50.0 

569.0 
572.1 
151.3 
35.3 
84.0 

132.0 
27.1 

29.9 
72.5 

511.8 
85.7 

230.4 
109.9 
214.5 

92.5 
73.0 

640.0 
330.0 

7,026.2 
178.3 
251.2 

2,037.8 
9,679.7 
4,380.2 
5,770.3 
2,143.4 
1,278.9 
2,615.4 
1,575.4 
1,285.2 

449.6 
356.2 

1,486.8 
1,092.2 
8,095.9 

823.6 
1,221.2 
1,122.7 
2,667.2 

17.6 
573.4 

1,229.0 
3,581.3 
2,032.8 

926.0 

26.6 

57.1 
824.2 
50.0 

546.0 
570.0 
102.0 

3.0 
41.0 
92.0 

3.7 
61.5 

481.8 
66.9 

230.4 
61.6 

214.5 

90.5 
73.0 

640.0 
330.0 

6,380.9 
176.3 
187.8 

1,059.7 
8,012.5 
4,134.0 
4,986.5 
1,663.0 

501.9 
1,620.9 

690.9 
612.7 
109.6 

596.3 
789.5 

7,472.4 
258.7 
905.3 
527.2 

2.052.9 
15.3 

528.8 
1,083.0 
3,407.0 
1,834.7 

$ 25.0 $ 596.3 $ 

19.4 
72.1 

23.0 

48.0 
32.3 
43.0 
40.0 
27.0 

26.1 

18.8 

48.3 

42.8 

901.6 
1,536.2 

203.3 
721.3 
351.9 
697.5 
905.6 
749.3 
612.2 
331.1 
349.7 
837.2 
164.0 
559.0 
514.2 
282.9 
583.6 
393.1 

2.3 
31.3 

104.2 
101.4 
184.3 

1.0 

2.1 
1.3 

0.1 

0.1 
11.0 
30.0 

2.0 

49.0 
2.0 

20.6 

76.5 
131.0 
42.9 
62.5 

128.5 
79.5 
88.9 

135.2 
60.3 
8.9 
6.5 

53.3 
138.7 
64.5 
50.7 
33.0 
11.9 

221.2 

13.3 
41.8 
72.9 
13.8 

TOTAL $5,962.4 $62,971.5 $5,491.8 $49,607.8 $423.0 $11,756.3 $47.6 $1,607.4 

1 Based on original amounts in U.S. dollar equivalent. 
2 After cancellations. Includes currency translation adjustments. 

TABLE V. DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Sector 1993 % 1961-93 

Productive Sectors 
Agriculture and Fisheries $ 77 1.3 
Industry and Mining 0 0.0 
Tourism and Microenterprise 228 3.8 

$10,952 17.4 
6,411 10.2 

963 1.5 

Physical Infrastructure 
Energy 1,251 21.0 14,222 22.6 
Transportation 
and Communications 1,219 20.4 8,945 14.2 

Social Sectors 
Environmental 
and Public Health 

Education, Science 
and Technology 

Urban Development 

Other 
Planning and Reform 
Export Financing 
Other 

1,271 

495 
66 

757 
31 

567 

21.3 

8.3 
1.1 

12.7 
0.5 
9.6 

7,436 11.8 

2,764 
2,716 

4.3 
4.3 

8.9 5,598 
1,168 1.9 
1,796 2.9 

TOTAL $5,962 100.0 $62,971 100.0 
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GEORGETOWN, GUYANA. Members of the Greater 
Georgetown Fishermen's Cooperative Society, Ltd., unload their 
catch of red snapper, trout and catfish at the cooperative's wharf 
in the capital. The Society has grown rapidly from modest be
ginnings (27 members and initial capital of only G$ 14,000 
in 1970) and has diversified, operating a duty-free diesel and 
gasoline station and ice plant. An IDB Small Project loan of 
$500,000 financed the acquisition of generators for the 
Georgetown and Upper Corentyne cooperatives. 

country of the region is shared with another, in Bolivia, 
Colombia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, Peru and Venezuela. 

• Basic education, focusing on improving administra
tive efficiency and the quality of learning, in Paraguay 
and Venezuela, and strengthened technical and voca
tional education in Uruguay and Venezuela. 

• A series of programs stressing improved access to 
health care for low-income populations and promoting" 
greater efficiency in the delivery of care—through decen
tralization and improved management and rehabilitation 
of existing facilities. 

• Numerous multidisciplinary and multisectoral pro
grams, including a regional technical cooperation pro
gram for the social sectors in Central America, known as 
RUTA Social, social investment programs in El Salvador, 
Guyana and Peru, preinvestment studies, and activities 
undertaken in the name of modernization of the state, 
such as the program designed to support the operations 
of Peru's Parliament. 

SECTOR LENDING 

Sector loans are policy-driven, fast-disbursing loans in
tended to help borrowers focus on important institutional, 
sector, and macroeconomic distortions that inhibit eco
nomic growth. In 1993, the Bank approved five sector 
programs totaling $494 million. 

The 1993 approvals included programs for Costa 
Rica, the Dominican Republic, Guatemala and Trinidad 
and Tobago. Two loans were approved for Costa Rica. 
The first one—$80 million—was designed to help mod
ernize the public sector. The other —$ 100 million —will 
help improve the private sector investment climate in the 
country. A $ 102 million loan will help improve the com
petitiveness and efficiency of the financial system in the 
Dominican Republic. A $132 million loan was approved 
to support financial sector policy reform in Guatemala. 
An $80 million investment sector reform program will 
help Trinidad and Tobago consolidate the structural ad
justment process in that country. 

An integral part of the Bank's work these past four 

years within the framework of the Seventh Replenish
ment has been the sector-lending program. The impe
tus for this activity was the desire of the member coun
tries of the Bank to undertake the difficult task of 
restructuring and modernizing their economies in order 
to make them more competitive. The sector-lending 
program has thus focused on supporting economic and 
institutional reforms in borrowing countries. In addition 
to reforms in agriculture, transportation and telecom
munications, the financial sector, and the public and 
private sectors, programs were designed to help bring 
about reforms in broader, economy-wide areas such as 
international trade systems, budgeting and tax policies, 
and institutional strengthening of the regulatory frame
work. In conjunction with the International Monetary 
Fund and the World Bank, the IDB also provided loans 
to Argentina and Uruguay to partially finance Brady-
Plan debt reduction schemes. 

During the Seventh Replenishment period, the Bank 
approved 34 sector-lending operations totaling $5.6 bil
lion, representing 26 percent of total IDB lending during 
that period. 

• 13 • 



INTER-AMERICAS: DEVELOPMENT ISAM, 

BANK GROWTH 
INDICATORS 

Subscribed capital of the Inter-American 
Development Bank amounts to over $64 
billion. 

Bank loans totaled $6 billion in 1993, 
reaching a cumulative total of almost $63 
billion. 

Disbursements of $3.7 billion in 1993 
raised cumulative total to nearly $46 billion. 

Technical cooperation approvals—both 
grant and contingent recovery— which 
amounted to $104 million in 1993 brought 
the cumulative amount to more than $1 
billion. 

The Bank's cumulative lending 
supports matching funds of over $106 
billion in carrying out projects whose total 
cost amounts to $170 billion. 

I Ordinary Capital 

Fund for Special Operations and 
Other Resources 

LOANS 1984-93 
(In billions of dollars) 

2 -

84 85 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 93 

DISBURSEMENTS 1984-93 
(In billions of dollars) 

85 86 87 90 91 92 93 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 1984-93 
(In millions of dollars) 

160 

120 

80 

40 

85 86 87 90 91 92 93 

• 14 • 



THE BANK IN 1993 

RESOURCES (CUMULATIVE) 1984-93 
(In billions of dollars) 

80 

Ordinary Capital 

Fund for Special Operations and 
Other Resources 
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DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-93 

Agriculture and Fisheries 

Energy 

Loans 

Total Cost 

LOANS AND TOTAL COST OF PROJECTS 1961-93 
(In billions of dollars) 

' ■ ■ ' ' ■ ■ 
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URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
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ECONOMIC INTEGRATION 

The adoption of trade liberalization policies in recent 
years has resulted in several bilateral and subregional 
trade agreements that are facilitating economic integra
tion. Many of the existing integration schemes—the 
Andean Group , the Car ibbean Common Market 
(CARICOM), the Central American Common Market 
(CACM)—have been strengthened in recent years while 
newer initiatives, including the Southern Common Mar
ket (MERCOSUR), the Group of Three, and the North 
American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA), have 
emerged. 

The approval of NAFTA is particularly significant not 
only because of its sheer size—a market with 360 million 
people with a combined GNP of over $7 trillion but also 
because of its positive impact on hemispheric trade liber
alization. From the Latin American and Caribbean per
spective, the participation of the United States in regional 
integration schemes will help to consolidate economic re
form and improve efficiency and productivity by incor
porating modern production technologies and attracting 
foreign capital. 

Moreover, the region should benefit substantially from 
the final Uruguay Round of GATT for the liberalization 
of world trade. At least half a dozen more countries from 
the region are expected to join GATT in the near future, 
and more widespread accession to specific GATT codes 
is expected. 

The Group of Three, comprised of Colombia, Mexico 
and Venezuela, completed negotiations in December for 
a free trade agreement that will be enacted during 1994. 
Chile has signed bilateral economic complementarity 
agreements with Argentina, Bolivia, Colombia, Mexico 
and Venezuela. 

During 1993, the Bank continued to support the pro
cess of regional integration through the follow ing actions: 

• MERCOSUR: The Bank in 1993 approved $4.1 
million in technical cooperation for the establishment and 
implementation of the Southern Common Market 
(MERCOSUR). The financing will be used to conduct 
studies and activities aimed at the harmonization of stan
dards and the coordination of macroeconomic and 
sectoral policies needed for the effective implementation 
of the common market. It will also provide the govern
ments of Paraguay and Uruguay with technical advisory 
sendees designed to help formulate their negotiating po
sitions, thereby enabling them to play a more effective 
role in the integration process. For this purpose, a sepa
rate operation consisting of a $1.4 million loan and a 
$600,000 grant for the Uruguay's MERCOSUR Sectoral 
Commission (COMISEC) was approved in 1992. The 
MERCOSUR countries are Argentina, Brazil, Paraguay, 
and Uruguay. 

• Andean Group: Several studies were initiated under 

regional technical cooperation approved in 1992. The 
studies included the automation and harmonization of 
customs procedures; the harmonization of the exchange 
policies of member countries; and studies to promote 
intra- and extraregional trade. In addition, the Bank ap
proved a $200 million loan to the Andean Development 
Corporation (CAF) to support the institutional strength
ening of the public and private sectors of the Andean 
Group countries: Bolivia, Colombia, Ecuador, Peru and 
Venezuela. 

• Central American Common Market: A $2.7 million tech
nical cooperation grant approved in 1992 is financing the 
Regional Program of Support for Central American De
velopment and Integration (PRADIC). As requested by 
the Central American governments, the Regional Con
sultative Group for Central America (RCG-CA) was es
tablished under the leadership of the Bank, in order to 
mobilize resources for the region. For this purpose, and 
in order to coordinate multilateral action in the integra
tion process and economic development, the first meet
ing of the RCG-CA was held in March 1993 in Brussels, 
Belgium, between donors, Central American govern
ments, regional institutions and the private sector. Sev
eral meetings of the RCG-CA Steering Committee also 
took place. In addition, the Bank, in cooperation with the 
World Bank and the United Nations Development 
Programme, provided a $ 1.5 million grant for a project 
preparation fund for the social development of Central 
America and Panama. 

• CARICOM: The $650,000 technical cooperation 
grant approved in 1991 for the West Indies Commission 
has resulted in a plan of action to strengthen the integra
tion of the Caribbean Community. During 1993, the Bank 
began preparation of a technical cooperation operation 
aimed at implementing the recommendations of the Com
mission. The program will include expanding économie-
coopération with all of the Caribbean Basin countries, ad
vancing the process of trade liberalization and promoting 
the establishment of a single market among the countries 
of the Caribbean Community. In addition, the Bank pro
vided a $600,000 grant to improve the capacity of tax ad
ministration staff in the Caribbean countries. 

• ALADI: A $290,000 grant approved in 1992 is help
ing the Latin American Integration Association (ALADI) 
improve its foreign trade information system, thereby fa
cilitating the negotiation of free trade agreements among 
its 11 members. Support during the year focused on im
proving foreign trade statistics. 

• ECLAC: AS2.1 million grant approved in 1991 and 
carried out by the United Nations Economic Commis
sion for Latin America and the Caribbean (ECLAC) has 
helped to promote dialogue on hemispheric trade liber
alization. The IDB-ECIAC program financed a number 
of activities, including colloquia and conferences, and the 
preparation and publication of analyses on a variety of 
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REGIONAL COOPERATION 

From its inception, the IDB has sought to emphasize coop
eration among its borrowing member countries. The Bank's 
charter recognizes that one of the fundamental functions of 
the institution is "to cooperate with the member 
countries...with the objectives of making their economies 
more complementary and of fostering the orderly growth of 
their foreign trade." The IDB's support for economic integra
tion and its collaboration with other organizations, along with 
efforts to provide intellectual leadership for the region—such 
as economic policy research, training, conferences, publica
tions and seminars—represent an attempt to fulfill that man
date. 

The Bank supports a major region-wide and subregional 
technical cooperation program. During the Seventh Replen
ishment period, 65 such operations were approved, for a to
tal of more than $120 million. In 1993, the Bank approved 25 
regional nonreimbursable technical cooperation operations 
totaling $35.3 million. The approved operations included a 
variety of programs to promote economic and social devel
opment on a regional scale in the social, productive, environ
mental and public sectors. Examples include a package of 
grants totaling $14.3 million to support agricultural research 
programs in the four international research centers located 
in the region, a $2.5 million grant that will help initiate the ac
tivities of the Technical Secretariat of the Fund for Develop
ment of the Indigenous Peoples of Latin America and the Car
ibbean, and a $300,000 contribution for a regional forum en
titled "Justice in Latin America and the Caribbean in the 
1990s: Challenges and Opportunities." 

Nowhere is cooperation among the countries of the re
gion or the Bank's role more evident than in economic inte
gration. The Bank has provided support for several of the 
subregional integration schemes in recent years. For ex
ample, in 1993, the Bank approved $4.1 million in technical 
cooperation for the establishment and implementation of the 
Southern Common Market (MERCOSUR). Earlier IDB 
financings are helping to support integration activities with 

respect to the Andean Group, the Central American Common 
Market, and the Caribbean Community. In Central America, 
the Bank chairs the Regional Consultative Group for Central 
America, and has helped organize meetings to mobilize re
sources for the region. 

The Bank also provided resources for regional training 
programs in 1993, including support for efforts in the Carib
bean member countries to strengthen tax administration and 
modernize the supreme audit institutions. Other regional 
training programs will support project evaluation and munici
pal decentralization. In addition, technical cooperation opera
tions approved in 1993 and previous years have allowed stu
dents to pursue degree and other studies to be applied in their 
countries at two institutions in Chile, the University of Chile 
and the Pontifical Catholic University of Chile; the University 
of the Andes (in Colombia); the multiple campuses of the Uni
versity of the West Indies; and a variety of other specialized 
regional institutions, such as the Instituto Torcuato di Telia, 
in Buenos Aires, and the Latin American Institute for Learn
ing and Social Studies, ILADES, in Santiago. 

Another important part of the IDB's activities in regional 
cooperation are its scholarship programs. The Graduate 
Scholarship Program, established in 1991 with grant fund
ing from Japan, provided scholarships for 47 recipients from 
Latin America and the Caribbean for the 1993-94 academic 
year for postgraduate work at national or international insti
tutions in various development fields. In 1993, the Bank ap
proved funding to launch an additional regional scholarship 
program, including resources from the governments of Israel, 
Spain and Sweden. 

The Bank also provides key support for applied eco
nomic and social policy research through technical coopera
tion funding for the Centers for Research in Applied Econom
ics program. Research conducted in the countries of Latin 
America and the Caribbean under this program contributes 
to the formulation of sound public policies for the develop
ment of the region. 

trade-related subjects ranging from the trade policies of 
individual countries to the economic impact of subre
gional integration schemes on the Western Hemisphere. 
The program was concluded in 1993. 

Institute for Latin American Integration (INTAL) 

Integration, a review including articles on the results of re
search sponsored by the Institute on regional integration. 
INTAL also continued to compile foreign trade data of 
countries in the region. Several additional steps were 
taken to turn INTAL into an autonomous, independent 
institution. 

During 1993, the Institute for Latin American Integra
tion continued to offer support for the processes of re
gional integration. It published 11 issues oí Latin American 
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DAULERIVER, ECUADOR. The Daule-Penpa dam, above, is the 
centerpiece of a multistage project financed in part with a SI 75 mil
lion loan in 1984. In addition to the construction of the dam and the 
creation of a 6 billion cubic meter capacity reservoir, the project has 
improved the supply and distribution of water in the city of Guayaquil, 
some 120 km away. In the inset, right, a young farmer plants rice in 
an irrigated field located on the left bank of the Daule River. 

COFINANCING 

The Bank in 1993 continued to mobilize additional re
sources by cofinancing projects with bilateral and multi
lateral entities. Cofinancing, including operations with the 
World Bank, totaled $ 1,341 million. During the year spe
cial emphasis was placed on reinforcing cooperation with 
traditional cofinancing partners and on forging relation
ships with new partners. 

The Bank's accumulated experience in the region and 
its network of Country Offices make it a particularly at
tractive partner for both bilateral and multilateral 
cofinanciers. At the same time, cofinanciers have their 
own geographic and sectoral priorities and the terms and 
conditions they offer can also vary greatly. Identifying 
projects and partners amenable to cofinancing at the 
early stages of the Bank's project cycle ensures that scarce 
resources will be used in the most efficient manner. 
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TABLE VI. COFINANCING IN 1993 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Country 
Sources ol Finance 

Project IDB World Bank Japan Other Funds 

Argentina 

Bolivia 

Brazil 

Costa Rica 

Dominican Republic 

Ecuador 

El Salvador 

Jamaica 

Mexico 

Nicaragua 

Panama 

Uruguay 

Venezuela 

Regional 

Road Corridors 
Multisectoral Global Credit Program 

Urban Development & Sanitation, PRODURSAII 
Development of Campesino Communities 

Guanabara Bay Sanitation 

Public Sector Reform Program 
Electricity Development Program 

Agricultural Development 
Electricity Rehabilitation Program 

National Road Program 

Water and Sewerage Rehabilitation 
Electricity Sector Development 

Improvement of Primary Education, II 
Support for Private-Sector Energy Development 

Science and Technology Program 

Rural Road Rehabilitation 

Road Repair & Administration Program 

Multisectoral Global Credit Program 

Management of Primary Roads 
Caruachi Hydroelectric Power Plant 

Protection and Resettlement Yacyretá 

340.0 
300.0 

64.0 
12.5 

350.0 

80.0 
320.0 

48.0 
148.8' 

120.0Í 

moi 
125.91 

28.0Í 
57.5 

150 

46.0 

180.0 

90.0¡ 

200.01 
500.0 

130.0 

$ 61.4 

100.0 

23.6I 

60.0 

60.0 

150.0Í 

59.0 

300.0a 

13.0' 
7.5¡ 

294.2b 

11.0" 
80.0" 

35.0a 

$ 50.0C 

51.0C 

6.0h 

6.3d 

30.09 

2.4d 

10.0C 

30e 

5.0d 

70.09 
60.0t/k+509/k 

T0TA1 $2,578.0 $340.0 $ 740.7 $ 260.7 

a Export-Import Bank of Japan 
b Overseas Economic Cooperation Fund of Japan (OECF) 
c European Investment Bank (EIB) 
d Nordic Development Fund 
e Spanish Quincentennial Fund 
1 Nordic Investment Bank 

9 Andean Development Corporation (CAF) 
h International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD) 
1 Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) 
¡ Approved prior to 1993; not added to total 
k Parallel financing; not added to total 

On the bilateral side, Japan continued to be the pri
mary source of cofinancing, providing a total of $740.7 
million for projects. The Overseas Economic Coopera
tion Fund (OECF) of Japan provided $385.2 million on 
concessional terms for three projects in Brazil and El Sal
vador. The Bank and the OECF also signed an agree
ment for cofinancing operations of up to $20 million each 
in the social and agricultural sectors of the Bank's less-
developed borrowing countries. The Export-Import Bank 
of Japan cofinanced two projects in Argentina and Uru

guay for a total of $335 million. Japan's International 
Cooperation Agency JICA) provided grants totaling 
$20.5 million to cofinance two projects in Bolivia. Spain's 
Quincentennial Fund cofinanced a science and technol
ogy program in Mexico for $30 million. 

On the multilateral side, the IDB and the World Bank 
cofinanced five projects involving a combined commit
ment of $1,128 million. Cooperation with the European 
Investment Bank (EIB) was strengthened further. In ad
dition to the Caribbean countries, where it has long been 
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LA FORTUNA, COSTA RICA. 
Luis Emilio Carranza Cascante, a 
dairy farmer, teaches his children 
how to milk a cow. Mr. Carranza 
began farming on the Finca Luz 
dairy farm in 1982. With the help 
of a small loan received under a 
national agricultural credit pro
gram—partially funded by a 
$45.5 million IDB loan in 
1989—he expanded and improved 
his milking shed, upgraded his 
pastureland and purchased addi
tional cows. By 1992, Mr. 
Carranza's herd was producing 
160 liters of milk a day. 

active, the EIB was authorized to begin operations in 
Latin America in 1993. During the year, the EIB 
cofinanced three projects, in Argentina, Costa Rica and 
Jamaica, for a total of $112 million. 

The Scandinavian countries provided cofinancing re
sources through their multilateral institutions. The Nor
dic Development Fund (NDF) provided $13.5 million on 
concessional terms for projects in the Dominican Repub
lic, Jamaica and Nicaragua. The Nordic Investment Bank 
(NIB) provided $60 million of parallel financing for a 
project in Venezuela. During the year, the Bank and the 
NIB signed an agreement that will provide a framework 
for future cofinancing activities. 

The Andean Development Corpora t ion (CAF) 
cofinanced two projects for a total of $100 million in Ec
uador and Venezuela and provided $50 million in paral
lel financing for another project in Venezuela. The In
ternational Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD) 

provided $6 million on concessional terms to cofinance a 
project in the Dominican Republic. 

MICROENTERPRISE 

Support for microenterprises remained strong in 1993. The 
Bank approved three global credit operations totaling 
$77.6 million and 54 Small Project financings totaling 
$25.6 million during the year. An additional $7.1 million 
in technical cooperation was approved for institutional 
strengthening of the nongovernmental organizations re
sponsible for administering the financings. 

The global credit operations have a countrywide scope 
and reach thousands of microenterprises. The Small 
Projects program supports specific low-income groups in 
each country. The 1993 global credit operations were 
approved for Colombia, El Salvador and Nicaragua. Of 
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SAO PAULO, BRAZIL. Con
struction of a portion of the 45 km 
of drainage canals financed in 
part by a 1986 IDB loan of 
$77.5 million. This canal will be 
used for storm drainage to prevent 

flooding during the rainy season 
along the Uberaba River. The 
project, now Hearing completion, 
employed an estimated 1,800 
people and was executed by the 
Prefecture of the Municipality of 
São Paulo. 

the 54 Small Project operations approved during the year, 
30 were directed to rural microentrepreneurs and 24 to 
urban microentrepreneurs. Ten of the projects will ben
efit women's entrepreneurial groups. The Small Projects 
program continues to utilize resources provided from the 
net income of the Fund for Special Operations as well as 
by the governments of Japan, Norway, Sweden, Switzer
land and the European Economic Community. 

The Seventh Replenishment has enabled the Bank to 
provide dramatically increased resources for credit and 
training programs for low-income microentrepreneurs 
throughout the region. During the four-year period, a to
tal of $321.6 million has been committed for 399 opera
tions in support of microentrepreneurs. This includes 
$201 million in global credit programs and $120.6 mil
lion in Small Project approvals. 

The Bank's work in microenterprise development dur
ing the Seventh Replenishment period has emphasized 
the institutional strengthening of the intermediary orga
nizations, particularly the administrative, financial, ac
counting, and portfolio management aspects of their op
erations. Loan recovery and repayment have been 
important components of the training that accompanies 
the credits. In fact, microentrepreneurs have an excellent 
repayment record, registering between 90 and 98 per 
cent. This repayment record has helped the long-term 
sustainability of the microenterprise program. Moreover, 
new credit management techniques have been incorpo

rated into project designs in order to reduce the costs of 
servicing microenterprises and to ultimately help facili
tate microentrepreneur access to commercial credit. The 
interaction between microenterprise organizations and 
the private sector has also contributed to this progress. 

These past four years have also been characterized by 
an increasing attention to the nonfinancial aspects that 
can strongly influence the development of micro-
enterprises. The regulatory and legal frameworks affect
ing microenterprises have been the subject of diagnostic 
studies in several countries in order to help design new 
operations aimed at solving or alleviating restrictions in 
these areas. At the same time, several factors that limit 
the effectiveness of nongovernmental organizations, 
credit unions and other organizations in civil society will 
require greater attention in the future. 

LOW-INCOME GROUPS 

In the context of the Seventh Replenishment, the Board 
of Governors maintained the objective established in the 
Fifth and Sixth Replenishments whereby the Bank would 
do its utmost to ensure that 50 percent of its lending pro
gram would be allocated to benefit lower-income groups. 

In 1993, 72.2 percent of the new loans approved by 
the Bank, totaling $4,286.5 million, were analyzed for 
their distributive impact on low-income groups. Of these 
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XAPURI, BRAZIL A locally 
recruited teacher (left) instructs 
children of rubber tappers in a 
two-room school in this forest 
community. At right, a tapper cuts 
into the bark oj a tree to collect its 
sticky white sap. Education, along 
with training provided by local 
nongovernmental organizations, 
are two key elements in a $10 mil
lion Program for the Protection of 
the Environment and Indigenous 
Peoples, a component of a $58.7 
million 1985 Bank financing for 
the paving of highway BR-364. 

loans, and setting aside public-sector benefits, it is esti
mated that low-income groups will benefit from 33.4 per
cent of these resources. This estimate does not reflect the 
distributive impact of certain types of projects where it is 
either difficult or impossible to define low-income ben
eficiaries as a proportion of all beneficiaries of the project. 
These areas include global loans, preinvestment, and sec
tor lending. 

Discussions preliminary to the Eighth Replenishment 
period are addressing policies and programs that would 
enable the Bank to pay special attention to the needs of 
low-income groups and the alleviation of poverty. (See 
box on page 11 for further information.) 

ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

In 1993 the Bank approved a record amount of lending— 
$1.2 billion—for 13 projects that will benefit the environ
ment and help conserve natural resources. One of the 
Bank's principal contributions to the environmental sec
tor was the financing of several large projects designed to 
improve urban areas, particularly water quality in impor
tant water basins. These loans for urban or "brown" en
vironment projects constituted some 65 percent of the 
Bank's environment lending for the year while 35 per
cent was directed to "green" environment projects and 
environmental institution-b uilding. 

Several loans were sizable, including water quality im
provement programs for the Guanabara Bay in Rio de 
Janeiro and the Guaiba Basin in Rio Grande do Sul, both 
in Brazil, the Reconquista River in Argentina and the 
Medellin River in Colombia. A regional development 
and sanitation program was also approved for Bolivia. An 
environment and resettlement project was approved for 
the Yacyretá hydroelectric complex on the Argentina-
Paraguay border. Countrywide environmental programs 
and environmental institution-building programs were 
approved for Colombia and Argentina. Coastal and wa
tershed management programs were approved for Ecua
dor and Honduras, respectively. 

Technical cooperation and Small Projects have also 
been increasingly utilized for addressing environmental 
concerns and issues. During 1993 $23 million was ap
proved for use by both public sector agencies and non
governmental organizations to focus on particular chal
lenges. Operations for environmental institutional 
strengthening were approved for Ecuador, El Salvador 
and Uruguay. The Bank also provided technical assis
tance in support of the Indigenous Peoples Fund; a non
governmental organization reforestation program in Co
lombia; a communal fishery project in Brazil; and a 
regional environmental training program. 

During the Seventh Replenishment period the Bank 
has approved $3.6 billion, or 15 percent of total lending 
during the period, for projects that are addressing envi-
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ronmental concerns in the region. A total of 167 techni
cal cooperation operations and Small Projects, amount
ing to over $70 million, were approved during the last 
four years. 

All Bank projects are systematically reviewed early in 
the project cycle by the Environment Management Com
mittee and are categorized according to the investment's 
impact on the environment. Approximately two-thirds of 
the projects approved in 1993 required environmental 
assessments. The close scrutiny of projects during the 
project cycle often results in the incorporation of envi
ronmental measures that either avoid or mitigate nega
tive effects of the investment or enhance the impact of a 
program. The cost of built-in environmental protection 
and/or natural resource management components is es
timated at about $300 million. 

The Bank has taken additional steps to improve the 
environmental quality of its lending program. The Bank 
assigned six regional environmental advisors to the Coun
try Offices in order to assist the borrowers in fulfilling the 
environmental requirements of projects during project 
execution. The Bank's total number of full-time profes
sionals dealing directly with environmental issues has 
risen from eight in 1990 to 32 in 1993. 

The Bank has steadily increased its efforts to promote 
the participation of local people and nongovernmental 
organizations (NGOs) in project preparation and devel
opment. Local input has been particularly helpful in the 

review of terms of reference prior to studies being con
ducted and in the review and discussion of environmen
tal assessments. In its ongoing dialogue with NGOs, the 
Bank organized its Fourth Consultative Meeting on the 
Environment in Panama City in June 1993. Other meet
ings with NGOs were held in Hamburg and Washington 
for European and North American NGOs. 

WOMEN IN DEVELOPMENT 

The Bank's Women in Development program focused in 
1993 on improving women's technical skills and produc
tivity, particularly in agriculture, the environment and 
microenterprise. 

Women were active participants and beneficiaries in 
several projects aimed at improving the socioeconomic 
conditions of rural families. For example, a loan was ap
proved to support the Bolivian Campesino Development 
Fund, whose strategy includes strengthening productive 
activities ordinarily carried out by women. The program 
will promote women's access to land, credit and techni
cal assistance and support their organized participation 
in local projects that generate jobs and income. Women 
will also be targeted in community-based agroforestry 
projects by developing tree nurseries, reforesting denuded 
lands and promoting better soil and water conservation. 

A national environment program approved for Co
lombia will figure among activities strengthening the con
tribution of women to environmental management by 
training extension agents to more effectively integrate 
women in the planning, implementation and evaluation 
of local environmental projects. The project will also fo
cus on strengthening women's organizational, manage
rial and leadership skills in order to ensure co-manage
ment by women of local environment programs. 

The Bank's microenterprise and Small Projects pro
grams have been instrumental in strengthening the 
participation of women in the economic life of their coun
tries by improving women's income generating capabili
ties. The Small Projects approved in 1993 will benefit 
17,722 women, representing 53 percent of the operations' 
total beneficiaries. Several projects were targeted ex
pressly toward women. 
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TABLE VII. CAPITAL OF THE BANK 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Country 
Subscriptions as of December 31,1993 

Paid-in Callable Sub-total Paid-in 
Future Commitments 

Callable Sub-total Grand-Total 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 

364,895 
2,485 

11,159 
5,404 
6,044 

$ 5.932,422 
40,521 

110,549 
69,920 
95.868 

$ 6,297,317 
43,006 

121,708 
75,324 

101,912 

$19,157 
133 
374 
229 
314 

747,028 
5,103 

14,440 
8.939 

12,088 

766.185 
5,236 

14,814 
9.168 

12,402 

$ 7,063,502 
48,242 

136,522 
84492 

114,314 

Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 

4,777 
29.278 

364,895 
142,131 
100,126 

43,211 
476,228 

5.932,422 
2.236.403 
1.628.986 

47,988 
505,506 

6,297,317 
2,378,534 
1,729,112 

2,425 
1,532 

19,157 
7,238 
5,260 

21,606 
59,967 

747.028 
282,152 
205,115 

24,031 
61,499 

766.185 
289,390 
210,375 

72,019 
567,005 

7,063,502 
2,667,924 
1,939,487 

Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Croatia3 

Denmark 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

100,102 
14,645 

712 
2,678 

19,531 
19,531 

1,627,767 
238,048 
11,569 
43,127 

317,811 
317,811 

1,727,869 
252,693 

12,281 
45,805 

337,342 
337,342 

5,260 
772 
36 

145 
1,025 
1,025 

204,970 
29,978 
1,460 
5,429 

40,014 
40,014 

210,230 
30,750 

1,496 
5,574 

41,039 
41,039 

1,938,099 
283,443 

13,777 
51,379 

378,381 
378,381 

El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 

14,645 
2,485 

30,424 
31,124 
19,531 

238,048 
40,521 

493,117 
505,096 
317,811 

252,693 
43,006 

523,541 
536,220 
337,342 

772 
133 

1,592 
1,629 
1,025 

29,978 
5,103 

62,103 
63,610 
40,014 

30,750 
5,236 

63,695 
65,239 
41,039 

283,443 
48,242 

587,236 
601459 
378,381 

Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 

7,503 
12,329 
14,645 
2,473 

30424 

86,193 
148,115 
238,048 
39.918 

493,117 

93,696 
160,444 
252,693 
42,391 

523,541 

290 
3,088 

772 
133 

1,592 

11,110 
119,911 
29,978 
5.030 

62,103 

11,400 
122,999 
30,750 
5,163 

63,695 

105,096 
283,443 
283,443 
47,554 

587,236 

Jamaica 
Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 

19,531 
33.886 

234,598 
4,584 

14,645 

317,811 
550,141 

3,813,408 
75,010 

238,048 

337,342 
584,027 

4,048,006 
79,594 

252,693 

1,025 
1,773 

12,317 
241 
772 

40,014 
69,280 

480,197 
9,446 

29,978 

41,039 
71,053 

492,514 
9,687 

30,750 

378,381 
655,080 

4,540,520 
89,281 

283,443 

Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 

2,678 
14,645 
14,645 
48,941 

760 

43,127 
238,048 
238,048 
794,908 
13,028 

45,805 
252,693 
252,693 
843,849 

13,788 

145 
772 
772 

2,570 
36 

5,429 
29,978 
29,978 

100,102 
1,641 

5,574 
30,750 
30,750 

102,672 
1,677 

51,379 
283,443 
283,443 
946,521 

15,465 

Sloveniaa 

Spain 
Suriname 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago 

410 
30,424 
5,561 
5,260 
6.743 

14,645 

6,635 
493,117 
45,805 
83,901 

110.163 
238,048 

7,045 
523,541 
51,366 
89,161 

116,906 
252.693 

24 
1,592 

157 
265 
350 
772 

832 
62,103 
6,092 

10,580 
13,873 
29.978 

856 
63,695 
6,249 

10,845 
14,223 
30.750 

7,901 
587,236 
57,615 

100,006 
131,129 
283,443 

United Kingdom 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

30,424 
1,090,341 

39,158 
202,919 

493,117 
17,683,231 

635,996 
3,170,933 

523,541 
18,773,572 

675,154 
3,373.852 

1.592 
59,014 
2,051 

10,266 

62.103 
2,301.160 

80,089 
400,228 

63,695 
2,360,174 

82,140 
410,494 

587,236 
21,133,746 

757,294 
3,784,346 

Sub-Total 
Unallocated 

TOTA1 

3,168,774 
1,363 

51.005,170 
22,317 

54,173,944 
23,680 

171,614 
73 

6,617,352 
2,808 

6,788,966 
2,881 

$3,170,137 $51,027,487 $54,197,624 $171,687 $6,620,160 $6,791,847 

60,962,910 
26,561 

$60,989,471 

1 Admitted per Resolution DE-267/93. 
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FINANCIAL MATTERS 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

During 1993, the Bank's ordinary capital loan portfolio 
was practically fully performing (the loans of only one 
member country, Suriname, accounting for less than 0.1 
percent of the total portfolio, went into non-accrual in 
November ). This favorable outcome was due to a num
ber of factors, not least of which was the continuing posi
tive economic performance of the region, which regis
tered higher growth rates in real terms than in 1992. This 
situation enabled the Bank, through its policy of net in
come targeting, to set its lending spreads at levels consis
tent with those it has charged historically (adjusted for a 
change in expense allocation between the ordinary capi
tal and the Fund for Special Operations) without jeopar
dizing its strong financial position. Other loan charges, 
which had been waived in 1992 due to unique financial 
circumstances, were applied normally in 1993. 

Highlights of earnings from the Bank's own resources 
in 1993 are shown below: 

Ord ina ry cap i t a l r e sou rces : Total income: $2,330 
million compared with $2,141 million in 1992. Net in
come: $395 million compared with $382.1 million in 
1992. Total reserves: $4,758 million as of December 31, 
1993, compared with S4,360.2 million at the end of 1992. 

F u n d f o r Special O p e r a t i o n s : Total income: $ 181 
million compared with $186.7 million in 1992. Net in
come: $88 million compared with $34.1 million in 1992. 
Total reseñes: $534 million as of December 31, 1993, 
compared with $552.3 million at the end of 1992. 

I n t e r m e d i a t e F inanc ing Facil i ty: Total addition 
of S31 million compared with S68.7 million in 1992. In
terest paid on behalf of ordinary capital borrowers: $15.5 
million compared with $21.4 million in 1992. Fund bal
ance: $326.5 million compared with $311.6 million at the 
end of 1992. 

The audited financial statements of the ordinary capi
tal, the Fund for Special Operations, and the Intermedi
ate Financing Facility Account, as well as those of the So
cial Progress Trust Fund and the Venezuelan Trust Fund, 
appear on pages 1 15 through 167. 

BORROWINGS 

The Bank's funding program strives to achieve the low
est-cost financing possible while securing strong, long-
term market support for its issues. Consistent with these 

TABLE VIII. CONTRIBUTION QUOTAS 
TO THE FUND FOR SPECIAL 
OPERATIONS 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Country 
As of 

December 31 

1993 Contribution 
Quotas Receivable 

1993 from Members 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Belize 
Bolivia 

Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Croatia 
Denmark 

Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 

Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 
Japan 

Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 

Portugal 
Slovenia 
Spain 
Suriname 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago 

United Kingdom 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Unallocated 

Î 476.140 
14,338 
9.966 
1,604 

34,801 
7,200 

46,227 

515,925 
261,541 
148,435 
145,601 
22,102 
4,072 

15,037 

31,871 
28.681 
20,158 
13,353 

169,090 
178,385 
30,842 

7,879 
20,600 
24,853 
13,566 

158,864 
27,264 

215,014 

310,237 
26,496 
22,870 
14,365 
24,155 
26.788 
75,402 

5,795 
2,343 

161,203 
5,968 

28.325 
38.912 
19,730 

163,007 
4,715,878 

52,839 
298,116 
13.265 

2,838 
157 
258 

9 
365 

2,400 
232 

2,838 
2,497 

798 
798 
114 
41 

163 

155 
155 
114 
104 

1,858 
1,767 

155 

50 
457 
114 
121 

1,393 
155 

2,276 

1,987 
286 
114 
137 
114 
114 
393 

40 
. 23 
1,409 

94 
226 
421 
114 

1,491 
21,185 

311 
1,987 

312 

T0TA1 $8,649,103 $ 53,140 

'Suriname's loan arrears were cleared in February 1994. 
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TABLE IX. BORROWINGS', FISCAL YEAR 1993 
(In millions of currency) 

Type Units Amount 
Amount 

(USSequiv.) 

United States 
dollars 

Japanese yen 

Swiss francs 

Deutsche marks 

Netherlands 
guilders 

Canadian dollars 

French francs 

6.625% Eurobonds, due 2003 
7.125% Bonds, due 2023 
Euro-MTN, due 1994* 
6.000% Eurobonds, due 2003 
Euro-MTN, due 1995* 

4.250% U.S. - MTN, due 1996 
5.080% U.S. -MTN, due 1997 

5.100% Syndicated loan, due 2008 
4.375% Eurobonds, due 1998 
3.900% Syndicated loan, due 2005 
Euro-MTN, due 1998* 

5.500% Bonds, due 2003 
4.750% Bonds, due 2003 

6.750% Bonds, due 2003 

6.625% Eurobonds, due 2003 
5.625% Eurobonds, due 2000 

7.250% Eurobonds, due 2003 

7.000% Eurobonds, due 2000 

U.S.$ 
U.S.$ 
U.S.$ 
U.S.S 
U.S.$ 

U.S.$ 
U.S.S 

Yen 
Yen 
Yen 
Yen 

SwF 
SwF 

DM 

NG 
NG 

Can$ 

FrF 

500 
300 
50 

500 
25 

10 
50 

10,000 
40,000 
20,000 
10,000 

500 
600 

500 

300 
300 

250 

1,200 

$ 500.0 
300.0 
50.0 

500.0 
25.0 

10.0 
50.0 

90.0 
372.6 
183.6 
91.8 

328.2 
393.6 

309.7 

168.4 
156.4 

189.2 

222.6 

Total Borrowings $3,941.1 

* Floating interest rate 
1 Before swaps. 

goals, in 1993 the Bank continued its strategy of both 
maintaining a regular presence in its core currency mar
kets and broadening the market for its securities by di
versifying its other borrowings in terms of currency, ma
turity, and target investor base. 

At the end of 1993, the Bank's outstanding borrow
ings amounted to $23,424 million equivalent. During 
1993, the Bank completed 18 individual borrowings in 
the world's capital markets for a total of $3,941 million 
equivalent. This amount represents a decrease of $1,133 
million relative to the record $5,074 million borrowed in 
1992, but was still well ahead of the $3,649 million bor
rowed in 1991. 

In May 1993, the Bank established its U.S. and Euro 
Medium Term Note (MTN) programs with a combined 
global borrowing authority of $1,250 million. The pro
gram enables the Bank not only to carry out a number of 
smaller borrowings for specific funding purposes, such as 
the funding of its commitment to the IIC or accessing a 
particular investor group, but also to transact a number 

of small, usually structured, issues at substantial cost sav
ings. As of year end, $226.8 million of MTNs had been 
issued by the Bank. The types of notes issued included 
short-dated Euro floating-rate notes (FRNs), a swap-
driven Japanese yen FRN, a U.S. dollar "step-up cou
pon" note, and a U.S. dollar note targeted for the Cana
dian retail market. 

Approximately 38.8 percent of the Bank's borrowings 
after swaps were denominated in U.S. dollars, 22.9 per
cent in Swiss francs, 22.1 in Japanese yen, 7.9 percent in 
Deutsche marks and 8.3 percent in Netherlands guilders. 
Of particular note, the Bank completed three currency, 
and one interest rate, swap-driven issues for an aggregate 
amount of $555.5 million equivalent and also issued $300 
million of 30-year callable bonds in the Yankee market. 
The currency swap operations included a French franc 
issue swapped into Japanese yen, which marked the 
Bank's return to the French market after an absence of 
more than 20 years. 

Total advance redemptions for the year amounted to 
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$1,043 million equivalent. The Bank prepaid three Japa
nese yen borrowings, four Swiss franc borrowings, one 
mult iple-tranche U.S. dollar borrowing, and one 
Trinidad and Tobago dollar borrowing. The advance re
demption of these borrowings will generate significant 
savings during the coming years, since the high-coupon 
debt has been replaced with lower-cost borrowings. 

The Bank also intensified its investor relations pro
gram, completing a series of meetings with investors in 
Asia, Europe, the U.S. and Latin America. The purposes 
of these meetings included broadening the Bank's inves
tor base, increasing investor knowledge about the institu
tion, and exploring ways to promote investment in Bank 
securities. 

FUNDS IN ADMINISTRATION 

Since the Bank's establishment, trust funds have been an 
important source of additional financing for projects, par
ticularly projects benefitting low-income people. The first 
trust fund, created in 1961, was entrusted to the Bank by 
the United States. Other funds have been established by 
member countries, including the Venezuelan Trust Fund, 
the Swedish Fund for Small Projects, the Canadian Fund, 
the United Kingdom Fund, the Swiss Fund for Techni
cal Cooperation, the Argentine Fund, and the European 
Economic Communitv Fund. 

Japan has contributed ¥15,000 million (approximately 
$136 million) to the Japan Special Fund (JSF) to finance 
nonreimbursable technical cooperation, primarily for 
project preparation, small projects and emergency assis
tance to cope with natural disasters. By the end of 1993, 
36 projects had benefitted from financing in the amount 
of ¥7,766 million (approximately $71 million). In 1993, 
the Japanese government contributed ¥1,500 million (ap
proximately $14 million) to the Fund. An additional 
¥1,000 million (approximately $9 million) was commit
ted to the JSF, of which ¥600 million was earmarked for 
environment-related technical assistance. 

The Bank established the Inter-American Develop
ment Bank Graduate Scholarship Program with grant 
funding from Japan to promote the development of hu
man resources in the region. The program offers oppor
tunities to selected individuals to undertake further stud
ies at national or international institutions in the social 
sciences, management and other development-related 
fields. The program provided scholarships for 47 recipi
ents for the 1993-94 academic year. The program's cu
mulative resources totaled ¥353 million (approximately 
$3 million) as of the end of 1993. On a cumulative basis, 
68 scholarships have been awarded. 

In 1990 the Government of Spain established the 
Quincentennial Fund to help cofinance projects with the 
Bank. In addition, it established a Compensation Account 

TABLE X. 
OUTSTANDING BORROWINGS BY 
CURRENCY AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1993 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Currency* Amount 

Austrian schillings 
British Pounds sterling 
Canadian dollars 
French francs 
German marks 
Japanese yen 
Netherlands guilders 
Portuguese escudos 
Spanish pesetas 
Swiss francs 
United States dollars 

82 
499 
529 
203 

2,217 
8,373 
1,262 

65 
210 

3,450 
6,534 

Total $ 23,424 

* Before swaps. 

to subsidize the interest rate on loans from the Fund. The 
Fund's first operation, a $30 million loan to Mexico, was 
approved in 1993. A total of $60 million has been con
tributed to the Compensation Account. 

The Technical Cooperation Trust Funds Program 
(TC/FUNDS) was created in 1991 in order to provide 
additional financing to hire short- and medium-term con
sultants and to finance scholarships and other training 
activities. The T C / F U N D S Program consists of indi
vidual funds financed by contributions from member 
countries and international entities. To date, $20.1 mil
lion has been contributed by Austria, Belgium, the Euro
pean Economic Community, Germany, Israel, Italy, Por
tugal, and Sweden. In 1993, the Netherlands, Norway, 
and Spain provided resources to expand the program to 
15 funds. 

27 • 



INTER-AMERICAS 'DEVELOPMENT BANK 

TABLE XL FUNDS IN ADMINISTRATION 

Name 
Date 

Established 
Entrusted 

by Currency 

Amount 
Contributed* 

(million) Sector Concentration or Purpose 

Social Progress Trust Fund 

Venezuelan Trust Fund 

Canadian Fund 

Canadian Project 
Preparation Fund 

Japan Special Fund 

1961 

1975 

1964 

1974 

1988 

1991 IDB Graduate Scholarship 
Program 

Swiss Fund for Technical 1980 
Cooperation and Small Projects 

Norwegian Development Fund 1987 

United Kingdom Development Fund 1971 

Argentine Fund 1970 

Special Fund for Small Projects 1991 

Spanish Quincentennial Funds 1990 

Fund for Belgian Consultants 1991 

EEC Fund for Technical 1991 
Consultancy Services 

Italian Trust Fund 1991 

Italian Fund for Consulting Firms 1992 

Italian Fund for Individual 1992 
Consultants 

Portuguese Technical 1991 
Cooperation 

Swedish Trust Fund for 1991 
Consulting Services and 
Training Activities 

Swedish Fund for the 1992 
Financing of Small Projects 

Austrian Technical 1992 
Cooperation Trust Fund 

German Technical Cooperation 1992 
Fund 

Israeli Consultant Trust 1992 
Fund 

Norwegian Fund for Women 1993 
in Development 

Environmental Technical 1993 
Cooperation Trust Fund 
from The Netherlands 

Spanish Fund for 1993 
Consultants (ICEX) 

Swedish Fund for 1993 
Microenterprise in Bolivia 

USA 

Venezuela 

Canada 

Canada 

Japan 

Japan 

Switzerland 

Norway 

U.K. 

Argentina 

EEC 

Spain 

Belgium 

Commission of 
the European 
Communities 

Italy 

Italy 

Italy 

Portugal 

Sweden 

Sweden 

Austria 

Germany 

Israel 

Norway 

Netherlands 

Spain 

Sweden 

U.S.S 

U.S.$ 
Bolivars 

Can$ 

Can$ 

Yen 

Yen 

SwF 

U.S.$ 

£ 

Pesos 

ECU 

ECU 

BF 

ECU 

U.S.$ 

U.S.S 

U.S.$ 

Escudos 

U.S.S 

U.S.S 

U.S.S 

DM 

Shekels 

NOK 

NG 

Ptas. 

SwK 

525 

400 
430 

73 

6 

15,000 

353 

53 

2 

equiv. to 
U.S.S23 

equiv. to 
U.S.S90 

equiv. to 
U.S.S0.38 

equiv. to 
U.S.S2.4 

3.5 

1.8 

0.82 

equiv. to 
U.S.$1.5 

equiv. to 
U.S.S0.18 

equiv, to 
U.S.S0.19 

equiv. to 
U.S.S0.14 

equiv. to 
U.S.S0.93 

equiv. to 
U.S.S0.36 

equiv. to 
U.S.S4.0 

Agriculture, sanitation, education social. 

Integration, natural resources, 
industry, exports. 

Physical infrastructure and other sectors on 
concessional terms. 

Preparation of project—basic studies, 
feasibility and engineering design. 

Technical assistance, small projects, 
emergency assistance. 

Scholarships for advanced study. 

Projects that benefit low-income groups. 

Loans and small projects, low-income groups, health, 
education, agriculture and small-scale industry. 

Concessional loans. 

Local counterpart financing for IDB projects. 

Small projects and technical assistance. 

Technical education, agriculture, 
health, communications, urban development. 

Technical assistance for preparation 
of projects in productive and private sectors. 

Short-term consultancy services to 
carry out studies and training in 
conjunction with the Bank's operations. 

Consulting services related to industrial reconstruction. 

Consulting services for specialized institutions. 

Individual consultants. 

Technical assistance, scholarships 
and traineeships. 

Consulting services and training 
in social sectors. 

Small projects. 

Short- and long-term consultancies. 

Short- and medium-term advisory 
services. 

Advisory services for projects. 

Technical assistance activities, studies, training and 
seminars to be carried out by the Bank under 
its Women in Development Program. 

Consulting services from The Netherlands, Latin 
America and the Caribbean. 

Consulting services from Spain for technical assistance 
activities. 

Microenterprise activities and Small Projects. 

* Figures represent gross contributions and do not reflect balances on hand. 

• 28 



THE BANK IN 1993 

INSTITUTIONAL ASPECTS PROGRAMMING 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

During its March 1993 Annual Meeting in Hamburg, 
Germany, the Board of Governors approved the 1992 fi
nancial statements of the ordinary capital, the Fund for 
Special Operations and the Intermediate Financing Fa
cility. At the same meeting, the Board recommended that 
the Committee of the Board of Governors continue the 
study of proposals related to the Eighth General Increase 
in the Resources of the Bank. 

In other actions taken in 1993 the Board 
• in an Extraordinary Session convened in February, 

re-elected Enrique V. Iglesias as President of the Inter-
American Development Bank for a five-year period be
ginning April 1. 1993 and 

• appointed an external auditing firm to examine the 
Bank's financial statements for 1993. 

The Committee of the Board of Governors is the 
Board's permanent arm, made up of 12 of its members. 
The Committee held four meetings in 1993, the first dur
ing the Thirty-fourth Annual Meeting of the Board of 
Governors in Hamburg, the second in June in Punta del 
Este, Uruguay, and the third and fourth, in October and 
December, at Bank headquarters. Pursuant to the man
date received from the Board of Governors, the Commit
tee continued the consideration of proposals related to the 
Eighth General Increase in the Resources of the Bank at 
these meetings. 

During the year a review of the Bank's programming pro
cedures was undertaken in order to make them a more 
effective tool for defining and implementing an agreed 
lending strategy for the borrowing countries. The format 
and content of the Country Programming Paper (CPP) 
were included in this review. The objective is to antici
pate the transition from the lending guidelines of the 
Seventh Replenishment to the possible areas of special 
emphasis and lending scenarios of the Eighth Replenish
ment. 

In 1993, 10 CPPs, nine Socioeconomic Reports 
(SERs) and two Regional Programming Papers (RPPs) 
were prepared. These documents define the Bank's lend
ing strategy and help guide its activities in the countries 
and subregions. A total of 18 programming missions, in
cluding a regional mission to the Caribbean Community 
(CARICOM), were carried out in 1993. Programming 
missions are an integral part of the programming process 
and serve as vehicles to discuss the lending strategy and 
priorities with the authorities of the borrowing country. 
The missions also serve to update the loan and technical 
cooperation pipeline or inventory of projects for a three-
year period. Particular emphasis is being placed on the 
quality and efficiency of social services and on avoiding 
environmental degradation. The Bank sought an active 
dialogue with leaders representing a wide spectrum of 
views and interests in each of the borrowing member 
countries. 

BOARD OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

The Board of Executive Directors is responsible for the 
operations of the Bank. It establishes the institution's op
erational policies, approves loan and technical coopera
tion proposals submitted by the President of the Bank, 
authorizes Bank borrowings on capital markets, approves 
the Bank's administrative budget and determines the fi
nance charges and interest rates on its loans. 

The Board performs its duties on a full-time basis at 
the Bank's headquarters, and its 12 principal members 
are elected or appointed for three-year terms by the Gov
ernors of the Bank. Each Executive Director may appoint 
an Alternate, who has full power to act when the princi
pal is absent. A roster of the Executive Directors and Al
ternate Executive Directors appears on page 169. To fa
cilitate its work, the Board has four standing committees, 
each made up of six Executive Directors. 

AUDITING AND EVALUATION 

The Bank's activities are subject to both internal and ex
ternal audit and evaluation systems. 

The External Review and Evaluation Office (ORE) is 
independent of Management and performs evaluations at 
the direction of the Board of Executive Directors. The 
evaluations cover broad areas of lending and specific in
stitutional issues. The reports and proposed recommen
dations are reviewed by the Executive Directors and sub
sequently forwarded to Management for implementation. 
During 1993 several ORE evaluations were prepared, in
cluding "The Bank's Experience in the Area of Procure
ment of Civil Works, Goods and Services," "Electric 
Power Sector Tariff Policy and Lending," "The Promo
tion and Financing of Exports," "Agricultural Production 
and the Environment: The Case of Credit" and "The 
Operation of Social Projects after Disbursement." 

Internal review of the Bank's operations has been pro
vided by the Operations Evaluation Office (OEO) in the 
Office of the Controller. OEO conducts ex-post evalua
tions and has been the primary source of ex-ante infor
mation in the formulation of new projects. During the 
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year, OEO continued preparing ex-post evaluations for 
sectors and topics for which work had begun. In addi
tion, OEO started new evaluation activities commensu
rate with the changes that are being made in the Bank's 
Operations Evaluation System. 

At the end of 1992, the Board of Executive Directors 
approved the merging of ORE and O E O into a new 
Evaluation Office (EVO). The integrated system will con
centrate on operations evaluation and continue the as
sessment of Bank policies and procedures. EVO will also 
focus on accountability in project implementation. The 
merger is expected to become effective in 1994. 

The Office of the Auditor General performs indepen
dent audit reviews of Bank financial, operational, and 
administrative activities to assure Management of the ef
fectiveness of controls and resource utilization. During 

LA CRl Z- CHILE. Laboratory technician Elba Basaez ex
amining microscopic greenhouse whitefly nymphs found on the 
leaves of an herb called ruda. The white/lies are a pest that has 
attacked vegetable crops on the Easter Islands. A package of two 
1985 Bank loans totaling $17.6 million have helped Chile's 
National Institute of Agricultural and Livestock Research 
iINIA) to work in areas such as seed production and technology 
trans fer and have enabled professional staff to pursue master's 
and doctoral studies. 

1993, the work of the office, coordinated with the Bank's 
external auditors, included reviews of a number of finan
cial functions, proposed personnel and administrative 
policy changes, reassignments of certain accounting func
tions, computer data access security, new and updated 
computer technology applications and Country Office 
operational reviews in several countries. 

The Bank's financial statements are examined by a 
firm of independent auditors selected every year by the 
Board of Governors. 

ROLE OF THE COUNTRY OFFICES 

The Bank has a Country Office in each of the member 
countries in the region. These Offices provide essential 
linkages with borrowing country governments and play a 
pivotal role identifying, developing and executing Bank 
projects. Most Country Offices are staffed with a 
multidisciplinary team that includes the Representative, 
Deputy Representative and sectoral specialists who help 
executing agencies to administer the Bank's portfolio in 
each country. 

The Country Offices currently administer a portfolio 
of 585 loans, representing a total of $32.9 billion. The 
Offices are responsible for overseeing the technical and 
operational aspects of project execution, including the 
approval of disbursements and monitoring the procure
ment process by which the borrowers purchase goods and 
services to execute the projects. In recent years greater 
responsibility has been delegated to the Country Offices. 
For example, Representatives have been given greater 
authority to approve and extend the terms of contractual 
commitments and to approve most conditions prior to 
first disbursement of operations. In addition, the Offices 
have responsibility for prepar ing and approving 
intraregional technical cooperation and technical assis
tance in response to natural disasters. 

Several studies, both internal and external, including 
the Report of the Task Force on Portfolio Management, 
made a number of recommendations aimed at transfer
ring to the Country Offices greater authority and respon
sibility for project execution, in order to respond to 
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GUATEMALA CITY. GUA
TEA! ALL Farmworkers picking 
strawberries on a 12-hectareplan
tation, called Desarrollos Bella 
Vista, that overlooks the capital 
city. A subitum from a $40 mil
lion agrie u I tu ral credit program 
covered roughly 40 percent of the 
cost of the initial planting. By 
1992. the farm was producing 
8,160 kilos per hectare and ex
porting fresh produce to El Salva
dor. Honduras. Mexico and the 
United S/ales. 

changing financial and technical conditions and to uti
lize Country Office resources more effectively. It is ex
pected that several of those recommendations will be 
implemented in the future. 

Special Office in Europe 

The Bank's Paris-based Special Office in Europe (SOE) 
plays a key role in promoting cooperation between the 
Bank and its nonregional member countries. To that end, 
SOE organizes and participates in a variety of outreach 
activities, including conferences, briefings and other fora, 
designed to strengthen such cooperation. 

The fourth annual consultative meeting between the 
President of the Bank and representatives of the 
nonregional governments, a focal point for strengthening 
this cooperation, was held in Jerusalem in February. 
1993. SOE organized a number of events designed to fur
ther encourage the burgeoning European investment in 
the region. In May, a major international conference, 
"Meeting the Investment Needs of Latin America," was 

cosponsored by the Bank in London. In a new initiative, 
the Bank cosponsored a Nordic Forum—a series of 
workshops aimed primarily at business audiences in 
Scandinavia—in Stockholm in May. The fourth IDB-
OECD Development Centre Forum on Latin American 
Perspectives, "Strengthening Democracy and Reform In 
Latin America: Redefining the Role of the State," took 
place in Paris in November. Senior Bank officials ad
dressed business and academic audiences at a variety of 
presentations in Austria, Belgium, Finland, France, Italy, 
Norway, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United 
Kingdom and conducted three European Business Brief
ings at the Paris office. 

In an effort to expand contacts with other interest 
groups in Europe, particularly those concerned with the 
social sectors, IDB personnel participated in programs 
publicizing the Bank's initiatives involving women in de
velopment and indigenous peoples. 'The third in a series 
of consultations between the Bank and Europe-based 
NGOs took place in Paris in October. 

SOE promoted further exchanges between the Euro-
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

TABLE XII. CONSOLIDATED ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Category 
1991 

Actual 
19921 

Actual 
1993 

Actual 

Board of Governors 
Annual Meeting 
Other Expenses 

Board of Executive Directors 
Personnel Costs 
Consulting and Business Travel 
External Review and Evaluation Office 

Headquarters and Country Offices 
Personnel Costs2 

Consulting and Business Travel 
General Administrative Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE REIMBURSEMENT 

Reimbursement from Funds under Administration and IIC 

TOTAL 

966.5 
444.2 

7,197.3 
1,001.5 
1,282.7 

145,695.5 
22,316.3 
31,035.4 

209,939.4 

(3,984.4) 

$205,955.0 

631.0 
343.5 

1,250.1 
1,319.0 

157,085.8 
29,606.3 
35,828.7 

234,152.5 

(3,559.6) 

$230,592.9 

$ 1,645.3 
393.9 

9,067.7 
1,141.7 
1,410.2 

169,462.1 
32,404.2 
39,718.0 

255,243.1 

(2,895.2) 

$252,347.9 

1 Excludes approximately $11.9 million related to special termination program expenses. 
2 Excludes funding for Postretirement Benefits (FAS 106) amounting to $11.7 million in 1991, $11.2 million in 1992 and $19.4 million in 1993. 

pean Union and Latin America under the Bolivar-EN-
LACE program, a venture inspired by the European 
EUREKA Program linking science and industry. In 
1993, ENLACE produced a pipeline of projects aimed 
at attracting potential business partners and joint ventures 
between Latin American and Caribbean companies and 
research institutions in Europe. 

ADMINISTRATION 

During 1993, the professional job grading exercise was 
concluded in conjunction with the implementation of a 
new job grading and classification system. The Bank's 
professional positions are now in line with similar posi
tions in other organizations. Job grading for administra
tive positions will begin following approval of a new ad
ministrative job grading policy, in 1994. 

A Statement of Principles of Personnel Policies will be 
sent to the Board of Executive Directors for approval. 
The Statement will serve as the framework for staff-Man
agement relations and will provide guiding principles for 
all of the Bank's human resource policies. A report pre
pared by an Advisory Group on Labor Relations, com
missioned by the President, was presented for 
Management's consideration. Implementation of recom
mendations aimed at improving communications and re
solving a number of staff benefits and policy issues will 
take place during the course of 1994. 

Training programs designed to enhance the leadership 
capabilities of supervisors and team leaders continued to 
be offered. A total of 3,000 staff-days were devoted to 
Management Development programs, Country and 
Project Team training, specialized instruction and semi
nars for Country Office staff. 

The Bank's administrative budget for 1994 was autho
rized at $267.4 million, net of projected overhead reim
bursements of $3.6 million, an increase of $15.1 million 
or 5.9 percent compared with the $252.3 million ap
proved for 1993, net of projected reimbursements of $3.9 
million. Total expenditures for 1991, 1992 and 1993 are 
shown in Table XII. In 1993, total expenditures of $252.3 
million, net of the actual $2.9 million reimbursement, 
represented 100 percent of the approved budget. 

At the close of 1993, the Bank's staff (excluding the 
Board of Executive Directors and the External Review 
and Evaluation Office and their staff) totaled 1,818, of 
whom 1,171 were professionals and 647 were adminis
trative. Of these, 483 employees were assigned to the 
Country Offices. These figures compare with a total of 
1,791 staff members—1,120 professional and 671 admin
istrative—at the end of 1992. By the end of 1993, 311 
women occupied professional positions at the Bank. 
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BOGOTA, COLOMBIA. Re
searcher Margarita Navia studies 
changes in immune responses to 
people after vaccination with a 
low-cost, synthetic malaria vac
cine. Shown in the inset as both a 
serum and in the dry form in which 
it is initially made up, the vaccine 
was developed with resources from 
a pair of IDB loans totaling $40 
million approved in 1989. Field 
trials administered by the Immu
nology Institute of the National 
University San Juan de Dios Hos
pital have shown it to be between 
40 and 70 percent effective in com
bating a disease of which there are 
300 million cases worldwide an
nually. 

CONFERENCES AND CULTURAL ACTDTITIES 

The Bank organizes and cosponsors meetings and con
ferences on development topics in its member countries. 
During 1993, the major events included the following: 

• Ministers of justice, supreme court justices, magis
trates, public prosecutors, attorney generals and others 
convened in San José, Costa Rica, in February at a fo
rum entitled "Justice in Latin America and the Caribbean 
in the 1990s: Challenges and Opportunities." The pur
pose of the conference was to examine the role of law in 
the process of economic development. 

• In May the Bank hosted a meeting on the efficient 
use of electrical energy involving ministerial-level officials 
from governments in the region with private sector rep
resentatives from the United States, Canada, Latin 
America and the Caribbean. The meeting reviewed the 
experiences of electrical utilities in helping consumers 
conserve energy and the feasibility and means for trans
ferring and adapting such experiences to Latin America 
and the Caribbean. 

• A seminar on tax reform was held at the Bank in 

July at which two categories of countries in the region 
were examined: those that have carried out substantial 
reforms in tax policy and administration and those that 
have only undertaken reforms in administration with no 
major changes in the tax structure. 

• In October, a seminar was cosponsored by the 
Bank in Guatemala City on futures and options markets 
in Central America. The program brought together agri
cultural producers and processors, traders, bankers, ex
change officials, brokers and regulatory officials from 
North America and Latin America. It was the first such 
meeting in the region devoted exclusively to increasing 
awareness among Central America's bankers and agricul
tural producers of commodity prices, interest and cur
rency risk. 

The Cultural Center of the Bank, established in 1992, 
brings to Washington exhibits, lectures, concerts and 
other events in order to stimulate dialogue and a greater 
knowledge of the cultures of the Bank's member coun
tries. During 1993, several exhibitions were presented, 
including Pablo Picasso's "Suite Vollard," a series of 100 
metal engravings; "Peru: A Legend in Silver," a selection 
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MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT FUND 

The Multilateral Investment Fund (MIF) was established in 
1992 by 21 Bank member countries. The Fund, which is ad
ministered by the IDB, has a dual purpose—support the pro
cess of modernization and ease the human and social costs 
that such adjustments can entail. It approved its first opera
tions during 1993. 

Conceived partly as a development mechanism and 
partly as a venture capital fund, the MIF's investment pro
gram, operating mostly on a grant basis, will make use of the 
following three "windows": 

• Technical Cooperation—This facility, Window 1, sup
ports the implementation of public policies aimed at expand
ing private-sector participation in national economies, im
proving the climate for private investment. 

• Human Resource Development—This second window 
will address the dislocation that accompanies privatization, 
helping with the development of human-resource bases 
needed to accommodate increased private investment and 
leading to greater productivity throughout national labor 
forces. 

• Small Enterprise Development—Window 3 fosters mi
croenterprises and smaller businesses by offering credit and 
other financial services (often by strengthening intermediar
ies established to serve them), by financing business advi
sory services designed to provide know-how and market in
formation, by promoting technology transfer and by facilitat
ing the formation of partnerships and subcontracting affilia

tions. This window will also feature a second, separate facil
ity, the Small Enterprise Investment Fund (SEIF), to make 
loans and equity investments in small businesses and micro-
enterprises. 

The MIF contracts the technical and administrative re
sources of the Bank but relies upon separate capital subscrip
tions. Contributions pledged by the 28 current signatories 
and adherents to the Fund's agreement total over $1.2 bil
lion over five years. In addition to Japan and the United 
States, which have pledged $500 million each over that pe
riod, signatories and adherents include five European coun
tries and 21 countries from Latin America and the Caribbean. 

In identifying projects for potential financing, the MIF 
strongly emphasizes innovation and replicability—activities 
with a "demonstration value." Accordingly, it seeks to bring 
groups that have often operated at the margins, such as 
youth, women and the underemployed, into the economic 
mainstream of their countries, turning them into important 
contributors to civil society throughout the region. In addi
tion to working with the governments of beneficiary coun
tries, the Fund also seeks to participate in joint ventures with 
private firms from the region, and with NGOs and private vol
untary organizations (PVOs) at work at the grassroots level 
throughout the hemisphere. 

In December, the MIF's Donors Committee approved the 
Fund's initial three operations, for a total of $7 million. 

of 64 pre-Columbian silver objects; "Journey to Modern
ism: Costa Rican Painters and Sculptors between 1864 
and 1959"; and "Colombia: Land of El Dorado," a se
lection of 150 pre-Hispanic gold objects. 

The lecture series included, among others, a host of 
prominent speakers, including Chilean writer José 
Donoso; the Colombian historian and diplomat Germán 
Arciniegas; and Nobel Peace Prize recipient Rigoberta 
Menchú. 

COOPERATION WITH OTHER ORGANIZATIONS 

The highlight of IDB/United Nations Development 
Programme (UNDP) collaboration in 1993 was the con
vening of a Forum on Social Reform and Poverty at Bank 
headquarters in February. The Forum was convened as 
a means of contributing to the development of a consen
sus on possible solutions to the causes and consequences 
of persistent poverty. 

The Forum was attended by 400 persons, including 
ministers from the economic and social sectors, other gov
ernment officials, representatives from international in
stitutions, as well as a wide cross-section of leaders from 
trade unions, religious bodies, academia and nongovern
mental organizations. The causes of poverty and the role 
of education, population, governance and structural ad
justment were among the topics discussed by participants. 
Their reflections, contributions and conclusions were 
jointly published by the IDB and the UNDP in a book 
entitled Reforma Socialy Pobreza. 

In other areas, the Bank and the UNDP continued to 
collaborate in making intellectual and financial resources 
available to the work of the Commission on Development 
and Environment for Latin America and the Caribbean. 
Their contribution took the form of technical coopera
tion operations in three countries of the region for imple
mentation, at the country level, of recommendations 
made by the Commission in an earlier report, Our Own 
Agenda. Other forms of collaboration at the country level, 
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LIMA, PERU. The Wawa Wasi 
day care centers (whose name comes 

from the Quechua for "nursery") 
will provide preschool education 
and in-home nutrition fur approxi
mately 650,000 children under 
the age of six, linking low-income 

families with women's groups and 
community associations. The pro
gram is financed in part by a $6.3 
million loan from the IDB and 
will reach, in addition to the pre
schoolers, street children and dis
advantaged mothers in 15 cities 
throughout the country. 

ranging from the funding of preparatory missions to the 
cofinancing of projects, continued throughout the region. 

Nineteen ninety-three marked the first year of imple
mentation of a project cofinanced by the IDB and 
UNICEF designed to dampen, over the short term, the 
effects of extreme poverty in selected parts of the coun
tries in the Andean subregión (Bolivia, Colombia, Ecua
dor, Peru and Venezuela). The subprograms attach high
est priority to actions designed to benefit women and 
children living in extreme poverty while reducing pres
sures on the environment. Among the important goals of 
the program are the identification of institutions that may
be strengthened and the testing of methods of providing 
medium- and long-term coverage, over a broader range, 
for programs to redress economic imbalances among the 
peoples of the subregión. 

In September 1993, at the time of the World Bank/ 
International Monetary Fund annual meeting, the IDB 
hosted another in its series of meetings of heads of multi
lateral financial institutions (MFIs). The topics of discus
sion were "Governance and Modernization of the State" 
and "Horizontal Cooperation—Cooperation among 
MFIs." 

INTER-AMERICAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION 

and medium-scale. While affiliated with the Bank, the IIC 
is a legally autonomous multilateral investment corpora
tion with resources and management separate from the 
IDB. The IIC works directly with the private sector and 
neither seeks nor requires government guarantees. Enter
prises with partial share participation by government or 
other public entities whose activities strengthen the pri
vate sector of the economy are eligible for financing by 
the Corporation. 

The IIC concluded its fourth year of operations in 
1993 by approving equity investments and loans totaling 
$ 124 million for 31 private-sector projects in 14 of 24 bor
rowing member countries. Among the resources commit
ted, a total of 87 percent took the form of loans and 13 
percent were equity investments. In addition, two projects 
entailed the establishment of investment funds for the re
gion as a whole. Projects were financed in the energy, 
fisheries, agriculture and food processing, tourism, textiles 
and banking sectors. The 1993 approvals compare with 
30 operations totaling $158 million approved in 1992. On 
a cumulative basis the IIC has approved $467 million in 
loans and investments for private enterprises in 21 coun
tries. 

A more detailed review of the Corporation's activities 
in 1993 appears in its Eighth Annual Report, which is 
published separately. 

The Inter-American Investment Corporation (IIC) en
courages the establishment, expansion, and moderniza
tion of private enterprises, preferably those that are small 
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PART II 

LOANS AND 
TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Part II contains a description of the terms and conditions 
for Bank lending; a summary of the year's lending and 
technical cooperation activities; procurement statistics; 
and country chapters that include a brief statement on 
the lending program in each borrowing country and a 
description of the loans, Small Projects, and technical co
operation authorized by the Bank in 1993. Part II con
cludes with the Statement of Approved Loans and eight 
statistical tables on Latin America and the Caribbean. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The Bank's pool-based variable lending rate methodol
ogy (adopted in December 1989) uniformly adjusts the 
lending rate applicable to the outstanding balances of all 
loans approved since January 1, 1990. As a result, in 
keeping with the cooperative nature of the institution, all 
borrowers share equally the costs and benefits of changes 
in the lending rate. The lending rate obtained by apply
ing the fixed-at-disbursement methodology is still applied 
to disbursements of loans approved before January 1, 
1990. Both the variable and the fixed-at-disbursement 
lending rates include the same spread over the relevant 
cost of borrowing. 

New borrowings are assigned to fund disbursements 
of loans approved under either of the two types of lend
ing rates. The cost of borrowing for the fixed-at-disburse
ment rate is the weighted average cost of new borrow
ings carried out during the previous 12 months and which 
are assigned to fund loans approved before January 1, 
1990. The cost of borrowing for the variable lending rate 
is the weighted average for the previous 6 months of the 

ST. AUGUSTINE, BARBADOS. Students take a snack 
break at Cuthbert Moore Primary School, the first to be com
pleted under an Education and Training project financed with 
the help of a $19 million IDB loan approved in 1986. With a 
capacity of 420 students, the school replaces two others that were 
small and uneconomical. The project also included the construc
tion and equipping of secondary schools, establishment of teacher 
training facilities and the provision of consulting services and 

fellowships. 

outstanding borrowings assigned to the pool of borrow
ings that funds loans approved since January 1, 1990. 

The lending rate for new disbursements of fixed-rate 
loans was 6.96 percent during the first six months of 1993 
and 6.50 percent during the last six months of the year. 
The lending rate applicable to outstanding balances of 
variable-rate loans was 7.53 percent during the first six 
months of 1993 and 7.26 percent during the last six 
months of the year. Loans extended from the ordinary 
capital during 1993 were made for terms ranging from 
15 to 25 years. One loan was made from the ordinary 
capital in a member country's own currency, carrying an 
interest rate of 4 percent and a 20-year maturity. The 
above rates include a spread over applicable borrowing 
costs of 0.58 percent. 

The rates of interest charged on loans extended from 
the Fund for Special Operations varied from 1 to 4 per
cent, depending on the stage of development of the coun
try and the nature of the project, with grace periods rang
ing from 4 to 10 years. For the less developed member 
countries, the rate of interest was 1 percent during the 
first 10 years and 2 percent thereafter. Maturities varied 
from 25 to 40 years. 

In addition to the interest rate on loans, the Bank 
charges a 0.75 percent commitment fee (1.25 percent on 
loans approved before January 1, 1989) for loans made 
from the ordinary capital, a 0.50 percent commitment fee 
for loans made from the Fund for Special Operations, 
and a one-time inspection and supervision fee of 1 per
cent on all loans. 

Loans not extended directly to the governments of the 
member countries or to intergovernmental development 
institutions carry guarantees of the government or a gov
ernmental agency. The financings for Small Projects de
scribed in this section, which need not be guaranteed, 
were extended in local currency for up to 40 years, with 
grace periods of up to 10 years, and carried a commis
sion of 1 percent. Technical cooperation is extended on 
a grant, contingent recovery, or reimbursable basis. Con
tingent recovery technical cooperation, which represents 
a small amount of the total, is subject to repayment only 
if, as a result of the cooperation, a loan is subsequently 
made by the Bank or another external financial institu
tion for the execution of a project or program. 
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TABLE XIII. YEARLY (1993) AND CUMULATIVE (1961-93)1 TOTAL COST OF PROfECTS 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Country 
Total Cost Bank's Loans 

Latin America's 
Contributions 

1993 1961-93 1993 1961-93 1993 1961-93 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

$ 2,068.5 
0.0 

35.6 

115.5 
1,841.5 

150.0 
1,022.4 

897.5 
163.3 
42.6 
90.0 

132.0 
30.1 
0.0 

36.4 
195.6 
961.9 
126.6 
467.9 
122.5 
318.3 

0.0 
92.5 

102.2 
2,405.4 
1,331.6 

18,333.7 
274.3 
407.0 

3,395.7 
42,009.3 
9,546.2 

14,689.5 
3,481.6 
1,867.7 
5,283.2 
2,336.2 
2.415.0 

579.7 
509.9 

2,949.3 
1,772.5 

24,391.5 
1,531.0 
2,237.6 
1,574.7 
5,320.6 

29.7 
778.7 

2,278.4 
11,332.5 
10,404.4 

951.0 
0.0 

27.6 

76.5 
896.3 
50.0 

569.0 
572.1 
151.3 
35.3 
84.0 

132.0 
27.1 
0.0 

29.9 
72.5 

511.8 
85.7 

230.4 
109.9 
214.5 

0.0 
92.5 
73.0 

640.0 
330.0 

7,026.2 
178.3 
251.2 

2,037.8 
9,679.7 
4,380.2 
5,770.3 
2,143.4 
1,278.9 
2,615.4 
1,575.4 
1,285.2 

449.6 
356.2 

1,486.8 
1,092.2 
8,095.9 

823.6 
1,221.2 
1,122.7 
2,667.2 

17.6 
573.4 

1,229.0 
3,581.3 
2,032.8 

$ 1,117.5 
0.0 
8.0 

38.0 
945.2 
100.0 
453.4 
325.4 

12.0 
7.3 
6.0 
0.0 
3.0 
0.0 
6.5 

123.1 
450.1 
40.9 

237.5 
12.6 

103.8 
0.0 
0.0 

29.2 
1,765.4 
1,001.6 

11,306.5 
96.0 

155.8 

1,357.9 
32,329.6 
5,165.9 
8,919.3 
1,338.1 

588.8 
2,667.8 

760.9 
1,129.8 

130.1 
153.6 

1.462.5 
680.1 

16,295.6 
707.4 

1,016.3 
451.9 

2,653.5 
12.1 

204.8 
1,049.4 
7,751.2 
8,371.8 

TOTAL $ 12,748.9 $169,729.9 $ 5,962.4 $ 62,971.5 $ 6,786.5 

1 Cumulative loans after cancellations and exchange adjustments 

TABLE XIV. YEARLY (1993) AND CUMULATIVE DISBURSEMENTS (1961-93) 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

$106,756.7 

Detail by Funds 

Country 
Total Amount Ordinary Capital 

1993 1961-93 1993 1961-93 

Fund for Special 
Operations 

1993 1961-93 

Funds in 
Administration 

1993 1961-93 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

$1,043.6 
10.0 
4.8 
0.0 

118.5 
324.5 
144.9 
326.3 
79.1 
43.4 

138.2 
107.7 
24.1 
22.6 
0.0 

124.9 
77.2 

396.4 
30.7 
15.0 
47.2 

224.4 
1.7 

66.6 
143.6 
107.6 
108.0 

5,200.1 
124.1 
149.4 

0.0 
1,559.7 
6,996.2 
3,746.0 
4,332.3 
1,127.8 

914.8 
2,027.2 
1,081.0 
1,012.6 

277.2 
223.9 

1,151.9 
839.7 

6,696.7 
652.9 
783.9 
623.5 

2,206.0 
15.7 

224.4 
835.0 

1,693.6 
1,479.9 

.1,040.7 
10.0 
3.9 

87.9 
275.7 
144.9 
321.4 
78.9 
29.2 
71.9 
36.3 
16.5 

60.2 
66.0 

394.7 
21.7 
14.4 
14.5 

224.4 
0.9 

64.0 
142.2 
107.6 
108.0 

4,646.3 
122.1 
87.6 

749.2 
5,642.2 
3,499.8 
3,609.9 

650.9 
292.0 

1,224.1 
342.0 
497.6 
109.6 

409.0 
538.1 

6,102.7 
158.7 
484.5 
177.3 

1,591.7 
14.1 

186.9 
691.3 

1,519.3 
1,288.0 

2.9 
0.0 

30.6 
48.8 

4.9 
0.2 

13.5 
66.3 
71.4 
7.6 

22.6 

64.7 
0.2 
1.7 
9.0 
0.6 

32.7 

0.8 
0.6 
1.4 

504.8 
0.0 

42.8 

739.0 
1.223.0 

203.3 
659.9 
348.4 
545.3 
714.2 
603.8 
454.7 
160.7 
217.4 
691.6 
162.9 
559.0 
443.5 
266.4 
434.3 
393.1 

1.6 
24.2 

101.9 
101.4 
178.1 

0.9 

0.7 

11.0 

2.0 

49.0 
2.0 

19.0 

71.5 
131.0 
42.9 
62.5 

128.5 
77.5 
88.9 

135.2 
60.3 
6.9 
6.5 

51.3 
138.7 
35.0 
50.7 
33.0 
11.9 

221.2 

13.3 
41.8 
72.9 
13.8 

TOTAL $3,731.0 $45,975.5 $3,335.9 $34,634.9 $380.5 $9,775.3 $14.6 $1,565.3 
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EL PASO, BOLIVIA. Students 
at a laboratory in one of 13 trade 
and technical schools constructed 
throughout the country with the 
help of a $9.7 million IDB loan 

from 1977. At this school, located 
in a community outside Cocha
bamba, some 300 students are en
rolled in three- and four-year 
courses in general mechanics, auto 
repair and chemistry. In addition 
to local suppliers, firms from 
Canada, Germany, Japan, the 
United Kingdom and the United 
States furnished equipment used at 
the schools. 

THE YEAR'S LENDING Total Cost of Projects 

The loans authorized by the Bank in 1993 came from the 
following sources: 

Ord ina ry cap i t a l r esources : 69 loans for $5,492 
million brought the cumulative total of loans, less cancel
lations, to 1,002 for $49,608 million as of December 31, 
1993. 

F u n d f o r Specia l Ope ra t i ons : 23 loans totaling 
$423 million brought the cumulative total to 904 loans, 
less cancellations, for $ 11,756 million as of December 31, 
1993. 

O the r f u n d s : One loan from the Spanish Quincen
tennial Fund for $30 million and increases in previously 
approved export financing credits from the Venezuelan 
Trust Fund for S1 7 million brought the cumulative total 
to 200 loans, less cancellations, for $1,607 million as of 
December 31, 1993. 

The Bank agreed to partially defray up to 5 percent of 
the interest of 10 loans for $ 183 million approved in 1993 
from the ordinary capital resources, with funds from the 
Intermediate Financing Facility (IFF) created under the 
Sixth Replenishment. Tables IV and V on page 12 show 
the Bank's cumulative lending and breakdown bv sectors. 

The $5,963 million in Bank-financed loans help to fi
nance projects involving a total investment of about $ 12.7 
billion. The Bank's loans cover only a part of the total 
cost of the projects being carried out by the Latin Ameri
can and Caribbean countries. The balance over and 
above the Bank's contribution comes from the Latin 
American and Caribbean countries themselves and, in 
some cases, other sources of financing. A country-by-
country breakdown of this relationship is shown in Table 
XIII. 

Disbursements 

The Bank's disbursements on authorized loans amounted 
to $3,732 million in 1993, compared with $3,195 million 
in 1992. As of December 31, 1993, cumulative disburse
ments, including exchange adjustments, totaled $45,976 
million, or 73 percent of the loans authorized by the 
Bank. The 1993 disbursements and cumulative totals by 
funds include: 

Ord ina ry cap i ta l resources : S3,336 million, bring
ing the cumulative total to $34,635 million as of Decem
ber 31. 1993. 
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SANTIAGO, CHILE. A young 
man practices carpentry tech
niques al a workshop set up by 
Chile's Ministry of Labor and 
Social Welfare. This innovative 
program, partially financed by a 
1992 loan for $40 million, pro
vides training for young people 

from low-income families and fol
lows up this instruction by plac
ing participants in apprentice
ships at private firms, affording 
them employment and a chance to 
develop skills usable elsewhere in 
the job market. 

F u n d f o r Special Opera t ions : $381 million, bring
ing the cumulative total to $9,775 million as of Decem
ber 31, 1993. 

O the r f u n d s : $15 million, bringing the cumulative 
total from funds administered by the Bank to $ 1,565 mil
lion as of December 31, 1993. 

The distribution of 1993 and cumulative disburse
ments by country appears in Table XIV. 

Repayments 

Loan repayments amounted to $2,101 million in 1993. 
Cumulative repayments as of December 31, 1993, were 
$ 16,839 million. Repayments received by the Bank dur
ing the year, identified by sources of loan funds, were: 

Ord ina ry cap i ta l resources : $1,788 million, bring
ing the cumulative total, before repayments to partici
pants, to $11,888 million as of December 31, 1993. 

F u n d f o r Special Opera t ions : $270 million for a 
cumulative total of $3,601 million as of December 31, 
1993. 

Other f u n d s : $43 million, bringing the cumulative 
total to $1,350 million as of December 31, 1993. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

The Bank's technical cooperation program consists of two 
separate categories of operations. The first set of opera
tions, which are linked to loans, primarily focus on 
preinvestment, institutional strengthening, and project 
implementation. The second category is technical coop

eration that is not directly tied to a specific loan. In re
cent years this type of financing has focused largely on 
operations in women in development, the environment, 
and the social sectors. Technical cooperation is approved 
either on a grant or contingent recovery basis, or as a 
loan. 

During 1993, the Bank approved 302 nonreim
bursable technical cooperation operations totaling $104 
million. Resources from thejapan Special Fund (totaling 
¥1,512 million, the equivalent of $14 million, in untied 
funds) accounted for 13 percent of the total of these 
financings, with activities ranging from studies for project 
preparation to institutional strengthening. 

There are several special technical cooperation pro
grams. The Project Preparation Facility (PPF), established 
in 1989, accelerates the preparation of projects. PPF re
sources are used to help complete project analysis and fi
nal designs; to help establish units for project implemen
tation with executing agencies; and to support the 
borrower's start-up activities prior to first disbursement. 
In 1993, the Bank approved $3.4 million in PPF grants 
and $10.8 million in reimbursable PPF. 

The Bank provides technical cooperation to hire con
sultants for short-term missions to prepare prefeasibility 
studies for projects. These financings do not exceed 
$30,000. In 1993, the Bank approved 101 such opera
tions for a total of $2.8 million. Examples of the kind of 
activity financed under this program include assistance 
to Ecuador to re-evaluate its statistical methods in design
ing household questionnaires and assistance to Guyana's 
Ministry of Health to develop and implement solutions 
to the problems facing the country's public hospitals. 
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TABLE XV. DISTRIBUTION OF 
NONREIMBURSABLE TECHNICAL 
COOPERATION 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Country 1993 1961-92 Total 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

1,172 
1,500 

790 
30 

405 
10,915 

673 
3,995 
6,874 

15 
3,468 
3,257 
3,269 

590 

2,055 
170 
965 

8,290 
282 

2,078 
10,680 

460 
2.884 
2,989 

24.596 
12.299 
18,627 

50,376 
67,707 
2,606 

22,497 
28,153 
28,818 
34.047 
27,834 
22,593 
29,530 
28,042 
24.567 
22,187 
2,977 

29,720 
21,489 
25,575 
43,060 
10,209 
15,230 
20,201 
3.553 

25.768 
13,799 
19,417 

30 
50.781 
78,622 
3,279 

26.492 
35,027 
28,833 
37,515 
31,091 
25,862 
30,120 
28.042 
26,622 
22,357 
3,941 

38,010 
21,771 
27,653 
53,740 
10,209 
15,690 
23,085 
6,542 

TOTAL $104,213 $986,364 $1,090,576 

Technical cooperation is also used to finance the ex
change or transfer of technical expertise among the bor
rowing countries. In 1993, the Bank approved 32 
intraregional technical cooperation exchanges for a total 
of $377,000. 

The Special Technical Cooperation Funds Program 
(TC/FUNDS) is a collection of funds established prima
rily by the European member countries which are used 
to contract consultants to carry out short-term assign
ments and to finance other programs, including scholar
ships and seminars. For example, in 1993, TC/FUNDS 
resources financed feasibility studies for the National En
vironment Program of Paraguay. The Bank approved $5.5 
million under the TC/FUNDS program during the year. 

Technical cooperation is used for strengthening insti
tutions which execute Small Projects. For example, a 
technical cooperation supported savings and loan institu
tions involved in financing projects in five Peruvian cit
ies. During the year, the Bank approved a total of $7.1 
million in technical cooperation for these purposes. (See 

box on page 17 for information on regional technical co
operation.) 

PROCUREMENT 

Bank loan contracts require the Bank's public-sector bor
rowers to procure goods and services through open in
ternational competitive bidding (ICB) when the value of 
the procurement exceeds $ 1 million for civil works and 
construction services and $250,000 for goods. Over 60 
percent of contracts are awarded following ICB rules. 
The services of consulting firms also must be acquired 
through an open and competitive selection process. Only 
firms from IDB member countries are eligible to partici
pate in procurement. 

While the responsibility for the actual procurement 
process- the bidding and awarding of contracts—rests 
with the borrowers of IDB funds, the Bank has a pivotal 
role to play in the process. The Bank monitors the pro
curement process through both its Country Offices and 
oversight entities at Headquarters. Country Office staff 
review and approve all procurement documentation re
lated to a bid prepared by the borrower. 

At headquarters, the Procurement Unit is responsible 
for assisting staff and borrowers with the implementation 
of the Bank's procurement policies and procedures. The 
Procurement Unit also organizes and carries out training 
on the Bank's procurement procedures for both Bank staff 
and executing agency staff The Bank also has a high-level 
Procurement Committee that is responsible for the over
sight of the Bank's procurement policies and procedures. 
The Committee resolves procurement issues related to 
project execution. 

Disbursements of convertible currencies for the pur
chase of goods and services under investment and sector 
loans totaled $3,313 million in 1993. Borrowing member 
countries received $1,768 million, or 53 percent of this 
value. Local purchases of goods and services for projects 
in the borrowing countries totaled $1,176 million, and 
exports of borrowing countries to other borrowing coun
tries amounted to $591 million. Nonborrowing member 
countries provided goods and services totaling $1,546 
million in 1993. The accompanying three tables ("Dis
bursements for Purchase of Goods and Services by Coun
try of Origin," Tables XVI, XVII and XVIII) break out 
disbursements for all Bank lending, sector loans and in
vestment loans. The tables include, where applicable, a 
detailed breakdown of local purchases and exports of 
goods and services. 
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TABLE XVI. DISBURSEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES BY COUNTRY 
OF ORIGIN (INVESTMENT AND SECTOR LOANS) 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Local Purchases Exports Total 

Amount 
Cumulative 1961-92 

Amount 
1961-92 

0/ /o Amount 

Local Purchases 
1993" 

Amount % 

Exports 
1993 

Amount 

Total 
1993 

Amount 

BORROWING COUNTRIES 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

$ 864.0 
0.7 

24.6 
0.0 

316.3 
1,859.9 
1,490.9 

733.5 
222.2 
205.1 
548.8 
104.2 
161.8 

6.6 
42.2 

163.6 
126.9 

2,161.4 
70.5 

175.4 
164.7 
349.7 

0.6 
47.2 

207.9 
273.1 

8.4 
0.0 
0.2 
0.0 
3.1 

18.0 
14.4 
7.1 
2.2 
2.0 
5.3 
1.0 
1.6 
0.1 
0.4 
1.6 
1.2 

20.9 
0.7 
1.7 
1.6 
3.4 
0.0 
0.5 
2.0 
2.6 

$ 509.5 
2.8 
2.3 
0.0 
1.8 

1,037.0 
75.6 

108.1 
120.6 

6.2 
89.7 
20.6 
34.3 

1.3 
0.6 

18.1 
40.8 

589.3 
18.4 
41.9 
39.7 
71.4 
0.0 

19.7 
35.8 

240.8 

3.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
6.1 
0.4 
0.6 
0.7 
0.0 
0.5 
0.1 
0.2 
0.0 
0.0 
0.1 
0.2 
3.4 
0.1 
0.2 
0.2 
0.4 
0.0 
0.1 
0.2 
1.4 

,373.5 
3.5 

26.9 
0.0 

318.1 
896.9 
566.5 
841.6 
342.8 
211.3 
638.5 
124.8 
196.1 

7.9 
42.8 

181.7 
167.7 
750.7 
88.9 

217.3 
204.4 
421.1 

0.6 
66.9 

243.7 
513.9 

5.0 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
1.2 

10.6 
5.7 
3.1 
1.2 
0.8 
2.3 
0.5 
0.7 
0.0 
0.2 
0.7 
0.6 

10.0 
0.3 
0.8 
0.7 
1.5 
0.0 
0.2 
0.9 
1.9 

$ 72.6 
0.3 
1.6 
0.0 

53.3 
144.0 
182.5 
76.1 
35.7 
10.6 
89.3 
36.2 
7.0 
1.2 
0.0 

28.7 
14.4 

267.5 
1.2 
6.7 

28.3 
18.7 
0.1 

14.3 
39.4 
46.7 

6.2 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
4.5 

12.2 
15.5 
6.5 
3.0 
0.9 
7.6 
3.1 
0.6 
0.1 
0.0 
2.4 
1.2 

22.7 
0.1 
0.6 
2.4 
1.6 
0.0 
1.2 
3.3 
4.0 

85.1 
0.0 
0.6 
0.1 
0.6 

242.8 
30.1 
40.1 
8.2 
3.2 

29.9 
0.4 
2.0 
0.2 
1.5 
0.3 
7.8 

53.5 
0.6 
6.1 
2.0 

15.1 
0.0 
0.4 

22.7 
38.0 

4.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

11.4 
1.4 
1.9 
0.4 
0.1 
1.4 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
0.4 
2.5 
0.0 
0.3 
0.1 
0.7 
0.0 
0.0 
1.1 
1.8 

$ 157.7 
0.3 
2.2 
0.0 

53.9 
386.8 
212.6 
116.2 
43.9 
13.8 

119.2 
36.6 
9.0 
1.4 
1.5 

29.0 
22.2 

321.0 
1.8 

12.8 
30.3 
33.8 
0.1 

14.7 
62.1 
84.7 

0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
1.6 

11.7 
6.4 
3.5 
1.3 
0.4 
3.6 
1.1 
0.3 
0.0 
0.0 
0.9 
0.7 
9.7 
0.1 
0.4 
0.9 
1.0 
0.0 
0.4 
1.9 
2.6 

Total Borrowers $10,321.8 100.0 $3,126.3 18.3 $13,448.1 49.0 $1,176.4 100.0 $ 591.3 27.7 $1,767.7 53.4 

NONBORROWING COUNTRIES 
Austria 
Belgium 
Canada 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
Norway 
Portugal 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Yugoslavia 

62.2 
99.9 

324.1 
85.5 
28.3 

1,237.5 
1,256.6 

43.1 
1,426.8 
1,181.2 

197.6 
22.9 
8.8 

505.5 
299.3 
448.7 
436.7 

6.303.8 
14.0 

0.4 
0.6 
1.9 
0.5 
0.2 
7.2 
7.3 
0.3 
8.3 
6.9 
1.2 
0.1 
0.1 
3.0 
1.7 
2.6 
2.6 

36.8 
0.1 

62.2 
99.9 

324.1 
85.5 
28.3 

1,237.5 
1.256.6 

43.1 
1,426.8 
1,181.2 

197.6 
22.9 
8.8 

505.5 
299.3 
448.7 
436.7 

6.303.8 
14.0 

0.2 
0.4 
1.2 
0.3 
0.1 
4.5 
4.6 
0.2 
5.2 
4.3 
0.7 
0.1 
0.0 
1.8 
1.1 
1.6 
1.6 

23.0 
0.1 

6.6 
7.6 

29.6 
4.8 
6.3 

45.3 
130.9 

9.0 
96.0 

107.3 
28.4 

1.7 
2.9 

31.0 
16.7 
40.6 
42.4 

936.4 
2.0 

0.3 
0.4 
1.4 
0.2 
0.3 
2.1 
6.1 
0.4 
4.5 
5.0 
1.3 
0.1 
0.1 
1.5 
0.8 
1.9 
2.0 

43.8 
0.1 

6.6 
7.6 

29.6 
4.8 
6.3 

45.3 
130.9 

9.0 
96.0 

107.3 
28.4 

1.7 
2.9 

31.0 
16.7 
40.6 
42.4 

936.4 
2.0 

0.2 
0.2 
0.9 
0.1 
0.2 
1.4 
4.0 
0.3 
2.9 
3.2 
0.9 
0.1 
0.1 
0.9 
0.5 
1.2 
1.3 

28.3 
0.1 

Total Nonborrowers $13,982.5 81.7 $13,982.5 51.0 

TOTAL $10,321.8 100.0 $17,108.8 100.0 $27,430.6 100.0 $1,176.4 100.0 

$1,545.5 72.3 $1,545.5 

$2,136.8 100.0 $3,313.2 

46.6 

100.0 
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LOANS AND TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

TABLE XVII. DISBURSEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES BY COUNTRY 
OF ORIGIN (SECTOR LOANS) 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Local Purchases Exports 
Cumulative 1961-92 

Amount % Amount 

Total 
1961-92 

Amount 

Local Purchases 
1993 

Amount % 

Exports 

1993^ 
Amount % 

Total 

1993 
Amount 

BORROWING COUNTRIES 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

81.4 
0.0 
0.5 

0.8 
187.3 
34.2 
50.5 
20.9 
0.0 

89.1 
4.0 

10.9 
1.1 
0.0 
0.8 
0.1 

97.9 
0.0 

14.1 
0.7 

17.8 
0.0 

11.9 
14.9 

140.1 

3.1 
0.0 
0.0 

0.0 
7.0 
1.3 
1.9 
0.8 
0.0 
3.3 
0.2 
0.4 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
3.7 
0.0 
0.5 
0.0 
0.7 
0.0 
0.4 
0.6 
5.3 

81.4 
0.0 
0.5 

0.8 
187.3 
34.2 
50.5 
20.9 
0.0 

89.1 
4.0 

10.9 
1.1 
0.0 
0.8 
0.1 

97.9 
0.0 

14.1 
0.7 

17.8 
0.0 

11.9 
14.9 

140.1 

3.1 
0.0 
0.0 

0.0 
7.0 
1.3 
1.9 
0.8 
0.0 
3.3 
0.2 
0.4 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
3.7 
0.0 
0.5 
0.0 
0.7 
0.0 
0.4 
0.6 
5.3 

33.7 
0.0 
0.6 
0.1 
0.1 

157.8 
28.5 
34.5 
4.3 
0.0 

29.8 
0.4 
2.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.3 
1.1 

28.6 
0.1 
5.0 
2.0 
3.5 
0.0 
0.1 

15.7 
27.0 

2.4 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

11.0 
2.0 
2.4 
0.3 
0.0 
2.1 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.1 
2.0 
0.0 
0.3 
0.1 
0.2 
0.0 
0.0 
1.1 
1.9 

33.7 
0.0 
0.6 
0.1 
0.1 

157.8 
28.5 
34.5 
4.3 
0.0 

29.8 
0.4 
2.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.3 
1.1 

28.6 
0.1 
5.0 
2.0 
3.5 
0.0 
0.1 

15.7 
27.0 

2.4 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

11.0 
2.0 
2.4 
0.3 
0.0 
2.1 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 

0.0 
0.1 
2.0 
0.0 
0.3 
0.1 
0.2 

0.0 
1.1 
1.9 

Total Borrowers $ 779.0 29.3 $ 779.0 29.3 $ 375.2 26.2 $ 375.2 26.2 

NONBORROWING COUNTRIES 

Austria 
Belgium 
Canada 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
Norway 
Portugal 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Yugoslavia 

5.5 
32.6 
87.2 
5.2 
6.3 

43.2 
202.8 

0.9 
51.4 

136.9 
43.9 
11.3 
0.2 

25.9 
31.5 
35.1 
49.1 

1,111.3 
0.8 

0.2 
1.2 
3.3 
0.2 
0.2 
1.6 
7.6 
0.0 
1.9 
5.1 
1.7 
0.4 
0.0 
1.0 
1.2 
1.3 
1.9 

41.8 
0.0 

5.5 
32.6 
87.2 
5.2 
6.3 

43.2 
202.8 

0.9 
51.4 

136.9 
43.9 
11.3 
0.2 

25.9 
31.5 
35.1 
49.1 

1,111.3 
0.8 

0.2 
1.2 
3.3 
0.2 
0.2 
1.6 
7.6 
0.0 
1.9 
5.1 
1.7 
0.4 
0.0 
1.0 
1.2 
1.3 
1.8 

41.8 
0.0 

4.6 
6.8 

22.0 
2.9 
5.8 

31.0 
66.7 
0.2 

25.6 
83.4 
25.4 

1.7 
0.0 

19.9 
8.8 

22.0 
20.9 

708.0 
0.0 

0.3 
0.5 
1.5 
0.2 
0.4 
2.2 
4.7 
0.0 
1.8 
5.8 
1.8 
0.1 
0.0 
1.4 
0.6 
1.5 
1.5 

49.5 
0.0 

4.6 
6.8 

22.0 
2.9 
5.8 

31.0 
66.7 
0.2 

25.6 
83.4 
25.4 

1.7 
0.0 

19.9 
8.8 

22.0 
20.9 

708.0 
0.0 

0.3 
0.5 
1.5 
0.2 
0.4 
2.2 
4.7 
0.0 
1.8 
5.8 
1.8 
0.1 
0.0 
1.4 
0.6 
1.5 
1.5 

49.5 
0.0 

Total Nonborrrowers $1,881.1 70.7 $1,881.1 70.7 $1,055.7 73.8 $1,055.7 73.8 

TOTAL $2,660.1 100.0 $2,660.1 100.0 $1,430.9 100.0 $1,430.9 100.0 
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TABLE XVIII. DISB URSEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SER VICES BY CO UNTRY 
OF ORIGIN (INVESTMENT LOANS) 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Local Purchases Exports 

Cumulative 1961-92 
Amount % Amount 

Total 

1961-92 
Amount 

Local Purchases 
~l993~~ 

Amount % 

Exports 
1993 

Amount 

Total 
1993 

Amount 

BORROWING COUNTRIES 

Argentina ! 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

864.0 
0.7 

24.6 
0.0 

316.3 
1,859.9 
1,490.9 

733.5 
222.2 
205.1 
548.8 
104.2 
161.8 

6.6 
42.2 

163.6 
126.9 

2,161.4 
70.5 

175.4 
164.7 
349.7 

0.6 
47.2 

207.9 
273.1 

0.0 
0.2 
0.0 
3.1 

18.0 
14.4 
7.1 
2.2 
2.0 
5.3 
1.0 
1.6 
0.1 
0.4 
1.6 
1.2 

20.9 
0.7 
1.7 
1.6 
3.4 
0.0 
0.5 
2.0 
2.6 

428.1 
2.8 
1.8 
0.0 
1.0 

849.7 
41.4 
57.6 
99.7 
6.2 
0.6 

16.6 
23.4 
0.2 
0.6 

17.3 
40.7 

491.4 
18.4 
27.8 
39.0 
53.6 
0.0 
7.8 

20.9 
100.7 

3.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
5.9 
0.3 
0.4 
0.7 
0.2 
0.0 
0.1 
0.2 
0.0 
0.0 
0.1 
0.3 
3.4 
0.1 
0.2 
0.3 
0.4 
0.0 
0.1 
0.1 
0.7 

1,292.1 
3.5 

26.4 
0.0 

317.3 
2,709.6 
1,532.3 

791.1 
321.9 
211.3 
549.4 
120.8 
185.2 

6.8 
42.8 

180.9 
167.6 

2,652.8 
88.9 

203.2 
203.7 
403.3 

0.6 
55.0 

228.8 
373.8 

5.2 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
1.3 

10.9 
6.2 
3.2 
1.3 
0.9 
2.2 
0.5 
0.7 
0.0 
0.2 
0.7 
0.7 

10.7 
0.4 
0.8 
0.8 
1.6 
0.0 
0.2 
0.9 
1.5 

72.6 
0.3 
1.6 
0.0 

53.3 
144.0 
182.5 
76.1 
35.7 
10,6 
89.3 
36.2 
7.0 
1.2 
0.0 

28.7 
14.4 

267.5 
1.2 
6.7 

28.3 
18.7 
0.1 

14.3 
39.4 
46.7 

6.2 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
4.5 

12.2 
15.5 
6.5 
3.0 
0.9 
7.6 
3.1 
0.6 
0.1 
0.0 
2.4 
1.2 

22.7 
0.1 
0.6 
2.4 
1.6 
0.0 
1.2 
3.3 
4.0 

51.4 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.5 

85.0 
1.6 
5.6 
3.9 
3.2 
0.1 
0.0 
0.0 
0.2 
1.5 
0.0 
6.7 

24.9 
0.5 
1.1 
0.0 

11.6 
0.0 
0.3 
7.0 

11.0 

7.3 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.1 

12.0 
0.2 
0.8 
0.6 
0.5 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.2 
0.0 
0.9 
3.5 
0.1 
0.2 
0.0 
1.6 
0.0 
0.0 
1.0 
1.6 

124.0 
0.3 
1.6 
0.0 

53.8 
229.0 
184.1 
81.7 
39.6 
13.8 
89.4 
36.2 

7.0 
1.4 
1.5 

28.7 
21.1 

292.4 
1.7 
7.8 

28.3 
30.3 

0.1 
14.6 
46.4 
57.7 

6.6 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
2.9 

12.2 
9.8 
4.3 
2.1 
0.7 
4.7 
1.9 
0.4 
0.1 
0.1 
1.5 
1.1 

15.5 
0.1 
0.4 
1.5 
1.6 
0.0 
0.8 
2.5 
3.1 

Total Borrowers $10,321.8 100.0 $2,347.3 16.2 $12,669.1 51.1 $1,176.4 100.0 $ 216.1 30.6 $1,392.5 74.0 

NONBORROWING COUNTRIES 

Austria 
Belgium 
Canada 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
Norway 
Portugal 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Yugoslavia 

Total Nonborrowers 

56.7 
67.3 

236.9 
80.3 
22.0 

1,194.3 
1,053.8 

42.2 
1,375.4 
1,044.3 

153.7 
11.6 
8.6 

479.6 
267.8 
413.6 
387.6 

5,192.5 
13.2 

0.4 
0.5 
1.6 
0.6 
0.2 
8.3 
7.3 
0.3 
9.5 
7.2 
1.1 
0.1 
0.1 
3.3 
1.9 
2.9 
2.7 

35.9 
0.1 

56.7 
67.3 

236.9 
80.3 
22.0 

1,194.3 
1.053.8 

42.2 
1,375.4 
1.044.3 

153.7 
11.6 
8.6 

479.6 
267.8 
413.6 
387.6 

5,192.5 
13.2 

0.2 
0.3 
1.0 
0.3 
0.1 
4.8 
4.3 
0.2 
5.6 
4.2 
0.6 
0.0 
0.0 
1.9 
1.1 
1.7 
1.6 

21.0 
0.1 

2.0 
0.8 
7.6 
1.9 
0.5 

14.3 
64.2 
8.8 

70.4 
23.9 
3.0 
0.0 
2.9 

11.1 
7.9 

18.6 
21.5 

228.4 
2.0 

0.3 
0.1 
1.1 
0.3 
0.1 
2.0 
9.1 
1.2 

10.0 
3.4 
0.4 
0.0 
0.4 
1.6 
1.1 
2.6 
3.0 

32.4 
0.3 

2.0 
0.8 
7.6 
1.9 
0.5 

14.3 
64.2 
8.8 

70.4 
23.9 
3.0 
0.0 
2.9 

11.1 
7.9 

18.6 
21.5 

228.4 
2.0 

0.1 
0.0 
0.4 
0.1 
0.0 
0.8 
3.4 
0.5 
3.7 
1.3 
0.2 
0.0 
0.2 
0.6 
0.4 
1.0 
1.1 

12.1 
0.1 

$12,101.4 83.8 $12,101.4 48.9 $ 489.8 69.4 $ 489.8 26.0 

TOTAL $10,321.8 100.0 $14,448.7 100.0 $24,770.5 100.0 $1,176.4 100.0 $ 705.9 100.0 $1,882.3 100.0 
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ARGENTINA 

After providing strong support for the reform program 
of the Government of Argentina in 1992, the lending 
strategy in 1993 entered a phase of providing financial 
and technical assistance to improve the level, quality, 
and targeting of social services, and support for produc
tive investments. The Bank has made 157* loans total
ing $7,027 million to Argentina. Cumulative disburse
ments totaled $5,200 million. In 1993, the Bank 
approved seven loans. 

LOANS 

National Road Corridors Program 

Financing: $340 million from the OC, with cofi
nancing of $61.4 million from the IBRD 
and $50 million from the EIB 

As one means of contributing to the second stage of the 
country's development strategy—investment in areas that 
have received fairly low priority during the recent years 
of macroeconomic consolidation—this financing will re
duce costs in Argentina's transportation sector, benefit
ing exports and complementing the regional economic 
integration effort represented by membership in 
MERCOSUR. The program will finance a series of im
provements, paving and rehabilitation on seven main 
road corridors and will partially cover the cost of peri
odic and routine maintenance to be conducted along the 
routes. In addition, the project encompasses improve
ments in the Dirección Nacional de Vialidad DNV, the agency 
that will serve as executor, including training of key per
sonnel, the acquisition of engineering equipment and 
data-collection and processing systems. 

The program will improve and pave approximately 
1.850 km of roads, stretching as far south and west as the 
Chilean border at Lago Espejo and Paso Puyehue, in the 
provinces of Neuquen and Rio Negro, as far north as the 
Bolivian and Paraguayan frontiers in the provinces of 

Jujuy and Salta, and as far northeast as the town of 
Bernardo de Irigoyen at the crossing into Brazil. Corri
dors were selected on the basis of their importance as con
nections among production centers, sea and river ports 
and links to other M E R C O S U R countries. By the 
program's end significant upgrades will have been made 
along the entire extent of the corridors, including 
stretches maintained on a concession basis, by virtue of 
the assistance to be provided to the DNV. The private 
sector is assuming an increasingly large share in the con
struction and maintenance of Argentina's roadways. The 
operation will also finance the acquisition or replacement 
of specialized emergency equipment for the agency. 

Y1ÙARLTLENDING AND DISBl 'RSEMENTS 
(In millions oj dollars) 

1200 

1000 

85 86 87 88 

Lending 

90 91 92 93 
mm Disbursements 

Multisectoral Global Credit Program 

Financing: $300 million from the OC, with cofi
nancing of $300 million from JEXIM 

A newly formed institution, the Banco de Inversión y Comercio 
Exterior, S.A., BICE, will execute this project, which is de
signed to contribute to the development of financial mar
kets and to broaden the access of Argentina's productive 
sectors—its manufacturers, agribusinesses and other us
ers of credit—to financing for investments, permanent 
working capital and exports of capital goods. BICE will 
function as a private-sector, second-tier bank, basing 
prices on the cost of funds, risk, and the sendees it offers. 
Program requirements include the stipulation that the 
government submit plans for the privatization of the or
ganization before 50 percent of the loan resources have 
been committed. BICE will also help to ensure the devel
opment of the country's securities markets, which will 
evolve as a consequence of its maintenance of a balance 
of high-grade, collateralized loans. 

In combination with the Investment Sector Reform 
Program loan approved by the IDB in 1992, this loan 
should help modernize the country's financial sector. Be
yond the restructuring of many of Argentina's public 
banks, already underway, provisions in the BICE financ
ing are intended to lower the costs of financial services to 
all sectors of the population. Several dimensions of the 
program are aimed at extending the average term for 
credit in Argentina, which currently rarely exceeds 90 
days. Other reforms, such as improved bank supervision, 
will be tied to the disbursement of portions of the opera
tion, and should assist with the stabilization of the sector. 

*A11 Figures in the introductory paragraphs for each country-
are as of December 31 , 1993. Cumulative loan totals are net of 
cancellations and exchange adjustments. 
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SALTA, ARGENTINA. As part 
of an urban development program 
for small and medium-sized cities, 
financed by two IDB loans total
ing $122 million in 1986, works 
such as potable water systems, 
sewage and flood-control networks, 
community centers and health units 
are being built, expanded or im
proved. Here, a technician inspects 
a high-voltage switch, part of the 
northern city of Salta's electricity 
system, as part of a routine main
tenance check. 

Sanitation and Flood Control in the Reconquista 
River Basin 

Financing: $150 million from the OC 

Covering a total of 167,000 hectares in the northwestern 
part of metropolitan Buenos Aires, the portion of the 
Reconquista River Basin lying downstream from the 
Ingeniero Roggero dam—and therefore within the pur
view of the present project—is home to nine municipali
ties and a total of 2.5 million people. The project is to be 
executed by the Ministerio de Economía y Obras y Servicios 
Públicos of the Province of Buenos Aires over a period of 
five years. Its principal objective, to improve environmen
tal and public health conditions for this urban popula
tion, will be accomplished through two main sets of 
works—involving flood and pollution control. 

The flood control program will focus on efforts to 
counteract the effects of rainstorms and runoff by means 
of, among other works, a spillway channel between the 
Reconquista and Lujan Rivers, control gates upstream 
from the Reconquista Chico and Tigre Rivers, construc
tion of ten pumping stations and modification of a canal 
managed by the Dirección Provincial de Hidráulica. Decon
tamination and environmental improvements will begin 
with the removal and disposal of contaminated sludge 
from the beds of the Reconquista River and its tributar
ies—which will reduce the incidence of waterborne dis
eases and a special subproject designed to curtail indus
trial pollution from approximately 140 plants. The 
occupants of 44 housing units will be resettled and the 
owners of 20 additional homes will be indemnified. 

Technological Modernization Program 

Financing: $95 million from the OC 

Drawing upon expertise from a number of sources in the 
Argentine government, a General Coordination Unit lo
cated within the Ministerio de Economía y Obras y Servicios 
Públicos will work with two institutions in particular, the 
Fondo Tecnológico Argentino, FO.NTAR and a secretariat in
side the Consejo Nacional de Investigaciones Científicas y Técnicas, 
CONICET, in executing this carefully structured program. 
The FONTAR subprogram will develop technology for 
firms in the productive sectors by establishing three dis
tinct lines of credit, one for technological innovation in 
the private sector, a second for financing "high-risk" in
novative activities, and the third for public-sector entities 
(other than universities) engaged in providing technologi
cal services to Argentine enterprises. Of the three win
dows, the first and third require repayment in full of the 
principal lent; the second will function on the basis of a 
partial assumption of risk by the executor in the event a 
project is not evaluated as having been successful. 

The second subprogram, to be managed by 
CONICET, will accelerate the formation of linkages be
tween research centers and businesses throughout the 
country. In part, the program is predicated upon the 
elimination of prohibitions against the selling of applica
tions developed by government-employed scientists of 
problems posed by individual productive industries or 
firms. Grants will be made to Technology Linkage Units 
(TLUs)—public or nonprofit private concerns accredited 
under Argentine law—that have established a contractual 
relationship whereby a firm has indicated a willingness 
to pay for the use of the TLUs' research, services or other 
products. As in the case of the FONTAR subprogram, 
the financing will be reimbursable in the event the given 
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project proves successful. A second credit line will finance 
grants by CONICET for R&D projects in the academic 
sphere. 

Development of Environmental Institutions 

Financing: $25 million from the FSO and $5 million 
from the OC 

With the support of local authorities in the provinces of 
Buenos Aires, Córdoba, Mendoza and Misiones, the 
Secretaria de Recursos Naturales y Ambiente Humano, SRNAH, 
will execute a program to strengthen national institutions 
exercising regulatory control in the field in combination 
with an innovative, three-pronged plan to provide pri
vate-sector and community incentives to curb pollution. 
A third component of the operation will finance the 
preparation of future projects to be funded from both do
mestic and international resources. 

Institutional strengthening of the SRXAH, an agency 
established in 1991, will take into account the need to rec
oncile a geographically consistent approach to environ
mental policy and planning with the tradition of strong 
control of the means of public administration by provin
cial governments. As the statutory, regulatory and fiscal 
authority for federal environmental matters, SRNAH will 
assume the technical and financial responsibility for ad
ministering the present program, but will rely on its coun
terparts in the provinces for implementation of reforms. 
To that end, SRNAH, and subsequently provincial and 
municipal authorities, will receive training in the form of 
short technical courses and scholarships for study both 
within the country and abroad. Among the chief benefits 
to be derived from the institutional strengthening will be 
the establishment of a consistent system of environmen
tal impact assessment for projects in both the public and 
the private sectors. The incentives plan consists of three 
demonstration projects: initiation of an environmental li
censing system in the four target provinces, pilot pro
grams for protecting hydrographie basins in Buenos Aires 
and Córdoba, and technical assistance for curbing indus
trial pollution in selected industries in Buenos Aires and 
Mendoza. 

Multisectoral Preinvestment Program 

Financing: $24 million from the OC 

This program, to be administered by the Ministerio de 
Economíay Obras y Servicios Públicos, will include pre-invest-
ment studies for public-sector projects considered as pri
orities in the context of the country's and the Bank's strat
egy for maintaining and expanding upon the country's 
economic recovery. A first subprogram will consist of 
studies that have already been discussed by government 
and Bank officials. A second will address project prepa
ration needs more generally, focusing on the moderniza
tion of the country's National Public Investment System. 

The latter component has been designed to complement 
the broad tendency toward decentralization of public ad
ministration throughout Argentina. 

Of the studies to be conducted in the first component, 
emphasis will be accorded to plans and programs involv
ing social infrastructure and the improved delivery of so
cial services—and also on the productive sectors, where 
export diversification, the modernization of agriculture 
and the creation of export corridors for integration with 
neighboring countries are near-term investment goals. A 
third area of emphasis is the environmental sector, where 
in combination with the program financed separately (see 
above), resources will be committed to help restore natu
ral resources and reduce pollution. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Microentrepreneurs 
and Small-Scale Farmers 

Six loans ranging in size from $250,000 to $500,000 from 
the FSO, along with technical cooperation grants aver
aging approximately S150,000 - all in local currency— 
will assist five private nonprofit organizations and one re
gional investment bank in channeling funds to small-scale 
farmers and family-run microenterprises. Ultimately, the 
program aims to create or consolidate approximately 
4,600 jobs in the provinces of Santiago del Estero, 
Catamarca, San Juan, Santa Cruz, Corrientes, Chaco, 
Entre Rios, Misiones, Formosa, Santa Fe, and in low-in
come areas in greater Buenos Aires. The resources from 
this Small Project will be put to a variety of uses: some 
will be applied to the establishment of small processing 
plants for agricultural products and others will be used to 
fund revoking lines of credit, principally to finance pro
duction-enhancing equipment and technology. The tech
nical cooperation grants will provide training for farmers 
through the intermediaries and will target women as pro
spective beneficiaries. 

ARGENTINA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy $1,797,457 $4,913,936 
Planning and Reform 1,592,226 2,335,000 
Agriculture and Fisheries 724,323 3,226,701 
Transportation and Communications 703,446 1,680,904 
Environmental and Public Health 671,847 1,759,358 
Industry and Mining 463.700 2,011,538 
Education, Science and Technology 363,530 863,641 
Urban Development 167.518 401.000 
Export Financing 165,945 237,065 
Tourism 44,919 60,000 
Preinvestment 32,278 44,570 
Other 300,000 800,000 

Total $7,027,189 $18,333,713 
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THE BAHAMAS BARBADOS 
T h e focus of the lending strategy in T h e Bahamas in 1993 
continued to be implementat ion of measures to enhance 
the competitiveness of the tourism sector and p romote 
selective diversification of those sectors, such as agricul
ture , that would provide linkages to tourism. In addition, 
the Bank e n c o u r a g e d the a d o p t i o n of measu res tha t 
wou ld p r o m o t e e c o n o m y - w i d e compet i t iveness . T h e 
Bank has m a d e eight loans totaling $178 million to T h e 
Bahamas . Cumulat ive disbursements totaled $124 mil
lion. 

T h e Government of Barbados and the Bank continued 
in 1993 to attach high priority to implementat ion of mea
sures that would improve the competitiveness and sol
vency of the agricultural and financial sectors, and that 
would reverse and avoid environmental damage . Atten
tion was also directed to improving the efficiency with 
which social services are delivered and to public finance 
reform. T h e Bank has made 33 loans totaling $251 mil
lion to Barbados. Cumulat ive disbursements totaled $ 149 
million. In 1993, the Bank approved two loans. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
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120 

100 

80 

60 

40 

20 

0 
85 86 87 
Lending 

90 91 92 93 

^™ Disbursements 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 

60 

85 86 87 

Lending 

90 91 92 93 

^ ~ Disbursements 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION LOAN 

I m p r o v e m e n t s in R e v e n u e Col lec t ion 

A grant in the amoun t of ¥195 million ($ 1.5 million) from 
the J S F will enable the Ministry of Finance to improve 
the country's administrat ion of its domestic tax system. 
T h e p rogram includes support for the development and 
implementat ion of revised tax laws, the simplification of 
procedures for tax collection, and the design of computer 
systems to assist with efforts to lessen tax evasion and in
crease receipts. Personnel in the collections unit of the 
Ministry will receive training in administrative and tax 
policies to ensure the success of the reforms. 

BAHAMAS: DISTRIB UTION OF LOANS 1977-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Industry and Mining 
Other 

$145,475 
8,184 
2,091 

22,570 

$227,136 
11,365 
3,330 

32,500 

Total $178,320 $274,331 

R o a d s and H i g h w a y Safety P r o g r a m 
in B r i d g e t o w n 

Financing: $18.5 million from the OC 

Bridgetown, the capital of Barbados and a city with a 
populat ion of 125,000 (accounting for approximately 40 
percent of the national total), has absorbed much of the 
recent growth in the island's traffic. T h e Bank's financ
ing is designed to address the difficulties that have arisen 
as a consequence of the fact that many of the roads and 
streets runn ing through the commercial center of the city 
were built prior to the rapid expansion in the fleet of cars, 
trucks and public t ransportat ion (taxis, buses and mini
buses) that now make such extensive use of them on a 
daily basis. Accidents resulting in either injury or personal 
damage rose by nearly 50 percent over the period 1983-
1989. 

In light of the physical limitations of the existing road 
system in and a round Bridgetown, as well as the need to 
improve highway safety, the program consists of two prin
cipal components . T h e first will consists of public works 
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projects along two "corridors." When linked together, the 
separate projects will form one semi-circle approximately 
one kilometer distant from Bridgetown's harbor and a 
second such "belt" nearly 1.5 kilometers distant from the 
city center. Streets will be broadened and widened, utili
ties relocated, and frontages upgraded along the routes. 
The second component, focusing on improving safety 
and traffic regulation, will involve training for personnel 
in the Ministry of Works, Communica t ions and 
Transportation's Traffic Division, enabling them and 
members of the Royal Barbados Police Force to imple
ment smoothly new restrictions on parking, set up com
puter data bases to analyze traffic patterns, and engage 
in a public education campaign for the benefit of drivers, 
the school-age population and the general public. 

provide support services and training for women through
out the country. One portion of the $580,000 in resources 
drawn from the FSO for this program will shore up the 
BWA's ability to plan and execute specific programs, 
many of them to be undertaken in concert with nongov
ernmental organizations; a second component will fi
nance the cost of training, vocational and technical edu
cation and placement for women entering the labor force, 
with a particular emphasis on female heads of household. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Program in Tax Administration and Management 
of Public Expenditures 

This program, to be executed by the Ministry of Finance 
and Economic Affairs and concentrating on three of its 
sub-units and the Office of the Auditor General, will help 
implement a sound tax system and improved manage
ment of the country's fiscal affairs. In particular, the $8.1 
million in loan financing from the OC, together with a 
grant for $352,000 from the World Bank, will focus on 
means of helping the Inland Revenue Department, the 
Customs and Excise Department and the Land Taxation 
Department to implement the national tax reform pack
age enacted in 1992 (among whose most prominent fea
tures is the new Value Added Tax, designed to remove 
an anti-export bias in the national economy and to re
place the existing stamp duties and consumption tax). 
The country's system of budgeting, reflected in the ac
tivities of each of the government's ministries, will adopt 
a "value-for-money" methodology, emphasizing the ex
change of computerized information with the Offices of 
the Auditor General and the Accountant General. Two 
major aspects of the initiatives involve training for each 
of the collections agencies and the publicizing of the 
changes to existing tax law. 

BARBADOS: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1969-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Environmental and Public Health 
Transportation and Communications 
Education, Science and Technology 
Export Financing 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Preinvestment 
Planning and Reform 
Tourism 
Industry and Mining 

$78,218 
54.833 
48.089 
18,885 
17.068 
11,731 
8,100 
7,897 
6,414 

Total $251,235 

$117,737 
96,197 
86.262 
26,979 
26,975 
17,300 
8,100 

14,813 
12,613 

$406,976 

Support for the Bureau of Women's Affairs 

The Bureau of Women's Affairs, an office located within 
the Ministry of Housing, Land, Community Develop
ment and Culture, has historically served as the leading 
agency within the Barbadian government on issues re
lated to women in the workforce, women in development 
and women in society in general. Following the adoption 
of a national policy on women's issues in 1992, efforts to 
strengthen the agency have focused on improving its ca
pacity to influence legislation affecting women and to 
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BELIZE BOLIVIA 
The Bank moved quickly to establish a presence in and 
develop a lending strategy for Belize after it joined the 
Bank in September of 1992. The Government and the 
Bank agreed that lending would address the primary 
bottleneck—basic infrastructure—to the development of 
the southern portion of the country and to the human 
resource constraint inhibiting development of the 
economy in general. In light of the change of government 
that took place in July of 1993, a continuing dialogue on 
priorities has also been undertaken. 

The Government of Bolivia and the Bank agreed that 
Bank lending would place emphasis on two specific goals: 
improvements in social conditions, and increased produc
tion—particularly for export. To that end, lending activ
ity in 1993 was directed to facilitating investments in the 
productive sectors and in improvements in social infra
structure and services. The Bank has made 107 loans to
taling $2,038 million to Bolivia. Cumulative disburse
ments totaled $ 1,560 million. In 1993, the Bank approved 
three loans. 

LOANS 

Credit Program for Urban Development and 
Sanitation, Phase II (PRODURSA II) 

Financing: $57.1 million from the OC and $6.9 mil
lion from the FSO, with parallel cofi
nancing of $13 million from the JICA of 

Japan 

As the second stage of a program launched with the help 
of a previous Bank loan in 1990 and administered by the 
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Fondo Nacional de Desarrollo Regional, FNDR (National Re
gional Development Fund), PRODURSA II is meant to 
continue the consolidation of the means by which Bolivia 
finances urban, municipal and regional development 
projects. As such, it has three principal goals: to finance 
an extension of infrastructural services in urban areas 
throughout the national territory, to strengthen the mana
gerial capacity and financial effectiveness of municipali
ties and local public service agencies, and to decentralize 
the management of the infrastructure projects and other 
related activities by building up the series of local finan
cial intermediaries, known as unidades crediticias jinancieras, 
which have been established for that purpose. 

Apart from continuing to strengthen the institutional 
capacity of the executing agency and other administra
tive units, the PRODURSA program is designed to ben
efit the populations of the country's urban areas, particu
larly by targeting sanitation projects in low-income areas, 
and to bring a greater degree of rationality into the allo
cation of scarce financial resources at the local and re
gional levels. Specific investment projects will include the 
construction and expansion of water supply and sewer
age systems; the building of river channeling and drain
age works; solid waste disposal; the construction, rehabili
tation and paving of urban roadways; setting up of 

transportation terminals; and the initiation of low-voltage 
electric energy projects, including distribution to indi
vidual homes. 

Investment Program for the Development 
of Campesino Communities 

Financing: $12.5 million from the FSO, -with par
allel cofinancing of $7.5 million from 
JICA of Japan 

This loan will finance investments in infastructure and 
agriculture in rural areas. It will be carried out by the 
Fondo de Desarrollo Campesino, FDC, an agency founded in 
1989 and located within the Office of the Presidency of 
the Republic that is legally responsible for programs and 
projects that promote agricultural activity among small-
scale, low-income farmers in rural areas {campesinos). The 
FDC works closely with Bolivia's Ministry of Planning 
and Coordination [Ministerio de Planeamiento e Coordinación) 
to integrate the country's rural economy with activity in 
its commercial centers. In this instance it will serve as a 
financial intermediary, providing credit for projects pre
sented to it for consideration and approval. Specific pro
grams to be undertaken include infrastructure (e.g., im
provements to roads, bridges and irrigation networks), 
support for agriculture (technical assistance, agroforestry 
activities and livestock and seed funds) and institutional 
strengthening. 

The institutional strengthening is to be directed to
ward a number of beneficiary populations—the FDC it
self, rural communities, and the public and private enti
ties that are to execute the programs that the FDC selects 
for financing. Because the FDC is only a provider of sec
ond-tier credit, much of the emphasis of this component 
will be the agency's support for other intermediaries, such 
as NGOs, cooperatives, banks and savings and loans, that 
are able to lend for sustainable development in rural ar
eas. The subprogram devoted to infrastructure will fo
cus on 62 provinces, spread across each of Bolivia's nine 
departments, that were specified in a 1992 survey that 
sought to identify areas with particular needs and prom
ise. Projects in each of the components will pay special 
attention to efforts to integrate women in rural develop
ment, including the transfer of appropriate technology 
and training in a variety of productive activities. 

PAILÓN, BOLIVIA. This grain storage facility, run by 
MANEX Import-Export, is located roughly 50 km east of 
Santa Cruz and has a capacity of over ¡4,000 tons. MANEX. 
a firm trading in soybeans, beans, wheat, sorghum and corn, 
received two loans totaling $400,000 that were channeled 
through the Banco de Santa Cruz under a $100 million IDB 
agroindustrial credit program approved in 1986. 

MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT FUND 

Strengthening Rural Cooperatives for 
Microentrepreneurs 

As the first project approved by the MIF's Donors Com
mittee, this package of seven grants, totaling $800,000, 
will enable the Cooperativa de Ahorro y Crédito San Luis, Ltda. 
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to assist cooperatives in their support of microentrepre
neurs. The principal activities to be undertaken in each 
of the beneficiary cooperatives, located in villages in the 
vicinity of Trinidad, Sucre, San Ignacio de Telasco, Santa 
Cruz and Tarija, will consist of a replication of the highly-
successful PRISMA methodology for providing incentives 
and support for microentrepreneurs, developed locally by 
the Mennonite Economic Development Association, an 
international NGO. Begun in 1989, the PRISMA pro
gram has thus far been used to help Cooperativa San Luis to 
administer a portfolio on behalf of 1,600 microentrepre-
neui's. Resources for the program, made available 
through the MIF's Small Enterprise Development facil
ity, will provide for staff training and technical assistance 
for roughly 4,500 customers, 3,000 of whom are expected 
to have become borrowers by the project's end. 

BRAZIL 

BOLIVIA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Transportation and Communications 
Energy 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 
Planning and Reform 
Export Financing 
Preinvestment 
Tourism 
Education, Science and Technology 
Urban Development 
Other 

Total 

$573,610 
506,566 
255,094 
222.434 
184,923 
183,413 
29,478 
20.440 
18,553 
11,928 
11,428 
20.000 

$2,037,876 

$999.792 
839,208 
399.950 
301.068 
381,523 
309,395 
42,112 
31,604 
28.354 
23,533 
19,164 
20,000 

$3,395,703 

The lending strategy in Brazil in 1993 continued support 
for basic sanitation and drainage in large cities and for 
the rehabilitation and maintenance of the main transport 
corridors. The Bank has made 223 loans totaling $9,680 
million to Brazil. Cumulative disbursements totaled 
$6,996 million. In 1993, the Bank approved six loans. 

LOANS 

Sanitation Program for the Guanabara Bay Basin 

Financing: $350 million from the OC and $50 mil
lion from the FSO, with cofinancing of 
$294.2 million from the OECF of Japan 

As home to 6,000 industries and 7.3 million people (a fig
ure that represents 70 percent of the population of met
ropolitan Rio de Janeiro, the world's tenth largest city), 
the area surrounding the Guanabara Basin has been sub
ject to extreme ecological pressures and rapid urbaniza
tion over the past 20 to 30 years. The consequent dete
rioration in the water quality of the Bay and its 35 
tributaries—from leachate from municipal dumps, ship
yards, chemical plants, oil refineries and domestic sew
age and other sources—has been severe. The State of Rio 
de Janeiro, as the borrower, and the Companhia Estadual 
de Agua e Esgoto, CEDAE, as executor, will supervise this 
financing, which constitutes a share of the $793-million 
first phase of this clean-up of the Guanabara Bay and its 
environs. 

The largest of the subprojects is for sewage collection 
and treatment along the bayshore's most heavily popu
lated areas. Currently, the proportion of effluent that is 
treated prior to entering the Bay is 15 percent; that fig
ure will rise to 51 percent upon completion of this com
ponent of the project. A second principal subproject will 
finance the construction of pumping stations, distribution 
tanks, household connections and the installation of 
meters for potable water supply. Connections will be ex
tended to 15 of Wio'f, favelas, benefiting more than 50,000 
inhabitants directly, and increasing the share of house
holds in the basin area with water meters from 25 to 70 
percent. By the end of the first phase, 35 of the Bay's 53 
beaches will have been re-opened, and an estimated 3 
million individuals will have benefited from sanitation 
and water supply improvements. Additional components 
of the operation will reduce the discharge from 455 in
dustries considered responsible for 90 percent of the or
ganic contamination of the Bay, and institute an environ
mental education program among pr imary and 
secondary schools, local communities at large, and non
governmental organizations. 
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Modernization of the Fernão Dias Highway 

Financing: $267 million from the OC 

The two state agencies serving as executors (the Departa
mentos de Estradas de Rodagem dos Estados de Minas Gerais e 
São Paulo, DER), working under the aegis of Brazil's Na
tional Highway Department (DNER), will undertake 
large-scale improvements on this major north-south ar
tery. The Fernão Dias highway links two of the largest 
cities in Brazil, Belo Horizonte and São Paulo, and serves 
as an alternative to the slower coastal route for commer
cial highway traffic in the central-southern portion of the 
country. In addition to the obvious benefits—increased 
safety, decreased travel time and lowered transportation 
costs for freight forwarders—the improvements to the 
highway will afford an environmental benefit in the form 
of studies and mitigation plans for the adverse effects at 
construction work sites. The establishment of three toll 
booths will allow the state governments to defray the costs 
of maintenance of the highway. 

In all, approximately 269 km of roadway are to be re
habilitated and upgraded, the large majority in the state 
of Minas Gerais. In addition, two tunnels are to be con
structed in the Serra da Cantareira mountains just north 
of the city of São Paulo. Three weigh stations for trucks— 
a new one in the State of São Paulo in addition to the 
two already extant in Minas Gerais—will be put into op
eration. One ancillary but important aspect of the four-
year project will be the resettlement of a favela of approxi
mately 600 families currently squatting on land, in 
ramshackle houses with little access to water and sewer
age, on the outskirts of the satellite city of Guarulhos in 
the metropolitan area of São Paulo. 

Highway Corridors in the State of Bahia 

Financing: $147 million from the OC 

The program includes the paving and upgrading of 750 
km of existing roads, the rehabilitation of approximately 
600 km of roadway and the maintenance of a total of 
6,150 km throughout the state. Specific roads to be im
proved include stretches of feeder roads linked to Bahia's 
main east-west corridor near the capital of Salvador, on 
the Atlantic Ocean, and other locations farther west, near 
Bahia's borders with the neighboring states of Goias and 
Tocantins. An institutional strengthening component of 
the program will enable the Departamento de Estradas de 
Rodagem da Bahia, DER/BA, as executing agency, to de
velop systems for Maintenance and Pavement Manage
ment and to provide training for personnel involved with 
assessing and inspecting the environmental impact of in
dividual operations. 

The upgrading of roads composed at present of dirt 
or gravel will involve earthworks, the construction ol 
drainage works needed to counteract the potential effects 
of erosion, the construction of bridges and other struc
tures, where necessary, and the positioning of traffic sig
nals and signs, in addition to the paving. The rehabilita
tion of the other segments will focus on secondary roads, 
supporting economic development in several parts ol the 
state and lowering transportation costs for medium- and 
long-distance users of portions of roadway on or con
nected to Bahia's east-west corridor. 

Environmental Management of the Guaiba 
Watershed 

Financing: $110.2 million from the OC and 
$22.1 million from the FSO 

These two financings will enable the southern state of Rio 
Grande do Sul to improve the environmental quality of 
the Guaiba River watershed, upgrading the sewerage ser
vices for approximately 400,000 residents of metropoli
tan Porto Alegre and preserving the natural resources of 
the entire watershed. The project, to be executed by the 
Secretaria de Planejamento e Administração, SPA, combines the 
expansion of the sanitary sewerage system in the vicinity 
of that city, including the construction of connections and 
treatment plants, with a rural extension program de
signed to foster better soil management, reforestation and 
the control of toxic agricultural chemicals and the pro
tection of parks and natural areas. The Guaiba basin 
comprises an area with a population of nearly 6 million 
and includes a surface area of roughly 86,000 km , much 
of it land which has been subject to intensive agricultural 
or industrial use. 

Cachoerinha and Gravatai, two cities on the outskirts 
of Porto Alegre, together with the state capital itself, will 
be the focus of sewerage system upgrades intended to con-
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trol pollution. FEPAM, the State Environmental Protec
tion Foundation of Rio Grande do Sul, will use the IDB 
financing to help reduce industrial pollution, chiefly by 
means of registering sources of industrial pollution and 
subsequently issuing licenses to control identified sources 
of significant water resource contamination. The soil 
management components of the program will focus on 
improving the earnings potential and sustainability of just 
under 8,000 small farms and reforesting over 13,000 hect
ares with native, fast-growing species. An additional sub
program, concentrating on strengthening of the Fundação 
J^oobotânica and the Departamento de Recursos Naturais 
Renováveis will stress preservation of the biodiversity of the 
project area. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Assistance for Disadvantaged Children 

Two grants totaling $8 million ($7.5 million from the 
FSO and $500,000 from the SPTF) will assist the Office 

SALVADOR, BAHIA, BRi^LL. Substation operator Luis Claudio 
cheeks operations at an electricity substation that was expanded as part 
of a transmission and distribution program executed by COELBA, the 
State of Bahia's Electricity Company. IDB financing for the program 
consisted of two loans for a total of $140 million in 1985. 

of the Mayor of the City of Rio de Janeiro in its efforts to 
design programs for at-risk children and adolescents. The 
project, which sets a number of precedents in terms of 
the method and scope of the Bank's financing, will oper
ate through a global program consisting of individual 
projects designed and presented to the Office of the 
Mayor, principally, by nongovernmental and commu
nity-based organizations and through the provision of in
stitutional strengthening for the executing agency. The 
criteria for the selection of projects will include consider
ation of the degree to which the proposed beneficiary-
population is found to be in "especially difficult" circum
stances, the size and scope of the financing, and the de-
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mand for the program as determined by street-level agen
cies and the requests of the children themselves. 

According to a 1992 survey, 30 million Brazilians de
fined as living in poverty are less than 17 years of age. An 
earlier census conducted in 1989 put the number of those 
under the age of 18 living in poverty in Rio de Janeiro at 
1,160,000. In light of these statistics, and building upon 
the passage of legislation at the national level designed to 
defend the rights of children, this grant will be used to 
create and establish temporary homes for street children; 
24-hour "support houses" to which children will be able 
to come and go, sleeping or washing their clothes, or con
sulting with social workers (if they choose to); health clin
ics; centers for teenage mothers; recovery centers for mi
nors addicted to drugs; basic and professional education 
programs; and child care centers. 

bring their mussels, finfish (including camuri, catfish, mul
let and tilápia) and shrimp to market. Eight such coop
eratives, located in five municipalities along the lakes and 
their interconnecting canals, have existed for more than 
30 years. The goals of increasing membership in the 
colonias by 50 percent over three years and providing tech
nical support designed to increase the volume of catches, 
the conservation of fish and ensuing profits—if met— 
should lead to an increase in the income of the target 
population of approximately 20 percent. Concomitant 
with the income-generating aspects of the project, edu
cational efforts to curb pollution from the nearby sugar 
industry and to measure the salinity and the cleanliness 
of the lakes, will provide for sustainable harvest levels in 
vears to come. 

Expanding the Delivery of Social Services 
in Sobradinho 

The beneficiaries of this program will be low-income resi
dents of Sobradinho, a satellite city of the Federal Dis
trict of Brasilia. The Centro Espírita Adolfo Bezerra de Menezes, 
CEABM, a local nonprofit, nongovernmental organiza
tion founded in 1961, will use the $1.6 million in grant 
resources from the SPTF to open and outfit a health cen
ter, build a primary school, and equip both a job-train
ing center run by the CEABM and the agency's own ad
ministrative center. An estimated 25,000 inhabitants of 
Sobradinho, many of them members of families that have 
migrated from other parts of Brazil, will benefit from the 
program. The school is intended to accommodate 1,400 
children and the health center to provide services for 
10,000 persons per year, the latter concentrating on fam
ily medicine, the promotion of preventive health (includ
ing maternity and infant care and nutrition programs) 
among other areas in which immediate needs are evident. 
A facility that is to provide 30 training courses per year 
by 1995, to be staffed and managed by an affiliate of 
( 1EABM. will be furnished with computer equipment and 
the instruments needed in various vocational and techni
cal workshops. 

BRAZIL: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Transportation and Communications $2.032,245 $4,894,505 
Environmental and Public Health 1,919,472 4,200,332 
Energy 1,900,741 12,426,241 
Industry and Mining 1,534.375 15,780,030 
Agriculture and Fisheries 954.618 2,124,042 
Education, Science and Technology 505,553 1,171,469 
Utban Development 490,149 881,619 
Export Financing 266,477 380,683 
Preinvestment 76,103 150,377 

Total $9.679,733 $42,009.298 

Community Action in the Mundau-Manguaba 
Lakes Region 

A $1 million grant from the resources of the SPTF to the 
Fundação Teotónio Vilela, a nongovernmental organization, 
will help an estimated 3,000 small-scale fishermen and 
their families living southeast of Maceió in the northeast
ern st.itc of Alagoas in improve their incomes and living 
standards. Principal among the objectives of the financ
ing is the consolidation of colónias, the commercial fishing 
communities that enable individuals involved in the 
catching and processing offish to pool their resources and 
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CHILE 
The Government of Chile and the Bank agreed in 1993 
to undertake a lending program, in support of the socio
economic strategy adopted by the country, aimed at re
ducing extreme poverty, increasing investment in human 
capital, consolidating private sector development and im
proving environmental management and natural re
source conservation. In addition, Chile asked the Bank 
to emphasize issues of project management and institu
tional strengthening in its lending program. Some redefi
nition and considerable strengthening of the project pipe
line was achieved as a result of this dialogue. The Bank 
has made 113 loans totaling $4,380 million to Chile. Cu
mulative disbursements totaled $3,746 million. In 1993, 
the Bank approved one loan. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 

800 
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Lending Disbursements 

LOAN 

Housing and Neighborhood Improvement 
Program 

Financing: $50 million from the OC 

Two separate subprograms, one designed to provide 
housing to those who need it and a second to bring exist
ing low-income housing up to improved sanitary stan
dards, will improve the living conditions of an estimated 
50,000 families in the largest urban areas of the country. 
Studies conducted in 1990 found an estimated 1 million 
families with deficient housing in Chile as a whole, 39 
percent in the area of Santiago and an additional 12 and 
11 percent, respectively, in the areas of Valparaiso and 
Concepción. Candidates for occupancy of the new hous
ing sites (to be constructed on lots at least 100 m2 and 
with at least 13 m2 of living space, with finished bath
rooms, kitchens and living rooms) must meet several cri
teria, among them proof that their current housing is sub
standard and that they have accumulated modest savings. 
Applicants are to be listed on a single national register 
and selected based on criteria involving their family needs 
and the length of time they have spent on waiting lists, 
among other factors. 

The neighborhood improvement component of the 
program involves the upgrading of infrastructure and ba
sic sanitation and constitutes a fourth phase of a national 
program aimed at benefiting marginalized residents of 
barrios and settlements on the edges of cities throughout 
the country. In earlier stages of the program, the major
ity of the benefits have consisted of upgrades to existing 
lots, streets and neighborhoods, although provision has 
also been made for the resettlement of families living in 
areas susceptible to floods or landslides. The program fi
nances the construction of sanitary units with bathroom, 
cooking area and connections to running water, sewer 

and electricity. Streets are to be made suitable for vehicu
lar traffic, and sidewalks, signals and fencing installed 
where necessary. The programs will be executed by 
Chile's Ministerio de la Vivienda y Urbanismo, MINVU, and 
the Ministerio del Interior, M1NTER. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Expanded Assistance for the Informal Sector 

The Fundación Solidaria Trabajo para un Hermano, TPH, and 
the Fundación CONTIGO, two private nonprofit agencies 
will receive a total of $650,000 each to improve the in
come-earning capacity of low-income families in nine 
municipalities surrounding the capital of Santiago. The 
two intermediaries, both based in Santiago, the former 
founded by a group of Christian laymen in 1982 and the 
latter established in 1989, will provide training, advisory 
services and loans to an estimated 5,000 microentrepre
neurs. At the same time, the finances of the TPH and the 
Fundación Contigo will be consolidated and strengthened. 

CHILE: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Energy $1,019,360 $2,838,121 
Agriculture and Fisheries 749,727 1,460,133 
Transportation and Communications 675,135 1,745,575 
Industry and Mining 664,943 1,263,845 
Urban Development 610,278 1,131,203 
Environmental and Public Health 282,917 529,474 
Education, Science and Technology 161,763 338,667 
Planning and Reform 150,139 150.008 
Tourism 49,148 57,158 
Preinvestment 12,997 26,514 
Export Financing 3,857 5,510 

Total $4,380,264 $9,546,208 
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COLOMBIA 
The Government of Colombia and the Bank agreed that, 
in 1993, the Bank would support the efforts of the Gov
ernment to implement its Modernization and Economic 
Openness Program by providing assistance for initiatives 
that would improve access to economic opportunities and 
social services, and protect the environment. The Bank 
has made 153 loans totaling $5,770 million to Colombia. 
Cumulative disbursements totaled $4,332 million. In 
1993, the Bank approved five loans. 

LOANS 

Porce II Hydroelectric Power Plant Project 

Financing: $328 million from the OC 

This 392 MW hydroelectric plant, which will produce an 
estimated 2,044 GWh of power annually, will be located 
in the northwestern department of Antioquia, 120 km 
north of the city of Medellin. Currently scheduled to be
gin to produce power by mid-1999, the Porce II plant is 
intended to help meet the generation needs of the 
project's executing agency, the state-owned Empresas 
Públicas de Medellin, EPM, as well as those of the country 
as a whole. The project continues the Bank's long-term 
support of Colombia 's energy sector, which has 
amounted to an aggregate of $2.1 billion for 20 projects 
prior to the present operation. An institutional strength
ening component will help EPM to further its ongoing 
studies on alternatives for decreasing energy losses and 
potential conservation initiatives and will finance pro
grams for the agency in information processing, business 
administration and a variety of technical areas. 

In addition to financing in part the costs of land ac
quisition, the building of infrastructure surrounding the 
principal works (such as camps and access roads), the 
major direct expenditures will involve construction of the 
following structures: a 118-meter-high, 455-meter-long 
roller compacted concrete (RCC) dam, a reservoir cov
ering 950 hectares with a storage area of 234 million m1, 
a 4,400-meter long headrace tunnel, a surge tank, two 
parallel underground caverns, turbines, generators and 
transformers. The project will also encompass the build
ing of a 230-kV substation and three transmission lines 
with a total length of 136 km The project's environmen
tal component will include detailed plans for the resettle
ment and retraining of the affected population, protec
tion for the Medellin, Grande and Porce River basins, 
and a reforestation program. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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Medellin River Sanitation Project 

Financing: $130 million from the OC 

This program consists of a series of civil works projects— 
some to be undertaken individually and others within the 
context of a multiple-works effort coordinated by the ex
ecuting agency, Empresai Públicas de Medellin, EPM. T h e 
focus of the program is the construction of the San 
Fernando wastewater treatment plant, the largest of its 
kind to be built to date in Colombia. The project's objec
tive is to improve the quality of life for the 2.5 million 
inhabitants of the Aburra Valley by initiating the decon
tamination of the heavily polluted Medellin River, im
proving the collection of sewage discharges, and extend
ing water and sewerage services. Future stages of the plan 
for decontaminating the area contemplate the building 
of additional wastewater treatment plants, thus one an
cillary effect of the present operation will be EPM's im
proved capacity to operate such facilities—from a tech
nical, financial and administrative perspective—given the 
experience gained from this first phase. 

Among the works to be constructed are a secondary 
wastewater treatment plant with an initial capacity of two 
cubic meters per second—adequate for treating approxi
mately 23 percent of the total discharges of the region; 
sewers, collectors, interceptors, sewer mains, storm drains 
and overflow channels; and four storage tanks for potable 
water. The project includes investments for improving the 
efficiency of the potable-water distribution system, such 
as the replacement of tubes and installation valves to con
trol water pressure, which should lead to a decrease in 
the amount of water unaccounted for by local authori
ties. The program will also finance the provision of 
11,250 residential water and sewerage connections and 
the installation or replacement of up to 300,000 water 
meters. 
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National Environmental Program 

Financing: $58 million from the OC and $23 million 
from the FSO 

By combining efforts to establish the capability for pro
moting environmentally sustainable development and the 
reclamation and conservation of specific ecological sys
tems located throughout the national territoiy, these two 
loans will set the course for Colombia's future natural re
source policy for years to come. The program, to be ex
ecuted by the Departamento Nacional de Planeaciòn, D.NP, con
tains three separate components: an initiative for 
managing renewable natural resources, a blueprint for 
institutional strengthening, including support for the Min
istry of the Environment (currently being created) and the 
Municipal Agricultural Assistance Units (UMATAS) that 
serve as extension offices throughout the countryside, and 
the establishment of a mechanism for funding environ
mental studies and investments. 

The natural resource management component will 
begin reforestation and other protective measures on land 
surrounding 56 watersheds, affecting a total area of ap
proximately 2 million hectares. It will also devote consid
erable effort and financing to the recovery of the Ciénaga 
Grande de Santa Marta (a wetlands area located in the 
delta of the Magdalena River), the implementation of a 
management plan in Los Nevados National Park (includ
ing aspects designed to foster biodiversity) and to explo
ration of the potential development of guadua, a species of 
bamboo. The institutional strengthening will provide 
training for employees of local governments and regional 
entities, along with the means of incorporating environ
mental studies into the curricula of primary and second
ary schools throughout the country. 

Global Microenterprise Credit Program 

Financing: $30 million from the OC, accompanied 
by a TC grant for the equivalent of 
$600,000 from the Swiss Fund for 
Technical Cooperation and Small 
Projects 

This loan seeks the development of a market-based ap
proach to the provision of financial services to Colombia's 
small business and microenterprise sector. As executing 
agency, the Banco de la República, BR, will act as a second-
tier source of credit to qualifying intermediary financial 
institutions (IFIs). In some instances, individual borrow
ers will apply directly to participating IFIs for loan funds; 
in other cases, the IFIs may on-lend rediscounted funds 
from the BR to foundations or credit unions that will in 
turn make credit available to the borrower. Building upon 
lessons learned from previous IDB microenterprise pro
grams, the present operation will move away from the use 
of subsidized credit as an instrument for establishing the 

discount rate for participating IFIs. Instead, given the re
maining unmet demand for credit among the country's 
estimated 1.5 million microenterprises, the program seeks 
to encourage expanded access to credit by separating out 
a chief source of high transaction costs—that for training 
services—and assigning this function to independent 
foundations with experience in the sector. Distinct from 
earlier initiatives, the operation will be open to small pro
ducers in the farm sector as well as to those in urban ar
eas. 

Participating IFIs will borrow resources in either dol
lars or Colombian pesos, with interest rates for the latter 
tied to the charges on time deposits. IFIs—or a lender 
receiving funds from an IFI—will be free to lend for a 
variety of purposes, including the financing of working 
capital and technical assistance and the purchase of fixed 
assets. The institutional strengthening component, to be 
supervised by the Departamento Nacional de Planeaciòn, will. 
provide resources for assisting intermediaries with the use 
of new financial technology and other methods for im
proving credit administration. It will also serve as a source 
of funds for organizations engaged in providing entrepre
neurial training. Notably, again in distinction to earlier 
programs, training will not be compulsory for the end-
users of credit except in instances where their line of busi
ness entails activity with a significant environmental im
pact. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Caribbean Pine Plantation 
and Resin Extraction—Pilot Project 

A grant of¥239 million (approximately $ 1,940,000) from 
the Government of Japan, will benefit approximately 
46,000 individuals (most of them low-income and roughly 
1,500 members of indigenous communities) living in the 
eastern plains in the Departments of Meta and Vichada. 
Through the establishment of a Caribbean pine planta
tion and resin distillation plant near the town of Las 
Gaviotas, the program will create as many as 200 jobs, 
promoting further private sector exploration of the area's 
potential for development while simultaneously discour
aging destruction of the area's limited natural forests. The 
Gaviotas Foundation, a local NGO which is to execute 
the program, has worked for the past 25 years to improve 
the quality of life of the population, expanding access to 
education and health care and seeking to endow area resi
dents with job skills leading to environmentally sustain
able employment. The project will also finance a feasibil
ity study on the prospects for future investments in the 
region to establish up to 200,000 hectares of new, com
mercial-scale Caribbean pine plantations and corre
sponding resin distillation plants. 
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MEDELLIN, COLOMBIA. A 
technician samples treated ¡cater at 
the Manantiales Water Treatment 
Plant, a facility completed in 
1991 that provides water for ap
proximately one third of Medellin's 
inhabitants. A $200 million loan 

from the Bank, approved in 1984, 
helped Empresas Públicas de 
Medellin to finance two hydroelec
tric ¡limits and ¡cater and sewer 
hookups to the homes of low-income 
families in addition to the treat
ment plant. 

iPmTO" i f 

National Investment Project Management System, 
Stage II 

This grant of ¥121 million (approximately $1.1 million) 
will be executed by Colombia's Departamento Nacional de 
Planeaciòn, DNP, and continues the Bank's support for that 
agency's Banco de Proyectos de Inversión Nacional. This sec
ond-stage program will extend coverage of the project 
planning and evaluation system to the departmental and 
local levels of government, in keeping with the country's 
emphasis on decentralization and administrative modern
ization. Because the national government's decentraliza
tion effort has emphasized the ceding of greater budget
ary autonomy to local jurisdictions and the assignation of 
investment resources to initiatives identified and planned 
at the departmental and municipal levels, the focus in the 
current program will be on efforts to develop a "bank" of 
projects in ten of the country's departments and their 
municipalities—following a review of current spending 

procedures. As a complement to the creation of such a 
register of projects, the grant will also be used to study 
appropriate methodologies for project evaluation and 
management, to provide training for employees of depart
mental and municipal governments, and to underwrite 
research on the priority of local investment needs by eco
nomic sector. 

MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT FUND 

Support for Women's World Banking Affiliates 

These loans and grants, the former from the MIF's Small 
Enterprise Investment Fund (SEIF) facility in amounts 
ranging from $500,000 to $1.5 million and the latter a 
set of technical cooperation financings of up to $80,000 
from its Small Enterprise Development Facility, will ben
efit five institutions affiliated with the international 
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Women's World Banking network: the Fundación Banco 
Mundial de la Mujer de Cali, the Corporación Mundial de la 
Mujer de Bogotá, the Corporación Mundial de la Mujer de 
Medellin, the Fundación Mundo Mujer de Popayán and the 
Fundación Mundial de la Mujer de Bucaramanga. The benefi
ciaries in each case will be microentrepreneurs and small 
business owners and employees who traditionally have 
found access to credit difficult or nonexistent. The $4.4 
million operation anticipates service to 14,000 borrow
ers, thereby benefiting indirectly an estimated 70,000 
people. 

Loan conditions will incorporate flexible terms, com
mensurate with the borrowers' frequent lack of the col
lateral conventionally required by larger, formal financial 
institutions, and to do so on a timely basis at competitive 
rates of interest. Each of the participating institutions was 
founded between 1983 and 1988 and has enjoyed prior 
support from the IDB's Financing for Small Projects pro
gram, as well as from the Gesellscha.fi fur Techniche 
^usammenarbeit, GT£, Germany's international technical 
cooperation agency. The technical assistance grants will 
be used to provide training in credit analysis and data 
processing for staff of each of the -five participating inter
mediaries. 

COLOMBIA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy $2,487,071 $5,873,384 
Environmental and Public Health 754,645 1,830,712 
Transportation and Communications 599,917 2,496,955 
Planning and Reform 522,735 819,117 
Agriculture and Fisheries 461,696 1.229,481 
Urban Development 380,821 759,835 
Industry and Mining 322,282 1,185,738 
Education, Science and Technology 155,863 324.906 
Tourism 44,000 72,000 
Preinvestment 41,197 97,360 

Total $5,770,227 $14,689,488 

COSTA RICA 
The Bank continued its support for the process of eco
nomic adjustment in Costa Rica- including increasing 
private sector involvement in all sectors of the economy— 
in 1993. In addition to freeing up public resources for the 
social sectors, the goal of the Bank's lending strategy was 
to provide the institutions, legal framework and infra
structure for continued successful restructuring and the 
opening up of the economy to external trade and compe
tition. The Bank has made 90 loans totaling $2,144 mil
lion to Costa Rica. Cumulative disbursements totaled 
$ 1,128 million. In 1993, the Bank approved four loans. 

LOANS 

Electric Power Development Program, Stage HI 

Financing: $320 million from the OC, with cofi
nancing of $51 million from the EIB and 
an accompanying grant of $3.3 million 
from the Global Environment Facility 

This largest-ever IDB operation in Costa Rica will con
stitute the third phase of a program of investments 
throughout the electric power subsector and will be ex
ecuted by the Instituto Costarricense de Electricidad, ICE. In 
contributing to meeting the financial needs of the 
subsector for the 1994-1999 period, the operation will fol
low up on previous Bank loans authorized in 1987 and 
1989 and will include a variety of civil works in the gen
eration, transmission and distribution of power, each de
signed under least-cost expansion plans. 

Construction components of the project, concentrated 
in the central part of the country, include the building of 
a 1 77-MW hydroelectric facility at Angostura and a 20-
MW wind power project at Tejona, near Lake Arenal. 
The former will feature a main dam 38 meters high with 
a 240-meter-long crest and the latter will involve the in
stallation of wind turbines and a control center 7 km dis
tant from the wind field. The connection of the wind-
power system to the electricity grid will make use of a 
34.5-kV line. An energy-conservation component will fo
cus on efforts to institute more efficient rate structures, 
foster the commercialization of investments toward more 
efficient use of energy and refine the modeling by means 
of which demand forecasts are made. Concurrent with 
the construction components, Bank resources will also fi
nance an Environmental Management Plan for the 
Reventazón River, consisting of many separate items, 
among them mitigation of effects on vegetation, refores
tation, hydro-geological research and institutional 
strengthening for the environment and alternative energy 
departments within ICE. 
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YEARLY LENDING .AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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Investment Sector and Multisectoral Credit Pro
gram 

Financing: Loans of $100 million and $70 million 
from the OC 

These loans, to be executed by the Ministerio de Hacienda 
and the Banco Central de Costa Rica, respectively, constitute 
a multifaceted operation to support the commercial and 
financial liberalization of the Costa Rican economy. The 
distinct programs are intended to lay the groundwork for 
a greater integration of the private sector in the produc
tive activities of the country, on the one hand, and to pro
vide a source of medium- and long-term financing for the 
start-up, expansion and diversification of businesses in the 
private sector. 

The investment sector program will focus on reforms 
in the financial system, capital market, system of ex
change rates, mechanisms for the protection of intellec
tual property, and training of human resources. In each 
instance, the initiatives are intended to complement struc
tural adjustments that have either already been intro
duced in Costa Rica or are underway. Priority will be as
signed to making the commercial banking system more 
competitive and better regulated, two outcomes which 
will depend upon improving the application of monetary 
policy at the national level and strengthening the effec
tiveness of the Central Bank, National Securities Market 
[Comisión Nacional de Valores) and the Treasury. 

The multisectoral credit program will complement the 
foregoing activities by i) financing investment projects 
undertaken by the private sector through second-tier 
lending institutions and ii) providing technical assistance, 
through a Coordinating Unit located within the Finance 
Ministry, for entities throughout the national financial 
system, ranging from the Central Bank, to state-run com
mercial banks, to the office of the Auditor General for 

Financial Entities. Given the already sizable volume of 
private commercial activity in Costa Rica as a percent
age of GDP (approximately 20 percent) and indications 
that considerable quantities of capital could be profitably 
absorbed by local firms, one of the principal aims of this 
component is the stimulation of financial intermediation, 
beyond the short term, for productive purposes. 

Public Sector Reform Program 

Financing: $80 million from the OC, with cofinanc
ing of $100 million from the IBRD 

This fast-disbursing loan will enable the Government of 
Costa Rica (and the Ministerio de Hacienda, as executor) to 
undertake the restructuring of the functions of five key 
ministries within the executive branch, improving the 
budget process employed by each. It will also assist ef
forts to substantially reform Costa Rica's Social Security 
system, putting it on a more sound actuarial and organi
zational footing and moving from a publicly guaranteed 
system to one relying on a capitalization fund. A sepa
rate major component of the financing will concentrate 
on efforts to improve the central government's ability to 
collect revenues, including legal and regulatory reform of 
tax administration. 

The tax program, affecting charges levied on both in
comes and sales, will focus on issues of simplification and 
equity, seeking to implement more efficient methods of 
collection and greater uniformity of coverage. On the ex
penditure side of the program, several major ongoing ini
tiatives will be supported, including privatization of ce
ment, fertilizer and liquor producers, a streamlining of the 
nonfinancial public sector workforce over a three-year 
period, and movement toward a program-based budget
ing system that responds more flexibly to the country's 
fiscal needs than to the application of inflexible percent
ages of federal revenues. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Improved Credit Access for Small-Scale Farmers 
and Microentrepreneurs 

The European Community's Special Fund for the Fi
nancing of Small Productive Projects will provide the 
equivalent of $500,000 each in loans and a total of the 
equivalent of $450,000 in technical cooperation grant 
funding to four nonprofit, nongovernmental financial in
termediaries: the Asociación de Productores Artesanales e 
Industriales de Golfito, APLiGOL, the Centro de Orientación Fa
miliar. COE, the Asociación para el Desarrollo Rural Integrado, 
ADRI. and the Cooperativa de Servicios Múltiples de Santa Rosa 
de A/faro Ruiz. COOPEBRISAS. Each organization is char
tered to contribute to job growth—particularly for 
women and young people—and to provide credit to an 
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COTO SUR, COSTA RICA. 
Worker weeds African oil palm 

plants at a nursery on a former ba
nana plantation purchased by the 
Costa Rican government in the 
southern portion of the country. A 
$31 million Bank loan approved 
in 1986 enabled 400 local farm
ers, among other activities, to form 
a cooperative, plant 3,900 hect
ares of African oil palms and earn 

foreign exchange from the roughly 
30 percent of their production that 
is exported. 

estimated 1,300 small producers (and thereby up to 6,500 
family members) in their respective service areas. The 
technical cooperation component is designed to help the 
intermediaries become financially self-sufficient and to 
improve their training activity, including environmental 
education, and apportioning of credit among beneficiaries. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Information System for the Legislative Assembly 

This $ 1.9 million financing from the FSO will help Costa 
Rica's legislative branch to develop an automated infor
mation system. The establishment of the system coincides 
with the emphasis on governability common to Costa 
Rica and the Bank and should enhance a series of legal 
and administrative reforms already underway within the 
country. By also allowing for the training of the civil ser
vants charged with using and maintaining the system, the 
financing will also contribute to professionalizing Costa 
Rica's public sector more broadly—and to ensuring pub
lic access to information on bills, enactments and other 
activities of the National Assembly. 

Assistance for Small Businesses 
and Microenterprises 

Grants of $453,000 ECUs (approximately $550,000) from 
the European Economic Community Special Fund for 
Technical Consulting Services and $400,000 from the 
Swedish Trust Fund for Consulting Services and Train
ing Activities will provide partial financing for the TC 

component of a loan originally approved by the Bank in 
1992, to be administered by the Banco Central de Costa Rica, 
BCCR. The original program, which features the estab
lishment of a revolving credit fund to be drawn on by in
termediary financial institutions (IFIs), will be comple
mented by a number of activities, including training for 
120 credit agents involved in lending to microenterprises, 
the design, implementation and acquisition of computer 
software and equipment for participating IFIs and the 
staging of courses on financial management for small 
business owners and microentrepreneurs. Funds will be 
set aside to help credit agents to identify and break 
through bottlenecks affecting women entrepreneurs seek
ing access to credit and for mitigating or eliminating the 
potentially adverse environmental impacts of the business 
activities of the end beneficiaries. The program will be 
overseen by the BCCR and the Ministry of Labor. 

COSTA RICA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Planning and Reform 
Environmental and Public Health 
Transportation and Communications 
Education, Science and Technology 
Export Financing 
Industry and Mining 
Urban Development 
Preinvestment 
Tourism 

$961,726 
277,456 
250,000 
160,633 
150,425 
99,635 
98,100 
91,293 
28,051 
16,137 
10,000 

$1,617,611 
424,600 
380.000 
245,637 
269,014 
180,058 
140,143 
133,953 
49,205 
27,039 
14,300 

Total $2,143,456 $3,481,560 
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• DOMINICAN REPUBLIC • 
In keeping with the medium-term strategy agreed to with 
the Government , Bank lending in 1993 was directed pri
marily to the consolidation of physical infrastructure and 
to strengthening the productivity and competitiveness of 
the productive sectors—especially the agricultural sector. 
A n impor tant element in this strategy was p romot ion of 
greater participation of the private sector in at tempts to 
stimulate domestic investment and savings, and to create 
e m p l o y m e n t . T h e Bank has m a d e 60 loans to ta l ing 
$1,279 million to the Dominican Republ ic . Cumulat ive 
disbursements totaled $915 million. In 1993, the Bank 
approved two loans. 

LOANS 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
250 

90 91 92 93 

Disbursements 

Financia l Sector R e f o r m 

Financing: $102 million from the OC 

This fast-disbursing operat ion, under taken in coordina
tion with a Wor ld Bank p rogram for development of the 
country 's private sector, is par t of a comprehensive pro
gram aimed at stabilizing the nation's economv that was 
begun in 1990. Its pr imary aims are to improve the com
petitiveness and efficiency of the country's financial sys
tem, endowing it with a greater capacity for intermedia
tion amid market-determined conditions. 

The program includes measures to stimulate compe
tition among banks and other institutions, encouraging 
their participation in a variety of businesses and areas of 
service in an effort to broaden and make more effective 
the supply of credit for investment purposes. Strict seg
mentation and demarcations between "commercial 
banks," "development banks," "savings and loans," and 
such smaller entities as "financial companies" {financieras) 
and "loan houses" (casas de préstamo) will be reviewed, with 
a view toward merging viable institutions. At the same 
time, the operation will support the establishment of a 
comprehensive regulatory framework intended to ensure 
capital adequacy standards and prudent management 
practices, as well as the modernization of the Superinten
dency of Banks. The program will be executed bv the 
Banco Central de la República Dominicana. 

Agricultural D e v e l o p m e n t 

Financing: $48 million from the FSO, with $6 million 
in cofinancing from IFAD 

This project aims to contr ibute to the agricultural devel
opmen t of the San J u a n de la M a g u a n a region, located 
in the southwestern part of the country, and focuses on a 
watershed consisting of approximately 125,000 hectares 
of land lying in a valley between the Cordillera Central 

and Sierra de Neiba. A major component involves the 
repair of portions of the Sabaneta d a m (in need of repair 
in the wake of recent hurricanes) and improvements to 
irrigation works in the surrounding area. Another goal is 
to support agricultural development , including improv
ing p r o d u c t i v i t y of b a s i c a n d c o m m e r c i a l c r o p s , 
agroforestry and livestock activities. T h e p r o g r a m also 
seeks to preserve the natural resources of the region and 
to ensure that the s tandards of living of the low-income 
populat ion that inhabits the mountainsides surrounding 
the more prosperous farmlands, are improved in the near 
a n d m e d i u m t e r m . T h e Instituto Nacional de Recursos 
Hidráulicos, LYDRHI. will be responsible for the execution 
of the p rogram. 

T h e agricultural sector accounts for 15 percent of the 
country's G D P , 23 percent of its total employment and 
50 percent of its foreign exchange earnings from exports. 
These statistics demonstra te the impor tance of the activ
ity under taken in the region, which represents nearly 11 
percent of the arable land in the Dominican Republic. 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 
1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries $409,719 
Energy 266.452 
Transportation and Communications 171,017 
Planning and Reform 102.000 
Industry and Mining 87,192 
Education. Science and Technology 69,705 
Environmental and Public Health 53,071 
Tourism 42,374 
Export Financing 13,315 
Preinvestment 4,706 
Urban Development 3,479 
Other 55,887 

Total $1,278,917 

$673.115 
365.184 
262.795 
102.000 
120,198 
103,764 
79,155 
71,430 
19.021 
6.897 
6,375 

57,764 

$1.867,698 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

ECUADOR YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 

The main focus of Bank activities in Ecuador in 1993 was 
assisting the newly elected government in its efforts to cor
rect macroeconomic imbalances, structural distortions, 
and improve the situation of the low-income segments of 
the population. The Bank has made 124 loans totaling 
$2,615 million to Ecuador. Cumulative disbursements 
totaled $2,027 million. In 1993, the Bank approved four 
loans. 

LOANS 

Coastal Resources Management Program (PMRC) 

Financing: $14.9 million from the FSO 

This program, to be executed by a specialized agency es
tablished to coordinate its activities, seeks to promote the 
rational and sustainable development of Ecuador's coastal 
resources. The operation will focus on initiatives in the 
fields of natural resource management and reforestation, 
sanitation andf the enhancement of environmental 
awareness and education. The Dirección Ejecutiva del 
Programa de Manejo de Recursos Costeros will assume respon
sibility for the execution of the three subprojects: imple
mentation of development plans for five separate coastal 
zones, based on direct community participation; moni
toring and applied research activities focused on identify
ing and resolving environmental issues in coastal areas; 
and institutional strengthening, education and training 
for employees of federal agencies (including the PMRC 
Directorate) in accounting, information management and 
technical subjects such as resource inventory, water qual
ity and mapping technologies. 

Within the five coastal zones, environmental degrada
tion has been a growing concern. Thousands of hectares 
of mangroves have already been eliminated and erosion 
and indiscriminate construction have threatened the sur
vival of resources that are important both ecologically and 
in terms of the livelihood of fishing communities. Among 
the nearly 120 separate activities of the project, the man
grove management component will include reforestation 
and the financing of local ecotourism infastructure. 
Shoreline restoration and urban waterfront planning will 
focus on sites adjacent to the Huayla estuary and at key 
beaches and other estuaries ranging from Esmeraldas in 
the north to sections of the Guayas Gulf in the south. 

Multisectoral Preinvestment Program 

Financing: $12 million from the FSO 

The Preinvestment Studies Office of Ecuador's Consejo 
Nacional de Desarrollo Económico, CONADE, will coordinate 

350 

85 86 87 

landing 

91 92 93 

Disbursements 

a series of studies geared toward refining the identifica
tion, preparation and evaluation of public-sector invest
ment projects. Some studies will address issues of a gen
eral nature, such as impediments to the formulation or 
execution of programs across sectoral lines. Others will 
concentrate on specific projects that have already been 
identified as priorities of the Ecuadoran government. 

Among the subsectors and future projects to be stud
ied are irrigation, construction of the Paute Mazar hy
droelectric power plant, water supply systems, sewerage 
systems, clean-up of the salt-water estuary surrounding 
the Municipality of Guayaquil, in addition to strategies 
and programs aimed at improving the quality of life for 
the country's rural poor. The irrigation studies will focus 
on the prospects for completion of projects already un
derway that promise relatively high rates of return. The 
preinvestment review of the Paute Mazar project, featur
ing a plant which may go on line as soon as the year 2001, 
will devote particular attention to the recurrent problem 
of siltation in the Paute River basin. The potable water 
supply and environmental sanitation project studies will 
be grouped physically among Ecuador's three largest cit
ies—Quito, Guayaquil and Cuenca—and will examine 
the decontamination of dumpsites, regulation of indus
tries located near water supply sources and options for 
expanding residential service for sewerage, among other 
issues. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Modernization of the 
Tax Collection System—Phase II 

A loan for the equivalent of up to $3.5 million from the 
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FSO will finance the second phase of institutional 
strengthening of the National Revenue Board (Dirección 
General de Rentas, DGR). Building upon the accomplish
ments of the successful first phase of the project, the op
eration will concentrate on improving the receipts attrib
utable to audit operations and on setting up a centralized 
information unit that, among other functions, will assist 
the Guayaquil. Quito and other regional branches of the 
DGR in the processing and examination of tax returns. 
An education component of the program is designed to 
ensure the delivery of better service to taxpayers by sim
plifying procedures, thereby improving the image and 
understanding of the DGR from the standpoint of indi
vidual taxpayers. The program will be executed by the 
Inter-American Center of Tax Administrators (CIAT), 
which is currently involved with similar Bank-financed 
programs in ten other countries of the region. 

Strengthening the Public-Investment 
Programming System 

This operation will be executed by CONADE, the Consejo 
Nacional de Desarrollo, and is financed by a $2,020.000 loan 
from the FSO. The agency's General Secretariat w ill ad
minister six separate components, as follows: review, de
sign and expansion of the project information and moni
toring system, using software already developed and 
installed; development of financial programming system 
for public investment, which will allow for the tracking of 
commitments of resources across time by the central gov
ernment; training, focused on the formulation, appraisal, 
monitoring and financial control of projects and invest
ment planning; development of investment budgets by 
region and sector; a study of projects that have been sus
pended, to result in decisions as to whether such programs 
should be completed or terminated; and preparation of a 
draft Public Investment Law, intended to complement the 
recent revisions of the country's Budget Law and seen as 
a means of providing a long-term basis for public-invest
ment planning. The German Technical Cooperation 
Agency (GT/.i. which has collaborated extensively with 
CONADE in the past, will provide consulting services on 
various aspects of the overall program. 

Strengthened Environmental Planning 

A grant for ¥130 million (equalling approximately 
$ 1,049,000) from the JSF and an additional nonreimburs
able contribution of $520,000 from the FSO will improve 
the capacity of the Consejo Nacional de Desarrollo. CONADE, 
to incorporate an environmental dimension in its plan
ning, policies and strategies. Distinct aspects of the pro
gram have been designed to emphasize education, includ
ing workshops and the publication and distribution of 
materials about the environment; the creation of a na

tional environmental data bank; the preparation of a le
gal manual and compendium of legislation affecting the 
environment for the use of federal agencies; and publica
tion of guidelines for the evaluation of the environmental 
impact of projects. Institutional strengthening for 
CONADE and other agencies will enable the Ecuadoran 
government to demonstrate greater agility in the area of 
environmental management in general and will allow it 
to collaborate with international and local nongovern
mental agencies at work in the field. 

Support for the Development of Non-Traditional 
Exports 

A grant of ¥104 million (equivalent to $800,000) from the 
resources of the JSF will assist the Ministry of Industry, 
Trade, Integration and Fisheries (Ministerio de Industrias, 
Comercio, Integración y Pesca, MICIP) to develop a short- and 
medium-term program for the promotion of non-tradi
tional exports. The operation aims at improving the par
ticipation of a number of public and private institutions, 
including the National Coordination Committee for the 
Promotion of Exports and Investments (CONAPEI), in ef
forts to identify sectors, products and markets for export
ing. One component of the program will concentrate on 
methods for increasing productivity and marketing op
portunities for already-established and new-to-export 
product lines, focusing on flowers and wood-manufac
tures as specific products warranting increased export 
promotion. A second component, by contrast, will seek 
to identify new products and untapped markets, in order 
to increase the S1 billion in non-traditional products ex
ported in 1992, a figure representing 34 percent of the 
nation's total shipment abroad of locally-produced goods 
and services. 

ECUADOR: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dolíais) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries 
Energy 
Industry and Mining 
Transportation and Communications 
Environmental and Public Health 
Urban Development 
Education. Science and Technology 
Preinvestment 
Tourism 
Planning and Reform 

S820.591 
431,007 
393,409 
338,499 
210.204 
169.496 
167.362 
63,119 
18,254 
3.500 

$1,254.412 
1,468,753 

752,465 
716,476 
345,558 
402,750 
213.628 
99.534 
25,278 
4,300 

Total $2,615,441 $5,283,154 
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EL SALVADOR 
The Government of El Salvador, in consultation with the 
Bank, agreed to pursue a lending strategy that would con
tribute to national reconstruction after a period of pro
longed social and political instability. In addition to re
storing macroeconomic stability, the Bank attempted to 
address the problems arising from a low level of invest
ment in social infrastructure and constraints to produc
tive activity among the very poor. The Bank has made 
73 loans totaling $1,575 million to EI Salvador. Cumula
tive disbursements totaled $1,081 million. In 1993, the 
Bank approved four loans. 

LOANS 

Social Investment Fund—Phase II 

Financing: $35 million from the FSO and $25 mil
lion from the OC, accompanied by a TC 
grant of $864,780 from the FSO 

This program, building on the accomplishments of a pro
gram undertaken with the help of an IDB loan approved 
in 1991, will focus on the financing of small infrastruc
ture projects in the social sectors, among them education, 
health care, basic sanitation and environmental protec
tion. This second phase of the Pondo de Inversión Social, FIS, 
through the technical cooperation grant, will help the ex
ecuting agency itself, strengthening the institutional ca
pacity of the FIS to collaborate with other ministries in 
the design and execution of such projects. The new phase 
is also designed to promote community participation and 
decentralization by financing projects to establish and/or 
train community groups that will in turn take responsibil
ity for the maintenance of schools, health clinics and wa
ter and sanitation facilities. 

Specific initiatives to be undertaken in this phase of 
the program, apart from the rehabilitation of social in
frastructure and the provision of equipment, include the 
offering of training courses for directors of educational 
centers and the distribution of teaching materials; im
provements in sanitary infrastructure, including house
hold drinking water systems and the installation of la
trines; and electrification projects, most involving primary 
and secondary distribution systems and the installation of 
transformers. A series of forestry projects will initiate plan
tations of mangrove in coastal zones and other species, in 
other areas, intended to improve over-grazed land and 
will also serve to educate participants in the value of re
source renewal and conservation. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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^ Disbursements 

Global Credit for Microenterprise 

Financing: $16 million from the OC and $8 million 
from the FSO 

El Salvador's microentrepreneurial sector consists of an 
estimated 425,000 workers, constituting over 50 percent 
of the country's economically active urban population. 
The Bank's loans will help to address the informal sector's 
continually increasing demand for credit by two means: 
the provision of resources from the executing agency, the 
Banco Central de la Reserva for on-lending, through inter
mediary financial institutions (IFIs), to microenterprises 
whose access to sources of credit has been unreliable and 
the conversion of a number of commercial banks and 
nongovernmental organizations into formal financing 
agencies catering to the sector. The resources will finance 
fixed assets, working capital and technical advisory ser
vices in production and commercial activity for the 
country's microentrepreneurs, an estimated 44 percent of 
whom are women. 

The Central Reserve Bank's Private Credit Depart
ment, as the administrative coordinator of the program, 
will verify the eligibility of participating IFIs, compiling 
data on the latter's lending operations and conducting an 
ex-post evaluation. Although the funds provided to the 
intermediaries will bear a rediscounted rate of interest de
termined by a basic borrowing rate, the IFIs themselves 
will determine the rates offered to end users and will as
sume the risk for their own lending. For the purposes of 
the executor, microentrepreneurs are defined as having 
assets not exceeding $15,000 and no more than ten em
ployees. Subloans will be subject to a ceiling of $15,000. 
All subloans will be subject to environmental classifica
tion and control procedures. 
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LOANS AND TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

SAN VICENTE, EL SALVA
DOR. Children from low-income 
families are the primary beneficia
ries oj the Small /'rojeéis and glo
bal microenterprise credit pro
grams. Parents use resources made 
available from NGO\ and other 
intermediaries to build up their 
small-scale businesses and boost 

family incomes, which results in 
gams in employment, nutrition 
and health, and education. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Increasing Incomes of Small-Scale Coffee 
Growers 

Half-million dollar grants from the European Economic 
Community Special Fund to two intermediaries, the 
Unión de Cafetaleros de El Salvador de R.L.. l'CAPES, and the 
Cooperativa de Caficultores Grano de Oro, R.L., will enable 
seven cooperatives to both improve the income levels and 
better the job prospects of residents of small coffee-grow
ing communities in rural parts of eight of El Salvador's 
Departments. The program consists of two separate com
ponents: one a credit program to be administered by 
UCAFES that will provide loans for an estimated 500 
beneficiaries, thereby expanding the productive capacity 
of participating cooperatives and leading to the creation 
or consolidation of some 1,800 jobs and the other a 
project for the financing of agroindustrial infrastructure, 
to be managed by the Grano de Oro cooperative. Tech
nical cooperation grants of $150,000 will be used for in
stitutional strengthening and the transfer of technology 
for growing and processing coffee. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for the National Environmental Program 

As executor and beneficiary of a program partially fi
nanced with the help of a $1.7 million grant from the 
FSO, the Secretaría Ejecutiva del Medio Ambiente, SEMA, will 

work with the country's water and sewer and urban de
velopment authorities (the Administración Nacional de 
Acueductos y Alcantarillado. AXDA and the Instituto Salvadoreño 
del Desarrollo Municipal. ISDEM, respectively), to develop 
the capability for gathering environmental information 
and assessing the environmental impact of development 
projects and programs. Designed as the precursor to a 
broader-based program focusing on environmental man
agement in project planning and design, the present op
eration will refine El Salvador's overall strategy (includ
ing the adoption of relevant legislation, administrative 
rules and policies) for the environment. Specific areas of 
attention will include the initiation of a licensing system 
within SEMA for the critical sectors overseen by ANDA 
and ISDEM, accompanied by institutional strengthening 
of the regulatory capacity of authorities in the fields of 
wastewater treatment, solid waste management and land-
use policy and planning. 

EL SALVADOR: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy 
Environmental and Public Health 
Planning and Reform 
Transportation and Communications 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Industry and Mining 
Export Financing 
Urban Development 
Education, Science and Technology 
Tourism 
Preinvestment 

$336.207 
286.164 
242.872 
221,160 
176,393 
134.581 
79.823 
31,208 
25,149 
24,000 
17,767 

$630.284 
414.536 
271.700 
336,757 
278,751 
144.593 
114.033 
59.255 
31,344 
30.000 
24,980 

Total $1,575,324 $2,336,233 
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GUATEMALA 
T h e pr imary focus of the Bank's activities in Gua temala 
in 1993 was to assist the authorities to lay the economic 
foundation and establish a satisfactory7 policy framework 
for a sustainable p rogram for delivering social services. 
In pursuit of the goal of sustained economic growth, the 
Bank supported institutional and economic reforms in the 
financial sector to increase efficiency in the allocation of 
resources, enhance financial intermediation capacity, and 
increase overall access to credit. T h e Bank also contin
ued to help strengthen the institutional capacity of the 
country for project preparat ion. T h e Bank has m a d e 71 
loans totaling $1,285 million to Guatemala . Cumulat ive 
disbursements totaled $1,013 million. In 1993, the Bank 
approved three loans. 

YEARLYLENDING AND DISBl RSEMENTS 
(In millions oj dollars) 

Lending 

90 91 92 93 

Disbursements 

LOAN 

M o d e r n i z a t i o n o f the Financia l S y s t e m 

Financing: Loans of $72 million and $20 million 
from the OC and $40 million from the 
FSO, with partial payment of interest 
charges on the smallest by the IFF 

Consistent with the country strategy outlined above, these 
loans seek to increase the allocative efficiency of the 
country's financial system, improving access to credit by 
all sectors of the Gua temalan economy, lowering costs 
and stimulating increased investment. T h e p rogram will 
be adminis te red by the Banco Central de Guatemala, the 
Ministerio de Finanzas Públicas, and the Superintendencia de 
Bancos and will focus on the following areas: policy reform 
in public-sector finance, s trengthening prudent ia l regula
tion, financial supervision and expanding financial ser
vices available to the public. 

T h e policy components will eliminate the subsidized 
interest rates by means of which the Cen t ra l Bank fi
nances the Gua temalan Treasury and improve the effi
cacy of open-market operations. The expansion of finan
cial services seeks to increase the scope of operations of 
the country's financial institutions, changing the defini
tion of activities permissible under the national Banking-
Law from a negative presumption to a positive p resump
tion. New prudential regulations aim to enhance the over
all solvency of the financial system through internation
al ly r e c o g n i z e d m i m i m u m - c a p i t a l s t a n d a r d s a n d 
guidelines governing the recapitalization of distressed fi
nancial institutions. Financial supervision will stress the 
need for the disclosure of additional public information 
by banks and will support the revision of accounting prac
tices. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for M i c r o e n t r e p r e n e u r s in Four 
D e p a r t m e n t s 

T w o loans of $500,000 from the F S O will permit the 
Asociación Fe y Alegría and the Asociación de Productores de 
Aguacatán to u n d e r t a k e a series of act ivi t ies to assit 
microentrepreneurs and small-scale farmers in the depart
ments of Guatemala , Chimal tenango, Suchitepéquez and 
Huehue tenango . Loans from revolving credit funds set up 
in each intermediary will benefit an estimated 2,100 bor
rowers over the course of three years. In the areas served 
by Fe y Alegría, the principal objectives of the lending are 
the creation or consolidation of jobs and the provision of 
technical and administrative training. Currently, the pro
jected beneficiaries living in the areas served by the asso
ciation are engaged in a variety of occupations, ranging 
from the product ion of textiles and food to metalworking 
and ceramics. In Aguacatán , the main purpose is to in
crease the output of farmers (95 percent of w h o m are 
from indigenous communities) p roduc ing garlic and to 
diversify cropping patterns. Technical cooperat ion grants 
totalling $300,000 will help the intermediaries, founded 
in 1976 and 1987, respectively, to improve their capacity 
for portfolio management . 

Support for Smal l P r o d u c e r s in Rural and U r b a n 
Areas o f the W e s t e r n Alt ip lano 

T h e Asociación para el Desarrollo del Potencial Humano, 
A P E D H , the Fundación para el Desarrollo de Programas 
Socioeconómicos, FUNDAP, a n d the Fundación de Asesoría 
Financiera a Instituciones de Desarrollo y Servicio Social, 
FAEIDESS, three nonprofit intermediaries administering 
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1'ANABAJAL. Gl ATEMALA. Students at Panabajal's pri
mary school wash their hands at a water faucet installed as a 
result of a $1.3 million Bank technical assistance grant. 
Roughly one third of the funding was provided to the Carroll 
Behrhorst Guatemalan Foundation, a private, nonprofit orga
nization whose central branch was founded in 1962, to eon 
struct potable water systems for (¡,000 residents of the country's 
highlands, build latrines and initiate a tuberculosis treatment 
and prevention program. 

revolving credit funds in six separate Departments in 
western Guatemala, will receive the equivalent of 
$500,000 in loans denominated in quetzales and techni
cal cooperat ion grants totaling the equivalent of 
$420,000. A total of over 3,500 microentrepreneurs and 
small farm producers will gain access to credit through 
these operations. Main will benefit in particular from in
novative and appropriately scaled training, in the form 
of short courses and workshops in management, account
ing and productive techniques. In general, the focus in 
the activities of each of the intermediaries is on an entire, 
integrated community, although special emphasis has 
been given to indigenous groups and to women (who are 
the exclusive beneficiaries of the FAFIDESS program) in 
the course of the project's design. The FAFIDESS pro
gram will be financed from resources of the JSF. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for the National Environmental 
Commission (CONAMA) 

A grant for the equivalent of up to $2 million from the 
FSO will support the Guatemalan government's consoli
dation of a national system of environmental manage
ment. Activities financed by the program will be carried 
out on Five fronts: institutional strengthening for 

CONAMA and other agencies active in the field, legisla
tive and regulatory reform, formal and informal environ
mental education, sectoral investment planning and over
all resource allocation plans for the country's public and 
private sectors in environmental matters. The program 
has been designed to enhance CONAMA's ability to fol
low up on promising initiatives involving protection of the 
environment on a national scale, broadening the agency's 
technical expertise and drawing up a list of future projects 
for the sector on the strength of prefeasibility studies and 
identification exercises. 

GUATEMALA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy 
Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Transportation and Communications 
Planning and Reform 
Urban Development 
Education, Science and Technology 
Tourism 
Export Financing 

S297.239 
209,379 
200.753 
149,570 
139,195 
132,000 
111.904 
28.268 
15,109 

1,764 

$978,427 
325,506 
194.683 
255,671 
271,780 
132,000 
172,439 
62.472 
19,471 
2,520 

Total $1,285.181 $2.414,969 
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GUYANA 
Bank lending in 1993 cont inued to at tach a high priority 
to rehabilitation and main tenance of the existing capital 
stock a n d to addressing the pressing social needs of the 
country. T h e Bank also a t tempted to address institutional 
weaknesses of executing agencies, which continues to af
fect timely implementat ion of the lending program. T h e 
Bank has made 23 loans totaling $450 million to Guyana . 
Cumulat ive disbursements totaled $277 million. In 1993, 
the Bank approved two loans. 

LOANS 

Water Supply and S e w e r a g e in G e o r g e t o w n 

Financing: $13.5 million from the FSO 

T h e purpose of this loan is to improve the availability and 
quality of water in Georgetown, and while doing so, to 
strengthen the operations of the Georgetown Sewerage 
and Wate r Commiss ion, an au tonomous public utility 
that is linked to the federal Ministry of Public Works 
(GS&WC). U n d e r a " twinning" a r rangement , an experi
enced water-and-sewerage firm will supply a seven-per
son team to work hand- in-hand with Wate r Commission 
personnel, training them in all facets of water supply man
agement , including administrat ion and main tenance . In 
the first phase of the project, to last approximately two 
years, pumping equipment , pipe, valves and meters lo
cated in at least two, pre-sclected zones of the city will be 
repaired or replaced. Funds will also be provided to re
pair leaks, replace defective components and rehabilitate 
residential water connections. Following a mid- term re
view of the project, a second phase will under take similar 
works. This rehabili tation aims to achieve a water distri
bution system that meets internationally accepted quality 
standards. 

O n e innovative dimension to the p rog ram is the de
tailed emphasis on training, budget ing and the sequenc
ing of the contrac t ing for repair works. The improve
ments to be carried out in both phases of the p rog ram 
will include the installation of meters at residences a n d 
individual commercia l and industrial establishments. As 
a complement to this small-scale rehabilitation, improve
ments will also be made to the Shelter Belt T rea tmen t 
Plant. A new tariff structure will reflect the cost of service 
provided. Amounts billed will be based on actual con
sumption. 

Social I m p a c t A m e l i o r a t i o n P r o g r a m m e (SIMAP) 

Financing: $13.5 million from the FSO 

T h e Government of Guyana ' s Social Impac t Ameliora
tion P rog ramme (SIMAP), will finance small infrastruc-
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ture, nutrit ion and development projects. Projects will be 
executed by commun i ty sponsors—not by S I M A P it
self—in an effort to foster d e c e n t r a l i z a t i o n of t he 
Programme ' s activities and as a means of encouraging 
grass-roots participation in the identification and imple
menta t ion of these initiatives. Projects will be classified as 
belonging to one of the following categories: social infra
structure, productive infrastructure, welfare services and 
vocational training. 

S IMAP, a semi-autonomous public corporat ion cre
ated by the Guyanese government in 1989 and assisted 
by IDB technical assistance grants on two previous occa
sions, has assembled a good record of supervising small-
scale projects targeted to reach low-income groups. T h e 
present financing is intended to help the agency increase 
the volume of its operat ions so as to make an appreciable 
impact on overall living standards. In all, this loan should 
help the agency to finance approximately 250 projects, 
a m o n g them feeding programs for pregnant women , lac-
tating mothers and infants and a pilot p rogram to im
prove living conditions in Amerindian communit ies that 
will finance up to 20 projects at an average cost of roughly 
$10,000 each. 

GUYANA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1976-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries 
Education, Science and Technology 
Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 
Energy 
Transportation and Communications 
Planning and Reform 
Export Financing 

Total 

$231,371 
60.800 
49,882 
34,909 
32,850 
23,400 
13,500 
2,875 

$316,350 
67,600 
57,900 
42,300 
50,400 
26,000 
15,000 
4,108 

$449,587 $579,658 
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HAITI 

The international sanctions enforced since the 1991 coup 
d'etat remained in force through 1993. This situation, 
along with the country's nonaccrual status, prevented the 
Bank from approving any operations for Haiti in 1993. 
Nevertheless, together with the World Bank and the 
UNDP, the Bank participated in preparing a multisec

toral contingency Economic Emergency Reform Pro

gram (EERP) that would provide both rapiddisbursing 
balanceofpayments support and urgently needed invest

ments to rehabilitate infrastructure and deliver social ser

vices. Approval of the EERP is uncertain in the present 
situation. The Bank has made 34 loans totaling S356 mil

lion to Haiti. Cumulative disbursements totaled $224 mil

lion. 
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HAITI: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Transportation and Communications 
Environmental and Public Health 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Education, Science and Technology 
Industry and Mining 
Planning and Reform 
Export Financing 
Other 

$119,717 
115,474 
65,300 
17,311 
15,328 
12,400 
3,117 
7,623 

$167.694 
145,015 
106.447 
28.700 
24.950 
23.935 
4,453 
8,700 

Total $356,270 $509,894 

PORTAUPRINCE, HAITI. 
Shirts sewn from cloth cut by a 
sister company. Caribbean Culling 
Service. Ltd.. are some of the 
72,000 items manufactured daily 
at Caribbean International. The 

firm, which employs 670 people. 
obtained financing from a $15 
million industrial credit loan ap

proved in 1982 and passed 
through the Banque de la 
République d'Haiti to double the 
size of its factory shell at the Porl

auPrinee Industrial Park. 

( 
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HONDURAS 
The Bank continued its support for the economic adjust
ment program that the government of Honduras initiated 
in 1990 by helping the authorities to strengthen their ca
pacity for project preparation in general and the identifi
cation and formulation of projects for poverty alleviation 
and environmental conservation in particular. The Bank 
also attached high priority to assisting the government in 
its efforts to undertake reform in the social sectors. The 
Bank has made 87 loans totaling $1,487 million to Hon
duras. Cumulative disbursements totaled $1,152 million. 
In 1993, the Bank approved four loans. 

LOANS 

Natural Resource Management in the El Cajón 
Reservoir Watershed 

Financing: $16.7 million from the FSO and $3.7 mil
lion from the OC 

These two loans will help to finance a program, to be ex
ecuted jointly by the Corporación Hondurena de Desarrollo For
estal, COHDEFOR, the Empresa Nacional de Energía Eléctrica, 
EMEE and the Dirección Ejecutiva de Catastro, DEC (the Ex
ecutive Land Registry), aimed at improving the environ
mental quality of the El Cajón Reservoir watershed. The 
principal beneficiaries of the operation will be members 
of small farming communities living within approximately 
450,000 hectares in the center-west of the country. The 
objectives of the program are to ensure the sustainable 
use of local natural resources, increasing productivity of 
farmlands and woodlands; to protect parks (including the 
Comayagua Mountain and Cerro Azul Meámbar Na
tional Parks) and other natural areas; and to conduct re
search on other means of managing the renewable natu
ral resources within the watershed area. 

Of the four main components of the program, the first, 
focusing on farm forestry management, will reduce soil 
erosion and sedimentation in the lakes, rivers and streams 
of the region, promoting the establishment of permanent 
agricultural settlements as opposed to migratory, slash-
and-burn farming. A forest development component will 
focus on mature pine forests for commercial tapping of 
resin and seed production, thinning some sections while 
establishing tree farms and other regeneration projects on 
others. The protection of "special" areas will focus on ef
forts to preserve the area's biodiversity, particularly that 
within the cloud forests covering its mountains, relying 
in part on environmental education initiatives in sur
rounding rural and urban zones. Approximately $5 mil
lion will be dedicated to research, including aerial map
ping, feasibility studies for potential commercial activity 
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such as fish farming, water quality testing, and the gen
eration of more complete data on land use and tenure. 

Multisectoral Preinvestment Program 

Financing: $8 million from the FSO 

The dual objective of this program is to improve the abil
ity of the Honduran central government to prepare 
preinvestment studies for projects under consideration for 
subsequent financing by the IDB and to improve its ca
pacity for allocating public investment resources. The lat
ter aim will be accomplished through the institutional 
strengthening of the agencies, primarily the two execu
tors, the Secretaría de Planificación, Coordinación y Presupuesto, 
SECPLAN and the Fondo Hondureno de Preinversión, 
FOHPREI, charged with programming and eventually 
monitoring the execution of public investment initiatives. 
Training for SECPLAN personnel and the provision of 
technical support for its technical activities will be pro
vided by the UNDP's Department for Development Sup
port and Management Services (UNDP/DDSMS). 

The projects to be studied complement the Bank's 
strategy and the country's ongoing stabilization program, 
including its efforts to support gains in the productive sec
tors, to focus attention on unmet needs in the social sec
tors and increase awareness of the need for natural re
source management and environmental protection. 
Examples include a program of environmental manage
ment and development of the Sula Valley, a national wa
ter supply and sanitation program and a manpower train
ing initiative. 
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FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Improving Family Incomes of 
Microentrepreneurs and Small-Scale Farmers 

Four local-currency grants totalling the equivalent of 
$2,240,000 (including technical cooperation compo
nents), will provide the Fundación Internacional para la 
Asistencia Comunitaria de Honduras, FINCA, the Federación 
Comunitario de Honduras, FEDECOH, the Asociación 
Hennandad de Honduras, AHDH, and the Instituto Hondureno 
de Bienestar Rural. INHBIER, with resources to establish 
revolving credit funds to benefit an estimated 4,200 
microentrepreneurs and small-scale farmers (60 percent 
of them women) over a three-year period. The resources 
will be drawn on the Swedish Fund for Small Projects (for 
the FINCA operation) and the European Economic 
Community Fund (for the remaining three intermediar
ies). Support for the productive activities of portions of 
the low-income population of rural areas in the depart
ments of Copan, Comayagua, Choluteca, Lempira, La 
Paz, Morazán, Ocotepeque and Santa Bárbara will lead 
to the creation or consolidation of approximately 12,000 
jobs. Technical cooperation financing will enable the in
termediaries to operate with greater financial self-suffi
ciency—to the point where they may establish and ad
minister additional credit lines using their own resources 
in the future. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Strengthening Customs Administration 

A loan for the equivalent of $1,370,000 from the FSO, 
provided to the Secretaria de Hacienday Crédito Público (Min
istry of Finance and Public Credit), will support the Gov
ernment of Honduras's reorganization of the Dirección 
General de Aduanas (Customs Service). The major activities 
to be undertaken as a result of the financing—including 
the provision of extensive training for the agency's per
sonnel and the acquisition of computer equipment will 
be managed by the UNDP and the United Nations Con
ference for Trade and Development (UNCTAD). Addi
tional activities will include a review and subsequent 
modification of existing legislation and regulations con
cerning customs collections, and studies of a restructur
ing of the DGA and of a streamlining of procedures for 
assessing tariffs and reviewing documentation related to 
valuation of dutiable merchandise. 

Improvements in Tax Administration 

Building upon the success on similar programs under
taken in neighboring countries, this grant of ¥149.5 mil

lion (equivalent to $1,150,000) from the JSF, will enable 
the Ministry of Finance and Public Credit, working with 
the Inter-American Center of Tax Administrators (CIAT) 
to consolidate reforms already underway in the areas of 
modernization, simplification and improved collection. 
Once tax legislation has been approved by the Hondu
ran Congress, regulatory changes affecting income and 
sales taxes and simplified procedures for individual pay
ers (such as access through the banking system) will be 
implemented. These changes are to be accompanied by 
a reorganization of the country's principal agency for tax 
collection, the Dirección General de Tributación, DGT, the 
reconfiguration of computer programs and hardware and 
training for the DGT's employees, particularly in the use 
of the updated information management system. 

HONDURAS: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Transportation and Communications 
Energy 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Environmental and Public Health 
Urban Development 
Industry and Mining 
Education, Science and Technology 
Planning and Reform 
Preinvestment 
Export Financing 
Other 

$372,767 
344,575 
273,631 
193.283 
75,092 
68,991 
41,744 
31,500 
16.268 
8.908 

60.000 

Total $1,486,759 

$599.089 
1,041,145 

508.645 
299,673 
97,731 

191,842 
66,151 
35,000 
22,317 
12,726 
75,000 

$2,949,319 
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•JAMAICA* 
T h e Governmen t of J a m a i c a and the Bank agreed that 
the focus of Bank activities in 1993 would be improving 
the effective implementat ion of ongoing projects; ensur
ing the timely development of projects once they have 
been identified; consolidation of structural reforms, par
ticularly reform of the state, designed to facilitate private 
sector participation in the financing and provision of pub
lic infrastructure and services; and institutional strength
ening of public-sector utilities. T h e Bank has m a d e 58 
loans totaling $ 1,092 million to J ama ica . Cumulat ive dis
bursements totaled $840 million. In 1993, the Bank ap
proved one loan. 

LOAN 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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» Disbursements 

Support for Pr ivate -Sector Energy D e v e l o p m e n t 

Financing: $57.5 million from the OC, with cofi
nancing of $60 million from the IBRD 
and $10 million from the EIB, and an 
additional share of $39.1 million from 
private-sector sources 

This loan, which makes use of novel financing ar range
ments , will supply J a m a i c a with the means to generate 
and distr ibute electricity that is badly needed for the 
country in the short and med ium term. It will also estab
lish a policy climate (includingjudicial and regulatory re
form) enabling the private sector to henceforth provide 
the long-term capital required for the development of the 
e l e c t r i c i t y s e c t o r , in k e e p i n g w i t h t h e c e n t r a l 
government ' s new privatization policy for all sectors of 
the economy. T h e p rogram will be executed jointly by 
the National Investment Bank of J a m a i c a (NIBJ) and the 
J a m a i c a Public Service C o m p a n y (JPSCo.) 

In particular, the IDB's port ion of the financing will 
be used to finance the cost of a 3 0 - M W gas turbine to be 
owned and used by the J P S C o . until the privatization of 
that company has been completed. Bank resources will 
also be used to partially finance the establishment of an 
energy fund to provide addit ional product ion capacity of 
90 M W for ownership and operat ion by the private sec
tor. T h a t capacity will be generated by another 30 -MW 
gas turbine in combinat ion with low-velocity diesel instal
lations totaling 60 M W . T h e total p rogram, at a projected 
cost of $190.6 million, will also finance the construction 
of transmission lines and substations as well as the hiring 
of consultants to help the NIBJ manage the energy fund 
and to under take a variety of activities, including prepa
ration of loan documents , privatization studies (including 
i m p l e m e n t a t i o n strategies) a n d eva lua t ion of fur ther 
projects in the field. 

MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT F U N D 

E m p l o y e e Stock O w n e r s h i p P r o g r a m (ESOP) 

T h e Nat ional Investment Bank of J ama ica , as executor 
of this $1.8 million grant from the resources of the MIF ' s 
Technica l Coopera t ion Facility, will run a p rog ram to 
p romote the establishment and spread of share owner
ship a r rangements in the J a m a i c a n private sector as a 
complement to the government ' s privatization p rogram. 
Bank resources will be used to finance four sets of activi
ties: i) establishment of a legal framework for the imple
mentat ion of ESOPs , ii) s trengthening of the National In
vestment Bank's E S O P Secretariat and of the country's 
Income T a x Depar tment , iii) t ra ining—aimed at employ
ees, employers, t rade unionists and local consul tants—on 
the mechanics and potential benefits of ESOPs , a n d iv) 
establishment of special funds to support employees in the 
prepara t ion of feasibility studies on ESOPs and to pro
mote ESOPs a m o n g state-owned enterprises. 

JAMAICA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1969-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Industry and Mining 
Energy 
Export Financing 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Urban Development 
Environmental and Public Health 
Education, Science and Technology 
Planning and Reform 
Transportation and Communications 
Tourism 
Preinvestment 

$190,187 
180,787 
173,999 
131,413 
95.209 
92,085 
78,470 
77,334 
55,166 
11,698 
6,063 

$254,995 
357,500 
248,570 
321,635 
140,000 
137,126 
110,400 
76,790 
87,150 
26,410 
11,900 

Total $1,092,411 $1,772,476 
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MEXICO 
The Government of Mexico and the Bank agreed that 
Bank strategy for 1993 would attach high priority to ad
dressing the constraints on sustainable growth imposed 
by regional and social disparities. Priority was also at
tached to sectoral issues—such as the contribution of sci
entific and technological development and investments in 
physical infrastructure—that would make Mexico more 
competitive and permit it to benefit more broadly from 
the prospective advantages of NAFTA. The Bank has 
made 144 loans totaling $8,096 million to Mexico. Cu
mulative disbursements totaled $6,697 million. In 1993, 
the Bank approved four loans. 

LOANS 

YEARLY LENDING A\D D1SBL RSE\1E\TS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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Science and Technology Program 

Financing: $150 million from the OC and $30 mil
lion from the Quincentennial Fund, with 
partial payment of interest on the Fund 
loan from its Compensation Account 

This program, to be executed jointly by the Consejo 
Nacional de Ciencia y Tecnología, CONACÏT, and the 
Universidad .Nacional Autónoma de México. I NAM. will simul
taneously contribute to the expansion of the country's ca
pacity to conduct scientific and technological research 
and improve the quality and effectiveness of teaching and 
study in a variety of fields at the latter institution. Project 
design takes into account the far-reaching macroeco
nomic changes wrought in Mexico in recent years and 
attempts to anticipate some of the implications for the 
country's competitive position in the world economy as a 
result of the North American Free Trade Agreement 
(NAIT A)—one of which is the imperative for develop
ing domestic and locally adapted expertise in science and 
technology. The operation consists of two subprograms— 
one to promote technological development in the private 
sector and the other to focus narrowly on work in the en
gineering, natural sciences, exact sciences, health and ag
riculture at UNAM. Latin America's largest university. 

The first subprogram will operate through a line of 
credit to be developed and extended to Mexican busi
nesses by the Fondo de Investigación y Desarrollo para la 
Modernización Tecnológica, FIDETEC. a new source of fi
nancing set up within CONACYT and run in coordina
tion with Nacional Financiera. Since its founding, FIDETEC 
has become a source of direct funding, to qualifying firms, 
for the initial stages of R&D projects with potential com
mercial applications. Under the second subprogram, 
UNAM's faculty will receive training; several laborato
ries will be renovated and expanded, its library collections 
will be improved and the range of its research in the spe

cific areas in question will be broadened. The FIDETEC 
component should benefit an estimated 200 R&D 
projects at the pre-marketing stage while the UNAM sub
program seeks annual average increases in the enrollment 
of undergraduate students in the sciences and engineer
ing (2.5 percent), graduates from those disciplines (3 per
cent), and enrollment in master's and doctoral program 
in the fields (50 students) in each of the next ten years. 

Modernization of Feeder Highways and Rural 
Roads 

Financing: $180 million from the OC 

The immediate purpose of this program will be to im
prove and modernize already-identified segments of the 
rural and feeder roads system. While the federal 
government's efforts in the construction of state-of-the-
art, inter-urban toll roads has been widely reported, its 
efforts to address the backlog of projects on secondary 
and rural roadways have not. Because rural roads consti
tute 41 percent of the country's total road network and 
serve 18,000 separate communities, the federal govern
ment will intensify efforts to rehabilitate them so as to 
complement the construction of federal highways, includ
ing inter-urban toll roads. The program, to be executed 
by the Comisión Nacional de Carreteras Alimenladoras y 
Aeropis/as. CONACAL, will help to reduce transportation 
costs in rural areas and facilitate access to local and in
ternational markets. 

Given Mexico's relatively large size and long experi
ence in financing similar projects, the mechanism for ad
ministering the loan resources relies on several agencies. 
While CONACAL will be responsible for the overall ex
ecution of the program, the Secretaría de Comunicaciones y 
Transportes. SCT, acting through its decentralized offices, 
will coordinate individual component projects with the 
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help of state road agencies (entidades viales estatales, EVEs). 
The latter will assume the burden of paying the local 
counterpart share of the financing and will subsequently 
be responsible for maintaining the approximately 250 
separate stretches and 6,020 km of roads to be improved 
over the four-year life of the program. 

Infrastructure for Tourism 

Financing: $150 million from the OC 

Building upon Mexico's well established record as a pro
moter of tourism (the country is the eighth most fre
quently selected international destination worldwide), this 
loan will serve to expand and consolidate development 
in four areas: Bahías de Huatulco in the state of Oaxaca; 
Ixtapa-Zihuatanejo, in Guerrero; San José del Cabo, in 
Baja California Sur; and Cancún, in Quintana Roo. Re
sources of the loan will be used for a variety of activities, 
among them land-use planning and development, instal
lation of public services such as water and sewerage, elec
tricity, transportation and telecommunications. Of par
ticular importance to the operation are a series of works 
designed to afford environmental protection to these ar
eas—development of nature parks at the Rio Inglés La
goon, near Cancún, and the preservation of the San José 
inlet in Baja California Sur. An environmental awareness 
and education program aimed at the tourism industry will 
complement the works. Ibis component, amounting to 
$27 million, represents an important investment for the 
sustainability of large-scale tourism centers. 

EONATUR (the National Tourism Development 
Fund), as the executing agency and entity responsible for 
designing the master plans for the integrated development 
of the sites, has, together with Nacional Financiera, SN.C, 
designed specific works projects bearing in mind a pro
jected increase of 2.3 million in the number of visitors to 
the four locations by the year 2000. The projects will also 
rely on a new overall model for tourism development by 
means of which the private sector will furnish detailed 
designs for infrastructure and hotel services while 
FONATUR concentrates on the land-use and environ
mental protection plans and obtaining the requisite per
mits. In broader terms, the purpose of the program is to 
continue the opening and broad-based expansion of the 
Mexican economy, stimulating activity in relatively dis
advantaged regions of the country while retaining their 
natural resources and scenic attractiveness. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Credit for the Informal Sector 

Three private, nonprofit, nongovernmental organiza
tions, the Fundación Los Emprendedores, L.A.P., the Asociación 
Programa Compartamos, LA.P.. and the Fundación Integral 

Comunitaria, A.C., will obtain a total of $ 1.5 million in loans 
and an additional $380,000 in technical cooperation 
grants from the FSO as a means of improving the pro
ductivity and living standards of microentrepreneurs in 
three parts of the country. The program's resources will 
be directed toward the informal sector of the economy in 
the Valley of Mexico and the southern states of Chiapas 
and Oaxaca. Over a three-year period, the program aims 
to provide support to those already employed (the ma
jority of whom are women) and to create new sources of 
jobs for the low-income population in those areas. The 
technical assistance funds will be used to help the inter
mediary agencies, none of which is more than eight years 
old, to better manage the channeling of credit and provi
sion of training to the beneficiary population. 

Marketing of Farm Products in Rural Veracruz 
and Jalisco 

The Central de Promoción Rural Acayucan, A. C, and the 
Asociación de Agricultores de Acatlán de Juárez, A.C., will each 
receive loans of up to $500,000 from the FSO and tech
nical cooperation grants for the equivalent of $135,000 
from the same source, to execute credit and investment 
programs in support of low-income agricultural produc
ers in Veracruz and Jalisco. The intermediary institu
tions—the former established in 1984 in the Veracruz 
town of Acayucan and the latter founded in 1990 in the 
city of Guadalajara, with an extension office in the town 
of Acatlán de Juárez—are nonprofit providers of credit 
and services to farmers in the areas they serve. In addi
tion to providing credit to improve productivity in crop 
production, cattle ranching, and other small-scale 
agroindustrial activities, the resources of the loans will be 
used to promote higher incomes among the families liv
ing on the rural minifundios (small farms) and ejidos (larger 
collective farms) found in each of these states. 

MEXICO: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries $3,332,977 $8,420,814 
Environmental and Public Health 1,102,590 2,129,370 
Industry and Mining 1,066,458 3,348,217 
Transportation and Communications 904,506 1,784,047 
Tourism 504,766 1,228,167 
Energy 329,854 5.880,000 
Education, Science and Technology 331,054 564,377 
Export Financing 99,035 141,478 
Urban Development 96,917 196.305 
Preinvestment 72,247 148,740 
Other 255,990 550,000 

Total $8,096,894 $24,391,515 
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NICARAGUA 
The Bank continued to attach high priority to reactiva
tion, diversification and expansion of the agricultural sec
tor and to conservation of the country's natural-resource 
base. Because of the severe fiscal constraints facing Nica
ragua, the Bank has been actively seeking concessional 
cofinancing in the development of its lending program. 
The Bank has made 62 loans totaling $824 million to 
Nicaragua. Cumulative disbursements totaled $653 mil
lion. In 1993, the Bank approved five loans. 

LOANS 

Rehabilitation and Improvement of Rural Roads 

Financing: $36 million from the OC and $10 mil
lion from the FSO, with partial pay
ment of interest charges on the larger 
from the IFF and cofinancing of $5 mil
lion from the Nordic Development 
Fund 

This program will improve the condition of rural roads 
in the central part of Nicaragua, upgrading and repair
ing approximately 750 km in areas in which agricultural 
expansion could profitably occur. Of the target figure of 
750 km, approximately 520 km (located along 26 sepa
rate roadways) would benefit from technical, environ
mental, economic and engineering studies to be carried 
out with the resources of the loan. An additional 900 km 
of roads—not included in the current program as far as 
upgrading is concerned, but left for a future phase—will 
also be subjected to similar studies. Apart from the civil 
works and the studies, a third important component of 
the program involves the institutional strengthening of the 
Dirección de Mantenimiento Vial and its parent organization, 
the Ministerio de Construcción y Transporte (MCT). Environ-
mental planning, including the establishment of a capa
bility for conducting land-use studies for future improve
ments to roads in forested regions, will be emphasized. 

Much of the rehabilitation of the roads will consist of 
the widening of roadbeds, the repair of drainage works 
to prevent erosion and the repair or construction of 
bridges and other structures needed to ensure fitness for 
traffic under all weather conditions. The financing will 
also cover the development and implementation of a 
maintenance management system for the network of ru
ral roads and the cost of vehicles and other equipment to 
be used by the government agencies involved in the up
keep of the roads once repairs have been completed, in
cluding computers to be used in connection with the 
stepped-up activities of the MCT. 

YEARLY IJENDLNG AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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Credit and Institutional Strengthening for 
"Non-Conventional" Financial Organizations 

Financing: $23.6 million from the OC, with partial 
payment of interest charges by the IFF 

This operation's two subprograms, one to provide credit 
to small farmers and microentrepreneurs and the other 
to improve the performance of "non-conventional" finan
cial entities (such as nongovernmental organizations, co
operatives and foundations), are together designed to im
prove the supply of modest amounts of working capital 
and financing for fixed assets to the country's informal 
sector. The credit subprogram is to be executed by the 
Financiera Nicaragüense de Inversiones, FNI, which will super
vise second-tier lending undertaken by commercial banks 
at prevailing rates of interest. The institutional strength
ening subjDrogram will be executed by the Instituto 
Programa de Apoyo a la Pequeña y Microempresa (PAMIC), an 
organization to be established expressly for the purpose 
of assisting domestic financial intermediaries with tech
nology and training. 

Small businesses and microenterprises employ up to 
700,000 Nicaraguans, as many as 65 percent of whom 
are women. In recognition of the sector's importance as 
both a generator of employment and contributor to GDP, 
the two programs'joint objective is to expand the capac
ity for the regulated provision of financial management 
and credit administration services through a variety of 
intermediary financial institutions. The institutional 
strengthening component will focus on non-bank finan
cial intermediaries, such as credit unions and NGOs. The 
Instituto PAMIC, founded as a unit within the federal 
Ministerio de Economía y Desarrollo, M E D E , with the assis
tance of the Dutch government in 1989, will henceforth 
be used by the Government of Nicaragua as the exclu
sive conduit of official assistance to the small business and 
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MANAGUA, NICARAGUA. Of
ficials from the Central American 
Institute for Business Administra
tion (INCAE) confer on the pre
mises of VELCAS International, a 
clothing factory located in the 
capital's duty-free zone that was 
privatized by Nicaraguan authori
ties following receipt of a $3.8 mil
lion technical assistance grant from 
the Bank in 1991. INCAE, a pri
vate business school, has conducted 
marketing studies for the firm, 
which can produce up to 200,000 
articles of clothing per month. 

microentrepreneurial sector. The credit subprogram will 
institute revolving lines of credit, up to a maximum of $3 
million for a single intermediary in the first year, for indi
vidual loans of no more than $15,000 to businesses with 
a limit of 20 employees and $50,000 in assets. 

Strengthening of Agricultural Services 

Financing: $8.75 million from the FSO and $7.25 mil
lion from the OC, with partial payment 
of interest charges on the latter from the 
IFF 

Following up on the approval of a sectoral adjustment 
loan and technical cooperation for agriculture in 1992, 
the present operation's main objectives are to protect 
Nicaragua's agricultural resources, to strengthen entities 
involved in the areas of agricultural health and seed de
velopment and to increase production for domestic con
sumption and export. The program is also closely linked 
to a 1991 Trade and Finance Adjustment loan and the 
Rural Roads project described above. In concert, the op
erations are designed to enable the Ministerio de Agricultura 

y Ganadería, MAG, to revitalize this important productive 
sector, contributing to efforts to alleviate poverty and to 
generate foreign exchange. Agriculture in Nicaragua is 
responsible for 80 percent of all exports, one quarter of 
GDP and one third of total employment. 

The regulatory assistance to be provided by MAG will 
focus on services such as health inspection—through the 
construction of four animal-health laboratories, eight 
units for animal-health work and five livestock-quaran
tine stations, among other facilities—and institutional 

strengthening for the Dirección General de Proteccióny Sanidad 
Agropecuaria, a subagency within the MAG. This last com
ponent will stress the need for decentralization and coor
dination among the various entities involved in agricul
ture within the Nicaraguan government, as well as 
collaboration with private-sector interests in such areas 
as seed protection and inspection. A subprogram de
signed to improve the quality and dissemination of infor
mation for farm producers, to be run by the Dirección Gen
eral de Información y Apoyo al Productor, will focus on issues 
related to statistics-gathering, geography and marketing. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Microentrepreneurs 

A total of $500,000 will be loaned to the Fundación para el 
Apoyo a la Microempresa, FAMA, a nonprofit, nongovern
mental organization, from the Swiss Fund for Technical 
Cooperation and Small Projects. The principal aims of 
the financing are to enable FAMA to extend the average 
term of loans in its portfolio and expand its credit ser
vices to a more diverse group of microentrepreneurs— 
including small producers in the service and industrial 
sectors, where the potential for new job creation is 
greater. Founded in 1991, FAMA is an affiliate of Acción 
Internacional, an international advisory group support
ing organizations that provide credit services to the in
formal sector. In 1992, FAMA received a grant from the 
Government of Austria for technical cooperation and the 
purchase of fixed assets. In its two years of operations, 
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the organization has extended an average credit of $ 150 
to an estimated 3,000 beneficiaries in Managua and in 
the cities of Chinandega and Masaya, located northwest 
and southeast of the capital, respectively. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Strengthening of Health Services and Institutions 

Two grants—one from the FSO for $3.5 million and the 
other from the Swedish Trust Fund for Consultant Ser
vices and Training Activities for $1.5 million—will en
able a special unit composed of officials from the Minis
tries of Health and Finance to carry out a program to 
strengthen planning and project preparation for the 
country's health sector. The financing will cover the costs 
of institutional strengthening of the Health Ministry's 
strategic planning unit, hospital management systems and 
training for personnel involved in that field, studies on 
sectoral demand and options for health care financing 
reform, and the development of a plan for future invest
ment by the Bank and other agencies. The program will 
culminate with the issuance of a final report on 
Nicaragua's health sector by the executing unit. 

National Public Investment System 

The aim of this program, financed by a S2 million grant 
from the FSO, is to improve the effectiveness with which 
funds are appropriated throughout the entire Nicaraguan 
public sector, beginning with the Ministerio de Economía y 
Desarrollo and a subagency, the Dirección General de 
Inversiones Públicas, DIP. The program will provide re
sources for the identification and initial formulation of 
public investment projects, supporting the mechanisms 
available for conducting preinvestment studies. It will also 
enable the Nicaraguan government to broaden its capac
ity to prioritize development projects across different sec
tors of the national economy, to conduct follow-up re
views of specific investment programs and to provide 
training within government ministries charged with en
suring that public investment may be usefully absorbed. 
The training aspects of the program will be particularly-
crucial in seeking to ensure that development projects are 
appropriate in scale and that resources, once committed, 
are disbursed according to plan. 

execute a program to improve the formulation of public 
policy to support this important sector of the national 
economy. A grant equivalent to approximately S622,000 
from the Swiss Fund for Technical Cooperation and 
Small Projects will enable government authorities to pre
pare annual strategic plans for the sector and to coordi
nate research to be used in the design of policy for the 
nearly 80,000 businesses that, according to a 1989 cen
sus, constitute the country's informal sector. Studies will 
concentrate on the labor, capital, financial and product 
markets for small firms, among other topics. 

NICARAGUA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries 
Planning and Reform 
Transportation and Communications 
Environmental and Public Health 
Energy 
Industry and Mining 
Tourism 
Urban Development 
Education, Science and Technology 
Export Financing 
Preinvestment 
Other 

$259,655 
153,651 
109.724 
100,191 
75,425 
42,532 
23.600 
22.514 
9,000 
1,826 

398 
25,118 

Total $823.634 

$564,843 
265.950 
192,569 
153,250 
168,840 
76,453 
29,500 
39.496 
10.550 
2,609 

773 
26,137 

$1,530,970 

Support for Policies to Assist Small Businesses 
and Microenterprises 

Through its subagency in charge of coordinating assis
tance to small firms and microenterprises (the Dirección 
General del la Pequeña y Microempresa. DGPl'ME). 
Nicaragua's Ministry of Economy and Development will 
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PANAMA 
The Bank and the Government of Panama agreed to fo
cus their efforts in 1993 on both physical and social in
frastructure. Accordingly, the Bank approved loans for a 
country-wide road rehabilitation project and a health 
care reform program. In addition, another financing will 
carry out studies in the Inter-Oceanic Region. Since 1962 
the Bank has made 82 loans totaling $1,221 million to 
Panama. Cumulative disbursements totaled $784 million. 
In 1993, the Bank approved three loans for a total of 
$230.4 million. 

LOANS 

Road Rehabilitation and Administration Program 

Financing: $180 million from the OC, with cofi
nancing of $60 million from the IBRD 

This loan, the Bank's largest ever to Panama, will im
prove the maintenance and safety of the country's road 
system, modernizing highway administration and 
strengthening nationwide planning throughout the sector. 
An additional segment of the program will result in the 
reformulation of policies covering infrastructure and pub
lic transportation in Panama, focusing on those to be ad
ministered by the National Programming and Institu
tional Development Directorate {Dirección Nacional de 
Programación y Desarrollo Institucional, DIPRODI ) , a unit 
within the executing agency, the Ministerio de Obras 
Públicas, MOP. 

In keeping with the country's Multiyear Plan for the 
years 1994-1997, the operation will include preinvest
ment studies for specific rehabilitation projects, particu
larly in and between urban areas; rehabilitation of 800 
km of paved roads, signalization and 270 bridges; peri
odic maintenance of 1,200 km of paved roads; and an
nual routine maintenance on an additional 7,720 km 
along the national road network. In addition to initiatives 
contained within the Plan, the Government has also com
mitted to finance, from a variety of other sources, includ
ing the World Bank, the completion of works already in 
progress in several parts of the country, site-specific 
projects to decongest Panama City, and roads intended 
to help in the development of the Inter-Oceanic Region. 
The institutional strengthening and policy reformulation 
component will single out as a priority the need to 
privatize the contracting of road rehabilitation and main
tenance works—up to a maximum of 75 percent of the 
paved road network in the fourth year of the program. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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Health Care Reform Program 

Financing: $42 million from the OC, with partial 
payment of interest charges by the IFF 

This program, intended as a "transition" project by 
means of which specific reforms will be initiated pending 
the introduction of more generalized institutional and 
sectoral restructuring of the Panamanian health care sec
tor, has four components. The first, a reform of the 
country's overall model for health care, will be grounded 
in a recognition of an epidemiological profile of the 
country's population (emphasizing vaccination and ad
dressing specialized areas such as tuberculosis, vitamin 
deficiencies and occupation-related pathologies), and will 
focus on the use of preventive techniques and "health 
teams," while targeting areas with the highest concentra
tion of poverty. Another component will stress the decen
tralization of service delivery and general training within 
the Ministerio de Salud and the Caja del Seguro Social. 

Two other components will address the need for im
proved infrastructure in Panama's health care system. 
Scheduled works include the modernization of second
ary-care hospitals located at La Chorrera and Penonomé; 
development of a series of eight community mental health 
centers, two half-way houses (similar to nursing homes) 
and two day care centers; and an initiative to improve 
the access of an estimated 63,000 residents of islands off 
both the Atlantic and Pacific coasts to health care by 
means of a boat service to be managed by the national 
Unidad Marítima de Salud. A fourth subprogram will finance 
three studies—on technical, institutional and financial as
pects of comprehensive sectoral reform, on the epidemi
ology of the country's female population, particularly in
digenous women, and on the financial options involved 
in building three general hospitals to provide secondary-
level services in the interior of the country. 
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OUTSIDE ARRAIJAN, PANAMA. Second 
layer of asphalt is raked, prior to rolling, on a 9.7 
km-long stretch of the highway between the Bridge 
of the Americas and the Arraiján-Chorrerafreeway. 
The work is part of a program of improvements on 
this section of the Panamerican highway system, 
which is the principal link between the capital of 
Panama City and the rest of the country. A 1986 
Bank loan of SI 7.1 million constituted fist over 
half of the financing for the project, executed by 
the Ministry of Public Works. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Studies on the Development of 
the Inter-Oceanic Region 

This $8.4 million loan from the Bank's OC account (with 
a portion of the interest charges to be offset by resources 
from the Intermediate Financing Facility) will fund a se
ries of studies in the Inter-Oceanic Region. This area, 
which includes the former Canal Zone and the majority 
of which has already reverted to control of authorities of 
that country, will be administered by Panama's newly cre
ated Interoceanic Region Authority (Autoridad de la Región 
Interoceánica, ARI). The reversion was begun in 1979, the 
effective date of the Panama Canal Treaties, with respon
sibility for administration of the first sectors (including 
thousands of buildings and other structures) assigned to 
the Ministries of Housing, Public Works, Finance and the 
Treasury, among other entities. The primary component 
of the operation will involve the study of development al
ternatives for the Region as a whole. A second compo
nent will include efforts to conserve the natural resource 
base of the watershed area on either side of the Canal. A 

third subprogram will focus on urban planning for 
Panama City (the capital, located on the Pacific Ocean 
side, which contains roughly half of the country's popu
lation) and Colón (on the Adantic side), two cities whose 
growth has heretofore been limited by virtue of the exist
ence of the Canal Zone. 

PANAMA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Transportation and Communications 
Energy 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Planning and Reform 
Environmental and Public Health 
Education, Science and Technology 
Urban Development 
Industry and Mining 
Preinvestment 
Tourism 
Other 

$361,224 
284,344 
146,619 
137.228 
86.689 
70,149 
52,555 
33,282 
20,816 
20,027 
8,340 

$801,304 
597,272 
236,662 
141,550 
124,912 
108.500 
82,420 
61,694 
41,460 
41,822 

Total $1,221,273 $2,237,596 
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PARAGUAY* 
The Government of Paraguay and the Bank assigned 
high priority in 1993 to consolidation of structural re
forms, investments that would contribute to agricultural 
diversification and productivity growth, and to human-
resource development. As a result, lending and technical 
cooperation was directed to improving the quality of so
cial services, infrastructure, and institutional strengthen
ing in the public sector at the regional and local level. The 
Bank has made 76 loans totaling $1,123 million to Para
guay. Cumulative disbursements totaled $624 million. In 
1993, the Bank approved seven loans. 

LOANS 

Improvements in Primary Education 

Financing: $46.5 million from the FSO and $6.3 mil
lion from the OC 

Beginning with a series of decisions taken in January of 
this year—to reorganize basic education throughout the 
country into one six-year elementary and one two-year 
intermediary cycle, to extend the school year by 25 days 
and to reduce the age for entering the primary school sys
tem from seven to six, among other reforms—the execut
ing agency, Paraguay's Ministerio de Educación)' Culto, has 
undertaken a far-reaching and substantial program of 
sectoral change. The goal of this financing is to support 
those changes, based on the premises that i) the educa
tional achievement of students leaving the primary sys
tem needs to be raised and ii) that resources set aside for 
the sector are not used as efficiently as they might be. 

Activities to be undertaken begin with support for cur
ricular reform at the pre-school and elementary levels, fi
nancing physical improvements at 400 schools, improv
ing the supply of teaching materials and books and 
supplementing the resources currently available for pre
paring future teachers and improving their access to train
ing opportunities. Among the goals established for the 
program are the establishment of a ratio of 32 pupils per 
teacher, the broadening of pre-school coverage to the es
timated two-thirds of the age cohort, mainly in marginal 
urban and rural areas, who presently do not attend, and 
establishing helpful, lasting programs for students who are 
monolingual in guaraní. The institutional strengthening 
of the executing agency will focus on putting information 
management equipment in place at the Ministry and in
stalling a maintenance system reaching a total of 2,000 
schools by the program's end. 

YEARLYLENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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National Rural Roads Program 

Financing: Loans of $30.9 million and $10 million 
from the OC, with partial payment of 
interest charges on the latter from the 
IFF 

These two loans are directed toward improving the agri
cultural sector of the Paraguayan economy and raising 
the standards of living of the country's rural populations 
by facilitating their access to health care and educational 
services, as well as farm marketing and agricultural ex
tension offices. Particular emphasis has been placed on 
the needs of indigenous communities in the vicinity of the 
works to be carried out—and on observing strict environ
mental standards for the construction and eventual main
tenance of the upgraded roads. 

Within the framework of Paraguay's National Trans
portation Plan, enacted to cover the five year period 
1990-1994 and administered by the Ministerio de Obras 
Públicas y Comunicaciones, MOPC, the financing from both 
loans will be used to improve and rehabilitate approxi
mately 900 km of roads in the eastern part of the coun
try, in the areas of Saltos del Guaira, Villarrica, San 
Pedro, Concepción and Itapúa. Because studies have 
demonstrated that 85 percent of the rural roads in the 
national system are unpaved—and only 3 percent are 
classified as "permanently serviceable"—the comprehen
sive Plan has assigned priority to this activity. A portion 
of the funding will be used to strengthen the Rural Roads 
Directorate, a subsidiary unit of the MOPC, notably in 
the areas of human resource training and familiarization 
with environmental issues. 
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Support for Strengthening Municipal 
Governments 

Financing: Loans of $10 million and $4.4 million 
from the OC and $1.8 million from the 
FSO, with partial payment of interest on 
the largest from the IFF 

Reflecting the Bank's strategy for the country and with a 
broader trend throughout many countries of the region, 
this operation will support the administrative and finan
cial decentralization of the delivery of many government 
services in Paraguay's municipalities. As executor of the 
program, the Ministerio del Interior will coordinate a series 
of cadastral and institution-building studies. Loan re
sources will also enable municipal governments to im
prove their administration of a variety of urban service-
delivery programs, including sanitat ion and the 
administration of public markets, through the develop
ment of organizational manuals and computer systems. 
The program will reach an estimated 50 municipalities 
and four municipal associations, groups that have formed 
in recent years for the purpose of sharing equipment 
among smaller towns and achieving economies of scale 
in the provision of government services. 

The project has two other principal objectives: the in
stallation and promotion of budgetary and accounting 
systems for local treasuries and the clarification of the le
gal and financial framework of both municipalities and 
the newer, departmental level of government. Pursuant 
to initiatives contained in Paraguay's 1992 Constitution, 
local revenue laws will be simplified and codified. Tax 
receipts will be supplemented by revenue generated from 
the inclusion of property that was formerly either under
valued or omitted from land registers. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Improving Conditions among Indigenous 
Communities, Low-Income Farmers 
and Microentrepreneurs 

The intended beneficiaries of these three loans (two for 
$500,000 and one for $200,000, each from the FSO) are 
communities of indigenous peoples and low-income ag
ricultural and industrial microentrepreneurs. Technical 
cooperation grants of up to $130,000 each will enable 
three institutions—the Fundación Moisés Bertoni para la 
Conservación de la Naturaleza, FMB, the Fundación Industrial, 
FI, and the Cooperativa de Producción Agropecuaria, Forestal e 
Industrial Areguá, Ltda., COPAEI—to develop the capacity 
to provide credit and advisory services to their constitu
encies in various parts of the country. FMB will concen
trate on providing assistance to indigenous groups in the 
Upper Jejui Valley; FI will focus on offering management 

training and credit in urban centers; and COPAFI will 
provide a range of business services to people engaged in 
craftwork and growing tomatoes and strawberries in the 
vicinity of Areguá, just outside the capital of Asunción on 
Lake Ypacarai. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Engineering and Environmental Studies 
for an Export Road Corridor 

This grant of ¥129 million (equivalent to approximately 
$990,000) from the JSF will be used by the Ministerio de 
Obras Públicas y Comunicaciones, MOPC, to study in detail 
the environmental impact and technical design options 
for a 112-km stretch of the country's Route 3, running 
between Emboscada (outside the capital of Asunción) and 
San Estanislao, and the environmental impact of im
provements to approximately 220 km of Route 10, be
tween the towns of Tacuara (near San Estanislao) and 
Saltos del Guaira, on the border with Brazil. An invest
ment project to finance the upgrading and paving of these 
roads is included as part of the Bank's projected lending 
program for 1994. In combination, the studies will pro
vide an assessment of a main thoroughfare whose con
siderable importance to agricultural producers of such 
commodities as soybeans and cotton will increase with the 
advent of tariff reductions associated with MERCOSUR. 

PARAGUAY: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy 
Transportation and Communications 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Education, Science and Technology 
Environmental and Public Health 
Planning and Reform 
Urban Development 
Industry and Mining 
Tourism 
Preinvestment 
Other 

5279,046 
197,392 
195,284 
110,460 
101,658 
81,500 
80.969 
55,840 
14,731 

436 
5,480 

$414,012 
267,431 
296,511 
143,280 
171,017 
89,500 
94,273 
79,513 
18,608 

582 

Total $1,122,796 $1,574,727 
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PERU' 1 EARLY LENDING AND DISBL 'RSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 

In 1993, in coordinat ion with Peruvian authorities, the 
Bank gave high priority to social sector projects, includ
ing the rehabilitation and expansion of health services, 
water and sanitation and education, particularly in rural 
areas. Another important part of the Bank's strategy was 
support for implement ing structural reforms. The Bank 
has m a d e 119 loans totaling $2,667 million to Peru. Cu
m u l a t i v e d i s b u r s e m e n t s t o t a l e d $ 2 , 2 0 6 mi l l ion . In 
1993, the Bank approved three loans. 

LOANS 

Support for the Fondo Nacional de 
Compensación y Desarrollo Social, FONCODES 

Financing: $100 million from the OC 

T h i s p r o g r a m is d e s i g n e d to s u p p o r t the P e r u v i a n 
government ' s efforts to alleviate poverty and, through the 
activities of F O N C O D E S , to prevent any further dete
rioration in the network of the country 's social-service 
delivery system dur ing a period of economic stabilization 
and reform of state-run institutions. T h e Peruvian gov
e rnmen t established F O N C O D E S in 1990 in order to 
fund programs a imed at alleviating poverty at the na
tional level, intending it to complement the activities of 
m a n y local initiatives, such as mothers ' clubs, nutrition 
programs and neighborhood associations. With the help 
of a start-up grant approved from the resources of the J S F 
in 1 9 9 1 , F O N C O D E S has b e g u n to fund p ro j ec t s 
throughout the country. 

T h e Bank's p rogram will finance small-scale social in
frastructure projects needed to ensure the delivery of ba
sic services to the target populat ion: the equipping and 
renovation or replacement of pr imary schools and the es
tablishment of pr imary-care health clinics, the rehabili
tation and installation of nonresidential potable-water dis
tribution systems, sewerage and sanitation networks for 
rural and marginal u rban areas, and the repair or exten
sion of small irrigation works. In the health sector, the 
loan's resources will be used to set up clinics, subject to 
regulation by central authorities, to be administered by 
individual communit ies . 

Strengthen ing o f H e a l t h Serv ices 

Financing: $68 million from the OC 

T h e three complementary components of this p rogram, 
each intended to prepare Peru's health sector for a major 
set of reforms, are as follows: a series of institutional and 
pre-investment studies, institutional s trengthening for the 
Ministry of Heal th and other decentralized agencies, and 
support for the country's network of hospitals, clinics and 

Lending 

91 92 93 

Disbursements 

health posts. Each facet of the program is intended to sup
port Peru 's ongoing restructuring of the sector and the 
decentralization of government services and its efforts to 
assemble a bet ter- t ra ined and more flexible workforce 
with the public health sector. 

Low-income health care recipients in Peru have his
torically been served exclusively by the public sector, thus 
this financing has as one of its principal intended benefi
ciaries the members of the populat ion living in poverty, 
particularly women and children. By targeting the most 
d isadvantaged areas of the count ry a n d sectors of the 
populat ion, the p rogram accords with the Bank's overall 
strategy for opera t ions in Peru. D u r i n g the execut ion 
phase, personnel from the Pan American Health Orga
nization (PAHO) will conduct a special study on water 
and food decontaminat ion. Officials and consultants from 
P A H O and the U N D P will assist the Ministerio de Salud in 
the supervision of all phases of the p rogram's execution, 
including the administrat ion of contract ing for the p ro 
curement of goods and services. 

Electr ic P o w e r T r a n s m i s s i o n a n d Elec tr ic i ty 
S u b s e c t o r R e f o r m P r o g r a m 

Financing: $45 million from the OC 

T h e overall objectives of this dual p rog ram, to be ex
ecuted by the Ministerio de Energía y Minas, M E M , are to 
contr ibute to an improvement in the efficiency, reliabil
ity and availability of electricity service throughout Peru. 
As means to that end, the transmission componen t of the 
p rogram will expand the operations of nine of the 15 ex
isting substations a long the Sistema Inter conectado Centro-
Norte, SIGN, and establish interconnections with systems 
serving the southwestern and southeastern portions of the 
country. T h e installation of a centralized transmission 
control center (TCC) at the San J u a n substation on the 



LOAN'S AND TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

COMABATA. PERU. Cattle undergo
ing examination in chute at a farm out
side this village in the vicinity of Cuzco. 
A 1992 Bank loan has enabled the lo
cally-based Institute for the Development 
of Campesino Trade and Marketing 
(IEOCC) to provide a variety of agricul
tural inputs—seeds,fertilizers, pesticides 
and veterinary medicines—to farmers, 
through communal stores they manage 
themselves. 

outskirts of Lima will enable electricity company authori
ties to register and process energy transfers along the 
SIGN. Along the Sistema Interconectado del Sur, SIS, a 200-
km transmission system will be constructed between 
Tintaya and Socabaya in the Departments of Cuzco and 
Arequipa, respectively. As a consequence of the upgrades 
to both systems, low-income communities located along 
the northern and southern coasts, and in the southern si
erra, are expected to benefit from access to affordable 
sources of energy. 

The second major component of the program focuses 
on institutional strengthening of the new transmission 
companies (ETECEN and ETESUR), responsible for the 
operation of the above-named systems. Specific studies 
for the newly reconfigured group of eight regional elec
tricity companies will examine the prospective structure 
and valuation of the companies' business units—antici

pating their eventual privatization as called for in the re
cently enacted Law on Electricity Concessions -and op
tions for reducing losses along the 220-kV coastal trans
mission system. In an effort to ensure that procurement 
procedures are effectively managed, MEM will work with 
the UNDP on the administration of public bidding pro
cedures leading to acquisition of goods and services fi
nanced with the help of the Bank's resources. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Improving Living Standards for 
Microentrepreneurs in Low-Income Areas 

Five loans of $500.000 from the FSO have been made 
available to the Caja .Municipal de Ahorro y Crédito (CMAC) 
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branches in Sullana, Trujillo, Cuzco and Arequipa, along 
with the Fondo de Cajas Municipales de Ahorro y Crédito 
(FOCMAC), an independent entity established to chan
nel resources to CMACs across the country. The four 
freestanding CMACs, along with an additional six 
"subintermediary" CMACs to be served by FOCMAC, 
will make loans to approximately 12,000 low-income mi
croentrepreneurs in urban and peripheral areas for the 
acquisition of working capital and the procurement of 
equipment, machinery and tools. In the case of the 
F O C M A C project, which includes an addit ional 
$500,000 grant for technical cooperation, the subinter-
mediaries, located in lea, Huancayo, Maynas, Santa and 
Paita, are to be supervised in accordance with regulations 
developed by the parent organization, which has also 
benefited from technical assistance and operating support 
from the German Gesellschqftfür Technische ¿fusammenarbát, 
GT7?, since its founding in 1990. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Multisectoral Assistance for Low-Income Groups 

This innovative operation, financed in part by a $6.3 mil
lion grant from the SPTF (with $550,000 in cofinancing 
from UNICEF), targets a variety of beneficiaries through
out Peru, most of them women and children living in 
"marginal" areas in and around major urban areas. In a 
series of projects to be executed by the Ministry of Edu
cation and the National Family Welfare Institute [Instituto 
Nacional de Bienestar Familiar), nongovernmental and com
munity organizations will participate in efforts, at the 
grass-roots level, to protect, counsel and generally im
prove the living conditions of street children. 

The program will help finance the cost of providing 
day-care and nursery school services to children under 
the age of six. Other components of the program will fo
cus on mothers—specifically offering them access to in
formation and services in areas such as health and nutri
tion (for both their children and themselves) and informal 
education. Government agencies, in collaboration with 
NGOs, will train an estimated 360 street teachers in 15 
separate cities, whose focus will be working minors. In the 
preschool education portion of the program, an estimated 
650,000 children and 120,000 women living below the 
poverty line will obtain access to pilot programs, in-home 
services and day-care facilities over the four-year life of 
the project. 

Institutional Support for the Legislative Branch 

In keeping with the emphasis the Bank has placed on the 
modernization of the state as a necessary correlative of 
economic development, this grant of ¥288.9 million (ap
proximately $2.7 million) from the JSF is intended to help 

the Congress of Peru to improve the efficiency and tech
nical capacity with which it fulfills its constitutional man
date. The operation will finance the development of a 
new information system to track the development of leg
islation as it passes through the committee system and to 
serve as a library and data base for parliamentary and 
legislative research. In addition, through the services of 
the UNDP, which has been selected as a consultant to 
assist with various aspects of the program, the grant will 
provide funding for efforts to train and professionalize the 
staff of the legislative branch—and to undertake a signifi
cant administrative restructuring of each of its major 
component parts. 

Support for the Basic Sanitation Sector 

Peru's Ministry of the Presidency, acting in concert with 
the country's Vice Ministry for Infrastructure, will ex
ecute a series of studies for ten sample projects, each in
tended to strengthen a public utility company providing 
water and sewerage in a different part of the country. 
This ¥110 million grant (approximately $1 million) from 
the JSF will be used to hire consultants who will analyze 
the utilities from a variety of viewpoints—legal, financial 
and technical—and who will draw up plans for the reha
bilitation of various parts of the country's water supply 
systems. A portion of the operation will also be dedicated 
toward the identification of possible future investment 
projects within the sector, particularly those located in 
urban environments, with the potential to improve envi
ronmental and sanitary conditions. 

PERU: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 
the Projects 

Planning and Reform $771,813 $815,292 
Agriculture and Fisheries 441,492 1,167,038 
Industry and Mining 416,639 1,170,542 
Transportation and Communications 364,377 608,001 
Energy 232,689 759,505 
Export Financing 176,756 252,509 
Environmental and Public Health 156,271 319,312 
Urban Development 56,520 105,773 
Tourism 30,627 71,400 
Preinvestment 10,932 29,371 
Education, Science and Technology 9,028 21,869 

Total $2,667,144 $5,320,612 
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SURINAME 
Lending by the Bank to Suriname in 1993 continued to 
be thwarted by an inadequate policy framework and by 
the impasse that has developed between the authorities 
of the country and the donor community over the condi
tions for disbursement of grant funds by the Government 
of the Netherlands. The Bank has made five loans total
ing $18 million to Suriname. Cumulative disbursements 
totaled $16 million. 

SURINAME: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1980-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 
Education, Science and Technology 

$7.868 
5,702 
3.988 

$9,700 
10.000 
10.000 

Total $17,558 $29,700 

INDIRA GHANDIWEG, SURINAME. 
Logs from the tropical hardwood walaba tree 
will be cut into shingles at the Suriname 
Wood Factory, N V. sawmill, 37 km from 
the capital Paramaribo, and used in build
ing construction. Production at the mill be
gan in 1988, helped in part by a $6 million 
IDB loan two years earlier for an industrial 
credit program executed by Suriname's Na
tional Development Bank. 

87 • 



INI'ER-AMERICAK DEVELOPMENTBANK 

• TRINIDAD 
AND TOBAGO 

Bank assistance to Trinidad and Tobago in 1993 contin
ued to be directed to a reform program that seeks to ra
tionalize and streamline state involvement in the 
economy; provide a legal, regulatory, and policy frame
work that would encourage greater private-sector contri
bution to the diversification process; and address the plan
ning capability of the public sector and the efficiency of 
delivery systems for social services. The Bank has made 
25 loans totaling $574 million to Trinidad and Tobago. 
Cumulative disbursements totaled $225 million. In 1993, 
the Bank approved three loans. 

LOANS 

Investment Sector Reform Program 

Financing: Loans of $65 million and $15 million from 
the OC, with partial payment of interest 
charges on the latter from the IFF 

The Investment Sector Reform Program (ISRP) to be 
undertaken with the assistance of the resources of these 
loans is meant to help consolidate the structural adjust
ment process in Trinidad and Tobago. Consistent with 
the Bank's strategy for the country, the program will fol
low the lines of the government's Medium-Term Policy 
Framework for 1993-1995, which in turn stresses the 

YEARLY I.ENDINrG AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 

300 

Lending 

90 91 92 93 

Disbursements 

need to remove bottlenecks to expanded investment and 
exports as the means for renewing economic growth, gen
erating employment and diversifying the national 
economy. Several specific components have been de
signed to help achieve the government's goal of improv
ing the incentives and opportunities for efficient private-
sector investment. At the same time, the program will 
address the needs of those sectors of the population who 
have been adversely affected by the adjustment process 
to dale. It will be executed by the Ministry of Planning 
and Development. 

A divestment component will support activities already-
underway: the continued restructuring of state-owned 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO. 
High atop the construction site, a 
worker pours concrete for a sewage 
treatment tank that will benefit the 
residents of the new settlement of 
Bon Air West. The project, in 
which beneficiaries finance their 
own homes, is supported in part 
until the help of a $66.1 million 
IDB loan and will contain some 
5,000 serviced lots in suburban 
areas. 
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enterprises, improvements in the operations of public 
utilities and a large-scale rationalization of the still-criti
cal energy sector. A financial sector component will fo
cus on restructuring of the Agricultural Development 
Bank and the establishment of an independent agency to 
oversee and regulate capital markets. An inter-sectoral 
regulatory component will address issues confronting po
tential investors, such as transparency in intellectual prop
erty rights and land titling, customs operations and envi
ronmental impact assessment procedures. Another 
component, in the agricultural sector, will examine trade 
and pricing policies for three important product groups: 
rice, pork and pork products, and poultry. An essential 
feature of the program is its expansion of the delivery of 
social services to displaced workers and other vulnerable 
groups, beginning with initiatives to provide food secu
rity and worker retraining. 

Multisectoral Preinvestment Program—Phase II 

Financing: $10.5 million from the OC, with partial 
payment of interest charges by the IFF 

In improving the government's ability to allocate public-
sector investment resources, this loan will also serve to 
improve the capacity of the Ministry of Planning and 
Development's Project Planning and Reconstruction Di
vision to design, manage and execute projects. Financing 
will be provided for general as well as specific 
preinvestment studies, many of them in the health, ur
ban development, transportation and environment sec
tors. The studies are also intended to complement 
Trinidad and Tobago's designation as one of three bor

rowing member countries engaged in a pilot program
ming exercise focusing on women in development. 

The overall aim of the program is to streamline the 
processes by which projects are prepared and later imple
mented. In refining the executing agency's capacity for 
preparing projects, the operation will emphasize the need 
to hire professional staff for the above-mentioned Divi
sion and a newly created National Coordinating Unit, 
which would work closely with two other agencies, the 
Central Tenders Board and the Chief State Solicitor's 
Office, involved with project execution and procurement. 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO: DISTRIBUTION OF 
LOANS 1967-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy $261,009 $335,000 
Planning and Reform 79,581 80,000 
Urban Development 70,411 97,240 
Transportation and Communications 49,861 104,398 
Education, Science and Technology 41,231 55,219 
Agriculture and Fisheries 29,531 42.898 
Preinvestment 16,589 19,739 
Export Financing 13,320 19,029 
Environmental and Public Health 12,392 25,160 

Total $573,925 $778,683 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO. 
Secondary school teachers get 
hands-on training in new instruc
tional methods at the Rudranath 
Capildeo Learning Resource Cen
ter, opened in 1992. Two IDB 
loans totaling $36.8 million 
helped finance an education pro
gram thai also includes curriculum 
development, lhe preparation of 
audiovisual material and the con
struction and equipping of 16pri
mary schools. 
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URUGUAY* 
The Government of Uruguay and the Bank agreed in 
1993 to promote the supply of water and sewerage ser
vices. Economic and social initiatives supported by the 
Bank also included export promotion in the agricultural 
sector and improvements in education and environmen
tal management. The Bank has made 76 loans totaling 
$1,229 million to Uruguay. Cumulative disbursements 
totaled $835 million. In 1993, the Bank approved two 
loans. 

LOANS 

Water and Sewerage Program 

Financing: $45 million from the OC 

This program will improve and expand coverage of 
drinking water and sewerage services throughout the 
country and regionalize the operations of the executing 
agency, Obras Sanitarias del Estado, OSE (the State Sanita
tion Works Administration). Bank resources will help to 
finance a multiple-works program including the construc
tion and expansion of approximately 200 km of distribu
tion systems and trunk mains for potable-water systems 
in ten communities surrounding the City of Montevideo 
and the expansion of seven sewage-treatment plants at 
pre-selected "priority" sites in the interior of the country. 
The sewerage works will also undertake the installation 
of roughly 50 km of sewers in cities in the interior and 
construction of two waste-treatment plants. A rehabilita
tion component will entail the replacement of equipment 
such as pumps and valves for water supply systems at 40 
separate sites. 

In pursuing the goal of regionalizing the OSE, the loan 
will finance the acquisition, by that agency, of the equip
ment and expertise needed to maintain existing and con
templated facilities around the country. Technical aspects 
of the decentralization effort will require the establish
ment and staffing of laboratories for monitoring water 
quality and the operation of the sewage treatment plants. 
While decisions on tariff levels and financial administra
tion of OSE would continue to be made in the capital-
based headquarters, the program will provide for delega
tion of most aspects of operation, maintenance and 
marketing of the water-supply and sewerage systems to 
four regional branches, in addition to the Montevideo op
erations department. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 

250 
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Improvements in Technical Education 

Financing: $28 million from the OC 

In an effort to bring the quality of technical and voca
tional education into line with the needs of the country's 
productive sectors, this program, to be executed by the 
Consejo de Educación Técnico-Profesional, CETP, will consist 
of three main parts. A first component will seek to mod
ernize CETP itself, concentrating on a transformation of 
its regulatory apparatus and organization. CETP proce
dures for hiring teachers and the criteria by which indi
vidual schools will participate in the agency's programs 
will be reviewed. Further, operations involving collabo
ration with CETP's parent agency, the Administración 
Nacional de Educación Pública, as well as C E T P ' s own bud
geting and cost recovery mechanisms, will be reviewed 
and modified. The reforms will also undertake a consoli
dation of CETP's facilities; estimates imply a reduction 
in the number of schools involved in the "post-basic" edu
cation system will decrease to approximately 40 and that 
the number of hours dedicated to the teaching of a se
lected group of courses whose relevance to the needs of 
employers has been identified as requiring modification 
will decline by 55 percent. 

A second component of the operation will focus on im
proving the quality of education, principally through a 
series of curriculum changes, the training and updating 
of the system's corps of teachers and the purchase of 
books (1,800 per school), computers, furniture and teach
ing aids sufficient to equip 40 libraries for the post-basic-
level schools. The third component will upgrade the 
system's infrastructure, including the rehabilitation, re
placement or building of a total of 15 schools. 
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FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Low-Income Farmers 

Four grants, one from the Swedish Fund for the Financ
ing of Small Projects and three from the Special Fund of 
the European Community for the Financing of Small 
Productive Projects will be used to set up revolving credit 
funds to benefit low-income dairy and crop farmers. 
Overall, an estimated 555 families will benefit from ac
cess to credit, to be used primarily for the purchase of 
fixed assets and the expansion of working capital. By 
means of a series of parallel technical cooperation grants 
ranging in size from roughly $55,000 to $100,000, the in
termediary institutions will be able to hire specialists to 
provide technical expertise to beneficiary farmers and 
their families in an effort to increase outputs and improve 
living standards in the Departments of Durazno, Flores, 
Florida and Rio Negro. 

the national Bureau of Statistics and Census in modern
izing the country's socioeconomic data information sys
tems. IDB financing will be used principally for training 
and advising employees of the federal agencies involved 
in the program, acquisition and operation of computer 
equipment, and refinements in the country's overall ca
pacity to conduct advanced polls and surveys in a variety 
of fields where public policy research depends upon the 
availability of reliable and timely socioeconomic data. 
The reforms undertaken will serve as the basis for staff
ing and equipping the National Statistical System, which 
is due to come on line in the near future as Uruguay's 
new and coordinated source for such information. The 
United Nations ' Economic Commission for Latin 
America and the Caribbean will assist in the implemen
tation of the program. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for the National Environment Directorate 

The Dirección Nacional del Medio Ambiente, DINAMA, is 
housed within the Ministry of Housing, Land Manage
ment and the Environment (MVOTMA) and is charged 
with implementing the national Plan for Environmental 
Action (Plan de Acción Ambiental, PAA), a program financed 
in part by a previous TC grant from the Bank. Begin
ning with the approval of a comprehensive environmen
tal statute by the country's legislature, this program will 
enable DINAMA to undertake thorough environmental 
impact assessments (EIAs) on a routine basis for the first 
time. The agency's technical staff will receive training in 
the form of six-to-ten week courses in a variety of fields 
and techniques, with particular emphasis on the gauging 
of mitigation and impact prevention costs, cost-benefit ac
counting and other quant i ta t ive methodologies. 
DINAMA will also design the country's first environmen
tal licensing and control system, to be implemented by 
Uruguay's municipalities upon completion and enact
ment of enabling legislation at the federal level, and a sys
tem for classifying the impacts of projects that is compat
ible with the rankings used by the IDB and other national 
and international agencies. The IDB financing for the 
operation consists of a grant in the amount of S1.4 mil
lion from the FSO. 

URUGUAY: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Planning and Reform 
Transportation and Communications 
Environmental and Public Health 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Urban Development 
Education, Science and Technology 
Energy 
Industry and Mining 
Preinvestment 
Export Financing 
Tourism 
Other 

Total 

$260,402 
197,505 
178,850 
172.836 
124,082 
67,455 
63,284 
34,767 

9,153 
8,940 
8.692 

103,000 

$1,228,966 

$486,196 
454,759 
270,312 
265.245 
173,301 
139,186 
162,009 
138,536 
16,014 
12,771 
17,091 

143,001 

$2,278,421 

Improvements to the Socioeconomic Data 
Information System 

A $775,000 grant from the FSO will enable the Presiden
tial Office of Planning and Budget to work jointly with 
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VENEZUELA 
T h e focus of Bank activity in Venezuela in 1993 was to 
assist the authorities in the financing of investments to im
prove the access of low-income groups to public services 
a n d h igher -p roduc t iv i ty e m p l o y m e n t . T h e Bank has 
m a d e 58 loans totaling $3,581 million to Venezuela. Cu 
mulative disbursements totaled $1,694 million. In 1993, 
the Bank approved three loans. 

LOANS 

Caruachi Hydroe l ec tr i c P o w e r Project 

Financing: $500 million from the OC, with parallel 
financing of $60 million from the Nordic 
Investment Bank and $50 million from 
the Corporación Andina de Fomento 
(CAF) 

This $2.1 billion project, which includes the largest single 
financing in the history of the Bank, is intended to har
ness the water resources of the lower Caroni River south 
of C iudad G u a y a n a in the eastern port ion of the coun
try. At the same t ime, the operat ion will support the Ven
ezuelan g o v e r n m e n t ' s ongo ing reform of the electric 
power sector as a whole a n d the two executors of the 
present project—the C.V.G. Electrificación del Caroni C.A., 
EDELCA, a subsidiary of the publicly owned Corporación 
Venezolana de Guayana, and the Fundación para el Desarrollo 
del Servicio Eléctrico, FUNDELEC—in particular. 

T h e resources that the Bank is providing are to be dis
bursed over a period of seven years and will partially fi
nance the construction of a power plant with an installed 
capacity of 2,160 M W located 59 km downstream and 
22 km u p s t r e a m , r e s p e c t i v e l y f rom t h e G u r i a n d 
M a c a g u a hydroelectr ic facilities. In addi t ion to access 
roads and camps, the main structures to be built include 
the following: a 470-meter ma in d a m with integrated 
powerhouses, two transition dams, a 360-meter concrete 
gravity d a m , rockfill c losure d a m s of 900 a n d 4 ,200 
meters, a spillway with nine spans and surface gates, 12 
turbines, 12 60-Hz generators and six transformers, a res
ervoir encompassing 238 km2, and a switchyard. T h e sup
port for the sectoral reform p r o g r a m will take the form of 
institutional s t rengthening for F U N D E L E C and will be 
applied specifically toward work in the areas of p lant 
m a n a g e m e n t a n d m a i n t e n a n c e , the deve lopment of a 
regulatory framework and planning for the expansion of 
generat ing a n d transmission facilities. 

Befitting a project of this size, environmental issues 
have assumed considerable impor tance: E D E L C A will 
work with Venezuela ' s Ministerio del Ambiente y Recursos 
Naturales Renovables, MARNR and the C V G in meet ing the 
requirements leading to the issuance of the relevant per-

YEARLYLENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 
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mits and authorizat ions prior to the first disbursement of 
the loan. T h e agency will submit reports on the progress 
achieved under the Environmenta l M a n a g e m e n t Plan at 
s ix -month intervals t h r o u g h o u t the execu t ion of the 
project. Mitigating measures, including a plan for the re
sett lement of approximate ly 1,000 persons, have been 
grouped into 13 separate projects. 

M o d e r n i z a t i o n of Bas ic Educat ion 

Financing: $125 million from the OC 

T h e three components of this p rogram will focus on im
proving opportunities and achievement within the first six 
grades, which account for 85 percent (over three million 
students) of the total enrol lment in Venezuela ' s public 
educat ion system. Improved quality will be addressed by 
a s u b p r o g r a m prov id ing t ra in ing for teachers , school 
principals and supervisors; acquiring teaching materials 
for classroom use and books for libraries and the renova
tion of a p p r o x i m a t e l y 2 ,100 schools t h r o u g h o u t the 
country's 23 states. An institutional s trengthening com
ponent of the p rog ram will emphasize the decentraliza
tion of both the executing agency, the federal Ministerio de 
Educación and individual state depar tments of educat ion 
(an activity to be financed by a parallel loan from the 
World Bank), leading to the eventual assumption of vir
tually all administrative responsibilities by school commu
nities at the local level. A third, smaller subprogram will 
finance studies in the area of higher education, address
ing questions such as the reform of the university system 
and financial planning, administrative efficiency and or
ganization and management . 

In the training program, roughly 100,000 teachers will 
part icipate in workshops focusing on specific fields of in
struction, such as foreign languages, mathemat ics , natu
ral sciences, social studies and environmental education. 
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The teaching materials to be purchased will include, in 
addition to books for as many as 2,800 separate libraries, 
supplies to support an "interactive" approach to learn
ing, such as microscopes, maps and drafting equipment. 
Loan resources will also be used for the purchase of desks 
and other furniture for the schools. 

Youth Job Training Program 

Financing: $15 million from the OC 

This program, the first of its kind in Venezuela, is aimed 
at matching training programs for younger workers lack
ing employment opportunities with a source of labor for 
sectors of the national economy where demand for semi
skilled and skilled workers is high. Job-training agencies, 
to be hired by the Ministerio de la Familia, will offer courses 
for up to 20,000 young men and women from low-in
come households in the metropolitan Caracas area. For 
each enrollee, participation will involve approximately 
330 hours of classroom instruction and up to 11 weeks of 
practical, hands-on "traineeships" at selected private-sec
tor companies. The classroom instruction will consist of 
academic counseling, designed to improve the functional 
literacy of participants new to the job market; personnel 
development, concentrating on communications skills, 
occupational safety and the assumption of individual re
sponsibility; and employment counseling. 

The traineeships will be supervised by the consultant 
job-training agencies but will be based on the premises of 
the firms, who must certify, in writing, a willingness to 
take on the trainee during his or her classroom instruc
tion period. Classroom curricula, accordingly, will be tai
lored to reflect the skills anticipated by the labor market 
and individual firms. This arrangement seeks to comple
ment the work of Venezuela 's Instituto Nacional de 
Cooperación Educativa, INCE, a state agency active since 
1959, and the private, nonprofit Asociación Venezolana de 
Educación Católica, AVEC, founded in 1945, both of which 
have offered vocational training for young people in the 
productive sectors of the country's economy. In sum, the 
program will help training and educational agencies to 
improve their efficiency by adapting their services to the 
changing needs of the job market—while at the same 
time encouraging greater private-sector participation in 
such activities. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Small-Scale Farmers 
and Microentrepreneurs 

Five loans of $500,000, each accompanied by a technical 
cooperation grant of up to $155,000 each, will enable the 
Asociaciones Civiles para el Apoyo de la Microempresa, ACAM 
located in Barcelona, Lara, Maracaibo, San Cristóbal 

and Valencia to make loans to 1,750 small-scale farm
ers and microentrepreneurs and to conduct training 
courses and individual on-site visits. In so doing the pro
gram aims at creating a total of up to 700 new jobs, many 
to be performed by women and by young entrants to the 
labor force. Loans made by each of the Assocations will 
allow borrowers to finance fixed assets and establish 
working capital while also furnishing technical assistance 
in productive techniques and other areas. Beneficiaries 
will be low-income families in the western states of 
Táchira, Zulia, Lara and Carabobo, and the central-east
ern state of Anzoátegui. The informal sector in Venezu
ela constitutes approximately 40 percent of the country's 
urban work force; typically, the net worth of a microen
trepreneur is $5,000, while his monthly sales average 
roughly $700. 

Credit and Training for Productive-Sector 
Microentrepreneurs and Small-Scale Farmers 

Local-currency loans of up to $500,000 each, together 
with technical cooperation grants totaling $1,225,000 will 
be made available to the Fundación Eugenio Mendoza, FEM, 
a nonprofit, nongovernmental organization founded in 
1952 and headquartered in Caracas, and seven civic as
sociations—Banauge (operating in the capital region), 
Uniandes (active in the state of Mérida), Nuevo Amanecer (in 
the state of Zulia), Con Centro Occidente (in Lara), La Casa 
del Nuevo Pueblo (in Carabobo), Centro El Paragüero (in 
Anzoátegui) and El Portachuelo (in Aragua). Each of these 
intermediaries, among the estimated 60 such organiza
tions at work in the informal sector in Venezuela, will 
serve a portion of the country's population of 2.7 million 
microentrepreneurs and small-scale farmers by providing 
financings to applicants with approved business plans, for 
activities adjudged by the intermediaries to give promise 
of job creation and to have no deleterious effects on the 
environment. The technical cooperation grants will be 
used by the seven civic associations for strengthening their 
capacity to provide advice to beneficiaries and by FEM 
to upgrade its management information system. 

VENEZUELA: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy 
Planning and Reform 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Transportation and Communications 
Industry and Mining 
Environmental and Public Health 
Education, Science and Technology 
Tourism 
Urban Development 
Preinvestment 
Export Financing 

$903,755 
712,271 
657,596 
392,343 
304,295 
259.413 
221,391 

75,000 
31,871 
21,923 

1,404 

34.031,900 
1,415,000 
1,803,075 
1,490,600 
1,176,594 

651,596 
472,626 
150,000 
94,450 
44,694 
2,006 

Total $3,581,262 $11,332,541 
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REGIONAL 
YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In millions of dollars) 

T h e Bank has m a d e 46 loans totaling $2,033 million for 
regional projects. Cumulat ive disbursements total $1,480 
million. In 1993, the Bank approved two loans. 

LOANS 

Support for the Corporación Andina de Fomento 
(CAF) 

Financing: $200 million from the OC 

As the subregional multilateral development bank financ
ing projects in the Andean region—Bolivia, Colombia , 
Ecuador , Peru and Venezue l a—the A n d e a n Develop
ment Corpora t ion has been a par tner of the IDB since 
the former's founding in 1968 a n d the initiation of its 
lending activities two years later. This loan marks a de
par ture in the Bank's policy with regard to support ing 
subregional lending agencies. Past loans have generally 
provided resources to finance specific projects on a case-
by-case basis, usually in physical infrastructure and sup
po r t ing the economic in tegra t ion of the countr ies in
volved. This operation, by contrast, is designed to provide 
broad-based institutional support , enabling the C A F to 
apply the loan resources to any of its projects, without 
separate accounting, so long as they have been found to 
be consistent with and complementary to the IDB's own 
development activities in the subregión. 

T h e CAF ' s cur ren t emphases include an increased 
emphasis on private-sector lending, the encouragement 
of efforts to modernize the productive sectors of its m e m 
ber countries ' economies, the development and diversifi
cation of capital markets, assistance for small businesses 
and microenterprise. In the macroeconomic sphere, the 
CAF's strategy has stressed privatization, competitiveness 
and integration. T h e IDB's support for the C A F is par t 
of a b roader financial p lan designed to accommoda te a 
lending p rogram of approximately $1.7 billion over the 
next four years, an amoun t that implies an annual growth 
rate in the volume of its financing of nearly 19 percent. 
As a complement to the IDB's share in financing such a 
p rogram, the C A F plans to expand its borrowings on in
ternational capital markets over the next three years. 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l Pro tec t ion and R e s e t t l e m e n t 
at Yacyretá 

Financing: $130 million from the OC, with $59 
million in cofinancing from the IBRD 

T h e IDB and World Bank have provided funding for the 
Yacyretá Hydroelectric facility on several occasions over 
the life of the project. This financing is intended to serve 
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as the final such operat ion prior to the start-up of the first 
generat ing unit in late 1994. Because of the need to ex
ecute the environmental and resettlement elements of the 
entire project to the satisfaction of all parties involved— 
local communit ies and the governments of Argentina and 
Paraguay—these additional resources will help the execu
tor, the Entidad Binacional Yacyretá, EBY, to implement 
these complex and sensitive aspects of the Yacyretá pro
gram. 

T h e benefits of the p rog ram have been evident for 
many yea r s—among them that residents of Buenos Aires 
and other end-users will be ensured a safe and reason
ably-priced supply of energy. T h e purposes of the present 
loans, however, apar t from enhancing the already-recog
nized benefits, are to address potential negative impacts. 
Accordingly, given the need to design comprehensive so
lutions for each of the side effects of the flooding needed 
to create the d a m a n d reservoir, the scale of the project is 
large: over 50,000 people are to be resettled through the 
construction of more than 10,000 units. Similarly, as part 
of the enactment of the mitigation plan accompanying the 
creation of the 165,000 hectare lake along the P a r a n á 
River, t ransportat ion and communicat ions infrastructure 
is to be relocated. T h e affected populat ion will also be 
provided access, through a social assistance p rogram, to 
pr imary health care facilities, basic educat ion and adult 
l i teracy ( including env i ronmen ta l awareness) , worker 
training, and employment opportunities. Particular atten
tion will be paid to the reconstitution of the indigenous 
Mby-á communi ty , which numbers ten families, and to 
p rov id ing income oppor tun i t i e s for ru ra l subsistence 
farmers. 
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TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Agricultural Research Support Programs 

A series of grants from the FSO, corresponding to the 
Bank's support for agricultural research in 1992 and to
taling $7 million, was provided to four international re
search centers: the International Center for Maize and 
Wheat Improvement (CIMMYT), the International Cen
ter for Tropical Agriculture (CIAT), the International 
Potato Center (CIP) and the International Service for 
National Agricultural Research (ISNAR), to conduct re
search, training and technical assistance activities in their 
respective fields. The research will concentrate on the 
production of potato crops resistant to late blight; the 
training of agricultural science instructors involving 
beans, yucca and rice; the development of agropasture 
systems for savannahs with acid soils; and the strength
ening of monitoring and evaluation of agricultural re
search activities in the region. 

A second package of grants from the FSO, for 
$7,345,000, is being channeled through six international 
research centers and two subregional agricultural re
search networks and constitutes the IDB's support for ag
ricultural research in 1993. Of that total, $3.2 million 
will be applied in support of the core budgets of CIAT, 
CIMMYT and the CIP. The balance of the program will 
be directed toward research, training and technology 
transfer undertaken by the International Board for Plant 
Genetics Resources (IBPGR), the International Center 
for Research in Agroforestry (ICRAF), the International 
Food Policy Research Institute (IFPRI), and the two co
operative agricultural technology research programs— 
one for the Andean subregión (PROCIANDINO) and 
the other for the South American tropics 
(PROCITROPICOS). 

Support for the Establishment of MERCOSUR 

The parties to the Treaty of Asunción, widely known as 
the Southern Common Market or MERCOSUR, will 
use a grant from the FSO in the amount of $4,050,000 
to obtain the technical support needed to harmonize their 
macroeconomic and sectoral policies. The program, di
vided into separate "modules," will be executed jointly 
by one of the Treaty's executing agencies, known as the 
MERCOSUR Group, and agencies of the governments 
of Paraguay and Uruguay. Module A will involve efforts, 
during the initial phases of the implementation of 
MERCOSUR, to harmonize the four countries' external 
economic and legal frameworks, giving particular atten
tion to the compatibility of environmental standards. 
Module B will focus on strengthening the negotiating ca
pacity of the two smaller signatories, Paraguay and Uru
guay, especially in such areas as their harmonization of 

policies involving exchange rates, technical standards, 
and other sector-specific fields. 

Start-up Funding for the Technical Secretariat of 
the Indigenous Peoples Fund 

This one-time grant of $2.5 million from the FSO will 
permit the Indigenous Peoples Fund, a facility founded 
in 1992 with 19 countries of the region as charter mem
bers and headquartered in La Paz, Bolivia, to establish 
an operating structure, hiring personnel and consultants 
for that purpose. The financing will allow the Fund to set 
up a permanent mechanism to assist indigenous peoples 
with the preparation and presentation of project propos
als, as well as the identification of sources of financing for 
those projects. At present, the Fund is receiving capital 
subscriptions and other contributions from donors and 
member countries to be used direcdy for funding projects. 
In particular, the early initiatives of the organization will 
include technical and financial support for the prepara
tion of plans and projects by local and national indig
enous peoples' groups many in fields related to institu
tional s t rengthening and the preservation of the 
environment. Together with outside donors and the 
above-mentioned groups, member countries will partici
pate in working sessions to define strategies for 
ethnodevelopment and to identify sources of financing to 
underpin the execution of programs in this portfolio. 

Scholarships for Public Policy Studies 

By providing $1,850,000 on a nonreimbursable basis 
from the FSO, the Bank will cover the cost of studies for 
60 of a total of 75 students at the University of Chile, 
which in turn will coordinate its activities with those of 
CIEPLAN, the Latin American Economic Research Cor
poration, located in Santiago. The focus of the courses of 
study will be the modernization of government in the re
gion, a broad topic to include specific emphases on im
proved efficiency in the delivery of services by the public 
sector, privatization, and the relationships between the 
State, civil society, and the private sector. Participants in 
the portion of the program to be financed by Bank re
sources will be drawn from 25 countries in the region, 
with a preference for candidates from the least-developed 
countries, and pre-selected by the executors' Master's 
Program Academic and Administrative Committee. The 
IDB-sponsored students, in addition to another 15 stu
dents from Chile whose expenses are to be paid from lo
cal counterpart resources, will enroll in a curriculum, 
leading to the award of a Master's degree, that includes 
seven "core" courses, four elective courses, and a thesis. 
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LIMA. PERU Edgar R. Garcia, 
a researcher from Guatemala, 
works with Use Balbo, a special
ist at the International Potato 
Center (CIP). Under a $1.5 mil
lion regional technical cooperation 
grant approved in 1988, agricul
tural researchers from Colombia, 
Guatemala and Venezuela received 
fellowships for study in Lima. The 
Bank funded additional research at 
the Center via two additional 
grants in 1993. 

Inter-American Program in Applied 
Macroeconomics (PIMA), Phase II 

The Bank's grant of $1,690,000 from the FSO, supple
mented by funds from the governments of participating 
member countries from Latin America and the Carib
bean and from the Pontifical Catholic University of Chile 
(UCC) will enable up to 115 students to undertake course-
work and pursue degrees at UCC's Institute of Econom
ics. The project will consist of three sub-programs—a se
ries of "preparatory" seminars, a single-semester seminar 
in applied macroeconomics and quantitative methodolo
gies, and technical assistance courses in economics for of
ficials of public-sector institutions. As in the successful first 
stage of the PIMA program, begun with the help of an 
IDB financing approved in 1990, the project is designed 
to provide mid- and senior-level officials with background 
and training to refine development policies, emphasizing 
sustainability and issues of equitable growth in each of the 
Bank's borrowing member countries. 

Training for Local Governments 

Through a program to be administered by the Latin 
American Center for Training and Development of Lo
cal Governments (CELCADEL), the Latin American 
chapter of the International Union of Local Authorities 
(IULA), this grant of $1,570,000 from the SPTF will en

able six countries in the region to further their ongoing 
efforts in the areas of decentralization and the strength
ening of municipalities. The executing agency, based in 
Quito, Ecuador, will support local urban policy reforms 
and the refinement of national programs in Bolivia, Costa 
Rica, Colombia, Ecuador, Peru and Venezuela, includ
ing the improvement of training for municipalities and 
institutional development programs. Specific activities in
clude international seminars and workshops, the prepa
ration and dissemination of training materials for use by 
national and local authorities and community groups, 
and direct collaboration with national training institutes 
in each of the six countries involved, through the use of 
advisory services. 

Social Sector Development in Central America 
and Panama (Ruta Social) 

This grant of $1.5 million from the FSO will be comple
mented by $3 million in financing from the Japanese 
Trust Fund in the World Bank and an additional $1.5 
million from the UNDP. Its principal purpose is to estab
lish an ad-hoc, high-level regional technical assistance 
unit, known as RUTA Social, to be charged with assisting 
governments with policy formulation, sectoral adjustment 
and the development of projects in the social sectors for 
each of the six intended beneficiary countries. The project 
preparation work itself will consist of feasibility studies, 
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institutional strengthening for agencies working in the fi
nancing of social sector programs at the national level and 
coordination with other regional agencies and programs. 
As with previous subregional initiatives the Bank has fi
nanced in Central America (such as the PRADIC pro
gram approved in 1992), the rationale for the regional 
emphasis is to coordinate and harmonize policies for the 
sake of achieving economies of scale and sustainable de
velopment. In this case, the coordination of antipoverty 
policies, an area increasingly emphasized by the IDB 
throughout Latin America and the Caribbean, is in
tended to yield lasting results in terms of human resource 
development and economic integration. 

Training Program in Environmental Management 

The Inter-American Center for Development and Envi
ronmental Lands and Water Research (CIDIAT), head
quartered in Mérida, Venezuela, will execute this pro
gram, financed by two grants totaling $1,480,000. The 
program will provide advanced and in some cases spe
cialized training to public officials, academics and lead
ers of nongovernmental organizations who have decision
making responsibilities in the areas of environmental 
policy and natural resource management throughout the 
region. Over a three-year period, CIDIAT will offer a 
Master's degree-level course of study in conjunction with 
the University of the Andes, also located in Mérida, and 
will coordinate subregional seminars in Bolivia, Guate
mala and Jamaica with particular emphasis on the re
quirements for the preparation of sound and comprehen
sive environmental analysis. In all, the program will 
provide training for an estimated 505 participants, many 
of them from the region's least developed countries. 

TC/Funds Scholarship Program 

Two grants, one for the equivalent of $780,000 from the 
FSO and another for the equivalent of $570,000 from the 
Swedish Fund for Consulting Services and Training Ac
tivities, will be used to provide scholarships for approxi
mately 150 technical and professional staff from public-
sector agencies in the Bank's borrowing member 
countries for study in Israel, Spain and Sweden. In addi
tion, program resources will be used to stage 20 training 
courses in Latin America and the Caribbean (four at the 
subregional level), with the support of instructors from 
those three countries. The 15-month program covers a 
broad range of areas, including agriculture, health, labor, 
the environment and rural and community development. 
It has been established in conjunction with the Center for 
International Cooperation at Israel's Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs (MASHAV), Spain's Ministerio de Agricultura, Pesca 
y Alimentación, MAPA, and Sweden's Board for Investment 
and Technical Support (BITS). 

Strengthening of the Education Sector 

As executor of this program, the Santiago-based Centro de 
Investigación y Desarrollo de la Educación, CIDE, a specialized 
agency founded in 1964, will operate in 17 countries of 
the region, helping public-sector, nongovernmental and 
academic authorities to perform and disseminate research 
on policy options in the field of education. One subpro
gram will finance the acquisition of computer equipment 
(the basic package made up of one computer, a printer 
and two microfiche readers, along with books and other 
resources) and facilitate on-line communication among 
the above-named groups. A second component, consist
ing of a program to train education policy analysts in the 
use of the automated equipment and databases, will lead 
to the development of national- and regional-level exper
tise available to high-ranking government officials. The 
third component will consolidate the national affiliates of 
the Red Latinoamericana de Información y Documentación en 
Educación, REDUC, a network linking documentation cen
ters throughout the region that publishes research ab
stracts twice annually, instituting symposia among aca
demic, community leaders and policy officials. Bank 
financing for the program consists of a $1,270,000 grant 
from the FSO. 

Strengthening for Supreme Audit Institutions 
in the Caribbean Countries 

A grant of $600,000 from the FSO to the Caribbean Or
ganization of Supreme Audit Institutions (CAROSAI) 
will enable the staffs of the Controller General and gov
ernment accounting offices in 19 countries to receive 
training and to benefit from the institution of a new and 
permanent course for entry-level personnel in such agen
cies. Middle and senior management officials from the 
audit agencies will participate in workshops offered by a 
specialized unit within INTOSAI, the worldwide organi
zation with which CAROSAI is affiliated. Participants 
will focus on topics such as computer auditing, audit man
agement and supervision and performance auditing, and 
will subsequently conduct seminars for their respective 
staffs on the same subjects. As part of a second compo
nent of the operation, the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), based in Great Brit
ain, will assess the educational needs of Caribbean su
preme audit agencies and other public-sector institutions 
and will issue a study recommending qualification stan
dards for technical accountancy, as well as a legal and 
institutional framework for implementing a program to 
ensure their attainment. 
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Support for Financial Services for 
Women Microentrepreneurs 

A grant from the SPTF for the equivalent of $526,000, 
supplemented by a grant in the amount of $50,000 from 
the FSO, will establish individual research centers in six 
countries—Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, the Dominican 
Republic, Ecuador and Jamaica—designed to identify 
and promote policies and practices that expand women's 
access to credit and savings. The program, which will also 
receive funding from the United Nations Fund for 
Women (UNIFEM), will study institutions such as credit 
unions, agricultural banks, savings and loans, and 
microenterprise credit programs administered by com
mercial banks, and governmental and nongovernmental 
agencies. The project will also include the staging of a se
ries of workshops, to be attended by representatives from 
each of the IDB's borrowing member countries, geared 
toward bringing access to credit for women engaged in 
small businesses to the attention of a variety of audiences, 
including bankers, businesses and community leaders. 

REGIONAL: DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-1993 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Total Cost of 
Sector Amount the Projects 

Energy $1,084,640 $7,228,418 
Transportation and Communications 138.021 248,216 
Environmental and Public Health 130,000 731,600 
Planning and Reform 80,131 515,000 
Education, Science and Technology 65,892 105,410 
Industry and Mining 56,371 211,615 
Preinvestment 26,484 17,430 
Agriculture and Fisheries 10,288 49,430 
Urban Development 5,465 10,000 
Other 435,253 1,275,999 

Total $2,032,545 $10,393,118 
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STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 19931 

Ordinary Capital 

Country PROJECT 

Amount 
(Expressed in 

Loan Mil l ions of 
N u m b e r U.S. Dollars) 

ARGENTINA NATIONAL ROAD CORRIDORS PROGRAM 
TECHNOLOGICAL MODERNIZATION PROGRAM 
SANITATION AND FLOOD CONTROL IN THE RECONQUISTA 

RIVER BASIN 
MULTISECTORAL GLOBAL CREDIT PROGRAM 
MULTISECTORAL PREINVESTMENT PROGRAM 
DEVELOPMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL INSTITUTIONS 

(795/OC-AR) 
(802/OC-AR) 
(797/OC-AR) 

(798/OC-AR) 
(740/OC-AR) 
(768/OC-AR) 

340 
95 

150 

300 
24 

5 

BARBADOS ROADS AND HIGHWAY SAFETY PROGRAM IN BRIDGETOWN 
TAX ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT 

OF PUBLIC EXPENDITURES 

(755/OC-BA) 
(766/OC-BA) 

18.5 

BOLIVIA CREDIT PROGRAM FOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT AND 
SANITATION, PRODURSA II 

(777/OC-BO) 57.1 

BRAZIL MODERNIZATION OF THE FERNÃO DIAS HIGHWAY (767/OC-BR) 267 
HIGHWAY CORRIDORS IN THE STATE OF BAHIA (772/OC-BR) 147 
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT OF THE GUAÍBA WATERSHED (776/OC-BR) 110.2 
SANITATION PROGRAM FOR THE GUANABARA BAY BASIN (782/OC-BR) 350 

CHILE HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (771/OC-CH) 50 

COLOMBIA NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM 
GLOBAL MICROENTERPRISE CREDIT PROGRAM 
MEDELLÍN RIVER SANITATION PROJECT 
PORCE II HYDROELECTRIC POWER PLANT PROJECT 

(774/OC-CO) 
(791/OC-CO) 
(800/OC-CO) 
(792/OC-CO) 

58 
30 

130 
328 

COSTA RICA PUBLIC SECTOR REFORM PROGRAM 
INVESTMENT SECTOR AND MULTISECTORAL CREDIT PROGRAM 
ELECTRIC POWER DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM. STAGE III 

(739/OC-CR) 80 
(742-43/OC-CR) 100 & 70 

(796/OC-CR) 320 

DOMINICAN FINANCIAL SECTOR REFORM 
REPUBLIC 

(773/OC-DR) 102 

EL SALVADOR SOCIAL INVESTMENT FUND, PHASE II 
GLOBAL CREDIT FOR MICROENTERPRISE 

(765/OC-ES) 
(780/OC-ES) 

25 
16 

GUATEMALA M< )DERNIZATION OF THE FINANCIAL SYSTEM (783-84/OC-GU) 72 & 202 

HONDURAS NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT IN THE 
EL CAJÓN RESERVOIR WATERSHED 

(787/OC-HO! 3.7 

JAMAICA SUPPORT FOR PRIVATE-SECTOR ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (738/OC-JA) 57.5 

Variable interest rate on outstanding balance is established semi-annually. 
Interest rate charges partially defrayed by Intermediate Financing Facility. 
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STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1993' 
Ordinary Capital (continued) 

Country PROJECT 

Amount 
(Expressed in 

Loan Mil l ions o f 
N u m b e r U.S. Dollars) 

MEXICO MODERNIZATION OF FEEDER HIGHWAYS AND RURAL ROADS 
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR TOURISM 
SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM 

(752/OC-ME) 180 
(781/OC-ME) 150 
(804/OC-ME 150 &30 3 

&001/SPQ.-ME) 

NICARAGUA REHABILITATION AND IMPROVEMENT OF RURAI. ROADS 
CREDIT AND INSTITUTIONAL STRENGTHENING 

FOR "NON-CONVENTIONAL" FINANCIAL ORGANIZATIONS 
STRENGTHENING OF AGRICULTURAL SERVICES 

(756/OC-NI) 362 

(789/OC-NI) 23.62 

(801/OC-NI) 7.252 

PANAMA ROAD REPAIR AND ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM 
HEALTH CARE REFORM PROGRAM 
INTER-OCEANIC REGION DEVELOPMENT STUDIES 

(769/OC-PN) 
(803/OC-PN) 
(778/OC-PN) 

180 
422 

8.42 

PARAGUAY NATIONAL RURAL ROADS PROGRAM 
IMPROVEMENTS IN PRIMARY EDUCATION 
SUPPORT FOR STRENGTHENING MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENTS 

(744-45/OC-PR) 30.9 & 102 

(770/OC-PR) 6.3 
(793-94/OC-PR) 102 & 4.4 

PERU STRENGTHENING OF HEALTH SERVICES 
ELECTRIC POWER TRANSMISSION AND ELECTRICITY 

SUBSECTOR REFORM PROGRAM 
SUPPORT FOR THE FONDO NACIONAL DE COMPENSACIÓN Y 

DESARROLLO SOCIAL, FONCODES 

(741/OC-PE) 
(790/OC-PE) 

(806/OC-PE) 

68 
15 

100 

TRINIDAD INVESTMENT SECTOR REFORM PROGRAM 
AND TOBAGO MULTISECTORAL PREINVESTMENT PROGRAM, PHASE II 

(758-59/OC-TT) 65 & 15-
(764/OC-TT) 10.5-

URUGUAY WATER AND SEWERAGE PROGRAM 
IMPROVEMENTS IN TECHNICAL EDUCATION 

(785/OC-UR) 45 
(799/OC-UR) 28 

VENEZUELA MODERNIZATION OF BASIC EDUCATION 
CARUACHI HYDROELECTRIC POWER PROJECT 
YOUTH JOB TRAINING PROGRAM 

(779/OC-VE) 125 
(788/OC-VE) 500 
(805/OC-VE) 15 

REGIONAL SUPPORT FOR THE CORPORACIÓN ANDINA DE FOMENTO 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND RESETTLEMENT AT YACYRETÁ 

(786/OC-RG) 200 
(760/OC-RG) 130 

' Variable interest rate on outstanding balance is established semi-annually. 
2 Interest rale charges partially defrayed by Intermediate Financing Facility. 
3 Quincentennial Fund 
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STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS' 
Fund for Special Operations 

Country PROJECT 

Amount 
(Expressed in 

Loan Mil l ions of 
N u m b e r U.S. Dollars) 

ARGENTINA DEVELOPMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL INSTITUTIONS (907/SF-AR) 25 

BOLIVIA INVESTMENT PROGRAM FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF CAMPESINO COMMUNITIES 

CREDIT PROGRAM FOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT AND 
SANITATION, PRODURSAII 

(901/SF-BO) 12.5 

(914/SF-BO) 6.9 

BRAZIL ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT OF THE GUAÍBA WATERSHED (911 /SF-BR) 
SANITATION PROGRAM FOR THE GUANABARA BAY BASIN (916/SF-BR) 

22.1 
50 

COLOMBIA NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM (910/SF-CO) 23 

DOMINICAN 
REPUBLIC 

AGRICULTURAL DEVELOPMENT (903/SF-DR) 111 

ECUADOR COASTAL RESOURCES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 
MULTISECTORAL PREINVESTMENT PROGRAM 
MODERNIZATION OF TAX COLLECTION 
STRENGTHENING PUBLIC INVESTMENT PLANNING 

(913/SF-EC) 
(919/SF-EC) 
(904/SF-EC) 
(900/SF-EC) 

14.9 
12 
3.5 
2.0 

EL SALVADOR SOCIAL INVESTMENT FUND. PHASE II 
GLOBAL CREDIT FOR MICROENTERPRISE 

(905/SF-ES) 
(915/SF-ES) 

35 

GUATEMALA MODERNIZATION OF THE FINANCIAL SYSTEM (917/SF-GU) 40 

GUYANA WATER SUPPLY .AND SEWERAGE IN GEORGETOWN 
SOCIAL IMPACT AMELIORATION PROGRAMME, SIMAP 

(909/SF-GY) 
(912/SF-GY) 

13.5 
13.5 

HONDURAS MULTISECTORAL PREINVESTMENT PROGRAM 
NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT IN THE EL CAJÓN 

RESERVOIR WATERSHED 
STRENGTHENING CUSTOMS ADMINISTRATION 

(906/SF-HO) 
(918/SF-HO) 

(899/SF-HO) 

8 
16.7 

1.4 

NICARAGUA REHABILITATION AND IMPROVEMENT OF RURAL ROADS 
STRENGTHENING OF AGRICULTURAL SERVICES 

(902/SF-NI) 
(921/SF-NI) 

10 
8.75 

PARAGUAY IMPROVEMENTS IN PRIMARY EDUCATION 
SUPPORT FOR STRENGTHENING MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENTS 

(908/SF-PR) 
(920/SF-PR) 

46.5 
1.8 

' Interest rates on Fund for Special Operations loans vary from I to 4 percent, depending on the stage of development of the country and the nature of lhe project. 
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NEAR VALENCIA, VENEZUELA. Installation of two-me
ter diameter steel pipe as part of a system for distributing water 
treated at a plant on the Pao River. A $153.4 million Bank 
loan approved in 1987 aims at supplying drinking water for 
an estimated 3.5 million people in the country's central region, 
many of them living in the cities of Valencia and Maracay, by 
the year 2000. 
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POPULATION AND GROWTH RATES, 1960-93 TABLE 1 

Country 

1960 1970 1980 1985 1990 

(In thousands) 

1991 1992 

Average Growth Rates 

1993p 1971-80 1981-90 1990-93 

(In percent) 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

20,616 
110 
231 
91 

3,428 

23.962 
170 
239 
120 

4,325 

28.237 
210 
249 
148 

5.355 

30.331 
233 
253 
167 

6,018 

32.322 
255 
257 
190 

6,789 

32.713 
259 
258 
194 

6,958 

33,101 
264 
258 
199 

7,130 

33,493 
269 
259 
205 

7,307 
72.594 95,847 121,286 135,564 149,042 151,598 154.105 156,654 

1.7 
2.1 
0.4 
21 
2.2 
2.4 

1 4 
20 
0.3 
2.5 
2.4 
2.1 

1.2 
1.7 
0.3 
2.6 
2.5 
1.7 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

7.614 
15.939 
1,236 
3,231 
4,413 

9.504 
21,360 
1,731 
4,423 
6,051 

11.145 
26.525 
2.285 
5.697 
8,123 

12,122 
29.481 
2,642 
6.416 
9,309 

13,173 
32.300 
3,035 
7,170 

10.547 

13,386 
32,862 
3,113 
7.320 

10,800 

13,599 
33,425 
3,191 
7,471 

11,055 

13,816 
33,998 
3,272 
7,624 

11,316 

1.6 
2.2 
2.8 
26 
3.0 

1 7 
2.0 
29 
23 
26 

1.6 
1.7 
2.5 
2.1 
2.4 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

2,570 
3,964 

569 
3,804 
1,935 

3,588 
5,246 

709 
4,520 
2,627 

4,525 
6,917 

759 
5,353 
3,662 

4,739 
7.963 

790 
5.865 
4,383 

5,172 
9,197 

796 
6.486 
5,138 

5,279 
9,467 

801 
6.619 
5,299 

5,395 
9,745 

808 
6,754 
5.463 

5,514 
10,031 

815 
6.893 
5.631 

23 
28 
0.7 
1.7 
34 

1.3 
2.9 
0.5 
1.9 
3.4 

2.2 
2.9 
0.8 
2.0 
3.1 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama1 

Paraguay 

1,629 
35,130 

1,502 
1,105 
1,774 

1,869 
48,400 
2.063 
1,487 
2,351 

2,133 
64,478 
2,802 
1.956 
3,147 

2,311 
72,689 
3,229 
2.180 
3.693 

2.420 
81,250 
3,676 
2,418 
4,277 

2,444 
82,997 
3,808 
2,466 
4,397 

2,469 
84,770 
3,958 
2,514 
4,519 

2,495 
86,581 
4,113 
2,564 
4.645 

1.3 
2.9 
3.1 
2.8 
3.0 

1.3 
23 
2.8 
2.1 
31 

1.0 
2.1 
3.8 
2.0 
2.8 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

9,931 
290 
843 

2,538 
7,502 

13.193 
372 
971 

2.808 
10,604 

17.295 
352 

1 082 
2,914 

15,024 

19.417 
383 

1,160 
3,008 

17,164 

21.550 
422 

1.236 
3,094 

19,321 

21.998 
430 

1,250 
3,112 

19,753 

22,454 
438 

1,265 
3,131 

20,186 

22,919 
447 

1,279 
3,149 

20,629 

2.7 
-0.6 
1.1 
0.4 
3.5 

22 
1.8 
1.3 
06 
25 

2.1 
1.9 
1.1 
0.6 
2.2 

Latin America 204,589 268,541 341,659 381,512 421,533 429,583 437,669 445,916 2.4 2.1 1.9 

Source: Latin American Demographic Center. Santiago. Chile, and IDB estimates. 
1 Panama includes the Canal Zone, from 1980. 
p Preliminary 
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SELECT ED D ÍTAO.S I.VIIN. ÍMERICA 

GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT PER CAPITA1 
TABLE 2 

Country 1960 

(In 1988 U.S. dollars) 

1970 1980 1990 1992 1993p 1970 

(As a percent of OECD2) 

1980 1990 1992 1993p 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

3,339 

2,526 

672 
937 

1,775 
737 

1,089 
392 
741 

985 
654 
640 
288 
534 

4,318 
9,846 
4,536 

952 
1,289 

2,133 
909 

1,390 
469 
802 

1,237 
844 
738 
262 
675 

4,709 
10,486 
5,358 
1,658 
1,138 
2,385 

2,339 
1,253 
1,789 

712 
1,377 

1,266 
1,109 

727 
352 
839 

3,755 
11.424 
6,006 
2,024 

908 
2,233 

2,614 
1,455 
1,688 

677 
1,242 

1,059 
910 
500 
263 
758 

4,347 
10,276 
5,586 
2,187 

935 
2,158 

2,940 
1,490 
1,757 

697 
1,286 

1,103 
933 
576 
218 
763 

4,532 
10,352 
5,598 
2,206 

942 
2,207 

3,068 
1,528 
1,825 

700 
1,289 

1,139 
943 
612 
205 
768 

38.0 
86.6 
39.9 

8.4 
11.3 

18.8 
8.0 

12.2 
4.1 
7.1 

10.9 
7.4 
6.5 
2.3 
5.9 

33.2 
74.0 
37.8 
11.7 
8.0 

16.8 

16.5 
8.8 

12.6 
5.0 
9.7 

8.9 
7.8 
5.1 
2.5 
5.9 

21.3 
64.7 
34.0 
11.5 
5.1 

12.7 

14.8 
8.2 
9.6 
3.8 
7.0 

6.0 
5.2 
2.8 
1.5 
4.3 

24.5 
57.9 
31.5 
12.3 
5.3 

12.2 

16.6 
8.4 
9.9 
3.9 
7.2 

6.2 
5.3 
3.2 
1.2 
4.3 

25.5 
58.1 
31.4 
12.4 
5.3 

12.4 

17.2 
8.6 

10.2 
3.9 
7.2 

6.4 
5.3 
3.4 
1.2 
4.3 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

1,267 
1,187 

868 
1,158 

772 

1,041 
2,067 
3,102 
2,097 
2,913 

1,857 
1,703 
1,228 
1,850 

910 

1,725 
2,724 
4,096 
2,211 
3,773 

1,520 
2,439 

884 
2,306 
1,560 

1,877 
4,491 
6,322 
2,864 
4,048 

1,561 
2,271 

567 
1,992 
1,557 

1,341 
3,259 
4,136 
2,791 
3,400 

1,561 
2,317 

537 
2,262 
1,532 

1,295 
2,985 
4,135 
3,040 
3,850 

1,576 
2,289 

512 
2,374 
1,545 

1,345 
2,782 
4,048 
3,097 
3,730 

16.3 
15.0 
10.8 
16.3 
8.0 

15.2 
24.0 
36.0 
19.5 
33.2 

10.7 
17.2 
6.2 

16.3 
11.0 

13.2 
31.7 
44.6 
20.2 
28.6 

12.9 
3.2 

11.3 

7.6 
18.5 
23.4 
15.8 
19.3 

13.1 
3.0 

12.8 
8.6 

7.3 
16.8 
23.3 
17.1 
21.7 

8.8 
12.9 
2.9 

13.3 
8.7 

7.6 
15.6 
22.7 
17.4 
20.9 

Latin America 1,306 1,723 2,377 2,138 2,197 2,226 15.2 16.i 12.1 12.4 12.5 

Sources: For countries in Latin America, IDB estimates based on official statistics, and for Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) coun
tries, OECD Main Economic Indicators, October 1993. 
1 See Economic and Social Progress in Latin America. 1993 report, Statistical Appendix, Methodological Notes for Tables B-1 to B-17. 
2 Due to differences in the methodology used by the IDB and the OECD for conversion of national accounts to a common currency, the data are not strictly compa
rable to those published in previous issues of the Annual Report. The per capita GDP ot OECD countries in constant 1988 U.S. dollars was estimated at $11,366 for 
1970, $14,170 for 1980, $17,645 for 1990, $17,738 for 1992 and $17,807 for 1993. 
p Preliminary 
... Not available. 
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ISTER-AMERICAS DE I FLOPS IE \7 II. LYK 

GROWTH OF GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT BY SECTOR OF ORIGIN, 1989-92 
(Average annual growth rates in percent) 

TABLE 3 

Country 1989 
Agriculture1 

1990 1991 1992 
Industry2 

1989 1990 1991 1992 1989 
Services3 

1990 1991 1992 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

-9.2 

-9.0 
7.8 

-1.9 
2.9 

11.4 

8.5 
9.6 
2.0 

-3.7 

-4.6 
5.2 

12.5 
2.8 

0.1 

-1.1 
16.0 
-4.2 
5.3 

-9.2 

5.5 
14.2 
6.9 
2.9 

0.2 

-4.4 
7.5 
6.9 

-8.0 

-4.6 
6.0 
5.0 

-0.6 

-9.2 
3.5 
3.1 

-3.6 

-3.7 

4.2 
14.2 
2.5 
3.5 

-1.6 

-3.7 
9.1 
3.1 

-1.1 

8.5 

-3.5 
2.7 
3.4 
1.7 

99 

-3.0 
5.9 
4.6 

-0.2 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

3.8 
4.3 
7.4 
2.3 
2.8 

6.6 
6.6 
2.5 

-6.3 
6.2 

3.2 
4.9 
6.2 
2.4 
5.6 

1.1 
3.0 
5.8 
5.0 

10.4 
4.1 
4.6 
4.7 

-5.1 

0.0 
0.9 
2.4 

12.6 

6.3 
0.7 
1.3 

-4.2 
3.9 

8.6 
4.8 
9.1 

13.5 
3.8 

2.3 
5.0 
4.4 
3.7 

4.4 
4.3 
4.3 

-0.8 
14 

5.9 
2.4 
1.3 

-0.1 
5.0 

9.8 
3.8 
7.5 
6.2 
3.1 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

0.5 
3.1 

-2.9 
-1.1 
10.0 

7.4 
4.1 

-13.5 
-3.7 
1.1 

-0 1 
3.1 

12.1 
-4.0 
63 

7.3 
3.0 

24.3 

2.9 

2.5 
3.5 

-12.5 
-0.4 
6.5 

1.0 
1.4 

-0.2 
-7.3 
-0.6 

5.7 
2.5 

11.8 
-5.0 
2.6 

6.5 
6.6 
3.8 

10.2 

1.5 
4.5 

-1.1 
-2.3 
2.3 

2.8 
3.2 
1.6 

-0.3 
-1.1 

4.1 
4.3 

-0.5 
-3.6 
0.2 

3.5 
5.0 
1.2 

2.8 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

-9.1 
-2.2 
9.2 
3.7 
7.6 

11.5 
5.9 

-0.2 
3.0 
2.3 

-0.2 
1.0 

-3.9 
5.0 

-0.7 

12.9 
-1.4 
2.9 
6.3 
0.2 

16.2 
5.9 

-2.6 
-3.6 
5.2 

58 
-2.8 
11.7 
3.0 

-1.4 
3.5 
3.8 

18.2 
2.5 

0.0 
2.5 

-2.8 
17.3 
2.6 

3.2 
3.4 

-3.5 
-0.2 
5.0 

3.6 
3.8 
0.4 
3.8 
3.5 

3.0 
4.2 
2.8 
76 
4.2 

0.9 
3.3 
1.6 
6.8 
1.9 

Peru -4.8 -8.2 1.1 -6.3 -14.7 -4.4 3.5 -4.6 -12.9 -4.2 2.8 0.4 
Suriname -2.4 0.6 7.4 ... 1.1 -0.8 -1.5 ... 9.7 -2.3 -1.4 
Trinidad and Tobago 6.0 17.0 -5.5 0.3 -1.0 1.8 4.5 -1.2 -1.4 0.2 3.6 -1.5 
Uruguay 3.5 0.3 2.3 10.5 -0.8 -1.9 0.7 4.3 2.2 2.4 4.1 8.2 
Venezuela -5.1 -1.5 2.4 2.7 -10.9 9.7 12.3 7.2 -7.4 4.6 9.0 8.6 

Latin America 0.1 1.8 2.8 1.7 0.0 -1.5 3.6 1.7 0.8 1.0 4.3 3.5 

Source: IDB estimates based on official statistics of member countries. 
1 Agriculture includes agriculture and livestock production, hunting and fishing, and forestry. 
2 Industry includes mining and quarrying, manufacturing, electricity, gas and water, and construction. 
3 Services includes commerce, transport and communications, financial services, government, and other services. 
... Not available. 
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SELECTED DALA ON LATIN AMERICA 

GROWTH OF GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT BY TYPE OF EXPENDITURE , 1990-93 
(Average annual growth rates in percent) 

TABLE 4 

Country 
Consumption Investment Exports Imports 

1991 1992 1993p 1990 1991 1992 1993p 1990 1991 1992 1993p 1990 1991 1992 1993p 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

-0.2 12.3 10.4 5.2 -9.9 25.1 30.9 9.0 18.9 -8.3 0.6 4.0 0.6 64.9 63.1 30 

-2.3 
-2.7 
1.8 

-1.6 

1.2 
22.9 

1.8 
2.2 

1.7 
6.1 
1.9 

-2.9 

-0.1 
4.8 
3.2 
4.2 

-4.7 
-0.5 
-0.8 
-8.9 

-11.7 
7.6 

43.6 
-3.5 

-53.0 
2.3 

15.6 
-4.9 

0.5 
7.0 
14 
5.0 

-12.0 
12.8 
15.8 
-4.9 

-3.4 
11.1 
1.6 
66 

3.5 
4.5 

-6.3 
22.5 

2.0 
-1.0 
5.3 
5.0 

-8.5 
-4.0 
-4.1 
10.9 

-0.4 
9.6 

24.9 
10.0 

-4.9 1.0 
0.7 3.0 
9.6 2.2 
4.1 10.0 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dom. Republic 
Ecuador 

2.0 
3.6 
4.1 

-12.3 
2.1 

7.1 
2.0 
1.0 
2.1 

-0.1 

7.1 
36 
7.0 
9.7 
1.7 

7.9 
6.2 
5.9 
6.6 

-0.6 

-3.3 
-3.1 
4.9 

-20.7 
-15.0 

-2.1 
-10.8 
-13.7 
-3.3 
28.5 

21.3 
10.5 
27.8 
16.2 
4.0 

20.0 
25.0 
20.0 
8.0 
5.1 

16.7 
9.1 

14.7 
10.2 

10.0 
5.8 
9.2 

-1.5 
10.4 

16.8 
6.7 

13.3 
16.8 
7.3 

2.0 
4.7 

14.0 
-1.0 
4.5 

2.0 
10.8 
10.8 
-9.9 
-3.7 

6.3 
-11.3 
-3.1 
2.3 

16.3 

22.5 
16.7 
24.4 
23.8 

1.2 

18.5 
41.4 
20.0 
8.0 

-4.4 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

1.1 
2.1 

-9.3 
-1.5 
-4.2 

3.0 
3.6 
3.7 

-0.9 
-1.3 

30 
8.2 

-10.7 
-9.1 
1.7 

4.3 -29.2 
4.0 -1.3 
2.4 25.0 
0.0 0.9 
3.4 10.4 

22.5 
22.6 

-16.2 
-11.0 
23.6 

23.5 
30.1 
-1.4 

-51.3 
10.1 

7.3 
6.2 

34.6 
-19.0 

9.0 

44.1 
65 
04 
1.2 
1.7 

-1.6 
-4.9 
16.4 
-9.9 
-0.4 

11.2 
8.3 

14.2 
0.5 

38.2 26.6 
-57.5 3.9 
10.0 -2.0 

0.4 
-0.7 
9.9 
59 

-4.3 

4.2 
7.2 

-3.8 
-1.0 
3.2 

13.1 
38.3 
17.6 

-46.1 
8.0 

9.3 
3.4 

39.7 
14.3 
2.0 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

1.8 
6.5 

-2.1 
-1.6 
12.0 

-0.2 
5.4 
7.5 

11.5 
4.1 

-5.9 
6,1 

-0.3 
6.5 
2.1 

2.7 
2.0 

-5.9 
5.8 
3.8 

2.6 
10.7 

-13.9 
317.8 

9.2 

6.0 
7.3 

10.6 
11.4 
8.6 

-5.0 
8.6 

-2.9 
41.1 
-6.6 

2.0 
3.9 

-11.0 
22.0 
2.2 

13.6 
3.6 

18.2 
10.6 
18.8 

6.1 
5.4 

-14.7 
8.6 

-11.5 

5.0 
0.3 

13.2 
2.6 

-9.8 

3.0 
1.9 
9.8 
4.0 
5.0 

4.5 
19.7 
-4.5 
34.0 
58.5 

7.3 
16.4 
16.4 
15.8 
3.0 

-8.1 
21.2 

1.1 
12.1 

-10.9 

40 
8.0 

-14.7 
10.0 
3.6 

Peru -4.3 0.0 -2.1 6.0 3.0 19.8 1.5 7.9 -5.2 -4.6 -1.3 1.2 12.5 6.3 7.9 -1.5 
Suriname 12.4 5.5 -6.3 -4.9 -0.9 4.0 -10.0 -5.0 -25.2 -28.1 -10.0 -2.0 -1.5 -10.6 -18.0 -2.0 
Trinidad and Tobago 0.0 2.8 -1.1 5.4 -10.0 30.1 -11.0 4.1 10.5 2.7 -9.0 -3.0 1.9 12.7 -15.0 18.0 
Uruguay -2.5 4.2 11.3 5.7 0.2 22.3 9.8 8.0 12.7 -0.8 4.7 -0.5 1.1 17.9 22.6 15.0 
Venezuela 3.9 7.4 6.2 -0.9 -7.6 80.0 35.5 -4.0 14.5 4.3 -2.3 3.0 -7.9 49.5 21.7 -1.0 

Latin America 1.2 4.8 3.1 3.7 -3.3 7.7 8.7 6.1 5.4 3.6 8.3 3.6 9.2 15.9 18.2 9.1 

Source: IDB estimates based on official statistics of member countries. 
1 Gross domestic product is equal to consumption plus investment plus exports minus imports. 
2 Goods and non-factor services, 
p Preliminary 
... Not available. 
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/ \ 7 ER-AM ERIC. I. V DEVELOPS IE \ / II. I. \ A 

DISBURSED TOTAL EXTERNAL DEBT OUTSTANDING , 1984-93 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

TABLE 5 

Country 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993p 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

48,856 
213 
391 
96 

4,317 
105,424 

50,946 
193 
457 
118 

4,805 
106.121 

52,450 
216 
579 
121 

5,575 
113,705 

58,458 
193 
577 
137 

5,836 
123,837 

58,741 
171 
703 
139 

4,901 
115,711 

65,226 
220 
644 
144 

4,135 
111,374 

62.191 
268 
683 
152 

4,278 
116,417 

65,361 
412 
652 
169 

4,077 
117,350 

67,569 
440 
621 
170 

4,243 
121,110 

69,599 

568 
179 

4,335 
125,002 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

19,737 
12,039 
3,990 
3,111 
8,304 

20.384 
14,245 
4,401 
3,502 
8,703 

21,144 
15.362 
4,576 
3.687 
9.334 

21,489 
17,008 
4,721 
3,923 

10,473 

19,582 
16,995 
4,544 
3,991 

10,745 

18,032 
16,878 
4,603 
4,064 

11,317 

19.227 
17,232 
3,772 
4,387 

12.109 

17,947 
17.334 
4,050 
4,494 

12,468 

19,360 
17,204 
3,963 
4,649 

12,280 

20,700 
17,694 
3,956 
4,024 

12,455 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

1.827 
2,354 
1,268 

664 
2,282 

1.854 
2.656 
1,485 

717 
2,729 

1,848 
2,793 
1,618 

710 
2,974 

1,971 
2,794 
1,719 

844 
3,299 

1,983 
2,637 
1,852 

818 
3,307 

2,067 
2,635 
1,921 

802 
3,385 

2,137 
2,837 
1,978 

884 
3,698 

2,174 
2,823 
1,966 

747 
3,360 

2,131 
2,749 
1,879 

773 
3,572 

2,164 
2,705 
1,920 

804 
3,684 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

3,566 
94,822 
4,749 
4,363 
1,471 

4,068 
96.867 
5,821 
4,758 
1,817 

4.187 
100.881 

6.820 
4.859 
2,087 

4,696 
109,460 

7,975 
5,630 
2,520 

4,532 
99,204 
8,741 
6,066 
2,351 

4,536 
93,817 
9,743 
6,318 
2,384 

4,627 
105.958 
10.692 
6,678 
2,128 

4.480 
115,291 
10,579 
6,733 
2,177 

4,303 
113,378 
11,126 
6,505 
1,747 

4,374 
18,894 
11,609 
6,537 
1,763 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

Latin America 

12,157 
38 

1,224 
3,271 

36,883 

12,884 
52 

1,448 
3,919 

35,334 

14,887 
70 

1,855 
3.906 

34,340 

17,490 
85 

1,802 
4,299 

34,570 

18,245 
95 

2,141 
3,821 

34,738 

18.583 
123 

2,187 
4,205 

32,377 

20,067 
123 

2,310 
4,335 

33,170 

20,718 20,293 

2,329 
4,649 

34,046 

2,262 
5,253 

37,193 

21,963 

2,104 
5,246 

38,715 

377,417 390,284 410,584 445,806 426,754 421,720 442,338 456,386 464,773 480,994 

Sources: World Bank, World Debt Tables, 1991-92 and 1992-93 and estimates; and IDB estimates. 
1 Total external debt is the sum of long-term and short-term external debt (including interest arrears), and use of IMF credit. Long-term external debt is made up of 
public and publicly guaranteed debt and private non-guaranteed debt. Short-term external debt is debt with an original maturity of one year or less and could be ei
ther public or private. The use of IMF credit denotes repurchase obligations to the IMF with respect to all uses of IMF resources, excluding those resulting from 
drawings in the reserve tranche and the IMF Trust Fund, 
p Preliminary 
... Not available. 
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ANNUAL AVERAGE GROWTH OF CONSUMER PRICE INDEXES }, 1971-93 
(In percent) 

TABLE 6 

Country 1971-80 1981-90 1981-85 1986-90 1980 1985 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993p 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

7.5 
14.3 

19.6 
35.6 

437.7 
5.5 
5.7 
4.1 

220.0 
337.0 

322.8 
5.9 
7.7 
6.1 

598.8 
148.7 

398.9 
5.2 
3.9 
2.0 

54.9 
444.2 

100.0 
12.1 
14.4 

50.0 
84.2 

672.2 
4.6 
4.0 
4.2 

11804.8 
226.9 

3079.2 
5.4 
6.2 
0.0 

15.2 
1287.0 

2314.0 
4.6 
3.1 
3.0 

17.1 
2938.0 

171.7 
7.1 
6.2 
5.6 

21.4 
440.9 

24.9 
5.7 
6.0 
2.8 

12.1 
1008.7 

10.7 
4.0 
4.0 
1.8 

10.0 
1800.0 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

21.1 
10.9 
10.4 
12.5 

20.3 
23.7 
25.6 
24.6 
36.4 

21.4 
22.3 
34.8 
16.2 
27.6 

17.7 
24.0 
16.5 
27.8 
45.1 

35.7 
26.5 
18.4 
16.8 
13.0 

29.9 
24.0 
15.1 
37.6 
28.0 

17.1 
25.8 
16.5 
45.4 
75.6 

26.0 
29.1 
19.0 
59.5 
48.5 

21.9 
30.4 
28.7 
53.9 
48.7 

15.6 
27.0 
21.8 
4.6 

54.6 

12.5 
23.0 
12.0 
6.0 

36.0 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

10.7 
9.5 

10.2 
10.7 
8.1 

19.0 
14.4 
31.0 

6.7 
7.8 

14.7 
7.5 

19.6 
9.1 
6.9 

23.4 
17.4 
38.6 
0.4 
5.3 

17.2 
10.8 
14.1 
17.6 
18.2 

22.4 
18.6 
15.0 
10.6 
3.4 

17.6 
11.4 
90.0 
6.9 
9.8 

24.0 
41.2 
65.0 
21.5 
23.3 

14.4 
33.2 
80.0 
20.4 
33.9 

11.2 
10.1 
26.3 
25.3 

19.0 
15.0 
10.0 
46.2 
11.0 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

18.1 
16.6 
19.6 
7.1 

13.1 

14.8 
65.2 

618.9 
1.8 

21.7 

16.6 
60.8 
54.4 
3.2 

15.8 

11.0 
82.5 

2409.9 
0.2 

25.6 

27.3 
25.7 
35.3 
13.8 
22.4 

25.7 
57.7 

219.5 
1.1 

25.2 

14.3 
20.0 

4770.1 
0.0 

26.4 

22.0 
26.7 

10495.9 
1.0 

38.2 

51.1 
22.7 

2742.3 
1.0 

24.3 

77.3 
15.5 
20.0 

1.9 
15.1 

30.0 
9.8 

24.0 
0.5 

17.7 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

30.3 
9.8 

13.0 

8.4 

332.0 
12.9 
11.0 
60.3 
23.3 

102.0 
7.1 

12.4 
44.3 
11.1 

445.8 
18.2 
9.4 

70.4 
35.9 

59.7 
14.2 
17.5 
60.0 
21.4 

163.4 
11.3 
7.6 

72.4 
11.4 

3398.7 
0.8 

11.4 
80.3 
84.3 

7482.6 
21.7 
11.0 

112.6 
40.8 

409.5 
26.0 
3.8 

102.0 
34.2 

73.5 
43.7 

6.5 
68.5 
30.9 

48.0 
150.0 
10.0 
53.0 
38.0 

Source: International Monetary Fund, International Financial Statistics and IDB estimates. 
1 Annual averages of monthly Consumer Price Indexes, 
p Preliminary 
... Not available. 
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INTER -AMERICAS DE I 'EL OP M EN T B. INK 

BALANCE OF PAYMENTS SUMMARY1, 1989-93 
(In millions of U.S. dollars) 

Country 

1989 1990 1991 

Balance on Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade 

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related Merchandise Current 
Items2 Trade Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related 
Hems2 

Balance on 

Merchandise Current 
Trade Account 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

5,709 
-944 
-452 

-64 
-6 

16,112 

-1,305 
-157 

-2 
-19 

-263 
1,025 

206 
96 
-0 
25 

191 
,495 

1,348 
13 
42 

-15 
104 

-1,701 

8,628 
-921 
-471 

-59 
55 

10,747 

1,903 
-180 

-16 
15 

-191 
-3,788 

761 
68 
45 
25 

221 
5,330 

-3,379 
-11 
36 

-15 
-18 

-1,246 

4,419 
-804 
-474 

-99 
-43 

10,578 

-2,804 
-174 

-29 
-26 

-262 
-1,408 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

1,578 
1,474 
-238 

-1,039 
661 

-767 
-201 
-414 
-198 
-514 

1,408 
478 
351 
384 
636 

-570 
-434 
-145 

2 
-188 

1,273 
1,971 
-442 

-1,058 
1,003 

-598 
542 

-424 
-8 

-166 

3,255 
-2 

170 
120 
318 

-2,331 
-610 
197 

-7 
-276 

1,574 
2,959 
-199 

-1,070 
644 

142 
2,349 

-75 
-58 

-467 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

-591 
-358 

11 
-111 
-52 

-173 
-367 
-113 
-62 

-170 

150 
384 
88 
69 

280 

103 
-71 
29 
-1 
28 

-599 
-216 
-22 
-87 
-20 

-136 
-212 
-149 

-38 
-51 

20 
146 
164 
17 

183 

-153 
29 

-18 
-26 
-24 

-706 
-443 

17 
-137 

-75 

-167 
-183 
-119 
-10 

-190 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

-606 
-645 
-228 
-456 
164 

1,197 
218 
489 
462 

5,632 

-291 
-3,958 

-361 
23 

256 

94 
162 
-55 
121 

2,161 

333 
1,362 

495 
-3 

-20 

715 
-172 

77 
23 

-3,447 

-46 
-179 

-64 
-50 

-145 

-594 
0 

-67 
-116 
-132 

-522 
-4,433 

-237 
-841 
-253 

340 
91 

987 
426 

10,637 

-320 
-7,117 

-305 
63 

-172 

-1,092 
34 

439 
169 

8,279 

417 
8,530 

447 
-222 

29 

850 
-15 

-231 
-69 

-3,594 

-118 
-2,303 

39 
-297 
-219 

-285 
-10 
-96 

-281 
-2,943 

-406 
-11,329 

-419 
-1,034 

-551 

-165 
-1 

541 
61 

4.837 

-190 
-13,785 

-4 
-284 
-466 

-1,584 
-75 
-20 
42 

1,736 

Latin America 27,915 -5,554 5,609 -3,058 25,972 -3,521 16,986 -14,369 7,669 -18,118 

Sources: International Monetary Fund, Balance of Payments (tape), December 1993; and IDB estimates. 
1 Merchandise trade is equal to exports of goods minus imports of goods valued at f.o.b. prices. Current account is equal to trade plus services plus unrequited trans
fers. Capital account is the net result of capital inflows and outflows of the monetary and nonmonetary sectors. Reserves and related items include the changes in mon
etary gold, special drawing rights, reserve position in the IMF, foreign exchange and use of IMF credit. The table excludes errors and omissions. 
2 According to conventional usage, a minus (—) means an increase, 
p Preliminary 
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TABLE 7 

Capital 
Account 

1992 

Balance on Reserves 
and 

Related Merchandise Current Capital 
Items2 Trade Account Account 

1993p 
Reserves 

and 
Related Merchandise 
Items2 Trade 

Balance on 

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related 
Items2 Country 

5,775 
176 

-0 
15 

231 
753 

-2.630 
-14 
39 
20 

-22 
-197 

-1.388 
-841 
-306 
-103 
-432 

15,525 

-8,370 
-127 
137 
-36 

-533 
6,275 

12.783 
12 

-100 
26 

525 
9,925 

-4,550 
28 

-28 
-1 

-26 
15,068 

-1,800 
-930 
-471 
-123 
-282 

13,100 

8,000 
-30 
47 

-45 
-492 

0 

13,000 
90 
5 

33 
528 

10,580 

-5,000 
-60 
-25 
10 

-110 
10,580 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

822 
-783 
323 
111 
448 

-1,246 
-1,836 

-348 
-341 
-163 

748 
1,233 
-497 

-1,612 
952 

-583 
912 

-361 
-392 
-46 

2,944 
166 
374 
31 
67 

-2,548 
-1,092 

-141 
-26 
-21 

-850 
-1,400 

-800 
-1,701 
1,100 

-2,000 
-2,100 

-485 
-423 
100 

2,600 
3,000 

600 
384 
250 

-600 
-900 
-115 
-95 

-350 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

-28 
654 
158 
31 
78 

70 
-554 

-40 
21 

-65 

-990 
1,044 

53 
-123 
-140 

-151 
-705 
-73 
-39 

-223 

216 
604 
113 

7 
197 

-65 
20 

-34 
26 
7 

1,150 
1,025 

28 
-120 
-126 

-180 
-706 
-125 
-106 
-249 

290 
733 
148 
66 

286 

-110 
-27 
-23 
40 

-50 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

90 
24,358 

6 
-298 
169 

85 
-7,992 

-86 
-198 
-298 

-403 
-20,677 

-518 
-1,220 

-480 

117 
-22,811 

-695 
-26 

-453 

95 
26,416 

656 
-405 
-189 

-211 
,746 

-1 
-116 
368 

-540 
-20,000 

-440 
-1,350 

-586 

-30 
-21.000 

-470 
-30 

-538 

85 
27,000 

460 
280 
139 

-55 
-6,000 

10 
-250 

-24 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

531 
32 

-103 
-356 

2,004 

-887 
43 

153 
-145 

-2,224 

-567 
68 

666 
-238 
,689 

-2,065 
11 

122 
-207 

-3,365 

889 
-48 
-84 
152 

2,736 

-568 
12 
34 
-1 

1.031 

-520 
-38 
390 

-537 
2,500 

-2,000 
-50 

-125 
-420 

-2,500 

2.500 
-10 
185 
300 

1,500 

-500 
60 

-60 
-100 

1,000 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

35,201 -18,858 -10,650 -33,692 58,108 -24,718 -17,672 -41,958 65,033 -23,915 Latin America 
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SELECTED SOCIAL INDICATORS1 

Vital Statistics 

Country 

Crude Birth 
Rate 

Crude Death 
Rate 

(Per 1,000 Population) 

Infant Mortality 
Per 

1,000 Live Births 
1970 LAE2 1970 LAE 1970 LAE 

Life Expectancy 
at Birth 
(Years) 

1970 LAE 

Population per 
Physician 
(Persons) 

1970 LAE 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

23.1 
25.3 
20.6 

45.5 
34.8 

20.3 
20.0 
15.7 
36.6 
35.5 
23.3 

9.0 
6.2 
8.7 

19.5 
10.2 

8.6 
5.7 
8.8 
6.2 

10.0 
7.4 

51.8 
35.0 
38.2 

153.4 
94.6 

30.2 
28.4 

9.3 
44.6 
84.8 
59.4 

66.8 
64.9 
68.7 

46.1 
59.0 

71.4 
69.6 
75.3 
68.7 
59.6 
66.2 

529 
1,315 
1,914 

2,018 
2,029 

334 
773 

1,123 
1,554 
1,534 

684 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

29.2 
37.1 
33.4 
41.2 
42.5 

43.9 
45.0 
33.9 
40.7 
49.3 

34.4 
43.4 
47.4 
37.1 
37.7 

40.8 
35.7 
27.4 
20.9 
37.9 

22.5 
23.9 
26.3 
26.0 
29.5 

33.4 
38.4 
25.4 
34.4 
37.3 

23.9 
28.0 
39.0 
24.9 
33.1 

26.8 
30.5 
23.4 
17.1 
26.0 

9.5 
9.3 
6.7 

10.8 
11.8 

11.6 
14.4 
6.9 

17.9 
14.7 

83 
9.4 

13.5 
7.7 
7.3 

13.9 
7.6 
7.3 
9.8 
7.0 

6.5 
5.8 
3.6 
6.0 
6.8 

6.9 
7.4 
7.4 

12.9 
6.8 

6.4 
5.3 
6.3 
5.0 
6.3 

7.4 
6.3 
6.3 
9.6 
5.2 

80.0 
76.6 
61.5 
98.4 
99.8 

103.0 
100.2 
80.2 

161.8 
115.2 

39.6 
73.0 

106.0 
46.6 
58.6 

116.4 
53.2 
34.4 
46.4 
53.4 

17.4 
38.2 
14.8 
55.9 
55.0 

51.2 
62.1 
51.2 
94.6 
50.0 

15.7 
37.4 
59.9 
21.8 
47.8 

54.0 
38.7 
20.4 
21.6 
34.2 

62.4 
61.0 
67.1 
58.7 
58.1 

57.6 
52.5 
59.7 
47.6 
52.7 

67.7 
61.7 
53.5 
65.5 
65.3 

53.9 
63.8 
66.2 
68.8 
65.2 

72.0 
69.3 
76.2 
67.5 
66.5 

66.3 
64.8 
65.1 
54.6 
65.8 

73.6 
70.3 
66.6 
72.8 
67.2 

64.6 
68.6 
71.3 
73.7 
70.3 

2,160 
2,256 
1,619 
2,299 
2,909 

4,101 
3,656 
4,012 

12,465 
3,774 

2,632 
1,553 
2,136 
1,657 
2,298 

1,920 
2,150 
2,245 

915 
1,120 

2,152 
1,151 
1,027 
1,765 

984 

2,830 
2,184 
6,220 
7,304 
2,435 

2,044 
1,771 
1,492 

841 
1,458 

1,041 
1,264 

943 
513 
633 

Sources: The Statistical Yearbooks of ECLAC, Unesco, United Nations Statistical Office, various issues, PAHO, Health Conditions in the Americas, 1990 Edition, and the 
World Bank, Social Indicators of Development, 1992. 
1 Social Indicators are collected by countries through censuses and surveys taken, in many cases, infrequently and on other than an annual basis. Therefore, the data 
for 1970 are for years as close to 1970 as possible and in no case earlier than 1970 nor later than 1979. Data for the latest available estimate (LAE) are in no case prior to 
1980 and for many of the indicators refer to the latter half of the decade. Furthermore, users should be aware that the concepts, definitions and methodologies employed 
in the collection of such indicators vary from country to country and often vary over time within countries. 
2 Latest Available Estimate 
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TABLE 8 

Health 
Population 

per Hospital 
Bed 

(persons) 
1970 LAE 

Education 
Enrollment Ratios 

Access to 
Safe Water 
(In percent) 

Illiteracy 
Rate3 

(In percent) 

Primary and 
Secondary4 

(In percent) 
Post-Secondary5 

(In percent) 
1970 LAE 1970 LAE 1970 LAE 1970 LAE Country 

179 
196 

442 
271 

117 
301 

56 
65 

33 
55 

90 
100 

73 
66 
87 

7.4 

0.7 

36.8 
33.8 

4.7 
3.0 
0.5 

22.5 
18.9 

70 

85 

54 
65 

96 
94 
99 

70 

14.2 

3.9 

8.7 
5.3 

43.4 Argentina 
19.6 
17.3 

22.6 
11.7 

Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

265 
451 
252 
379 
432 

294 
596 
293 

56 
63 
74 
37 
34 

92 
94 
67 
70 

11.0 
19.2 
11.6 
33.0 
25.8 

6.6 
13.3 
7.2 

16.7 
12.7 

87 
64 
76 
65 
66 

90 
82 
78 
92 
89 

9.4 
4.7 

24.3 
6.5 
7.6 

23.3 
13.7 
27.6 
18.6 
20.1 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

524 
461 
198 

1,270 
578 

1,390 
600 
300 

1,390 
800 

40 
38 
75 
12 
34 

43 
61 
83 
41 
70 

42.9 
54.0 

8.4 
78.7 
43.1 

27.0 
44.9 
3.6 

47.0 
26.9 

62 
36 
79 
25 
57 

65 
56 
82 
40 
75 

3.3 
3.4 
1.9 
0.4 
2.1 

16.1 
8.6 
5.1 
1.2 
9.7 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

244 
843 
424 
342 
614 

300 

517 
300 

62 
54 
35 
69 
11 

72 
78 
54 
83 
34 

3.9 
25.8 
42.5 
21.7 
19.9 

1.6 
12.4 
13.0 
11.2 
9.9 

81 
68 
54 
75 
67 

82 
85 
78 
83 
73 

5.4 
6.1 
5.7 
6.6 
4.3 

6.0 
15.2 
10.1 
21.7 
8.2 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

460 
176 
202 
169 

2,898 

590 
112 
196 
308 

2,700 

35 

96 
92 
75 

58 
98 
96 
84 
89 

27.5 

7.8 
6.1 

23.5 

14.9 
5.1 
3.9 
3.8 

11.9 

72 
90 
73 
82 
71 

101 
87 
90 
96 

10.8 
1.2 
2.9 
9.9 

11.7 

35.6 
9.2 
6.5 

32.0 
29.5 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

3 Proportion of the population 15 years of age and older who cannot, with understanding, read and write a short simple statement on everyday life. 
4 Gross enrollment of all ages at primary and secondary levels as a percentage of school-age children as defined by the country. School-age children at the primary and 
secondary levels generally range from 6 to 17 years of age. Gross enrollment can be more than 100 percent if some pupils are younger or older than the above age range. 
5 Calculated as above with an age group of 20 to 24. 
... Not available. 
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PART III 

FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK AND VOTING POWER 

Under the Agreement Establishing the Inter-American 
Development Bank (Agreement), each member country 
shall have 135 votes plus one vote for each share of Or
dinary Capital stock held by that country. The Agree
ment also provides that no increase in the subscription 
of any member to the Ordinary Capital stock shall be
come effective which would have the effect of reducing 
the voting power of the regional developing members 
below 53.5%, of the United States below 34.5%, and of 
Canada below 4.0% of the total voting power. 

In making decisions concerning operations of the 
Fund for Special Operations, the number of votes and 
percent of total voting power for each member country 
are the same as determined by the provisions of the 
Agreement referred to above. 

Subscriptions to shares of Ordinary Capital stock, 
and the voting power of the member countries, are listed 
on the following page. 

EL QUEBRADON, NICARAGUA. Metal frame at the en
trance to a tunnel at this hydroelectric project site north of 
Matagalpa will support a ventilator to be used in later stages 
of construction. An IDB loan of $34.4 million in 1982 has 
helped to finance the project's 40-meter high rockfill dam, a 
pumping station, two tunnels, transmission lines and roads to 
be used by local farmers. Firms from Argentina, Brazil, 
Canada, Mexico, Nicaragua and the U.S. have all won major 
contracts generated by the financing. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DE VELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK AND VOTING POWER 
December 31, 1993 

Member countries 

Regional developing members 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador :, 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Total regional developing members 

United States 

Canada 

Subscribed 
shares 

522,017 
10,089 
6,244 
3,978 

41,904 
522,017 
143,335 
143,232 
20,947 
27,964 
27,964 
20,947 
27,964 
7,767 

13,300 
20,947 
27,964 

335,560 
20,947 
20,947 
20,947 
69,951 

4,258 
20,947 
55,967 

279,676 
2,417,780 

1,556,238 

197,169 

Number 
of votes 

522,152 
10,224 
6,379 
4,113 

42,039 
522,152 
143,470 
143,367 
21,082 
28,099 
28,099 
21,082 
28,099 
7,902 

13,435 
21,082 
28,099 

335,695 
21,082 
21,082 
21,082 
70,086 
4,393 

21,082 
56,102 

279,811 
2,421,290 

1,556,373 
197,304 

Percentage 
of total 

number of 
votes ' 

11.61 
0.23 
0.14 
0.09 
0.93 

11.61 
3.19 
3.19 
0.47 
0.62 
0.62 
0.47 
0.62 
0.18 
0.30 
0.47 
0.62 
7.47 
0.47 
0.47 
0.47 
1.56 
0.10 
0.47 
1.25 
6.22 

53.84 

34.61 

4.39 

Nonregional members 
Austria 
Belgium 
Croatia 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
Norway 
Portugal 
Slovenia 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom 
Total nonregional members 
Total before unallocated amount 

Unallocated (See Note J) 
GRAND TOTAL 

3,565 
8,448 
1,018 
3,797 
3,565 

43,399 
44,450 

3,514 
43,399 
48,413 

6,598 
3,797 
1,143 

584 
43,399 

7,391 
9,691 

43,399 
319,570 

4,490,757 
1,963 

4,492,720 

3,700 
8,583 
1,153 
3,932 
3,700 

43,534 
44,585 
3,649 

43,534 
48,548 
6,733 
3,932 
1,278 

719 
43,534 

7,526 
9,826 

43,534 
322,000 

4,496,967 
2,233 

4,499,200 

0.08 
0.19 
0.02 
0.09 
0.08 
0.97 
0.99 
0.08 
0.97 
1.08 
0.15 
0.09 
0.03 
0.01 
0.97 
0.17 
0.22 
0.97 

7.16 
100.00 

1 Data are rounded to the nearest one hundredth of one percent; detail may not add to subtotals and grand total because of rounding. 
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FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS 

ORDINARY 

CAPITAL 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 118 through 133 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Ordinary Capital at December 31, 1993 and 1992, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management; our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements 
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial state
ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 10, 1994 
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INTER -AMERICAN DE VEL OPMENT BANK 

ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

December 31, 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 

Cash 
Investments 

Loans outstanding 
Allowance for loan losses 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 
On loans 

Receivable from members 
Capital subscriptions 
Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing 

demand obligations 
Amounts required to maintain value of 

currency holdings 

Other assets 
Property 
Unamortized borrowing costs 
Miscellaneous 

Special Reserve assets 

Total assets 

1993 

$ 261,103 
7,539,880 

22,179,003 
(711,998) 

66,488 
458,075 

1,785 

421,073 

40 

254,548 
179,795 

12,307 

$ 7,800,983 

21,467,005 

524,563 

422,898 

446,650 

1,606,521 

$32,268,620 

1992 

$ 223,644 
7,080,392 

20,098,065 
(614,150) 

71,637 
377,703 

68,436 

509,191 

5,664 

251,929 
180,795 
38,501 

$ 7,304,036 

19,483,915 

449,340 

583,291 

471,225 

1,401,661 

$29,693,468 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL 

Liabilities 
Borrowings 

Plus unamortized premium 

Accrued interest on borrowings 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Advance payments of capital 

subscriptions 

Capital 
Capital stock 

Subscribed 4,492,720 shares 
(1992—4,490,731) 
Less callable portion 

General Reserve 
Special Reserve 

Total liabilities and capital 

December 31, 
1993 

$23,424,414 
46,694 

23,471,108 
599,777 
268,236 

1,858 

54,197,624 
(51,027,487) 

3,170,137 
3,150,983 
1,606,521 

$24,340,979 

7,927,641 

$32,268,620 

1992 

$21,389,659 
41,156 

21,430,815 
554,907 
179,639 

145 

54,173,630 
(51,005,881) 

3,167,749 
2,958,552 
1,401,661 

$22,165,506 

7,527,962 

$29,693,468 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND GENERAL RESERVE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Income 
Loans 

Interest 
Credit commissions 
Special commissions 
Supervision and inspection fees 

Investments .... 
Other 

Total income 

Expenses 
Borrowing expenses 
Provision for loan losses 
Administrative expenses 

Total expenses 

Net Income 
Allocation to Special Reserve 
Addition to General Reserve for the year 

General Reserve beginning of year 
Translation adjustments 

Years ended December 31, 
1993 

General Reserve end of year 

$1,521,868 
88,728 

214,756 
38,947 

1,864,299 
481,755 
(16,397) 

2,329,657 

1,657,799 
97,848 

178,603 
1,934,250 

395,407 
(214,756) 
180,651 

2,958,552 
11,780 

$3,150,983 

1992 

$1,413,302 
11,312 

195,101 
22 

1,619,737 
547,386 
(25,818) 

2,141,305 

1,545,245 
62,000 

151,913 
1,759,158 

382,147 
(195,101) 
187,046 

2,864,338 
(92,832) 

$2,958,552 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Years ended December 31, 
1993 1992 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Borrowings: 

Gross proceeds from borrowings 
Repayment of borrowings 

Participations; 
Repayments to participants 

Capital: 
Collections of receivables from members 

Net cash provided by financing activities ... 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending: 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 
Net cash used for lending activities 

Purchase of property 
Investments of the Special Reserve 
Miscellaneous assets and liabilities 
Net cash used for investing activities . 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Interest and other costs of borrowings 
Income from investments 
Other income 
Administrative expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Allocation to other funds 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and investments 
Net increase in cash and investments 
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and amounts 

paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Interest and other costs of borrowings 
Administrative expenses, including depreciation . 

Provision for loan losses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Increase (decrease) resulting from exchange rate fluctuations: 

Borrowings 
Loans outstanding 

$ 3,940,988 
(2,399,741) 

(37,397) 

164,495 
1,668,345 

(3,335,831) 
1,787,561 

(1,548,270) 
(15,934) 

(210,907) 
17,213 

(1,757,898) 

1,805,233 
(1,608,446) 

486,929 
(16,397) 

(162,410) 
504,909 

81,591 
$ 496,947 

$ 395,407 

(59,066) 
5,174 

49,353 
16,193 
97,848 

$ 504,909 

493,509 
489,894 

$ 5,294,812 
(2,908,251) 

(64,891) 

198,823 
2,520,493 

(2,780,352) 
1,504,329 

(1,276,023) 
(13,964) 

(194,342) 
(33,686) 

(1,518,015) 

1,624,414 
(1,492,911) 

575,656 
(51) 

(147,008) 
560,100 

(50,000) 
(129,944) 

$ 1,382,634 

$ 382,147 

4,677 
28,270 
78,101 
4,905 

62,000 
$ 560,100 

$ (652,835) 
(505,665) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 

Note A—Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies 

Translation of currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States 
dollars; however, the Inter-American Development Bank 
(Bank) conducts its operations in the currencies of all of 
its members. Such currencies have been derived from cap
ital and borrowed sources including earnings from each. 
Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than 
the United States dollar are generally translated at approx
imate market rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of 
the financial statements. Income and expenses in such cur
rencies are generally translated at the approximate market 
rates of exchange prevailing during each month. Fluctua
tions of rates of exchange of currencies received from cap
ital subscriptions do not have any effect on the United 
States dollar equivalent of such currencies because of the 
maintenance of value provisions described in Note B. The 
Bank generally follows the policy of holding, investing and 
lending the proceeds of borrowings and the capital sub
scriptions received in the currencies received. 

The adjustments resulting from the translation into 
United States dollars of assets and liabilities denominated 
in borrowed currencies are shown in the Statement of In
come and General Reserve as translation adjustments af
fecting the General Reserve directly. 

Exchange gains or losses realized upon conversion of 
one borrowed currency into another are generally insig
nificant and are recorded in other income. 

No representation is made that any currency held in 
the Ordinary Capital is convertible into any other currency 
at any rate or rates. 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Bank in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

Cash: The carrying amount reported in the Balance 
Sheet for cash approximates fair value. 

Investments: Fair values for investment securities 
are based on quoted market prices, where available. 
If quoted market prices are not available, fair values 
are based on quoted market prices of comparable 
instruments. 

Loans: The Bank is one of very few lenders of de
velopment and structural adjustment loans to Latin 
American countries. There is no secondary market 

for development loans. The Bank has three cate
gories of loans: (a) fixed-rate loans; (b) fixed-at-dis-
bursement-rate loans; and (c) variable-rate loans. The 
interest rate on variable-rate loans is reset semiannu
ally. For all loans and related commitments, the Bank 
is of the opinion that due to its unique position in its 
lending operations and the absence of a secondary 
market, it is not practicable to estimate a fair value 
for the Bank's lending portfolio at this time. 

Off-balance-sheet instruments: Fair values for the 
Bank's interest and currency swaps are based on pric
ing models. Fair values for the Bank's futures con
tracts are based on market prices. 

Borrowings: The fair values of the Bank's borrow
ings are based on quoted market prices, where avail
able. If quoted market prices are not available, fair 
values are based on quoted market prices of compa
rable instruments. 

Loans 

The Bank makes loans to its developing members, agencies 
or political subdivisions of such members or to private en
terprises located in their territories. In the case of loans to 
borrowers other than national governments, central banks 
or other governmental or inter-governmental entities, in
cluding the Inter-American Investment Corporation (IIC), 
the Bank has followed the general policy, since 1967, of 
requiring that the government, or an entity thereof engag
ing the full faith and credit of the government, guarantee 
the loan. Under the loan contracts with the borrowers, the 
Bank may sell participations in the loans to commercial 
banks or other public or private organizations, but it re
serves to itself the administration of the loans. The prin
cipal amount of loans is repayable in the currencies lent. 
For loans approved on or after July 1982, except for the 
loan to IIC as described in Note E, the repayment obliga
tions of borrowers in various currencies are determined 
on the basis of an Exchange Risk Sharing System (Cur
rency Pooling System), which is designed to equalize 
exchange risks among borrowers. Interest on loans is ac
crued in the currencies lent. 

The Bank has a policy of not rescheduling loan re
payments. The Bank follows the policy of reviewing the 
collectibility of loans on a continuous basis and records 
provisions for loan losses in accordance with its determi
nation of collectibility risk of the total loan portfolio. The 
Bank ceases to accrue income under all loans in a country 
when service under any loan to or guaranteed by a bor
rower in such country, made from any fund owned or ad
ministered by the Bank, is overdue for more than 180 days; 
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FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS 

ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

income is recorded thereafter only as it is collected, until 
loan service is current under all loans. 

Direct costs associated with originating loans are con
sidered immaterial and are expensed as incurred. 

Property 

Property is recorded at cost. Major improvements are cap
italized while routine replacements, maintenance and re
pairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is computed 
on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives (30 
to 40 years for buildings and 3 to 7 years for equipment). 

Unamortized borrowing costs 

Legal, accounting and rating agency fees, printing costs 
and other expenses associated with the issuance of bonds 
are amortized on a straight-line method over the term of 
the bonds. 

Administrative expenses 

Substantially all administrative expenses of the Bank, in
cluding depreciation, are allocated between the Ordinary 
Capital and the Fund for Special Operations pursuant to 
an allocation method approved by the Board of Executive 
Directors. For 1993, the Board of Executive Directors re
vised the methodology for calculating the allocation of ad
ministrative expenses between the Ordinary Capital and 
the Fund for Special Operations. During 1993, such ex
penses were charged 65.7% to the Ordinary Capital and 
34.3% to the Fund for Special Operations (1992—59.9% 
and 40.1%, respectively). 

Interest rate and currency swaps 

The difference to be paid or received for interest on in
terest rate and currency swaps is recorded as part of bor
rowing expenses over the life of the respective agreements. 
The net asset or liability relating to swap transactions is 
shown in the Balance Sheet under Other assets—Miscel
laneous or Accounts payable and accrued expenses. 

Note B—Maintenance of Value 

In accordance with the Agreement Establishing the Inter-
American Development Bank (Agreement), each member 
is required to maintain the value of its currency held in 
the Ordinary Capital, except for currency derived from 
borrowings. Likewise, the Bank is required to return to a 
member an amount of its currency equal to any significant 
increase in value of such member's currency which is held 

in the Ordinary Capital, except for currency derived from 
borrowings. The standard of value for these purposes is 
the United States dollar of the weight and fineness in ef
fect on January 1, 1959 (see Note J). 

Note C—Restricted Currencies 

Cash includes $216,514,000 (1992—$198,554,000) in the 
non-convertible currencies of regional borrowing mem
bers, of which $84,306,000 (1992—$78,210,000) has been 
restricted by one of the members, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Agreement, to be used for making pay
ments for goods and services produced in its territory. 

Note D — Investments 

The investments of the Bank—Ordinary Capital—which 
consist of obligations of governments and their corpora
tions and agencies and of banks, are stated at amortized cost 
which approximates market value. The amortized cost and 
estimated market value of investments, including 
$1,543,860,000 as of December 31, 1993 and $1,334,183,000 
as of December 31, 1992, corresponding to investments of 
the Special Reserve, are shown in Appendix 1-1. 

Proceeds from sales of investments during 1993 and 
1992 were $26,080,804,000 and $31,465,071,000, respec
tively. Gross gains of $74,072,000 and gross losses of 
$24,311,000 were realized on those sales in 1993 (1992 — 
$84,997,000 and $22,082,000, respectively). The average 
return on investments during 1993 and 1992 was 5.24% 
and 6.90%, respectively. 

The Bank limits its activities of investing in securities 
to a list of authorized dealers and counterparties. Strict 
credit limits have been established for each counterparty 
by type of instrument and maturity category. 

As part of its overall portfolio management strategy, the 
Bank is a party to financial futures contracts calling for a 
delayed delivery of securities or money market instruments 
in which the seller agrees to make delivery at a specified 
future date of a specified instrument, at a specified price or 
yield. At December 31, 1993, the total contract value of fu
tures contracts was $100,000,000. At December 31,1993, the 
Bank had no exposure to credit loss on futures contracts 
due to potential nonperformance of counterparties. 

In May 1993, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued a new standard, "Accounting for Certain In
vestments in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS 115). SEAS 
115, effective for the Bank as of January 1, 1994, requires 
the Bank to classify its liquid investment portfolio as held-
to-maturity, available for sale, or trading. 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

The Bank has decided to classify its entire liquid in
vestment portfolio as trading. In accordance with SFAS 
115, investments classified as trading are to be reported at 
estimated market value with unrealized gains and losses 
included in net income. Therefore, effective January 1, 
1994, the liquid investment portfolio will be reported at 
estimated market value with unrealized gains and losses 
included in net income. The initial adoption of SFAS 115 
will result in the recognition of a net unrealized gain of 
$57,166,000. 

Note E—Loans Outstanding 

Approved loans are disbursed to borrowers in accordance 
with the requirements of the project being financed; how
ever, disbursements do not begin until the borrower and 
guarantor, if any, take certain actions and furnish certain 
documents to the Bank. Of the undisbursed balances, the 
Bank has entered into irrevocable commitments to dis
burse approximately $52,596,000 at December 31, 1993. 

In 1992, the Bank approved a loan to the IIC, in the 
amount of $210,000,000. Disbursements under this loan, 
which is denominated in U.S. dollars only and carries a 
Libor-based interest rate, started in 1993 and amounted to 
$75,000,000 in the aggregate as of December 31, 1993. 

The Intermediate Financing Facility Account (IFF) 
was established in 1983 by the Board of Governors of the 
Bank for the purpose of providing to certain borrowers 
part of the interest payments for which they are liable on 
loans from the capital resources of the Bank. During 1993 
the IFF paid $23,747,000 (1992—$21,364,000) of such in
terest on behalf of the borrowers. The IFF is funded pri
marily from the General Reserve of the Bank's Fund for 
Special Operations. 

As of December 31, 1993, the only loans in nonac-
crual status pursuant to the policy described in Note A 
were those made to or guaranteed by Suriname with an 
outstanding balance of $13,198,000, of which $681,000 was 
overdue. In 1992, the Bank received payment of all 
amounts overdue on loans to borrowers in Panama, which 
came out of nonaccrual status. The effect of the foregoing 
resulted in a decrease in income in 1993 of $978,000, and 
in an increase in income in 1992 of $23,500,000. 

On February 10, 1994, the Bank received payment of 
all amounts overdue on loans to borrowers in Suriname, 
which came out of nonaccrual status. As a result, income 
from loans for the year ending December 31, 1994, will be 
increased by $978,000, corresponding to income that 
would have been accrued in previous years. 

Changes to the accumulated allowance for loan losses 
were as follows (in thousands): 

1993 1992 
Balance at January 1 $614,150 $552,150 
Provision for loan losses 97,848 62,000 
Balance at December 31 $711,998 $614,150 

The average interest rate earned on loans outstand
ing, which includes the special commission (see Note G), 
was 8.06% in 1993 and 8.25% in 1992. In addition to the 
interest rate, the Bank charges a credit commission of 
.75% (1.25% on loans approved prior to January 1, 1989) 
per annum on the undisbursed convertible currency por
tion of loans, and a one-time inspection and supervision 
fee of 1 % on the principal amount of the loans, which is 
capitalized into the loan balance in installments during the 
disbursement period of the loan. On January 22, 1992, the 
Board of Executive Directors approved waivers of the 
amount of inspection and supervision fees accrued during 
the period January 1 to June 30, 1992, and the amount of 
credit commissions in excess of .25% during the same pe
riod. On September 30, 1992, the Board of Executive Di
rectors approved a six-month waiver of all of the amount 
of inspection and supervision fees accrued during the pe
riod July 1 to December 31, 1992 and all of the amount of 
credit commissions during the same period. No waivers 
were approved during the year ended December 31, 1993. 
The average return on loans outstanding was 8.66% in 
1993 and 8.31% in 1992. 

The average interest rate on outstanding and accruing 
loans was 7.06% in 1993 and 7.14% in 1992; the average 
return on outstanding and accruing loans was 8.66% in 
1993 and 8.19% in 1992. 

The average maturity and the average interest rates 
for loans outstanding at December 31, 1993 and 1992, are 
as follows (in thousands): 

Loans at: 

Outstanding 
balance 

1993 1992 

Average 
maturity Average 
(years) interest rate 

1993 1992 1993 1992 

Fixed rate $ 4,730,437 $ 5,614,249 3.63 4.03 8.65% 8.67% 
Fixed-at-

disbursement 
rate 11,452,871 11,152,961 6.27 6.65 8.00% 8.10% 

Variable rate .. 5,995,695 3,330,855 10.34 10.86 7.22% 7.53% 

Total $22,179,003 $20,098,065 6.80 6.62 8.17% 8.16% 
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December 31, 1993 and 1992 

Note F—Property 

The property of the Bank—Ordinary Capital—consists of 
the following (in thousands): 

December 31, 

1993 1992 
Land, buildings, improvements and 

equipment, at cost $329,905 $313,972 
Less: accumulated depreciation .... (75,357) (62,043) 

$254,548 $251,929 

Note G — Special Reserve 

The amount of special commissions earned by the Bank 
on loans made out of the Ordinary Capital resources is 
segregated as a special reserve for meeting the Bank's ob
ligations created by borrowing or by guaranteeing loans. 
On all loans granted to date, the rate of commission is 1% 
per annum. 

The following is a summary of changes in the Special 
Reserve (in thousands): 

1993 1992 
Balance at January 1 $1,401,661 $1,197,239 
Allocation of special 

commissions 214,756 195,101 
Translation adjustments (9,896) 9,321 
Balance at December 31 $1,606,521 $1,401,661 

The Special Reserve investments consist of the follow
ing (in thousands): 

December 31, 

1993 1992 
Investments 

Obligations of United States 
Government and its 
corporations and agencies, at 
amortized cost which 
approximates market $1,543,860 $1,334,183 

Accrued loan commissions 62,661 67,478 
$1,606,521 $1,401,661 

Note H—Borrowings 

The borrowings of the Bank consist of loans, notes and 
bonds issued in various regional and nonregional member 
currencies, at interest rates ranging from 2.74% to 14.15%. 
The average cost of outstanding borrowings during 1993 
and 1992 was 7.26% and 7.71%, respectively, before swaps, 
and 7.21% and 7.63%, respectively, after swaps. 

Sinking fund requirements and maturities subsequent 
to December 31, 1993 are as indicated in Appendix 1-3. 

Costs of $17,712,000 in 1993 and $25,767,000 in 1992, 
reflecting premiums on purchases of bonds pursuant to ad
vance redemption provisions, are recorded in Other income. 

Borrowings at fair value at December 31, 1993 and 
1992, amounted to $26,087,606,000 and $22,448,000,000, 
respectively. 

Note I — Interest Rate and Currency Swaps 

The Bank has entered into currency swaps in which the 
proceeds of a borrowing are exchanged for a different cur
rency and, simultaneously, a forward exchange agreement 
is executed providing for a schedule of future exchanges 
of the two currencies in order to recover the currency ex
changed. The combination of a borrowing and a currency 
swap produces the financial equivalent of substituting a 
borrowing in the currency obtained in the initial conver
sion for the original borrowing. The Bank also undertakes 
interest rate swaps, which transform a fixed-rate payment 
obligation in a particular currency into a floating-rate ob
ligation in that currency and vice-versa. The Bank incurs 
no risk as a result of the fluctuations of the exchange rates 
applicable to currency swap transactions because of its pol
icy of holding and investing the corresponding proceeds 
in the same currencies. 

At December 31, 1993, the Bank had gross receivables 
from currency swaps at a book value of $1,651,840,000 
(1992—$1,500,529,000) and gross payables from cur
rency swaps at a book value of $1,880,998,000 (1992— 
$1,640,874,000). In addition, the Bank had interest rate swap 
contracts covering a notional principal amount of 
$948,989,000 on December 31, 1993 (1992—$851,802,000). 

At December 31, 1993 and 1992, the Bank was ex
posed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by its 
counterparties in an aggregate amount of $62,332,000 and 
$24,313,000, respectively, for outstanding currency swaps, 
and $17,319,000 and $17,679,000, respectively, for out
standing interest rate swaps, representing the estimated 
cost of replacing at current market rates all those outstand
ing swaps for which the Bank would incur a loss in replac
ing the contracts. 
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The Bank follows guidelines regarding the counter
parties with whom it will enter into swap agreements and 
establishes credit limits for each of those counterparties. 
The Bank does not anticipate nonperformance by any of 
its counterparties. The net liability for principal and inter
est on swap agreements at December 31, 1993, amounting 
to the equivalent of $209,902,000 (1992—$117,162,000), 
is shown in the Balance Sheet under Accounts payable and 
accrued expenses. 

The fair value of the liability arising from currency 
and interest rate swaps as of December 31, 1993 is 
$300,110,000 (1992—$187,247,000) and $35,204,000 
(1992—$20,020,000), respectively. 

Note J—Capital Stock 

Composition 

The capital of the Bank consists of "paid-in" and "call
able" shares. The subscribed "paid-in" capital has been or 
is to be paid in gold and/or United States dollars and in 
the currency of the respective member, which in some 
cases must be made freely convertible, in accordance with 
the terms for the respective increase in capital. Non-
negotiable, non-interest bearing demand obligations have 
been or will be accepted in lieu of part of the member's 
subscription to the "paid-in" capital. The subscribed "call
able" portion of capital may only be called when required 
to meet obligations of the Bank created by borrowings of 
funds for inclusion in the Bank's Ordinary Capital resources 
or guarantees chargeable to such resources and is payable 
at the option of the member either in gold, in United States 
dollars, in fully convertible currency of the member country, 
or in the currency required to discharge the obligations of 
the Bank for the purpose for which the call is made. 

Valuation 

The Agreement provides that the Ordinary Capital be ex
pressed in terms of United States dollars of the weight and 
fineness in effect on January 1, 1959. The Second Amend
ment to the Articles of Agreement of the International 
Monetary Fund eliminated par values of currencies in 
terms of gold effective April 1, 1978, and consequently the 
General Counsel of the Bank has rendered an opinion that 
the Special Drawing Right (SDR) has become the succes
sor to the 1959 United States dollar as the standard of 
value of the Bank's capital stock and for the purpose of 
maintaining the value of the Bank's currency holdings. 
The SDR has a value equal to the sum of the values of specific 
amounts of stated currencies, including the United States dol
lar. Pending a decision by the Bank's governing boards, and 
as suggested in the General Counsel's opinion, the Bank is 
continuing its practice of using the 1959 United States dollar, 

which pursuant to the devaluations of the United States dollar 
in 1972 and 1973 is equal to approximately 1.2063 current 
United States dollars, as the basis of valuation. 

In these terms, at December 31, 1993 the subscribed 
capital was $54,197,624,000 (4,492,720 shares of approxi
mately $12,063 each) consisting of $3,170,137,000 
(262,789 shares) of "paid-in" capital and $51,027,487,000 
(4,229,931 shares) of "callable" capital. If the SDR were 
to have been substituted for the 1959 United States dollar 
on December 31, 1993, subscribed capital would have to
talled $61,713,187,000, consisting of $3,609,739,000 of 
"paid-in" capital and $58,103,448,000 of "callable" capital. 
Such substitution would not have materially affected either 
the overall financial position or the results of operations of 
the Bank—Ordinary Capital. For a statement of subscribed 
capital at December 31, 1993, see Appendix 1-4. 

Changes for the period 

In January 1990, an increase in the capital stock of the 
Bank was approved in the amount of $26,500,007,000, 
consisting of $662,705,000 of "paid-in" capital and 
$25,837,302,000 of "callable" capital. 

The composition of subscribed capital and amounts 
receivable from members for the years ended December 
31, 1993 and 1992 are as follows (in thousands): 

Subscribed capital 

Amount 

Shares Paid-in Callable Total 

Balance at January 1, 
1992 3,403,953 $2,838,115 $38,225,241 $41,063,356 

Subscriptions to the 
increase of capital 
approved in 1990 .. 1,086,778 329,634 12,780,640 13,110,274 

Balance at December 
31,1992 4,490,731 3,167,749 51,005,881 54,173,630 

Subscriptions to the 
increase of capital 
approved in 1990 .. 1,989 2,388 21,606 23,994 

Balance at December 
31, 1993 4,492,720 $3,170,137 $51,027,487 $54,197,624 

Receivable from m e m b e r s A m o u n t 

1993 

Regional developing m e m b e r s $314,882 
Uni ted States 75,672 
Canada 17,009 
Non-regional m e m b e r s 15,335 

1992 

$394,633 
141,105 

18,034 
29,519 

Total $422,898 $583,291 
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O n January 31, 1994, 70% of the final installment 
was subscribed, leaving $48,230,000 of "paid-in", and 
$1,909,931,000 of "callable" capital to be subscribed. 

M e m b e r s h i p 

On April 21, 1993, the Bank's Board of Executive Directors 
decided that the Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia 
(SFRY) had ceased to be a member of the Bank and that 
the Republic of Bosnia and Herzegovina, the Republic of 
Croatia, the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, the 
Republic of Slovenia and the Federal Republic of Yugosla
via (Serbia and Montenegro) are authorized to succeed to 
the SFRYs membership. Accordingly, the shares repre
senting SFRYs membership in the Ordinary Capital of the 
Bank have been classified as unallocated until each suc
cessor republic succeeds to the membership of the SFRY. 
The. Republics of Croatia and Slovenia have since become 
members of the Bank. The Republic of Croatia was allo
cated 1,142 shares, of which 1,018 shares have been sub
scribed through December 31, 1993, and the Republic of 
Slovenia was allocated 655 shares, of which 584 shares have 
been subscribed through December 31, 1993. On June 21, 
1993 the Government of the Republic of Macedonia de
clined the offer to succeed to the membership of the SFRY 
in the Bank. 

N o t e K — G e n e r a l R e s e r v e 

In accordance with resolutions of the Board of Governors, 
the net income from the Ordinary Capital resources of the 
Bank, after allocation to the Special Reserve (see Note G), 
and after $50,000,000 of Unallocated Net Income in 1991 
(see Note L), has been added to a General Reserve to pro
vide for possible annual excess of expenses over income. 

The adjustments resulting from the translation into 
United States dollars of assets and liabilities denominated 
in borrowed currencies are made directly to the General 
Reserve. Such adjustments consist of the following (in 
thousands): 

Years ended 
December 31, 

1993 1992 

Cumulative adjustment, beginning 
ofyear $(16,251) $76,581 

Translation adjustments 
for the year 11,780 (92,832) 

Cumulative adjustment, 
end of year $ (4,471) $(16,251) 

N o t e L — U n a l l o c a t e d N e t I n c o m e 

In 1991, the Board of Governors resolved to maintain 
$50,000,000 of 1991 net income as Unallocated Net In
come, which was allocated by the Board of Executive Di
rectors in J u n e 1992, as follows: $35,000,000 to the Inter
mediate Financing Facility Account and $15,000,000 to the 
Fund for Special Operations for the financing of technical 
cooperation. 

N o t e M — R e t i r e m e n t P lans 

D e s c r i p t i o n 

The Bank has one Staff Retirement Plan (Plan) for the 
benefit of its international employees and the employees 
of the IIC and one for the benefit of local employees in 
the country offices. Both plans are defined benefit plans. 

F u n d i n g p o l i c y 

The Plan is funded by employee and Bank contributions 
at the rates of 10% and 24% of payroll, respectively. In 
accordance with the provisions of the Plan, any and all 
contributions to the Plan by the Bank shall be irrevocable, 
and shall be held by the Bank separately in the Retirement 
Fund, to be used in accordance with the provisions of the 
Plan, and neither such contributions nor any income 
thereon shall be used for or diverted to purposes other than 
the exclusive benefit of participants and retired participants 
or their beneficiaries or estates under the Plan prior to the 
satisfaction of all liabilities with respect thereto. 

T y p e s o f a s s e t s 

The assets of the Retirement Fund are invested by several 
independent investment managers, principally in govern
ment, corporate and other bonds, common stocks and real 
estate investment funds. 

P e n s i o n c o s t s 

Total pension costs for 1993 and 1992 were $24,833,000 
and $21,400,000, respectively, and were charged to admin
istrative expenses and allocated to the Ordinary Capital 
and to the Fund for Special Operations as indicated in 
Note A. The portion of this cost that relates to the Ordi
nary Capital for the year ended December 31, 1993 is 
$16,315,000 (1992—$12,819,000). The balance has been 
charged to the Fund for Special Operations. 
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C o m p o n e n t s o f p e n s i o n c o s t s 

Pension costs consist of the following (in thousands): 

Years ended 
December 31, 

1993 1992 

Servicecost $24,486 $22,292 
Interest cost on projected benefit 

obligation 57,313 52,153 
Amortization of prior service costs .. 593 593 
Net actuarial loss/(gain) deferred ... 24,557 (13,789) 
Less: Actual return on Plan assets ... (82,116) (39,849) 

$ 24,833 $21,400 

Reconciliation of Plan assets based on December 31, 
1993 valuation of the Plan (in thousands): 

Obligation at December 31, 1993 
Non-vested benefits 
Vested benefits 

Accumulated benefits 
Effect of future salary increases 

Projected benefit obligation at 
December 31, 1993 

Plan assets at December 31, 1993 

Projected benefit obligation in excess of 
Plan assets 

Remaining unrecognized net obligation at 
December 31, 1993 

Unrecognized loss 

Prepaid pension cost recognized in the 
Balance Sheet 

$ 72,511 
555,587 

628,098 
195,582 

823,680 
785,436 

(38,244) 

5,931 
32,854 

$ 541 

The unrecognized net transition obligation is being 
amortized over 15 years. 

Actuarial assumptions 
Weighted average assumed discount rate 6.25% 
Weighted average expected long-term rate of 

return 7.00% 
Weighted average rate of salary increases 6.78% 

N o t e N — N o n - P e n s i o n R e t i r e m e n t Benef i t s 

The Bank provides certain health care and other benefits 
to retirees. All current staff who contribute to the Staff 
Retirement Plan while in active service and who meet cer
tain requirements will be eligible for postretirement ben
efits when they retire under the Bank's ret i rement plans. 

F u n d i n g p o l i c y a n d ty pe o f a s s e t s 

The postretirement benefits plan was funded by the Bank 
during 1991. At December 31, 1993, the Plan's assets were 
invested primarily in trust and mutual funds which invest in 
government, corporate and other bonds and common stocks. 

C o m p o n e n t s o f p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t s c o s t s 

Postretirement benefits costs consist of the following (in 
thousands): 

Years ended 
December 31, 

1993 

Servicecost $10,888 
21,245 

496 

3,974 
6,777 

1992 

Interest cost 
Prior service cost 
Amortization of unrecognized 

obligation 
Net actuarial gain 
Actual return on assets (24,121) 

$ 19,259 

$ 9,324 
17,976 

38 

3,223 
5,284 

(20,264) 

$ 15,581 

Postretirement benefit costs are included in adminis
trative expenses and allocated between the Ordinary Cap
ital and the Fund for Special Operations in accordance 
with the allocation method discussed in Note A. 

Contributions to the Plan for the years ended Decem
ber 31, 1993 and 1992 amounted to $19,259,000 and 
$12,678,000, respectively. The portion of this cost that re
lates to the Ordinary Capital is included in administrative 
expenses for the year ended December 31, 1993 was 
$12,653,000 (1992—$7,594,000), under the allocation 
method discussed in Note A. 

Reconciliation of Plan assets based on December 31, 
1993 valuation of the Plan (in thousands): 

Obligation at December 31, 1993 
Accumulated postretirement benefits obligation: 

Retirees $138,567 
Fully eligible active plan participants 73,086 
Other active plan participants 122,316 

333,969 
Plan assets at December 31, 1993 246,331 

Accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation in excess of plan assets (87,638) 

Unrecognized items: 
Prior service cost 352 
Net actuarial loss 87,554 

Prepaid postretirement benefit 
cost $ 268 
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Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the 
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation are amor
tized over the average remaining life of active participants 
of approximately 12.0 years. 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Weighted average assumed discount rate 6.25% 
Weighted average expected long-term rate of 

return 7.00% 
Weighted average rate of salary increases 6.78% 

For measurement purposes, an initial annual rate of 
increase in the per capita cost of covered health care ben
efits ranging from 9.5% to 7.0% was used for those partic
ipants assumed to retire in the United States. The rate was 
assumed to decrease gradually over 30 years to an ultimate 
rate of approximately 5%. For those participants assumed 
to retire outside of the United States a 5% increase was 
assumed. Increasing the assumed health care cost trend 
rates by one percentage point would increase the accu
mulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 
31, 1993 by $53,251,000 and the net periodic postretire
ment benefit cost for the year then ended by $5,626,000. 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENTS—NOTE D 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Amortized 
cost 

Investments 1993 
Obligations of the United States 

Government and its corporations 
and agencies $4,017,239 

Obligations of other 
governments 2,303,505 

Bankers' acceptances 73,285 
Time deposits 2,689,711 

$9,083,740 
Special Reserve investments (1,543,860) 

$7,539,880 

1992 

Gross 
unrealized 

gains 
1993 1992 

Gross 
unrealized 

losses 

Estimated 
market 
value 

1993 

$3,369,230 $17,318 $16,709 $(4,228) 

12,646 (234) 1,574,165 
43,547 

3,427,633 
$8,414,575 
(1,334,183) 
$7,080,392 

1992 

$(4,416) 

(1,694) 

1993 1992 

44,261 
4 

45 
$61,628 $29,363 $(4,462) $(6,110) $9,140,906 $8,437,828 

$4,030,329 $3,381,523 

2,347,532 1,585,117 
73,289 43,555 

2,689,756 3,427,633 

The amortized cost and estimated market value of the above investments by contractual maturity are as follows: 

Amortized 
cost 

Estimated 
market value 

1993 

Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years 

$6,405,701 
2,257,916 

420,123 
$9,083,740 

1992 1993 
$5,747,586 

2,547,499 
119,490 

$8,414,575 

$6,410,539 
2,299,762 

430,605 
$9,140,906 

1992 
$5,749,231 

2,568,926 
119,671 

$8,437,828 

The freely convertible currencies of the above investments are as follows: 

Currencies 
Austrian schillings 
Belgian francs 
British pounds sterling . 
Canadian dollars 
Danish kroner 
European currency units 
Finnish markka 
French francs 
German marks 
Italian lire 

1993 
$ 4,689 
22,445 
134,013 
371,791 
11,232 

7,348 
61,486 
628,568 
202,849 

1992 
$ 4,182 
21,189 
83,056 

294,511 
9,895 
35,175 
6,556 
56,415 
760,472 
197,345 

Currencies 1993 1992 

Japanese yen 
Netherlands guilders 
Norwegian kroner .. 
Portuguese escudos . 
Spanish pesetas 
Swedish kronor 
Swiss francs 
United States dollars 
Venezuelan bolivars . 

$1,484,922 
291,361 

5,148 
2,311 

90,408 
17,289 

277,534 
5,230,853 

239,493 
$9,083,740 

$1,492,062 
44,152 

4,597 
1,952 

31,181 
15,922 

809,903 
4,334,616 

211,394 
$8,414,575 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE E 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Member in whose 
territory loans have 
been made 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 
Inter-American 

Investment 
Corporation 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 

$ 6 ,381,653 
176,298 
187,842 

,059,714 
,011,802 
,133,859 
,986,616 
662,996 
501,857 
,620,753 
690,857 
612,744 
109,634 
596,263 
789,686 
472,736 
258,693 
905,302 
526,789 
052,708 

15,286 
529,288 
082,995 
407,003 
,834,370 

Principal 
collected 

$ 1,749,085 
3,543 

20,689 
122,348 

2,710,791 
964,853 

1,004,101 
164,523 
81,885 

270,464 
167,725 
197,352 

19,323 
98,127 

180,586 
2,340,857 

53,639 
197,471 
58,282 

438,855 
916 
432 

149,730 
192,799 
375,291 

Loans 
sold 

or agreed 
to be sold Undisbursed 
$118,060 $ 

14,000 
59,740 

121,589 
172,705 

1,520 
200 

103,257 
15,251 
40,725 

18,060 

22,186 
1,794 

58,000 
429 

122,662 

13,951 
5,768 
1,000 

Currency in which 
outstanding portion of 

approved loans is 
collectible 

Freely 
convertible 

Outstanding currencies 
Other Outstanding 

currencies 1992 

210 

1,735,537 
54,218 

100,286 
310,569 

2,370,277 
634,197 

1,376,570 
1,012,115 

209,903 
396,792 
348,857 
115,118 

187,219 
251,589 

1,369,698 
99,949 

420,874 
349,916 
461,167 

1,173 
342,345 
391,618 

1,887,671 
546,594 

135 

2,778,971 
118,537 
66,867 

612,797 
2,870,994 
2,413,220 
2,433,240 

484,838 
209,869 
850,240 
159,024 
259,549 

90,311 
292,857 
357,511 

3,739,995 
103,311 
228,957 
118,162 

1,030,024 
13,197 

186,511 
527,696 

1,320,765 
911,485 

75 

2,732,683 
118,537 
66,724 

607,316 
2,801,617 
2,397,894 
2,426,413 

484,838 
209,869 
849,122 
157,716 
258,517 

90,311 
292,857 
356,072 

3,724,085 
103,311 
228,667 
117,008 

1,025,371 
13,197 

186,511 
527,677 

1,320,765 
911,485 

75 

$ 46,288 $ 

143 
5,481 

69,377 
15,326 
6,827 

1,118 
1,308 
1,032 

1,439 
15,910 

290 
1,154 
4,653 

19 

1,906,880 
105,579 
65,963 

541,124 
2,798,297 
2,387,303 
2,416,236 

422,409 
192,269 
813,688 
135,891 
257,962 
97,257 

245,280 
318,202 

3,548,909 
85,708 

237,021 
112,277 
841,407 

11,979 
120,068 
402,936 

1,205,250 
828,170 

Total 1993 $49,607,954 $11,563,667 $890,897 $14,974,387 $22,179,003 $22,008,638 $170,365 

Total 1992 $43,805,375 $9,767,615 $891,045 $13,048,650 $19,914,749 $183,316 $20,098,065 

The freely convertible currencies in which the outstanding portion of approved loans is collectible are as follows: 

Currencies 1993 1992 Currencies 1993 1992 
Austrian schillings 
British pounds sterling . 
Canadian dollars 
European currency units 
German marks 
Japanese yen 
Netherlands guilders 

S 9,009 
198,185 

17,832 
4,379 

1,812,396 
7,227,456 

713,543 

% 13,043 
280,752 

71,412 
69,467 

2,075,933 
6,137,845 

840,337 

Spanish pesetas 
Swedish kronor 
Swiss francs 
Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
United States dollars 
Venezuelan bolivars 

4,624,445 
730 

7,397,636 
3,027 

49,110 
30 

3,509,210 
1,318 

6,862,353 
3,939 

$22,008,638 $19,914,749 
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I N T E R - A M E R I C A N D E V E L O P M E N T B A N K 
A P P E N D I X 1-3 

STATEMENT OF BORROWINGS—NOTE H 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Borrowings Swap agreements Net currency obligations 

Principal outstanding 

Payable 1993 1992 

Austrian schillings 
British pounds sterling . 
Canadian dollars 
European currency units 
French francs 

81,900 
498,815 
528,701 

203,545 

88,075 
509,147 
353,941 
120,511 

Weighted 
average 

cost (%) 

1993 

7.84 
10.94 
8.63 

— 7.00 
2,217,103 2,875,849 7.39 German marks 

Japanese yen 8,372,870 7,535,840 

Netherlands guilders 
Portuguese escudos  
Spanish pesetas 
Swiss francs 
Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
United States dollars 

1,262,281 
65,041 

209,996 
3,450,457 

6,533,705 

1,154,936 
78,360 

261,233 
3,175,986 

1,896 
5,233,885 

Total $23,424,414 $21,389,659 

5.65 

7.46 
12.00 
12.05 
6.23 

8.20 

6.98 

Currency swap 
payable (receivable) 

1993 1992 

Weighted 
average cost 

(return) 
(%) (a) 

1993 

$ (81,900) $ (88,075) (7.84) 
(103,688) (105,836) (10.49) 
(528,701) (353,941) (8.63) 

(203,545) 

(223,994) 
215,034 

(154,567) 
(65,041) 

(209,996) 
536,044 

(80,407) 
1,129,920 

(247,066) 
(120,240) 

(165,371) 
(78,360) 

(261,233) 
361,954 

(80,407) 
1,278,920 

(7.00) 

(5.29) 
4.86 

(8.29) 
(12.00) 
(12.05) 

5.54 

(13.38) 
7.28 

1993 1992 

Due 
dates 

1993 

$ — $ — 

395,127 403,311 1995/15 

— 120,511 1993 

2,217,103 2,628,783 1994/03 

8,363,910 7,415,600 1994/17 
1,107,714 989,565 1994/03 

3,986,501 3,537,940 1994/05 
— 1,896 

7,583,218 6,432,398 1994/23 

(a) T h e weighted average cost of borrowings ou ts tand ing at December 31 , 1993, after adjustment for swap activities, was 6.89% (at 
December 3 1 , 1992—7.19%) . 

Sinking fund requirements and maturities subsequent to December 31, 1993 are approximately equivalent to the following: 

Year 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999/03 
2004/08 
2009/13 
2014/18 
2019/23 

Amount 
$ 786,202 

2,016,187 
1,844,865 
2,881,735 
1,880,867 

10,831,805 
1,670,950 

595,673 
616,130 
300,000 

$23,424,414 
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A P P E N D I X 1-4 

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK—NOTE J 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Members 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Croatia 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 
Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Slovenia 
Spain 
Suriname  
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
Total before unallocated amount 
Unallocated (see Note J) 

Total 1993 

Shares 

522,017 
3,565 

10,089 
6,244 
8,448 
3,978 

41,904 
522,017 
197,169 
143,335 
143,232 
20,947 

1,018 
3,797 

27,964 
27,964 
20,947 
3,565 

43,399 
44,450 
27,964 

7,767 
13,300 
20,947 

3,514 
43,399 
27,964 
48,413 

335,560 
6,598 

20,947 
3,797 

20,947 
20,947 
69,951 

1,143 
584 

43,399 
4,258 
7,391 
9,691 

20,947 
43,399 

1,556,238 
55,967 

279,676 

1,490,757 
1,963 

Paid-in portion of 
subscribed capital 

Freely 
convertible 
currencies 

$ 260,836 
2,485 
7,105 
3,649 
6,044 
2,389 

20,918 
260,836 
142,131 
71,560 
71,548 
10,483 

712 
2,678 

13,957 
13,957 
10,483 
2,485 

30,424 
31,124 
13,958 
4,934 
8,167 

10,483 
2,473 

30,424 
13,958 
33,886 

167,694 
4,584 

10,483 
2,678 

10,483 
10,483 
34,984 

760 
410 

30,424 
3,330 
5,260 
6,743 

10,483 
30,424 

1,090,341 
27,987 
64,129 

2,595,767 
1,363 

Other 
currencies 

$104,059 

4,053 
1,755 

2,389 
8,360 

104,059 

28,566 
28,554 

4,162 

5,573 
5,573 
4,162 

5,573 
2,570 
4,162 
4,162 

5,573 

66,904 

4,162 

4,162 
4,162 

13,957 

2,232 

4,162 

11,171 
138,790 

573,007 

Callable 
portion of 
subscribed 

capital 
$ 5,932,422 

40,521 
110,549 
69,920 
95,868 
43,211 

476,228 
5,932,422 
2,236,403 
1,628,986 
1,627,767 

238,048 
11,569 
43,127 

317,811 
317,811 
238,048 

40,521 
493,117 
505,096 
317,811 

86,193 
148,115 
238,048 

39,918 
493,117 
317,811 
550,141 

3,813,408 
75,010 

238,048 
43,127 

238,048 
238,048 
794,908 

13,028 
6,635 

493,117 
45,805 
83,901 

110,163 
238,048 
493,117 

17,683,231 
635,996 

3,170,933 

51,005,170 
22,317 

Total 
1993 

$ 6,297,317 
43,006 
121,707 
75,324 
101,912 
47,989 
505,506 

6,297,317 
2,378,534 
1,729,112 
1,727,869 
252,693 
12,281 
45,805 
337,341 
337,341 
252,693 
43,006 

523,541 
536,220 
337,342 
93,697 
160,444 
252,693 
42,391 

523,541 
337,342 
584,027 

4,048,006 
79,594 

252,693 
45,805 
252,693 
252,693 
843,849 
13,788 
7,045 

523,541 
51,367 
89,161 
116,906 
252,693 
523,541 

18,773,572 
675,154 

3,373,852 

54,173,944 
23,680 

Total 
1992 

4,492,720 $2,597,130 $573,007 $51,027,487 $54,197,624 
Total 1992 4,490,731 $2,597,131 $570,618 $51,005,881 

S 6,297,317 
43,006 
121,707 
75,324 
101,911 
23,994 
505,506 

6,297,317 
2,378,534 
1,729,111 
1,727,869 
252,693 

45,804 
337,342 
337,342 
252,693 
43,006 
523,541 
536,220 
337,342 
93,698 
160,444 
252,693 
42,391 
523,540 
337,342 
584,027 

4,048,006 
79,594 

252,693 
45,804 
252,694 
252,694 
843,849 
13,789 

523,540 
51,367 
89,161 
116,906 
252,693 
523,540 

18,773,571 
675,155 

3,373,853 
43,007 

$54,173,630 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FUND FOR 

SPECIAL OPERATIONS 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 136 through 145 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Fund for Special Operations at December 31, 1993 
and 1992, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management; our re
sponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of 
these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 10, 1994 
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FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 

Cash 
Investments 

Loans outstanding 
Allowance for loan losses 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 
On loans 

Receivable from members 
Contribution quotas 
Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing 

demand obligations 
Amounts required to maintain value 

of currency holdings 
Property and improvements, net 
Other assets 

Total assets 

December 31, 
1993 

$1,237,985 
780,733 

5,931,793 
(115,100) 

6,172 
36,003 

53,140 

1,423,783 

59,865 

$2,018,718 

5,816,693 

42,175 

1,536,788 
1,042 

24 
$9,415,440 

1992 

$1,228,685 
954,413 

5,818,224 
(115,100) 

10,384 
35,561 

73,349 

1,338,444 

110,993 

$2,183,098 

5,703,124 

45,945 

1,522,786 
1,123 

24 
59,456,100 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued 
expenses 

Undisbursed technical cooperation 
projects and other financings .... 

Advance payments of contribution 
quotas 

Fund balance 
Contribution quotas authorized and 

subscribed 
General Reserve 
Technical cooperation contribution 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 3,739 

212,644 

814 

8,649,103 
534,489 

14,651 

$ 217,197 

9,198,243 

$9,415,440 

$ 29,825 

192,112 

205 

8,666,613 
552,345 

15,000 

$ 222,142 

9,233,958 

,456,100 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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F U N D FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND GENERAL RESERVE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Income 
Loans 

Interest 
Credit commissions 
Service charges 
Supervision and inspection fees 

Investments 
Other 

Total income 

Expenses 
Administrative expenses 

Total expenses 

Income before technical cooperation expense 
Technical cooperation expense 

Net Income 

General Reserve beginning of year 
Translation adjustments 
Allocation to Intermediate Financing 

Facility Account 
General Reserve end of year 

Years ended December 31, 
1993 

$114,755 
4,976 
1,599 
4,248 

125,578 
54,461 

944 
180,983 

93,243 
93,243 

87,740 
85,906 

1,834 
552,345 

(4,190) 

(15,500) 
$534,489 

1992 

$115,374 
5,609 
2,543 
4,007 

127,533 

58,638 
535 

186,706 

101,699 
101,699 

85,007 
50,864 

34,143 

539,491 
(5,789) 

(15,500) 
$552,345 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Capital: 

Collections of receivables from members 
Participations: 

Sales of loans to participants 
Repayments to participants 

Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending: 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 

Net cash used for lending activities . 
Miscellaneous assets and liabilities ... 
Net cash used for investing activities 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income from investments 
Other income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities 

Allocation from the Ordinary Capital 

Transfer to the Intermediate Financing 
Facility Account 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 
and investments 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and investments 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash (used for) 
provided by operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income : 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other 

financings 
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Increase (decrease) resulting from 

exchange rate fluctuations: 
Due from members 
Contribution quotas 

Years ended December 31, 
1993 

$ (25,494) 

7,664 
(18,215) 
(36,045) 

(378,987) 
270,098 

(108,889) 
6,664 

(102,225) 

124,991 
58,501 

944 
(119,919) 

(65,374) 
(857) 

(349) 

(15,500) 

(9,404) 
$(164,380) 

$ 1,834 

(587) 
4,040 

(26,676) 

20,532 
$ (857) 

$ 13,966 
(19,363) 

1992 

$ 249,790 

19,730 
(20,726) 
248,794 

(387,490) 
299,257 
(88,233) 
12,982 

(75,251) 

126,406 
57,852 

535 
(103,223) 

(43,007) 
38,563 

15,000 

(15,500) 

(16,790) 
194,816 

$ 34,143 

(1,127) 
(786) 

(1,524) 

7,857 
$ 38,563 

$ (35,393) 
(46,548) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 3 1 , 1 9 9 3 and 1 9 9 2 

N o t e A — S u m m a r y o f Signif icant A c c o u n t i n g 
P o l i c i e s 

T r a n s l a t i o n o f c u r r e n c i e s 

The financial statements are expressed in United States 
dollars; however, the Inter-American Development Bank 
(Bank) conducts its operations in the currencies of all of 
its members. Assets and liabilities denominated in curren
cies other than the United States dollar are generally trans
lated at approximate market rates of exchange prevailing 
at the dates of the financial statements. Income and ex
penses in such currencies are generally translated at ap
proximate market rates of exchange prevailing during 
each month . Fluctuations of rates of exchange generally 
do not have any effect on the United States dollar equiv
alents of such currencies because of the maintenance of 
value provisions described in Note B. The net adjustments 
resulting from the translation into United States dollars of 
assets, liabilities and contribution quotas which do not 
have maintenance of value protection, being derived from 
the 1983 and 1990 increases in contribution quotas (see 
Note F), are shown in the Statement of Income and Gen
eral Reserve as translation adjustments affecting the Gen
eral Reserve directly. 

No representation is made that any currency held in 
the Fund for Special Operations (FSO) is convertible into 
any other currency at any rate or rates. 

Fair v a l u e s o f financial i n s t r u m e n t s 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Bank in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

Cash : The carrying amount reported in the Balance 
Sheet for cash approximates fair value. 

I n v e s t m e n t s : Fair values for investment securities 
are based on quoted market prices, where available. 
If quoted market prices are not available, fair values 
are based on quoted market prices of comparable 
instruments. 

L o a n s : The Bank is one of very few lenders of de
velopment and structural adjustment loans to Latin 
American countries. There is no secondary market 
for development loans. Interest on all loans within 
the Fund is accrued at fixed rates. For all loans and 
related commitments, the Bank is of the opinion that 
due to its unique position in its lending operations 
and the absence of a secondary market, it is not prac

ticable to estimate a fair value for the Bank's lending 
portfolio at this time. 

L o a n s 

The Bank makes loans to its developing members, agencies 
or political subdivisions of such members or to private en
terprises located in their territories. In the case of loans to 
borrowers other than national governments, central banks 
or other governmental or inter-governmental entities, the 
Bank has followed the general policy, since 1967, of re
quiring that the government, or an entity thereof engaging 
the full faith and credit of the government, guarantee the 
loan. Under the loan contracts with the borrowers, the 
Bank may sell participations in the loans to commercial 
banks or other public or private organizations, but it re
serves to itself the administration of the loans. The prin
cipal amount of loans as well as any accrued interest are 
repayable in the currencies lent. 

The Bank has a policy of not rescheduling loan re
payments. The Bank follows the policy of reviewing the 
collectibility of loans on a continuous basis and records 
provisions for loan losses in accordance with its determi
nation of collectibility risk of the total loan portfolio. The 
Bank ceases to accrue income under all loans in a country 
when service under any loan to or guaranteed by a bor
rower in such country, made from any fund owned or ad
ministered by the Bank, is overdue more than 180 days; 
income is recorded thereafter only as it is collected, until 
loan service is current under all loans. 

Direct costs associated with originating loans are con
sidered immaterial and are expensed as incurred. 

P r o p e r t y a n d i m p r o v e m e n t s 

Property is recorded at cost. Major improvements are cap
italized while routine replacements, maintenance and re
pairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is computed 
on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives (30 
to 40 years for buildings). 

A d m i n i s t r a t i v e e x p e n s e s 

Substantially all administrative expenses of the Bank, in
cluding depreciation, are allocated to the Funds pursuant 
to an allocation method approved by the Board of Exec
utive Directors. In 1993, the Board of Executive Directors 
revised the methodology for calculating the allocation of 
administrative expenses between the Ordinary Capital and 
the Fund for Special Operations. During 1993, such ex
penses were charged 34.3% to the Fund for Special Op
erations and 65.7% to the Ordinary Capital (1992—40.1% 
and 59.9%, respectively). 
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FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

Technical cooperation 

All non-reimbursable technical cooperation projects as 
well as certain reimbursable financings which may not be 
fully recovered are charged to income or the technical co
operation contribution account at the time of approval. 

Cancellation of the undisbursed balances of technical 
cooperation projects are recognized as income in the pe
riod in which they occur. 

Note C—Restricted Currencies 

Cash includes $1,219,772,000 (1992—$1,203,738,000) in 
the non-convertible currencies of regional borrowing mem
bers, of which $137,078,000 (1992—$128,543,000) has 
been restricted by one of the members to be used for mak
ing payments for goods and services produced in its ter
ritory, in accordance with provisions of the Agreement. 

Note D—Investments 

Note B—Maintenance of Value 

In accordance with the Agreement Establishing the Bank 
(Agreement), each member is required to maintain the 
value of its currency held in the FSO to the extent estab
lished by the terms for the respective increases in contri
bution quotas. Likewise, and subject to the same terms of 
contribution quota increases, the Bank is required to re
turn to a member an amount of its currency equal to any 
significant increase in value of such member's currency 
which is held in the FSO. The standard of value for these 
purposes ranges from the United States dollar at its 1959 
value to the United States dollar at its value in effect at 
any given time. Holdings derived from the 1983 and 1990 
increases in contribution quotas (see Note F) do not have 
maintenance of value protection. 

The General Counsel of the Bank has rendered an 
opinion that since the effectiveness on April 1, 1978 of the 
Second Amendment to the Articles of Agreement of the 
International Monetary Fund, which eliminated par values 
of currencies in terms of gold, the Special Drawing Right 
(SDR) has become the successor to the 1959 United States 
dollar as the standard of value. The Bank's governing 
boards have not made a decision on this matter. If the SDR 
were to have been substituted for the 1959 United States 
dollar on December 31, 1993, the financial position and 
the results of operations of the Bank—Fund for Special 
Operations—would not have been materially affected. 

"Amounts required to maintain value of currency 
holdings" represent amounts due from member countries 
for maintenance of value adjustments resulting from the 
changes in the values of currencies in 1972 and 1973. Such 
amounts include $5,387,000 (1992—$5,387,000) for 
which payment responsibility has not been assigned as they 
relate to outstanding loans repayable at borrowers' options 
either in the currencies disbursed or in the borrowers' cur
rencies. The obligation for payment of this amount is be
ing allocated to individual members on the basis of the 
currencies received in loan repayments. 

The investments of the Bank—Fund for Special Opera
tions—are stated at amortized cost which approximates 
market value. 

The amortized cost and estimated market values of 
investments are shown in Appendix II-l. 

Proceeds from sales of investments during 1993 and 
1992 were $333,674,000 and $306,416,000, respectively. 
Gross gains of $3,187,000 and gross losses of $246,000 
were realized on those sales in 1993 (1992—$2,205,000 
and $1,000,000, respectively). The average return on in
vestments during 1993 and 1992 was 5.96% and 6.56%, 
respectively. 

The Bank limits its activities of investing in securities 
to a list of authorized dealers and counterparties. Strict 
credit limits have been established for each counterparty 
by type of instrument and maturity category. 

In May 1993, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued a new standard, "Accounting for Certain In
vestments in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS 115). SFAS 
115, effective for the Bank as of January 1, 1994, requires 
the Bank to classify its liquid investment portfolio as held-
to-maturity, available for sale, or trading. 

The Bank has decided to classify the majority of its 
liquid investment portfolio as trading. The remainder of 
the portfolio will be classified as held-to-maturity. In accor
dance with SFAS 115, all investments classified as held-to-
maturity are to be reported at amortized cost, and invest
ments classified as trading are to be reported at estimated 
market value with unrealized gains and losses included in 
net income. Therefore, effective January 1, 1994, the liq
uid investment portfolio classified as trading will be re
ported at estimated market value with unrealized gains and 
losses included in net income. The initial adoption of SFAS 
115 will result in the recognition of a net unrealized gain 
of $1,678,000. 

Note E—Loans Outstanding 

Approved loans are disbursed to borrowers in accordance 
with the requirements of the project being financed; how-
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

ever, disbursements do not begin until the borrower and 
guarantor, if any, take certain actions and furnish certain 
documents to the Bank. Of the undisbursed balances, the 
Bank has entered into irrevocable commitments to dis
burse approximately $13,732,000 at December 31, 1993. 

The Board of Executive Directors has authorized partic
ipations by the Social Progress Trust Fund (Trust Fund) in 
the United States dollar or local currency portions of loans 
made from the FSO, provided that, with respect to such 
loans, the provisions of the Social Progress Trust Fund Agree
ment have in substance been complied with as fully as though 
the loans had been made initially from the Trust Fund. 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note A, in Octo
ber 1993, loans made to or guaranteed by Suriname with 
an outstanding balance of $1,591,000 as of December 31, 
1993, were placed in nonaccrual status. In addition, loans 
made to or guaranteed by Haiti with an outstanding bal
ance of $186,506,000, as of December 31, 1993, of which 
$11,339,000 was overdue, were placed in nonaccrual status 
in April 1992. The effect of the foregoing resulted in a 
decrease of $3,400,000 in income for the year ended De
cember 31, 1993. The net effect arising from the placing 
of loans to Haiti in nonaccrual status coupled with the 
recovery from loans in Panama in March 1992, resulted in 
a decrease of $2,317,000 in income for the year ended 
December 31, 1992. 

On February 10, 1994, the Bank received payment of 
all amounts overdue on loans to borrowers in Suriname, 
which came out of nonaccrual status. As a result, income 
from loans for the year ending December 31, 1994, will be 
increased by $23,000, corresponding to income that would 
have been accrued in previous years. 

No changes to the "Allowance for loan losses" were 
deemed necessary for the years ended December 31, 1993 
and 1992. 

The average maturity on loans undisbursed and out
standing and the average interest rate for loans outstanding 
at December 31, 1993 and 1992, are 14.25 years and 14.31 
years, respectively, and 1.96% and 1.96%, respectively. 

N o t e F — C o n t r i b u t i o n Q u o t a s A u t h o r i z e d and 
S u b s c r i b e d 

Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing demand obligations 
have been or will be accepted in lieu of part of the pay
ment of the members ' contribution quotas. The Canadian 
contribution quota is being increased by collections of 
principal, interest and service charges on loans extended 
from the Canadian Trust Fund administered by the Bank. 

In January 1990, the Board of Governors authorized 
an increase of contribution quotas in the equivalent of 
$200,000,000 payable during the years 1990 to 1993 in 

freely convertible currencies to be designated by each 
member country at the rates of exchange in effect on 
March 20, 1989. 

The following table summarizes the changes in con
tribution quotas subscribed for the years ended December 
31, 1993 and 1992 (in thousands): 

Contribution quotas 
subscribed 

Balance at January 1, 1992 $8,703,975 
Contribution by Canada— 

Trust Fund collections 1,986 
Contributions by members 

approved in 1992 7,200 
Decrease in the U.S. dollar 

equivalents of contributions 
approved in 1983 and 1990 due to 
exchange rate fluctuations (46,548) 

Balance at December 31, 1992 8,666,613 
Contribution by Canada— 

Trust Fund collections 1,853 
Contributions by members 

approved in 1993 — 
Decrease in the U.S. dollar 

equivalents of contributions 
approved in 1983 and 1990 due to 
exchange rate fluctuations (19,363) 

Balance at December 31, 1993 $8,649,103 

The composition of amounts receivable from mem
bers for the years ended December 31, 1993 and 1992 are 
as follows (in thousands): 

Amount 

Receivable from members 

Regional developing members 
United States 
Canada 
Non-regional members 

Total 

1993 1992 

,036,526 $ 995,878 
269,119 269,118 

28,468 29,646 
202,675 228,143 

,536,788 $1,522,785 

Certain currencies held by the Bank which are de
rived from authorized contributions in 1983 and 1990 are 
not subject to the maintenance of value provisions of the 
Agreement. 

At December 31, 1993, the cumulative increase in the 
United States dollar equivalents of contribution quotas 
because of exchange rate fluctuations was $30,423,000 
(1992—$49,786,000). 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

Membership 

On April 21, 1993, the Bank's Board of Executive Directors 
decided that the Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia 
(SFRY) had ceased to be a member of the Bank and that 
the Republic of Bosnia and Herzegovina, the Republic of 
Croatia, the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, the 
Republic of Slovenia and the Federal Republic of Yugosla
via (Serbia and Montenegro) are authorized to succeed to 
the SFRYs membership. Accordingly, the contribution 
quotas representing SFRYs membership in the FSO of the 
Bank have been classified as unallocated until each suc
cessor republic succeeds to the membership of the SFRY. 
The Republics of Croatia and Slovenia have since become 
members of the Bank. On June 21, 1993, the Government 
of the Republic of Macedonia declined the offer to suc
ceed to the membership of the SFRY in the Bank. 

Note G — General Reserve 

Years ended 
December 31, 

1993 1992 
Cumulative adjustments 

beginning of year $(1,717) $4,072 
Translation adjustments 

for the year (4,190) (5,789) 
Cumulative adjustments 

end of year $(5,907) $(1,717) 

Note H—Technical Cooperation Contribution 

In June 1992, the Board of Executive Directors approved 
the allocation of $15,000,000 from the 1991 Ordinary Cap
ital net income to a separate account in the FSO to be 
used solely for the financing of technical cooperation pro
jects. In 1993, $349,000 was charged to this account. 

In accordance with resolutions of the Board of Governors, 
the net income of the FSO is to be added to a General 
Reserve. 

In both 1993 and 1992 the Board of Governors allo
cated the equivalent of $15,500,000 in convertible curren
cies from the General Reserve to the Intermediate Financ
ing Facility Account (IFF) for the purpose of providing to 
certain borrowers part of the interest for which they are 
liable on loans from the capital resources of the Bank. In 
addition, the equivalent of $15,500,000 in convertible cur
rencies is to be allocated annually from the General Re
serve to the IFF during each of the years 1994 through 
1996, $23,500,000 from 1997 through 2001 and 
$30,000,000 from 2002 through 2010, subject to adjust
ment by the Board of Governors. 

As indicated in Note A, the adjustments resulting from 
the translation of those assets, liabilities and contribution 
quotas which do not have maintenance of value protec
tion, are shown as adjustments to the General Reserve. 
Such adjustments consist of the following (in thousands): 

Note I—Administrative Expense 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note A—Administra
tive Expenses, the FSO shares all of the expenses incurred 
by the Bank in the Ordinary Capital including those re
lated to the retirement plans and non-pension retirement 
benefits. 

Note J—Technical Cooperation Expense 

Technical cooperation expense consists of the following 
(in thousands): 

December 31, 

1993 1992 

Projects approved 
Cancellation of balances for 

overages or projects 
not executed 

Recuperations and adjustments 
Total 

$90,258 $52,312 

(3,162) 
(1,190) 

(1,300) 
(148) 

$85,906 $50,864 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENTS—NOTE D 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Amortized 
cost 

Investments 1993 1992 

Gross 
unrealized 

gains 

1993 
Obligations of the United States 

Government and its corporations 
and agencies $ 47,493 $220,702 $ 808 

Obligations of other 
governments 210,026 133,528 983 

Bankers'acceptances 39,804 50,716 — 
Time deposits 483,410 549,467 2 

1992 

91 

Gross 
unrealized 

losses 

1993 1992 

Estimated 
market 
value 

1993 

(9,327) 
(22) 

1992 

$1,401 $ (43) $ (2,517) $ 48,258 $219,586 

(10,816) 201,682 122,803 
(8) 39,782 50,711 
— 483,412 549,467 

$780,733 $954,413 $1,793 $1,495 $(9,392) $(13,341) $773,134 $942,567 

The amortized cost and estimated market value of the above securities by contractual maturity are as follows: 

Amortized 
cost 

Estimated 
market value 

Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 

1993 
$699,957 

80,776 
$780,733 

1992 
$713,154 
241,259 

$954,413 

1993 
$700,452 

72,682 
$773,134 

1992 
$712,892 
229,675 

$942,567 

The freely convertible currencies of the above investments are as follows: 

Currencies Currencies 
Austrian schillings 
Belgian francs 
British pounds sterling 
Canadian dollars 
Danish kroner 
Finnish markka 
French francs 
German marks 
Italian lire 

1993 1992 
$12,589 $11,935 Japanese yen 

22,360 20,284 Netherlands guilders 
62,576 35,987 Norwegian kroner .. 
99,703 93,020 Portuguese escudos . 

7,122 6,013 Spanish pesetas 
8,665 7,552 Swedish kronor 

66,042 57,212 Swiss francs 
51,602 42,469 United States dollars 
26,700 27,124 Venezuelan bolivars . 

1993 
$62,621 

12,904 
2,029 
6,157 

58,725 
11,610 
15,852 

179,441 
74,035 

$780,733 

1992 
$52,632 

11,271 
1,535 
5,169 

49,233 
9,631 

13,694 
384,108 
125,544 

$954,413 
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APPENDIX II-2 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS-NOTE E 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Member in whose 
territory loans have 
been made 

Argentina 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 
$ 596,301 

41,253 
900,557 

1,536,030 
203,422 
722,857 
349,019 
700,835 
909,420 
748,198 
604,956 
329,660 
350,724 
836,396 
163,142 
558,986 
510,135 
285,971 
585,713 
395,220 

2,271 
31,314 

104,023 
101,393 
187,819 

Currency in which 
outstanding portion of 

approved loans is 
collectible 

Loans sold 
Principal or agreed 
collected to be sold 

Freely 
convertible 

Undisbursed Outstanding currencies 
Other Outstanding 

currencies 1992 

$ 264,878 
10,335 

150,448 
749,497 
164,633 
325,596 
119,817 
126,465 
129,809 
73,460 

103,836 
13,321 
29,454 

119,982 
50,431 

415,998 
80,583 

106,406 
136,032 
199,957 

12,433 
43,428 
72,923 
83,406 

$ 27,883 $ 91,451 $ 199,872 
328 

82,099 
429,389 

20,205 
158,795 
22,523 
39,359 
45,158 
36,458 
38,706 

2,461 
25,141 
46,476 
16,915 

109,792 
8,399 

28,703 
58,969 
68,423 

1,591 
11,091 
25,901 

19,377 
Total 1993 $11,755,615 $3,583,128 $259,784 $1,980,910 $5,931,793 $4,435,662 $1,496,131 

3,828 
42,755 

7,298 
7,000 
2,837 

16,529 
16,682 
11,373 
11,864 

400 
2,479 

18,547 

2,165 
27,587 
13,709 

1,141 
21,863 

2,062 
21,782 

162,608 
312,245 

62,390 
3,559 

152,237 
191,439 
145,540 
157,449 
170,337 
132,285 
145,609 

1,121 

70,699 
16,551 

149,354 

680 
7,088 
2,293 

5,975 

212,089 
30,918 

583,673 
431,533 

31,491 
327,871 
222,806 
405,604 
571,490 
517,825 
331,807 
145,602 
186,506 
552,258 
111,590 
140,823 
331,266 
149,305 
299,186 
173,400 

1,591 
11,793 
56,240 
6,688 

98,438 

S 12 
30 

501 
2 

11 
169 
200 
366 
526 
481 
293 
143 
161 
505 

94 
31 

322 
120 
240 
104 

217 $ 
590 
574 
144 
286 
076 
,283 
,245 
332 
367 
101 
141 
365 
782 
675 
,031 
867 
602 
217 
,977 

702 
30,339 
6,688 

79,061 

230,857 
32,110 

569,176 
420,866 

36,245 
349,486 
235,388 
407,788 
519,726 
457,644 
336,139 
126,166 
186,429 
499,811 
116,509 
159,074 
331,646 
157,781 
276,609 
185,307 

792 
11,789 
57,660 

8,025 
105,201 

Total 1992 $11,388,586 $3,319,858 $265,808 $1,984,696 $4,162,884 $1,655,340 $5,818,224 

The freely convertible currencies in which the outstanding portion of approved loans is collectible are as follows: 

Currencies Currencies 

Austrian schillings 
Belgian francs 
British pounds sterling 
Canadian dollars 
Danish kroner 
Finnish markka 
French francs 
German marks 
Italian lire 

1993 1992 
$ 7,809 $ 8,019 Japanese yen 

25,718 26,243 Netherlands guilders 
105,175 111,420 Norwegian kroner .. 
210,288 218,743 Portuguese escudos . 

11,392 11,719 Spanish pesetas 
7,413 7,705 Swedish kronor 

102,460 106,372 Swiss francs 
123,442 126,821 United States dollars 
28,714 30,493 Venezuelan bolivars . 

1993 1992 
$ 133,738 

17,632 
13,752 
2,782 

117,261 
22,647 
28,214 

3,427,348 
49,877 

$4,435,662 

$ 136,392 
17,634 
13,989 
2,922 

121,528 
23,427 
28,945 

3,118,722 
51,790 

$4,162,884 
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APPENDIX II-3 

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTION QUOTAS—NOTES B AND F 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Contribution quotas authorized and subscribed 

Members 
Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Belize 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Croatia 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 
Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Slovenia 
Spain 
Suriname  
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago ... 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
Total before unallocated 

amount 
Unallocated 

(see Notes B and F) .. 
Total 1993 

Adjustments 
$ 29,239 

Subject to maintenance of 
value 

Before 
adjustments 
$ 402,819 

10,955 
8,800 
1,403 

27,098 

32,535 
402,819 
202,808 
111,440 
111,385 

16,215 
3,121 

11,692 
21,721 
21,721 
16,215 
10,955 

133,396 
136,692 
21,721 
6,980 

16,215 
16,215 
10,794 

133,396 
21,721 

148,825 
259,249 

20,261 
16,215 
11,692 
16,215 
16,215 
54,492 

4,994 
1,796 

133,396 
5,280 

23,729 
29,752 
16,215 

133,396 
4,100,000 

43,502 
250,060 

42 

9,502 
61,754 
12,577 
22,565 
19,786 
3,818 

7,341 
4,151 
1,874 

6,312 

2,316 
6,569 

2,734 

15,041 

4,594 

5,871 
8,504 

13,803 

1,446 

243,574 
3,714 

12,109 

Not subject 
to 

maintenance 
of value 
$ 44,082 

3,383 
1,166 

159 
7,703 
7,200 
4,190 

51,352 
46,156 
14,430 
14,430 
2,069 

951 
3,345 
2,809 
2,809 
2,069 
2,398 

35,694 
41,693 

2,809 
899 

2,069 
2,069 
2,772 

25,468 
2,809 

66,189 
35,947 
6,235 
2,061 
2,673 
2,069 
2,069 
7,107 

801 
547 

27,807 
688 

4,596 
9,160 
2,069 

29,611 
372,304 

5,623 
35,947 

Total 1992 

7,196,116 

6,038 
$7,202,154 
$7,200,302 

499,236 

5,387 
$504,623 
$504,623 

940,486 

1,840 
$942,326 
$961,688 

Total 1993 
$ 476,140 

14,338 
9,966 
1,604 

34,801 
7,200 

46,227 
515,925 
261,541 
148,435 
145,601 
22,102 
4,072 
15,037 
31,871 
28,681 
20,158 
13,353 

169,090 
178,385 
30,842 
7,879 

20,600 
24,853 
13,566 

158,864 
27,264 

215,014 
310,237 
26,496 
22,870 
14,365 
24,155 
26,788 
75,402 
5,795 
2,343 

161,203 
5,968 
28,325 
38,912 
19,730 

163,007 
4,715,878 

52,839 
298,116 

8,635,838 

13,265 
$8,649,103 

Total 1992 
$ 481,140 

14,593 
9,966 
1,604 

35,482 
7,200 

46,227 
515,925 
261,598 
148,435 
145,601 
22,102 

15,313 
31,871 
28,681 
20,158 
13,396 

171,612 
180,898 
30,842 
7,879 
20,600 
24,853 
13,738 
162,754 
27,264 

208,042 
310,237 
26,932 
22,870 
14,412 
24,155 
26,788 
75,402 
5,828 

167,988 
5,968 
29,141 
39,047 
19,730 

163,620 
4,715,878 

52,839 
298,116 
14,501 

8,661,226 

5,387 

3,666,613 

1993 
Contribution 

quotas 
receivable from 

members 
$ 2,838 

157 
258 
9 

365 
2,400 
232 

2,838 
2,497 
798 
798 
114 
41 
163 
155 
155 
114 
104 

1,858 
1,767 
155 
50 
457 
114 
121 

1,393 
155 

2,276 
1,987 
286 
114 
137 
114 
114 
393 
40 
23 

1,409 
94 
226 
421 
114 

1,491 
21,185 

311 
1,987 

52,828 

312 
$53,140 
$73,349 
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FACILITY ACCOUNT 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 148 through 151 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Intermediate Financing Facility Account at December 
31, 1993 and 1992, and the changes in its fund balance for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management; our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements 
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial state
ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 10, 1994 
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BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

December 31, 

1993 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash 
Investments 

Total cash and investments 

Accrued income on investments 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Fund balance 
Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 780 
324,362 
325,142 

1,079 
284 

$326,505 

$ 
326,505 

$326,505 

1992 

$ 908 
309,912 
310,820 
2,276 

$313,096 

$ 1,528 
311,568 

$313,096 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Additions 
Allocation from Fund for Special 

Operations 
Allocation from Ordinary Capital 
Income from investments 

Total additions 

Deductions 
Interest paid on behalf of Ordinary Capital 

borrowers 
Increase for the year 

Fund balance beginning of year 

Translation adjustments 

Fund balance end of year 

Years ended December 31, 

1993 

$ 15,500 

15,502 
31,002 

23,747 
7,255 

311,568 

7,682 

$326,505 

1992 

$ 15,500 
35,000 
18,276 
68,776 

21,364 
47,412 

276,380 

(12,224) 

$311,568 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 

Note A—Nature of the Account 

In 1983,the Board of Governors of the Inter-American De
velopment Bank (Bank) established the Intermediate Fi
nancing Facility Account (IFF) for the purpose of provid
ing to certain borrowers part of the interest payments for 
which they are liable on loans from the capital resources 
of the Bank. For initial funding purposes, the equivalent 
of $61,000,000 in convertible currencies of the General 
Reserve of the Fund for Special Operations (FSO) was 
transferred to the IFF on December 15, 1983. In addition, 
the equivalent of $15,500,000 in convertible currencies of 
the General Reserve of the FSO has been transferred an
nually beginning in 1984; a similar amount is to be allo
cated annually by the Board of Governors during each of 
the years 1994 through 1996, $23,500,000 from 1997 
through 2001 and $30,000,000 from 2002 through 2010. 
These amounts are subject to adjustment for appropriate 
reasons related to the availability of funding for the IFF. 

Additionally, in June 1992, the Board of Executive Di
rectors approved the allocation of $35,000,000 from the 
1991 Ordinary Capital net income. 

The IFF is also authorized to receive additional con
tributions from any member country. 

Note B—Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies 

Translation of currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States 
dollars; however, the IFF conducts its operations in various 
convertible currencies, including the United States dollar. 
Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than 
the United States dollar are translated at approximate mar
ket rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the finan
cial statements. Income and expenses in such currencies 
are translated at the approximate market rates of exchange 
prevailing during each month. The adjustments resulting 
from the translation of assets and liabilities are shown in 
the Statement of Changes in Fund Balance as translation 
adjustments. 

No representation is made that any currency held in 
the IFF is convertible into any other currency at any rate 
or rates. 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Bank in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

Cash: The carrying amount reported in the Balance 
Sheet for cash approximates fair value. 

Investments: Fair values for investment securities 
are based on quoted market prices, where available. 
If quoted market prices are not available, fair values 
are based on quoted market prices of comparable 
instruments. 

Administrative expenses 

Administrative expenses of the IFF are paid and absorbed 
by the Inter-American Development Bank—Ordinary Cap
ital and Fund for Special Operations. 

Note C — Investments 

The investments of the Bank—Intermediate Financing Fa
cility Account—are stated at amortized cost which approx
imates market value. The amortized cost and estimated 
market value of investments are shown in Appendix III-l. 

The Bank limits its activities of investing in securities 
to a list of authorized dealers and counterparties. Strict 
credit limits have been established for each counterparty 
by type of instrument and maturity category. The average 
return on investments during 1993 and 1992 was 4.72% 
and 6.22%, respectively. 

In May 1993, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued a new standard, "Accounting for Certain In
vestments in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS 115). SFAS 
115, effective for the Bank as of January 1, 1994, requires 
the Bank to classify its liquid investment portfolio as held-
to-maturity, available for sale, or trading. 

The Bank has decided to classify its entire liquid in
vestment portfolio as trading. In accordance with SFAS 
115, investments classified as trading are to be reported at 
estimated market value with unrealized gains and losses 
included in net income. Therefore, effective January 1, 
1994, the liquid investment portfolio will be reported at 
estimated market value with unrealized gains and losses 
included in net income. The initial adoption of SFAS 115 
will result in the recognition of a net unrealized gain of 
$598,000. 

Note D—Translation Adjustments 

As indicated in Note B, the adjustments of assets and lia
bilities denominated in currencies other than the United 
States dollar are shown as translation adjustments in the 
Statement of Changes in Fund Balance. Such adjustments 
consist of the following (in thousands) : 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

Years ended 
December 31, 

1993 1992 

Cumulative adjustments 
beginning of year $35,585 $47,809 

Translation adjustments for the 
year 7,682 (12,224) 

Cumulative adjustments end of 
year $43,267 $35,585 

N o t e E — C o m m i t m e n t s 

The payment by the IFF of part of the interest due from 
borrowers is contingent on the availability of resources. At 
December 31, 1993 the amounts disbursed and outstand
ing and undisbursed, classified by country, under loans on 
which the IFF would pay part of the interest are as follows 
(in thousands): 

Disbursed 
and 

Country outstanding Undisbursed 

Bahamas $ — $ 42,000 
Barbados 30,003 50,485 
CostaRica 82,628 114,588 
Dominican Republic 19,106 1,166 
Ecuador 39,162 6,000 
El Salvador 18,591 — 
Guatemala 11,409 20,000 
Guyana 40,062 — 
Honduras 16,166 2,869 
Jamaica 106,294 133,724 
Nicaragua 60,170 99,949 
Panama 30,276 116,255 
Paraguay 44,878 25,586 
Suriname 8,412 1,173 
Trinidad and Tobago 46,803 113,322 
Uruguay 47,353 98,056 
Regional 338 55,652 

$601,651 $880,825 
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I N T E R M E D I A T E F I N A N C I N G FACILITY A C C O U N T 
I N T E R - A M E R I C A N D E V E L O P M E N T BANK 

A P P E N D I X III - l 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENTS—NOTE C 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Investments 

Amortized 
cost 

Obligations of the United States 
Government and its corporations 
and agencies 

Obligations of other 
governments 

Bankers' acceptances 
Time deposits 

1993 

$ 78,211 

69,786 
3,762 

172,603 

1992 

$ 9,895 

28,017 

272,000 
$324,362 $309,912 

Gross 
unrealized 

gains 
1993 

$554 

42 
2 

$598 

1992 

$8 

Gross 
tunrealized 

losses 

1993 1992 

— (34) 

Estimated 
market 
value 

1993 

— $ 78,765 

69,828 
3,764 

172,603 

1992 

$ 9,903 

27,983 

272,000 
$— $(34) $324,960 $309,886 

The amortized cost and estimated market value of the above securities by contractual maturity are as follows: 

Amortized 
cost 

Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 

1993 
$294,494 

29,868 
$324,362 

1992 
$300,017 

9,895 
$309,912 

Estimated 
market value 

1993 
$294,538 
30,422 

$324,960 

1992 
$299,983 

9,903 
$309,886 

The freely convertible currencies of the above investments are as follows: 

Currencies 
British pounds sterling 
Canadian dollars 
German marks 
Japanese yen 

1993 
$ 32,177 

9,712 
44,639 

121,783 

1992 
$ 30,505 

39,489 
107,139 

Currencies 
Netherlands guilders 
Swiss francs 
United States dollars 

1993 
$ 1,840 
30,367 
83,844 

$324,362 

1992 
$ 2,367 
31,356 
99,056 

$309,912 
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FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS 

SOCIAL PROGRESS 
TRUST FUND 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Inter-American Development Bank 
Administrator of the Social Progress Trust Fund 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 154 through 160 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Social Progress Trust Fund, which is administered by the Inter-American Development 
Bank, at December 31, 1993 and 1992, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 10, 1994 
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SOCIAL PROGRESS T R U S T F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY T H E INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

December 31, 

1993 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 

Cash 
Investments 
Total cash and investments 

Participation in loans made from the Fund 
for Special Operations 

Loans outstanding 
Allowance for losses on loans and 

participations 
Accrued interest and other charges 

On participations 
On loans 

Total assets 

458 
52 

$ 4,158 
9,872 
14,030 

113,656 
35,055 

(3,035) 

510 

1992 

456 
106 

$160,216 

$3,751 
12,449 
16,200 

124,206 
39,151 

(7,300) 

562 
$172,819 

LIABIIXriES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Undisbursed technical cooperation projects 
and other financings 

Fund balance 
Fund established by the United States 

Government 
Accumulated excess of expenses over income 
Amounts returned to the United States 

Government 
Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 1,224 

33,066 

525,000 
(215,204) 

(183,870) 

$ 34,290 

125,926 
$160,216 

40 

27,492 

525,000 
(204,308) 

(175,405) 

$ 27,532 

145,287 
$172,819 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Income 
Loans 
Participations 
Investments .. 

Total income 

Expenses 
Administrative expenses 

Direct expenses 
Indirect and overhead expenses charged by 

administrator 
Provision for loan losses 

Total administrative expenses 
Translation adjustments 

Total expenses 

Income before technical cooperation expense 
Technical cooperation expense 
Excess of expenses over income 

Accumulated excess of expenses over 
income beginning of year 

Accumulated excess of expenses over 
income end of year 

Years ended December 31, 

1993 

524 
1,973 

340 
2,837 

120 

480 
(4,265) 
(3,665) 
1,183 

(2,482) 

5,319 
16,215 

(10,896) 

(204,308) 

$(215,204) 

1992 

772 
1,847 

576 
3,195 

279 

483 
0 

762 
(714) 

48 

3,147 

4,945 
(1,798) 

(202,510) 

$(204,308) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Years ended December 31, 

1993 1992 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income) : 

Loan collections 
Purchases of participations in loans .. 
Collections of participations 
Other assets and liabilities 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income on participations 
Income from investments 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 
Net cash used for operating activities 

Refunded to the U.S. Government 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 
and investments 

Net decrease in cash and investments 

Reconciliation of excess of income over 
expenses to net cash used for operating activities 

Deficit of income over expenses 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Participation income 
Investment income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 

Provision for losses on loans and participations 
Translation adjustments 
Net cash used for operating activities 

$ 4,097 
(7,664) 
18,215 

14,648 

578 
2,001 

340 
(345) 

(9,744) 

(7,170) 

(8,465) 

(1,183) 

$ (2,170) 

$(10,896) 

54 
28 

255 
6,471 

(4,265) 
1,183 

$ (7,170) 

$ 7,476 
(19,566) 
20,726 

1 
8,637 

822 
1,753 

587 
(1,719) 

(10,579) 
(9,136) 

(10,354) 

714 

$(10,139) 

$ (1,798) 

50 
(94) 
11 

(957) 
(5,634) 

(714) 
$ (9,136) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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S O C I A L P R O G R E S S T R U S T F U N D 
A D M I N I S T E R E D BY T H E I N T E R - A M E R I C A N D E V E L O P M E N T BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 

N o t e A — N a t u r e o f the F u n d 

In 1961, the United States of America and the Inter-
American Development Bank (Bank) entered into an 
Agreement whereby the Bank became Administrator of the 
Social Progress Trust Fund (SPTF). Pursuant to the Agree
ment, the Bank charges the SPTF for salary costs of certain 
of its professional staff, other direct expenses and the 
SPTF's share of allowable overhead expenses. At Decem
ber 31, 1991, the Government of the United States and 
the Bank had agreed to final overhead rates for all years 
through 1990. For subsequent years, the Bank proposed 
to use a rate of $3.36 per $1.00 of salary cost on a provi
sional basis. 

N o t e B — S u m m a r y o f Signif icant A c c o u n t i n g 
P o l i c i e s 

T r a n s l a t i o n o f c u r r e n c i e s 

The financial statements are expressed in United States 
dollars, which is the functional currency of the SPTF. As
sets and liabilities in currencies other than United States 
dollars are translated generally at approximate market 
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the financial 
statements. Income and expenses in such currencies are 
translated generally at the approximate market rates of 
exchange prevailing during each month . The adjustments 
resulting from the translation of the Latin American cur
rencies held by the SPTF into United States dollars are 
shown in the Statement of Income and Expenses as trans
lation adjustments. No representation is made that any cur
rency held by the SPTF is convertible into any other cur
rency at any rate or rates. 

Fair v a l u e s o f financial i n s t r u m e n t s 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Bank in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

C a s h : The carrying amount reported in the Balance 
Sheet for cash approximates fair value. 

I n v e s t m e n t s : Fair values for investments are based 
on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted 
market prices are not available, fair values are based 
on quoted market prices of comparable instruments. 

L o a n s : For all loans and participations, the Bank is 
of the opinion that due to its unique position and the 
absence of a secondary market, it is not practicable 

to estimate a fair value for the SPTF's holding of loans 
and participations at this time. 

L o a n s 

Loans from the resources of the SPTF have been made to 
developing members of the Inter-American Development 
Bank, agencies or political subdivisions of such members 
or to private enterprises located in their territories. For 
loans to borrowers other than members and central banks, 
the Bank as Administrator has received in all instances the 
member 's guarantee. 

The Bank as Administrator has a policy of not re
scheduling loan repayments. The Bank as Administrator 
follows the policy of reviewing the collectibility of loans on 
a continuous basis and records provisions for loan and par
ticipation losses in accordance with its determination of 
collectibility risk of the total loan portfolio. 

The Bank as Administrator ceases to accrue income 
under all loans in a country when service under any loan 
to or guaranteed by a borrower in such country, made 
from any fund owned or administered by the Bank, is over
due for more than 180 days; income is recorded thereafter 
only as it is collected, until loan service is current under 
all loans. 

T e c h n i c a l c o o p e r a t i o n 

All non-reimbursable technical cooperation projects as 
well as certain reimbursable financings which may not be 
fully recovered are charged to income at the time of 
approval. 

N o t e C — I n v e s t m e n t s 

The investments of the Bank—Social Progress Trust 
Fund—are stated at amortized cost which approximates 
market value. The amortized cost and estimated market 
values of investments are shown in Appendix IV-1. 

The Bank limits its activities of investing in securities 
to a list of authorized dealers and counterparties. Strict 
credit limits have been established for each counterparty 
by type of instrument and maturity category. The average 
return on investments during 1993 and 1992, was 3.09% 
and 3.76%, respectively. 

In May 1993, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued a new standard, "Accounting for Certain In
vestments in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS 115). SFAS 
115, effective for the Bank as of January 1, 1994, requires 
the Bank to classify its liquid investment portfolio as held-
to-maturity, available for sale, or trading. 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

The Bank has decided to classify its entire liquid in
vestment portfolio as trading. In accordance with SFAS 
115, investments classified as trading are to be reported at 
estimated market value with unrealized gains and losses 
included in net income. Therefore, effective January 1, 
1994, the liquid investment portfolio will be reported at 
estimated market value with unrealized gains and losses 
included in net income. The initial adoption of SFAS 115 
will result in the recognition of a net unrealized gain of 
$1,000. 

N o t e D — P a r t i c i p a t i o n s in L o a n s M a d e f r o m the 
F u n d for Spec ia l O p e r a t i o n s 

The Board of Executive Directors has authorized the use 
of the resources of the SPTF to purchase participations in 
loans made from the Fund for Special Operations pro
vided that, with respect to such loans, the provisions of the 
Social Progress Trust Fund Agreement have in substance 
been complied with as fully as though the loans had been 
made initially from the SPTF. Through the purchase of 
participations in the local currency components of loans 
made from the Fund for Special Operations, the value of 
which must be maintained by the respective borrowers, it 
has been possible to substantially maintain the value of the 
SPTF resources so invested. 

N o t e E — L o a n s O u t s t a n d i n g 

Approved loans are disbursed to borrowers in accordance 
with the requirements of the project being financed; how
ever, disbursements do not begin until the borrower and 
guarantor, if any, take certain actions and furnish certain 
documents to the Bank. 

Loan disbursements have been made principally in 
United States dollars although, in the case of certain loans, 
disbursements have been made in the national currencies 
of the borrowers or in the currencies of other members. 
In accordance with the provisions of practically all loan 
agreements, loans disbursed in United States dollars may 
be repaid in the national currency of the borrower at the 
market rate of exchange existing at the date of repayment 
or in United States dollars at the election of the borrower. 

As of December 31, 1993, the only loans in nonac
crual status pursuant to the policy described in Note B, 
were those made to or guaranteed by Haiti, with an out

standing balance of $1,117,000, of which $207,000 was 
overdue. In 1992, the SPTF received payment of all 
amounts overdue on loans to borrowers in Panama, which 
came out of nonaccrual status. The effect of the foregoing 
coupled with the placing of loans in Haiti in nonaccrual 
status in April 1992, resulted in a decrease in income in 
1993, of $17,000 and in an increase in income in 1992 of 
$87,000. 

The average maturity on loans undisbursed and out
standing and the interest rates for loans outstanding at 
December 31, 1993, and 1992 are 11.29 years and 11.05 
years and 1.52% and 1.81%, respectively. 

The composition of the amounts outstanding by coun
try, resulting from participations in loans of the FSO as of 
December 31, 1993, is as follows (in thousands): 

Country 

Argentina 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

Total 

Outstanding 
participations 

$ 2,962 
3,080 

15,054 
214 

12,694 
10,360 
6,300 
9,021 

400 
1,117 

11,307 
219 

18,013 
7,154 

779 
13,744 

220 
1,017 

$113,655 

N o t e F — A m o u n t s R e t u r n e d to t h e U n i t e d 
S t a t e s G o v e r n m e n t 

The Bank as Administrator has re turned to the Govern
ment of the United States the equivalent of $183,870,000 
of the assets of the SPTF during the years 1980 through 
1993 (1993—$8,465,000; 1992—$10,354,000) for use in 
financing social development projects of the Inter-Ameri
can Foundation, and will return up to the equivalent of 
$5,742,000 during 1994. 
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A D M I N I S T E R E D BY T H E I N T E R - A M E R I C A N D E V E L O P M E N T BANK 

A P P E N D I X IV-1 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENTS—NOTE C 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Investments 
Obligations of the United States 

Government and its corporations 
and agencies 

Time deposits 

Amortized 
cost 

1993 

$9,873 

1992 

$ 9,931 
2,518 

$9,873 $12,449 

Gross 
unrealized 

gains 
1993 

$ 1 

1992 

$ 5 

$ 5 

Gross 
unrealized 

losses 
1993 1992 

Estimated 
market 
value 

1993 

$ _ $ _ $9,874 

$ _ $— $9,874 

1992 

$ 9,936 
2,518 

$12,454 

The amortized cost and estimated market value of the above securities by contractual maturity are as follows: 

Due in one year or less 

Amortized 
cost 

Estimated 
market value 

1993 
$9,873 
$9,873 

1992 
$12,449 
$12,449 

1993 
$9,874 
$9,874 

1992 
$12,454 
$12,454 

• 159 • 



INTER AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS T R U S T F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY T H E INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

A P P E N D I X IV-2 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS-NOTE E 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Countries in which 
loans have been made 

Argentina 
Bolivia ... 
Brazil . . . . 
Chile 
Colombia 

Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 

Honduras ... 
Mexico 
Nicaragua ... 
Panama 
Paraguay 

Peru 
Uruguay 
Venezuela ... 
Regional 

Total 1993 
Total 1992 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 

$ 45,900 
20,648 
61,510 
34,352 
49,008 

11,700 
8,407 

27,448 
37,689 
28,313 

7,602 
34,927 
13,035 
12,862 
7,799 

45,108 
10,350 
72,861 
8,367 

$537,886 
$537,886 

Principal 
collected 
$ 43,562 

14,968 
61,441 
34,352 
49,008 

11,700 
8,407 

27,448 
24,768 
17,818 

7,602 
34,632 
13,035 
12,862 
7,462 

45,052 
10,350 
72,861 
5,503 

$502,831 
$498,735 

Outstanding 
$ 2,338 

5,680 
69 

12,921 
10,495 

295 

337 

56 

2,864 
$35,055 

Outstanding 
1992 
$ 2,722 

5,850 
804 

376 
13,711 
10,961 

875 

500 
146 

3,206 

$39,151 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

VENEZUELAN 
TRUST FUND 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Inter-American Development Bank 
Administrator of the Venezuelan Trust Fund 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 162 through 167 present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Venezuelan Trust Fund, which is administered by the Inter-American Development Bank, 
at December 31, 1993 and 1992, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 10, 1994 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN T R U S T F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY T H E INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

ASSETS 
Cash and temporary investments 

Cash 
Temporary investments 
Total cash and temporary investments 

Loans outstanding 
Allowance for loan losses 

Investment in equities, at cost 

Accrued interest and other assets 
On temporary investments 
On loans 
Other assets 

Total assets 

December 31, 

1993 

$147,588 
(11,000) 

766 
4,347 

103 

$ 226 
119,579 
119,805 

136,588 

1,140 

5,216 
$262,749 

1992 

$168,797 
(11,000) 

399 
4,587 

$ 473 
125,754 
126,227 

157,797 

1,535 

4,986 
$290,545 

LIABELITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Fund balance 
Fund established by the Venezuelan 

Investment Fund 
Accumulated earnings 
Translation adjustments 
Less amounts returned to the Venezuelan 

Investment Fund 
Total liabilities and fund balance 

$404,060 
594,256 

(8,520) 

(727,047) 

$ -

262,749 
$262,749 

$405,412 
578,987 
(8,752) 

(685,116) 

14 

290,531 
$290,545 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED EARNINGS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Income 
Loans 
Temporary investments 
Other 

Total income 
Expenses 

Direct and indirect expenses 
Commission on temporary investments 

Total expenses 

Net income 
Accumulated earnings beginning of year 

Years ended December 31, 

1993 

$12,695 
3,901 
(392) 

16,204 

867 
68 

935 

Accumulated earnings end of year 

15,269 
578,987 

$594,256 

1992 

$16,782 
4,483 

21,265 

1,274 
40 

1,314 

19,951 
559,036 

$578,987 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending: 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 
Net cash provided by lending activities 

Other assets and liabilities 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income from temporary investments 
Administrative expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Refunded to the Venezuelan Investment Fund 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and investments 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and temporary investments . 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and amounts paid or 

collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Income from equity investments 
Administrative expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities: 
Decrease in loans outstanding resulting from exchange 

fluctuations 

Years ended December 31, 

1993 

$(14,679) 
35,364 
20,685 

20,685 

12,913 
3,532 

(1,050) 
15,395 

(42,637) 
135 

$ (6,422) 

$ 15,269 

218 
(369) 
392 

(115) 
$ 15,395 

522 

1992 

$(27,389) 
62,333 
34,944 

(227) 
34,717 

17,250 
5,586 

(1,397) 
21,439 

(55,260) 
(449) 

$ 447 

$ 19,951 

468 
1,103 

(83) 
$21,439 

$ 1,090 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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VENEZUELAN TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 

Note A—Nature of the Fund 

In 1975, the Venezuelan Investment Fund and the Inter-
American Development Bank (Bank) entered into a Trust 
Agreement whereby the Bank became the Administrator 
of the Venezuelan Trust Fund (VTF). The initial resources 
of the VTF were made in Venezuelan Bolivars for a total 
of $400,000,000 and VEB 430,000,000, equivalent to 
$100,000,000 at the rate of exchange in effect at that time. 

The purpose of the VTF is to contribute to the fi
nancing of projects and programs having a significant ef
fect on the development of member countries of the Bank 
which are relatively lesser developed or of limited market, 
or of intermediate size, through better utilization of their 
natural resources and the promotion of their industry and 
agroindustry and to expand the Bank's export financing 
program, with emphasis on the strengthening of the inte
gration plans of Latin America, and to cooperate in the 
solution of problems which may arise affecting national 
and regional economic and social development plans. 

In accordance with the Trust Agreement, the Bank 
charges the VTF for direct and indirect expenses and a 
commission on temporary investments. The direct and in
direct expense charge is determined as a percentage of 
the VTF's assets at the end of the year, excluding certain 
assets not committed under loans. The Venezuelan Invest
ment Fund may require the return of all sums received in 
payment of loans made from the VTF as well as all collec
tions of income derived from VTF resources. Amounts 
returned to the Venezuelan Investment Fund in 1993 
were $42,637,000, comprised of $41,618,000 and VEB 
55,421,000 (1992—$55,260,000, comprised of $54,340,000 
and VEB 73,617,000). 

Note B—Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies 

Translation of currencies 

The accounting records are maintained and the financial 
statements are expressed in United States dollars. Assets, 
liabilities and fund balance denominated in Venezuelan 
bolivars, which is the only other currency of the VTF, are 
translated into United States dollars at the rates of 
exchange in effect at the dates of the financial statements. 
Income and expenses in Venezuelan bolivars were trans
lated at the approximate market rates of exchange pre
vailing during each month. 

The application of the above-mentioned rates of 
exchange had the effect of reducing the United States 
dollar equivalent of the initial resources of the VTF by 
$1,352,000 in 1993 and $1,569,000 in 1992. The portion 

of amounts returned to the Venezuelan Investment Fund 
representing refunds of principal collected was also re
duced by $706,000 in 1993 and $697,000 in 1992. The re
sulting net adjustment is shown in the Balance Sheet as 
translation adjustments under Fund balance, and consists 
of charges (credits) as follows (in thousands): 

Years ended 
December 31, 

Cumulative adjustments 
beginning of year 

Translation adjustments 
for the year 

Cumulative adjustments 
end of year 

1993 

$8,752 

(232) 

$8,520 

1992 

$8,127 

625 

$8,752 

Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Bank in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

Cash: The carrying amount reported in the Balance 
Sheet for cash approximates fair value. 

Investments: Fair values for investment securities 
are based on quoted market prices, where available. 
If quoted market prices are not available, fair values 
are based on quoted market prices of comparable 
instruments. 

Loans: For all loans and related commitments, the 
Bank is of the opinion that due to its unique position 
and the absence of a secondary market, it is not prac
ticable to estimate the fair value of the Bank's lending 
portfolio at this time. 

Loans 

Loans from the resources of the Trust Fund have been 
made to developing members of the Inter-American De
velopment Bank, agencies or political subdivisions of such 
members or to private enterprises located in their territo
ries. For loans to borrowers other than members and cen
tral banks, the Bank as Administrator has received in all 
instances the member's guarantee. Loans approved are dis
bursed to borrowers in accordance with the requirements 
of the project being financed; however, disbursements do 
not begin until the borrower and guarantor take certain 
actions and furnish certain documents to the Bank. 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1993 and 1992 

The Bank as Administrator has a policy of not re
scheduling loan repayments. The Bank as Administrator 
follows the policy of reviewing the collectibility of loans on 
a continuous basis and records provisions for loan losses 
in accordance with its determination of collectibility risk 
of the total loan portfolio. 

The Bank as Administrator ceases to accrue income 
under all loans in a country when service under any loan 
to or guaranteed by a borrower in such country, made 
from any fund owned or administered by the Bank, is over
due for more than 180 days; income is recorded thereafter 
only as it is collected, until loan service is current under 
all loans. 

115, effective for the Bank as of January 1, 1994, requires 
the Bank to classify its liquid investment portfolio as held-
to-maturity, available for sale, or trading. 

The Bank has decided to classify the VTF's entire liq
uid investment portfolio as trading. In accordance with 
SFAS 115, investments classified as trading are to be re
ported at estimated market value with unrealized gains and 
losses included in net income. Therefore, effective January 
1, 1994, the VTF's liquid investment portfolio will be re
ported at estimated market value with unrealized gains and 
losses included in net income. The initial adoption of SFAS 
115 will result in the recognition of a net unrealized gain 
of $78,000. 

Note C—Investments 

The investments of the Bank—Venezuelan Trust Fund— 
consist of time deposits and other obligations of banks and 
are stated at amortized cost which approximates market 
value. 

The Bank as Administrator of the VTF limits its activ
ities in securities to a list of authorized dealers and coun
terparties. Strict credit limits have been established for 
each counterparty by type of investment and maturity cat
egory. The average return on investments during 1993 and 
1992 was 3.54% and 4.13%, respectively. 

In May 1993, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued a new standard, 'Accounting for Certain In
vestments in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS 115). SFAS 

Note D—Loans Outstanding 

As of December 31, 1993, the only loans in nonaccrual 
status pursuant to the policy described in Note B, were 
those made to or guaranteed by Haiti, with an outstanding 
balance of $2,233,000, of which $372,000 was overdue. In 
1992, the Bank as Administrator of the VTF, received pay
ment of all amounts overdue on loans to borrowers in Pan
ama, which came out of nonaccrual status. The effect of 
the foregoing coupled with the placing of loans in Haiti 
in nonaccrual status in April 1992, resulted in a decrease 
in income in 1993 of $209,000 and in an increase in in
come in 1992 of $1,238,000. 

The average maturity and interest rates for loans out
standing at December 31, 1993 and 1992, are 4.64 years 
and 5.06 years and 8.08% and 8.08%, respectively. 
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APPENDIX V-l 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE D 
December 31, 1993 and 1992 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars 

Countries in which 
loans have been made 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

Chile 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 

Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Nicaragua 

Panama 
Peru 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Regional 

Total 1993 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 

$ 2,577 
2,022 

20,587 
49,685 
51,721 

1,791 
116,821 
63,315 
52,166 
93,521 
31,967 

8,875 
6,540 

43,193 
138,722 
34,621 
20,135 
175,402 
13,320 
8,940 
3,304 

$939,225 

Principal 
collected 
$ 2,577 

1,305 
17,736 
32,985 
51,721 

1,791 
106,556 
33,110 
33,564 
84,457 
20,045 

4,518 
4,308 

27,976 
132,171 

16,129 

10,068 
175,402 

12,320 
8,940 
1,404 

$779,083 

Undisbursed Outstanding 

$ -

1,554 
5,000 

2,000 

2,000 

2,000 

$ -

$12,554 

717 
1,297 

11,700 

10,265 
28,205 
18,602 
9,064 

11,922 

2,357 
2,232 

13,217 
6,551 

18,492 
10,067 

1,000 

1,900 
$147,588 

Outstanding 
1992 

~%~ -
848 

1,485 
12,721 

13,564 
31,388 
20,759 
10,098 
13,543 

2,829 
2,281 

17,808 
6,900 

20,269 

11,204 

1,000 

2,100 

Total 1992 $929,990 $744,531 $16,662 $168,797 

Loans approved, less cancellations, include short and medium term lines of credit for export financing to the following 
countries at December 31, 1993 (in thousands): 

Argentina $ 2,577 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Nicaragua 
Peru 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 

18,885 
29,284 
51,721 

1,791 
98,100 
13,315 
74,440 

1,764 
2,875 
3,117 
8,908 

134,565 
1,000 

164,000 
13,320 
8,940 

$628,602 
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Country 

ARGENTINA 
AUSTRIA 
BAHAMAS 
BARBADOS 
BELGIUM 

BELIZE 
BOLIVIA 
BRAZIL 
CANADA 
CHILE 

COLOMBIA 
C O S T A RICA 
C R O A T I A 
DENMARK 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 

E C U A D O R 
EL SALVADOR 
FINLAND 
FRANCE 
GERMANY 

GUATEMALA 
GUYANA 
HAITI 
H O N D U R A S 
ISRAEL 

ITALY 
JAMAICA 
JAPAN 
M E X I C O 
NETHERLANDS 
NICARAGUA 
NORWAY 
PANAMA 
PARAGUAY 
PERU 

P O R T U G A L 
SLOVENIA 
SPAIN 
SURINAME 
SWEDEN 

SWITZERLAND 
TRINIDAD AND T O B A G O 
UNITED K I N G D O M 
U N I T E D STATES 
URUGUAY 
VENEZUELA 

Governor 

Domingo Cavallo 
Ferdinand Lacina 
William C. Allen 
L. Erskine Sandiford 
Ph. Maystadt 

Manuel Esquivei 
Fernando Illanes de la Riva 
Fernando Henrique Cardoso 
André Ouellet 
Alejandro Foxley Rioseco 

Rudolf Hommes 
Carlos Muñoz Vega 
Zoranjasic 
Ole Loensmann Poulsen 
Mario Read Vittini 

César Robalino Gonzaga 
Mima Liévano de Marques 
Mauri Eggert 
Edmond Alphandéry 
Hans-Peter Repnik 

Richard Aitkenhead Castillo 
Asgar Ally 
Jean-Marie Chérestal 

Jacob Frenkel 

Piero Barucci 
Omar Davies 
Hirohisa Fujii 
Pedro Aspe 
W. Kok 

Pablo Pereira Gallardo 
Asbjoern Mathisen 
Delia Cárdenas 
Crispiniano Sandoval 
Jorge Carnet Dickmann 

Eduardo de Almeida Catroga 
Mitja Gaspari 
Javier Gómez-Navarro 
Humphrey Stanley Hildenberg 
Alf Samuelsson 

Nicolas Imboden 
Lenny Saith 
Baroness Chalker of Wallasey 
Lloyd Bentsen 
Ignacio de Posadas 

Alternate 

Roque Fernández 
Hans Dietmar Schweisgut 
Luther E. Smith 
George Reid 
Jean-Pierre Arnoldi 

Keith Arnold 
Fernando Romero Moreno 
Pedro Sampaio Malan 
C. Scott Clark 
Jorge Rodriguez Grossi 

Armando Montenegro Trujillo 
Carlos Vargas Pagan 
Josip Kulisic 
EUen Margrethe Loej 
Eligió Bisonó 

Modesto Correa San Andrés 
J . Roberto Orellana M. 
Taisto Huimasalo 
Christian Noyer 
Jürgen Stark 

Willy Waldemar Zapata Sagastume 
Michael Shree Chan 
Marie Michèle Rey 
Hugo Noe Pino 
Reuven Kokolevich 

Lamberto Dini 

Yasushi Mieno 
Guillermo Ortiz 
J. P. Pronk 

Emilio Pereira A. 
Torild Skard 
Luis H. Moreno 

Germán Suárez Ch. 

Manuel Pinho 

Apolonio Ruiz Ligero 
Stanley Ramsaran 
Lennart Baage 

Adrian Schlapfer 
Carlyle Greaves 
N. B. Hudson 
Joan E. Spero 
Javier de Haedo 

As of February 9, 1994 

• 168 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND ALTERNATE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Fernando Carpentieri 
ITALY 
Suzanne Rubow (Alternate) 
D E N M A R K 

Antonio Cervera Sandoval 
M E X I C O 
Ruddy E. Pérez (Alternate) 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 

Manuel Estela 
PERU 
Julio Angel (Alternate) 
COLOMBIA 

Eduardo Feliciángeli 
PARAGUAY 
Raúl Boada R. (Alternate) 
BOLIVIA 

Jorge Ramón Hernández-Alcerro 
H O N D U R A S 
Edgar Ayales (Alternate) 
COSTA RICA 

Guy A. Lavigueur 
CANADA 
William D. Gunn (Alternate) 
CANADA 

Sonia Pérez R. 
VENEZUELA 
Juan Manuel Castulovich (Alternate) 
PANAMA 

A. Humberto Petrei 
ARGENTINA 
Bias Tomic (Alternate) 
CHILE 

L. Ronald Scheman 
U N I T E D STATES 

Jagdeesh Siewrattan 
TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO 
Havelock Brewster (Alternate) 
GUYANA 

Antonio Cláudio Sochaczewski 
BRAZIL 
Jacinto Vêlez (Alternate) 
ECUADOR 

Hiroshi Toyoda 
JAPAN 
Moshe Gal (Alternate) 
ISRAEL 

Croatia** 

Slovenia** 

Elec ted by: 
Belgium 
Denmark 
Finland 
Germany 
Italy 

Elected by: 
Dominican Republic 
Mexico 

Elected by: 
Colombia 
Peru 

Elected by: 
Bolivia 
Paraguay 
Uruguay 

Elec ted by: 
Belize 
Costa Rica 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 

Elected by: 
Canada 

Elec ted by: 
Panama 
Venezuela 

Elected by: 
Argentina 
Chile 

Appointed by: 
United States 

Elected by: 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Guyana 

Elected by: 
Brazil 
Ecuador 
Suriname 

Elected by: 
Austria 
France 
Israel 
Japan 

Netherlands 
Norway 
Sweden 
United Kingdom 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Nicaragua 

N u m b e r 
o f vo te s 

166,059 

363,794 

213,453 

119,223 

129,975 

197,304 

300,893 

Jamaica 
Trinidad and Tobago 

Portugal 
Spain 
Switzerland 

Evaluation Office 
Jean S. Quesnel, Director 

665,622 

1,556,373 

73,686 

554,644 

154,069 

1,153 

719 

Percentage of 
vo t ing p o w e r * 

3.70 

8.08 

4.75 

2.65 

2.89 

4.39 

6.69 

14.80 

34.61 

1.64 

12.33 

3.43 

0.03 

0.02 

As of February 9, 1994 

* Total may not add due to rounding. 
** T o date, Croatia and Slovenia have not designated representatives on the Board of Executive Directors. 
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PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE BANK 

President 
Executive Vice President 

Controller 
Deputy Controller 
Deputy Controller 

Auditor General 

External Relations Advisor 

Chief, Office of the Presidency 

O p e r a t i o n s D e p a r t m e n t 
Manager 

General Deputy Manager 
Deputy Manager—Region I 
Deputy Manager—Region II 
Deputy Manager—Region III 
Deputy Manager—Special Programs 

Finance D e p a r t m e n t 
Manager 

Senior Deputy Manager—Treasurer 
Deputy Manager—Policy, Planning and Capital Markets 
Deputy Manager—Cashiers and Accounting 

E c o n o m i c and Social D e v e l o p m e n t D e p a r t m e n t 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Development Studies 
Deputy Manager—Regional Cooperation 

Project Analys is D e p a r t m e n t 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Infrastructure 
Deputy Manager—Productive Sectors and Environment 
Deputy Manager—Social Development 

Legal D e p a r t m e n t 
General Counsel 

Deputy General Counsel 
Deputy General Counsel 

Plans and P r o g r a m s D e p a r t m e n t 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Programs 
Deputy Manager—Policies 

Admini s tra t ive D e p a r t m e n t 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Budget and Services 
Deputy Manager—Human Resources Administration 

Secretar iat D e p a r t m e n t 
Secretary of the Bank 

Deputy Secretary 

Spec ia l R e p r e s e n t a t i v e in E u r o p e 

Enrique V. Iglesias 
Nancy Birdsall 

Alberto Pico 
Carlos Eduardo Guedes 
(Vacant) 

William L. Taylor 

Muni Figueres de Jiménez 

Andrés Bajuk 

Paulo Renato Souza 
Frederick W. Schieck 
Carlos Ferdinand 
William R. Large, J r . 
Euric Allan Bobb 
Setsuko Ono 

Charles O. Sethness 
Carlos Santistevan 
Naoki Kajiyama 
(Vacant) 

Nohra Rey de Marulanda 
Willy Van Ryckeghem 
(Vacant) 

Lucio Graciano Reca 
Miguel A. Rivera 
Waldemar F. W. Wirsig 
Maritza Izaguirre 

John Marvin Niehuss 
Néstor H. Martínez 
J . James Spinner 

Ciro De Falco 
Richard Fletcher 
Sebastião Marcos Vital 

Richard J . Herring 
Emit Weinberg 
(Vacant) 

Pedro Luis Echeverría 
Oscar Rodriguez-Rozic 

Jorge C. Elena 

As of February 1, 1994 
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CHANNELS OF COMMUNICATIONS AND DEPOSITORIES 

M e m b e r Country Channe l s o f C o m m u n i c a t i o n s D e p o s i t o r y 

ARGENTINA 
AUSTRIA 
BAHAMAS 
BARBADOS 
BELGIUM 

BELIZE 
BOLIVIA 
BRAZIL 
CANADA 
CHILE 
COLOMBIA 
C O S T A RICA 
C R O A T I A 
DENMARK 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
E C U A D O R 
EL SALVADOR 
FINLAND 
FRANCE 
GERMANY 

GUATEMALA 
GUYANA 
HAITI 
H O N D U R A S 
ISRAEL 
ITALY 
JAMAICA 
JAPAN 
M E X I C O 
NETHERLANDS 
NICARAGUA 
NORWAY 

PANAMA 
PARAGUAY 
PERU 
P O R T U G A L 
SLOVENIA 
SPAIN 

SURINAME 
SWEDEN 

SWITZERLAND 
TRINIDAD AND T O B A G O 
UNITED K I N G D O M 
U N I T E D STATES 
URUGUAY 
VENEZUELA 

Banco Central de la República Argentina 
Federal Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Economic Affairs 
Administration de la Trésorerie, 

Service des Relations Internationales 
Financial Secretary, Ministry of Finance 
Banco Central de Bolivia 
Banco Central do Brasil 
Canadian International Development Agency 
Ministerio de Hacienda, Dirección de Presupuestos 
Banco de la República 
Ministerio de Hacienda 
Ministry of Finance 
Danish International Development Agency 
Banco Central de la República Dominicana 
Ministerio de Finanzas y Crédito Público 
Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 
Ministry for Foreign Affairs 
Ministère de l'Economie 
Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation 

and Development 
Banco de Guatemala 
Ministry of Finance 
Banque de la République d'Haïti 
Banco Central de Honduras 
Bank of Israel 
Ministry of the Treasury 
Ministry of Finance and Planning 
Ministry of Finance 
Secretaría de Hacienda y Crédito Público 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministerio de Economía y Desarrollo 
Royal Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

Department of Multilateral Development Cooperation 
Ministerio de Planificación y Política Económica 
Banco Central de Paraguay 
Banco Central de Reserva del Perú 
Ministério das Finanças 
Ministry of Finance 
Subdirección General de Política Comercial 

Multilateral, Ministerio de Comerei y Turismo 
Central Bank van Suriname 
Ministry for Foreign Affairs, Department 
for International Development Co-operation 

Office Fédéral des Affaires Economiques Extérieures 
Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago 
Overseas Development Administration 
Treasury Department 
Ministerio de Economía y Finanzas 
Oficina de Coordinación y Planificación de la 

Presidencia de la República 

Banco Central de la República Argentina 
Osterreichische Nationalbank 
Central Bank of The Bahamas 
Central Bank of Barbados 

Banque Nationale de Belgique 
Central Bank of Belize 
Banco Central de Bolivia 
Banco Central do Brasil 
Bank of Canada 
Banco Central de Chile 
Banco de la República 
Banco Central de Costa Rica 
National Bank of Croatia 
Danmarks Nationalbank 
Banco Central de la República Dominicana 
Banco Central de Ecuador 
Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 
Bank of Finland 
Banque de France 
Deutsche Bundesbank 

Banco de Guatemala 
Bank of Guyana 
Banque de la République d'Haïti 
Banco Central de Honduras 
Bank of Israel 
Banca d'Italia 
Bank of Jamaica 
Bank of Japan 
Banco de México, S.A. 
De Nederlandsche Bank N.V. 
Banco Central de Nicaragua 

Bank of Norway 
Banco Nacional de Panamá 
Banco Central de Paraguay 
Banco Central de Reserva del Perú 
Banco de Portugal 
Bank of Slovenia 

Banco de España 
Central Bank van Suriname 

Sveriges Riksbank 
Banque nationale suisse 
Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago 
Bank of England 
Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
Banco Central del Uruguay 

Banco Central de Venezuela 

As of February 9, 1994 
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COUNTRY OFFICES AND REPRESENTATIVES 

ARGENTINA, J o s é M a r i a P u p p o 
Calle Esmeralda 130, 19° y 20° Piso 
Casilla de Correo No. 181, Sucursal 1 
Buenos Aires Tel: 334-1756 

BAHAMAS, Garnet R. W o o d h a m 
IDB House, East Bay Street 
P.O. Box N-3743 
Nassau Tel: 393-7159 

BARBADOS, P a m e l a McKel l 
Maple Manor, Hastings 
P.O. Box 402 
Christ Church Tel: 427-3612 

BELIZE, J o s é Airton Te ixe i ra 
Social Security Building 
Bliss Parade 
Belmopan Tel: 82-3914 

BOLIVIA, J o h a n n A. SchmiUzle 
Edificio BISA, 5o Piso 
Avenida 16 de Julio, No. 1628 
Casilla de Correo No. 5872 
La Paz Tel: 35-1221 

BRAZIL, Dav id B. Atkinson 
Setor Comercial Sul (SCS) 
Quadra 3 - No. 40 
Edificio Planalto - 2° andar 
70300 Brasília, D.F. Tel: 321-7848 

CHILE, Paul Ernst Kohl ing 
Avenida Pedro de Valdivia 0193, 1 Io Piso 
CasillaNo. 16611, Correo 9 
Providencia 
Santiago Tel: 231-7986 

COLOMBIA, Alejandro ScopeUi R. 
Avenida 40 A No. 13-09, 8o Piso 
Apartado Aéreo 12037 
Bogotá Tel: 288-0366 

COSTA RICA, J u a n M a n u e l C o r r e d o r 
Edificio Centro Colón, 12° Piso 
Paseo Colón, entre calles 38 y 40 
San José Tel: 33-3244 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC, 
L e o n a r d o A. d a Silva 
Avenida Winston Churchill esquina 
calle Luis F. Thomen, forre BHD 
Apartado Postal No. 1386 
Santo Domingo Tel: 562-6400 

ECUADOR, R o n a l d P. B r o u s s e a u 
Avenida Amazonas 477 y Roca 
Edificio Banco de Los Andes, 9o Piso 
Apartado Postal No. 17-07-9041 
Quito Tel: 56-2141 

EL SALVADOR, 
S tephen E. M c G a u g h e y 
Condominio Torres del Bosque 
10° Piso, Colonia La Mascota 
Apartado Postal No. (01) 199 
San Salvador Tel: 23-8300 

GUATEMALA, Car io Binett i 
Edificio Géminis 10 
12 calle 1-25, Zona 10, Nivel 19 
Apañado Postal 935 
Guatemala Tel: 35-2650 

GUYANA, C h a r l e s T. G r e e n w o o d 
47-High Street, Kingston 
P.O. Box 10867 
Georgetown Tel: 5-7951 

HAITI 
Bourdon 389 
Boîte postale 1321 
Port-au-Prince Tel: 45-5711 

H O N D U R A S , Feder i co Alvarez 
Edificio Los Castaños, 5° y 6o Pisos 
Colonia Los Castaños 
Apartado Postal No. 3180 
Tegucigalpa Tel: 32-4838 

JAMAICA, J a c q u e s Cook 
40-46 Knutsford Blvd., 6th floor 
P.O. Box 429 
Kingston, 10 Tel: 926-2342 

M E X I C O , J a i r o Sánchez 
Avenida Horacio No. 1855 
6o Piso (Esquina Periférico) 
Los Morales-Polanco 
11510 México, D.F. Tel: 580-2122 

NICARAGUA, J o e l A. Ri ley 
Edificio BID 
Km. 4-1/2 Carretera a Masaya 
Apartado Postal 2512 
Managua Tel: 67-0831 

PANAMA 
Avenida Samuel Lewis 
Edificio Banco Unión, 14° Piso 
Apartado Postal 7297 
Panamá 5 Tel: 63-6944 

PARAGUAY, J o s é Agust ín Riveras 
Edificio Aurora I, 2o y 3 r Pisos 
Calle Caballero esquina 
Eligió Ayala, Casilla 1209 
Asunción Tel: 49-2061 

PERU, R o s a Olivia V. L a w s o n 
Paseo de la República 3245, 14° Piso 
Apartado Postal No. 270154 
San Isidro, Urna. 27 Tel: 42-3400 

SURINAME, Chr is t ian Will 
Peter Bruneslaan 2-4 
Paramaribo Tel: 46-2903 

TRINIDAD A N D T O B A G O , 
R o b e r t H . Bel lefeui l le 
Tatil Building 
11 Maraval Rd. 
P.O. Box 68 
Port of Spain Tel: 622-8367 

URUGUAY, V l a d i m i r Radovic 
Andes 1365, 13 rPiso 
Casilla de Correo 5029, Sucursal 1 
Montevideo Tel: 92-0444 

VENEZUELA 
Edificio Cremerca, 3 r Piso 
Avenida Venezuela, El Rosal 
Caracas 1060 Tel: 951-5533 

INSTITUTE FOR T H E INTEGRATION 
O F LATIN AMERICA 

J o s é M a r i a P u p p o , D irec tor a.i . 
Calle Esmeralda 130 - 16°, 17° y 18° Pisos 
Casilla de Correo No. 39, Sucursal 1 
Buenos Aires Tel: 394-2265 

SPECIAL REPRESENTATIVE 
IN E U R O P E 

Jorge C. Elena 
66, Avenue d'Iéna 
75116 Paris, France Tel: 40 69 31 00 
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KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS 

EIB European Investment Bank 
FSO Fund for Special Operations 
IBRD International Bank for Reconstruction and Development 
IFAD International Fund for Agricultural Development 
IFF Intermediate Financing Facility 
J ICA Japan International Cooperation Agency 
J E X I M Export-Import Bank of Japan 
JSF Japan Special Fund 
KfW Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (Germany) 
OC Ordinary Capital 
OECF Overseas Economic Cooperation Fund (Japan) 
SPTF Social Progress Trust Fund 
T C Technical Cooperation 
UNDP United Nations Development Programme 
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